
May 26, 2020 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020 

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Kit Watson                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Susan Reams        Kevin Hardiek, CIO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden       Ro Kmetz, CHRO 
         Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
         Dr. Jacobo Rivero 
         Christi Doornink-Osborn, ED Director/ 
                                        Provider Recruitment 
                                                                                                      GUESTS:             Luke Zarecor/DZA 
         Joe Lodge; DZA  
         Gary Hicks/G.L. Hick Financial, LLC 
   

CALL TO ORDER 
      A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
1.  Public Comment 
 
2. Medical Staff Development             
       a.  Review PMH Medical Staff Engagement Plan (Attachment AA)  Dr. Rivero/Christi Doornink-Osborn   
       
3.   Executive Session 
       a.  RCW 42.30.110 (b) – Real Estate – To consider the selection of a site or the acquisition of real estate by lease  
            or purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price. 
       b.  RCW 42.30.110 i(iii) – Legal Counsel - Litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice that the 
            agency has identified when public discussion of the litigation or legal risks is likely to result in an adverse legal  
            or financial consequence to the agency.   
       c.  RCW 42.30.110 (g) – Personnel – To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to  
            review the performance of a public employee.   
 
4.  Services (6:45 p.m.)  
      a.   Review Replacement Hospital Feasibility Study (Attachment BB)                            Luke Zarecor  
                                          Joe Lodge   
                                         Gary Hicks   
5.  Adjourn    

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

{‘3 Prosser 
« Memorial Health 

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 



 

May 28, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
THURSDAY, May 28, 2020 - *REVISED  

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
  AGENDA 

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Kit Watson        Ro Kmetz, CHRO 
Susan Reams                       Kevin Hardiek, CIO   
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
         Dr. Wali Martin, MD 
              
         
 

I.   CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II.   PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
       Action Requested – Agenda 
 
IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for April 30, 2020.  
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #151306 through #151771 in the amount of $4,921,713.77.       
              Action Requested – Consent Agenda  
          
V.   MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.    Medical Staff Report and Credentialing        Dr. Wali Martin          
               1.  New Appointment 

    Action Requested – New Appointment 
                   Pratik Bhattacharya, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
                   effective May 28, 2020 through November 27, 2020. 
 
              2.  Advancement from Provisional Status  

     Action Requested – Advancement from Provisional Status 
                    Becca Warnick, ARNP – Allied Health Professional staff with privileges in Family Medicine effective 
                    May 28, 2020 through September 26, 2021. 
 

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

P‘s Prosser 
L Memorial Health 

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

( C 3 —  

\ xx” ' I 
A \ / \  

l“ 
Vs 

’ 

1/ 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 



 

May 28, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

      Syed Abbas, MD – Telemedicine staff with privileges in Neurology effective May 28, 2020 through  
      December 19, 2021. 
 
      Abdelrahman Beltagy, MD – Telemedicine staff with privileges in Neurology effective May 28, 2020 
      through December 19, 2021. 
 
      Sheila Smith, MD – Telemedicine staff with privileges in Neurology effective May 28, 2020 through  
      December 19, 2021. 
 

              3.  Reappointment   
           Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges                      
      Susan Whitaker, DO – Reappointment to Active staff with requested clinical privileges in Emergency 
                   Medicine from May 28, 2020 through May 27, 2022. 
 
                   Danielle Whitley, MD – Reappointment to Locum Tenens staff with requested clinical privileges in  
                   Emergency Medicine from May 26, 2020 through May 27, 2022. 
 
 
VI.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

A. Review Financial Reports for April 2020 (Attachment DD)                                               David                                                     
   Action Requested – Financial Reports 

           
B. COVID-19 Financial Plan (Attachment M)                                                                                         David/Craig 

 
          C.    PMH Foundation Update              Shannon Hitchcock 
 

 
VII.   EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 
          A.  Review PMH Uniform Program (Attachment Y)                                                                    Ro/Merry 
                                                                         
 
VIII.  QUALITY    
           A. COVID-19 Update                                     Merry  
         
           B.  Practice Transformation Grant Update (Attachment O)                                                             Merry  
   
           C.  Legislative and Political Updates             Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
           D.  CEO/Operations Report                         Craig 
 
   IX.   EXECUTIVE SESSION  
            
         *A.  RCW 42.30.110 i(iii) – Contract - Litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice               Craig 
                 that the agency has identified when public discussion of the litigation or legal risks is likely to  
                 result in an adverse legal or financial consequence to the agency.                 
          *B.  RCW 42.30.110 (g) – Personnel – To evaluate the qualifications or an applicant for public                           Craig 
                 employment or to review the performance of a public employee. 
 
    X.  ADJOURN 
 
     



3323 3533293 Bang: 
5.m £32 

356:3 
.3c $2.62, a 

”mmuSmmm 

8E5 :55 Lou. tony. mucmEhotma 
Evans: _m:::m-_Emm 263mm .. 

Hn.__._mn.._y=§>m_._.m ._<_Uz<z_n_ 

:ozmagmucmm Emom 3&5: o 
“Pr—.230 

333m >m>._:m EmEmmmmcm 
tmum .muzums. maom 263mm .- 

3.33m >w>5m 
EmEmmmmcm wm>oEEm flow 263mm 0 

2850 Emom 263% can 52mm o 
mama 8:232 3:26 

new EmmmcmE m o~o~ 26.856. . 
mucmEBBm 383:. V6 

85:8 .25 238.85 _m_u:m:E cmfi o 
35358 9.5 Egan. o~o~ “Em 

:wE Ewan—ES. ONON 05.33325”. 0 L 
W 

3‘5. 
3 4:— 

”...zm__>_n_O._m_>m_n_ 
mm>0._n:>_m_ H>._._._55...... 

_. I -. m. _ vi burn h _ L 
538:3 $55330 .w 239 5:95. 

wucw=8xm .>u_::EEOU So “—0 5:3... wfi w>oEE_ o... Eofiflz _m_u:mc_u_ 
uuwamwm mwu_>..wm 

353:. £330 
fo‘sEmfl. Borzoi taum 76:82 

muEwm L: 00—..— _0 ICE 0 Z 
‘1‘ 

gaze—QEM 

L OmwOL A K mw3m> 
. a ' :o_m_ > 

ONON>”_ I :mE €25 
Eoco_mm_EEou v5 .225 

1.2."— 



toamz 

_ y} w 11111 11.11 H. 

mammcmm BEzEEOU mam 263mm o toawm _ 
a? 3 28m m: 8 Ewrwm w £m3wbm . flawcwm EcsEEou o~o~ w>2aa< . 1 

”E236 “E4656 
_ 

__a. 235:4 >2 team: 
_ II 

_- E54 meow of *0 53358.... o _ 
Ha__._mcm,§>m_._.m 

._<_uz<z_u_ _ __ 
tong 554 28 ESE . _ _ wu:m__n_Eou Eopflzmwm o Hn=_._mom_<>>m._.m ._<_Uz<z_n_ , _ 

toamz ___ mucmctotmn. ww>oEEm 263mm o 82m: tEEou ”ES m>oEQ< .- 
‘ Fzm=>EO._m_>m_n_ mm>o._n__>_m_ 

”._.zm=>_n_o._m_>m_o mm>0._n__>_m_ *4 52¢ 325m :o_E~___5 o~o~ m>2aa< c :039523 >3 M5255 tongsm o _ 
_

_
 

mucmEBtmn. “._.zm=>_._o._m_>m_o n_n_<._.m 
.2285. 7 263mm 533%: mam Butaz o . 

:mE EmEmmmmcm Egan. 263mm o 32.0.“. Emom m>oEa<\3m_>mm o 
H>._._._.§O._ ._.zm__._.<m "b.3436 semi 

EEmoE :ozmmcmau 35:85 ,. 
£59633 omom w>Ean¢ _Em 323m .. _ 

E336 mctotcoE . ' 
Emfimm mt_3-_3_nmo_._ 90.854 o 

I 5553 #528359 merodsm _ :2“:n growth. mfiom 263mm . _ 
toamm 52.“. sound Emom o~o~ w>oan< .- . 

_ 

3:93.:8 32038 mfiom 3E>mm .- :mE _obcou 
“>._._._<D.O 53:98; cough—E omom @2234 o 

:mE 
3:23:00 855960 <I< 6:32 a 82.2388 39.0300 omom going a 

“._.zm=>_n_o._m_>m_o mm>O._n__>_m_ 
H5.1.52.5 

EEmoE 83.6w 55330 263mm ¢ 
H5:90.. ._.zm=._.<m 

6228 3.93% 9,234 - 
H5.3904 ._.zm__._.<n_ 

cor—wusuu 8361.30 a 2.80 



5: 3:83. : :5: 32.3 . 
Baum... 

€39.35. o 
Hmm.u.>m.m.m 

cmE :ozdEQO v.52, 1.2. 2633. o 
Hn.....mn.~....$>m.....m 

._<.uz<z_u. 

mmmcmzu Emcom 3.63%. 26.5.. .- 
$82.". 

5535.5 wm>o.aEm. 262 263mm 0 
”._.zm..>.n_o._m_>m_n_ um>o.....>_m. 

mmwuoli 303m: womb—.00 . 

3939. 538%: do 88 toamm . 
5350 

20.565”. 
3.3.8.). 28.32 3059... o 

”$23.3 

.525: .m:cc< :46 flow 965%.. o 
32.9. 252. o>2ng<x3£>mm o 

H.r.._.....5.o 

L
—

h
r
fi

 —
—

—
-—

 
1

*
 

cmE EmEommmcm t .8522 o 
”E45 .4935. 

225 3:338. 
3:62 EwEmumm 3033. o 

”MmUSmmm 

328: 8.523“. :5: . 
aEEEsEm 26242.. 

EEmoE Scots: 1.)... 3933. o 
H...zm..>.n.o..m.>m.n. mm>o.....>.m_ 

.925 .358... toaasm o 
u._.zm=>_n.0..m.>m_o mm>O..n:>.m. _ 

emessm 2.83%: $8 5.5; . 
”Emsaodao NEE. 2282 

.25. 
858.83.... aEmEUmm. ma 2639. .. 

cm... EoEmmmmcm. ww>o.QEm. 253mm o 
F2m.2n.o..m.>m.o 3.6.5.2. 

co_pm=.m>m. 05 53.2.8 .- 
._.Zm__>_n_0._m_>m.n_ mm>0._n=>_m_ :ozmusum 823.30 a 28m 



328.: 2262.8 
mon_\m:__=_85m 853.28 . 

”228355 ._<_uz<z: 

Baum: mmficmz o 
H..,._._.=q_:...o 

c233 v_._o>> 28¢ 02 
EmEmmmmE .wEEzm mo .25 3:33 o 

:3... __m 
25 $9. .8622 00m .8 E23 

”._.Zm=>_n_0._m_>m_n_ mm>0._n:>_m_ 

2.; Saar—om mczcsouuémz 3032* . 
3:928 mEmucfim .30m 

B 852). _m_u:m:_u_ :53 8388 o 
26w 8523 Bang .- 

3E5 _.__>_n_ Eu— toawm 8:220t 
_m_u:mc_n_ .msccm-_Ewm 3223. o 

mn=Im0m<>>whm 
._<_Uz<z_n_ 

325: 5.8: wm>oEEm o 
“._.zm=>_n_o._m_>m_o mm>o._a_>_m_ 

mEmu 28m 25 #558 w 03393 .- 
toamm mmEEEou 3:30 o 

H>..._._,q_.5.n. 

323mm 9:232 5232 263mm o 

53933. 
36:85. 522.2 w>9aa< o 

“mmuSmmm _ 

FE". :22 m>oEn< o 
263mm m_>_m_ .- Hn:_._mcz.§>m_._..m 

._<_uz<z_n_ 
”mmuSmmm 

33:3. 
5.2o EmEmwmmcm 3553mm... ucm imam 

cos—25829.... .2323 263mm . 3235. 60m EEEsmEE 233 o 
”>.S<>O._ ._.zm=._.<n_ “._.zm=>_n_o._m_>m_o mm>o._n=>_m 338:3 ugzumio a £30 



“mm—235w 

:2... 9.8 
“E Emfico.._>cm_ flow «5 9653. .- 

rL—
___i- 

:mE 23 $26.... .988 m>o.&<\3w_>mm . _ 

u_o EmE:E_>:m_ o~o~ on... 2633. o mcozmamfiéwm Emom mEEEou o 
”>536 Essa _- .BEBWP 

5mg... 88 :2... 25.8.. . . . 
EEmDM—SSmhm ._<_UZ<Z_H_ 

:mE EmEtEuwm 
Essen. 28.28.). mg .8522 

.2; .22“. H. .25 €39.55. :8 
32¢ ufiflmbm New #96 263mm 

.mmUSmmm 

355:5 .muBm 
>3 :0 3v: 33% ucm 29.. 

263mm. 
”HZNEn—Ofism—o mm>O._n:>_m_ 

325: @9352 

Easing—:8 >238 .8 puma—um: 
xm... 3.2.9.". 25 “mmuzm 9.8%.... o 

nn.__._.mn_m_...:<m_._.m 
._<_uz<z_n. 

Umbcou mEUmuZ $6.59... .- 
”E226 ”Emsaodio 55:3 . 595202.. 322.: mmmacmz 3&5”. .. -- I - .._ 

mEmu 28m 2 mo Egan. w gmflmbm o . 
Ewbmm _ mcEcmE amwumbm Hmow 522.8 o _ 

”Kind fl , I seamen ._ 

a 
5.552. 9.3%... :5... 32mm . _ ___ 558%.,55 2624.2: .. _, 

322$ wExcmm 2633. o «8:9. Emom 30.333251 o . — 
”Au—ImDm—(‘fim—hm ._<_UZ<Z_H_ ”Fr—443.0 layer-0 .91 H 

5:333 3:33.30 a nice £85. 



cor—9528 amaze; 3:32 o 
”._.Zm:>EO._m_>m_n_ mm>0._n:>_m_ 

mpwwtsm 

Eta—mu new @5880 Hmom m>oaa< o 
‘_._ E__._mn_m<>>m_._.m 

._<_UZ<Z_H_ 

car... EwEuEbwm 
3530...“. Hmo~\_mco_>_ tmpm 

_mu__ow_>_ ucm “ms—2n. ._._ tam 933$.)— 
HSN am: “.339; Rom $052 . ___ c2353 mm>=um30 w 2a 



Baez—.... 0:0 000... n. .000 
I .50... 0200.00.00... 

.30 3200 00.3 :5... 0.0.2 .00.. 

.30 00 $0.. 5&3 30:0 

fimw 0%.... E13 _ . “hm-mu $0.3 _fifium 
. H 030 v 00:09..”— .30._kam:00xm ..on. 0.. .50... $0.00 03.2 03.0.. 

. £20 A ...... 3.20558 nude... . A . _. . . . . mmda... 
A 0:0... :0 £000 0 an... 

03.03 «.00 .00 0.. 000 m. 0.. .. _ In... 
. . I gunman v 05.02300 05.20 0 

«3&0 H. Ewdm §.mw $m.3 «$.00 
u. 03:053. 00: ..0 fl. v.0 003m..— 000.0% 003.3 000 00 m .. .... 

803 m 30.3 ... 0.3.0.. ... 000000 A 0.00253. 05003.0 0.02. .03..“ «momd .. h . . ... . . . . _ . -_ .. 
I. name...” A g .30....— 0000 0000 ._ . _ .....I... 

.A . A .. . . ”0.03. 2%...800 3:080... c. «>3 0oz . . _. _ .II. | 
mmn EN Nu m: mlmw 

.. _ - _....II 
I RN A 

000.0 .034 . 00......“ 
N00 0 00.3 A 3.05 0.0.5.. 

mhm..." «N0 H . u . . . mom...“ m0n....A 
0.t aqua—0.. 00000.0( 

R0... $0.2 . . . . . . . . $0.: 08.0. $0.00 A A2233... an. 
30.4 hMm...” 

mm... A m3.“ mam u dun? 
_... @HHHN 

A 0000—0000.... 00.0.0.0. 0.009.005— 
hHH a..." 

. . . . . . . 0N... 
A 00.00.000.000 tam 00.00%— 

Hm hm mm mm 0m 
. IMM- 

- _ mm A 00:02.3 m0 
mu mm . . mm ow A 20.00.53. «00.03:. 

0mm 08.0 A . -. 00.... a F ln. No.0 A 
. _ - ..IIIIIFI 

"III. .I.. 
I H. . _.. _ 

$3.0m 
.....mdm . . . .. 00mm Ram. I I .- . «mmdm 0. 0.0000 Eng... ..0 mAufid 20.000030 I 2050005.). 03.2.0.9 

«and $.04... .. ..nu .. . .... gnu-I. *hflv 
«and and _.. find 03...... 3.03.. M I u_ «wad v 0.5.... 05.0.” .... on." ..0 000m. 00.0000... 030.0003 2005.00: 

.n. m ”III“ 
I a H a - . u m v EPE. 5.3 0:0”... 

03.... 0...... 
. . | - Erma-H 

_...Ed .80...“ v 000.... m:.0m 505...... #0.. 
I Emu—0:005 om. - . 

- -. II I . I Il I _. 
..He mm .3... I ...00.0 00.0. 

- 
and. L. 0.3 v 000.. .. 

$2 .08 
l . #0 an. Rm I ll... 03... v ..flwu 100%.... 0...... .502- 

mud mm..." H. __ . . . mad A FEE—.0... 00.00%— 
xmdlm 

an...“ 3000 . 08.00. _. . $0.00. __ 00$ A “5.0.3.90 ...msfl 
find 3&0 find .50."... 

....a = and v 005. 0050.....3 
«and... 03.3 fin .0 . 08...... #0.... 

_ «Sufi v 0000.. .505000 
I acuwd 

gmé wafim A . _.. . . . . 03.0 
v HEB)... 0.50... .wuotmfiEgD 

I 05.0.0.5 u.0 050... 
n.» mm A 0.3. 

. . . mm v ”00.000003 0.5.0.00... 2000 00 u 
«<2 mm . . mm 9.... 

._ mm v .0220. 0.0.... 00050.23». 0 Eo>< 
._ . . .... _ 

A I - ..EUE 0.0.6: 00 
00. H0. . . . . . ...m A .000... 30.005. 0200.... +0 a... 

mm ow . u A .3 A 0.0..0 Em... 02002.0. E00 
«<2 mm... . . . me... A 03:00 5.00... “_coEog 
(NZ wmm . . .amm mam A 3.05 0.5.0 30.20500 

Hum 8m mum . A mum amen A 3.05 0.5.0 0....— 00000.... 
«hm wmm 0N... . . 00m moo... 

A 00.0.5 0......0 3.0 sou—cum 
an» 0mm Rm . A Hmoa .. -. . - . mwofi A 00.05 0......0 3.900 m 

$0.: and . ..Wlp 
. 3.0.... -A r - RNA. v .0>0c..:...t5m .00....02 u WEI -.-I . _I . .II, -. . I ....0—030: $500 $¢.mw Ema-E 08.3 03.3 

. .- .A. A. .. ...l 
‘I 

$¢.wwA ...EuEEOuux 0.002...- 05.00 0.5 
$000 $3.... $000 gnu. Am . .... .. 

was? ...EAEIEooom 
3:25.. 5.5.0 

0330 Wmfim 
. . ...—.0... . . . ....I. 

$3.0m 
A ....EoEEOBm 0.303.. I won 5.5m 

$03 80.8 30...... 05.0.... ....Vm 
......m-mm 0.0.00 88 A ....EmEEoumx 0.3.5.. - roman 05.03000 .3q .dm 0380... 

. g. 
. finfim A ..000EE000... 0.302.... I no 

«mun-mm $0.0... ..l. «animal 3 
.| | 

«and... A ..tcofifigom 0.00.5: I. 0.50 3:04 
0008 08.8 

...-...}... 30-0. _ mm 08-00 0.0.0... :08 A ...EoEEouom 0.3.5.. - 00 .3m 03.3 
. ml 

I ..l 3.0.3 «3.3 
A ..1:0EE000= _..—.25.. I A: 

”IuwIwII-hIIAHIIH .II. I m IA. -- I .4“-u.. 
. . ... I I . 

m < .... as: is. . ...}. _ 5.5.2 . 000 
I.. ...: .80 00..” 205...... a “no... .30 . 2... 

00000.03 cm... 0.0.30.5 I omen _ 5.00: .utoEm: \III 
. 0 . . 

III-I...- w IE- - III-I .. . . - .. _ ..mwwOLn. 4...... 



_.....” _mOmVBOEfl 
.XDH Cart. mLOE tmm 

. .. HUGH—.0 *DH :_—._H__5 gnu—flap... 

m m mv I ea... 55. 2.3.. m .n .9. fimmEna w no. m:o_umo_v:_ _wu_:__u «305:5 mama; mmv 203315... 
a m... we.“ _ouficmk utmEsucum moan—Eaten. =36 __Eu>o... 

(z $0.9m «pawn mamccmuw £333.q mumm— 
<z «86m mama 

|fiu|fl=ma d #4530. 3-30:0“. $335.00 
:3 33 $9.? mo. canoes Ba _3_ .8 

<2 n P $555. 5 v a «Ema a mu. mum. 3 BE... :3q 
am om non—:55. omv 

.amslflmclfiflkm 50* mm! ..o mouse—E. cm “—0 9:: “...—3055.; 2.3.3 a 2...2" $8 $8.8 3K3 
Hmll «8? 33398 =o_a___u:8mm Bragg: 

*omém fimmdm yaw. wm a? fimu. hm mammdmv E. “—32% .6 TO? Eon—EEO - EqnmcmE “30355 
«Sad $3.0 a 1thumlll E5... 

.336“. 339...... and Len. 3mm 5.38:. 33633 28:53: 
5.2 fimflm .38. cm GM... 

*8. 8 88." :9 £26 - «2:55 mq £5? 5.9% «34% «3.3 xomfim . 
38.. 
um .Emm. mm $93K GE 2155 EwEu acmE _..mm-m_ um. 

«SN «36 xmmfi 3mm. .ml 
...tl_ 

.3d hummus—g. w 93 mco_mm_Eun%o om uoccmica $354.4 
«Boa mafia U ... «8:? a 3:2: i am: comm wEum ESE? flu.— , 3:56 anon m3” _nE. 

e~o~ _ :02 H5 anon u:< >_:_. ac..— .EE # __._n< _ 
_._u._n_2 _ no”. 52 .39 mam Banana—u:— uw maE< _namv 59—55— 

.. 
|.._w= ”005.com 

mu- 
we. 0.... Huan— 

.. ONON 5.3: _atoEmz 
AJIV 

mu..- Wm... 
IHIJH 

....UT- .. . _ m.u|_||_LLI 
. _LvILu H- I... .n. 

: l—mmmOLQA" 



60:5Q D “Em 
.3330 o 938 E h FE; 

.99.m can “Emma .mcoBmEEoo S .8388 
um; 5:22 of. .35? Emmcou 2: ~39.a <a2mw< 

252 B :o_...oE m 288 3.5mm 5:23:88 282 #23o u>O¢mm< .>_ 
.3533.» o ucm 

.3330 o .828 :_ 5 fits 
umnmmn ucm 5.3mm EcofiflEEou >9 32.83. mm; 5:2). 9:. .mucmm< of 395% 

B :2o m mumE mEmwm 8co_mm_EEou mcoz . (Dam—Gd m>0¢ma< .=_ 
952 252 282 EoEEou 33:“. 

.= 

wcoz 
.Ed 85 pm .553 3:28:88 

>3 EEO 3 3:3 mm; mczmmS. 
III-L 

a FQmmama 
- I 3.9.03.5 ._ 

_ 

000 $8235 coca—Em a 553 5:3. 
Odo 6823.2 55. o :8m 5. 

06 £26n :38. o .o._>_ .5520 
229$ 

05.6 595. ox o :mEsom coucfim 

96 55:01 225 . mEmmm :mmsm 
00u\ozu 5:2“. 255. . Smsmummm 2:20 

(No .45 wsmcfi Eo... o 056 5w=om cmtm .5 o 05 6:22 mfib o >53. 3m .5 

-. 11.1 I . - Ur _ _ 35.2 w 
wucw=wuxm .>u_c:EE0u .50 mo 5.m wcu w>o._QE_ o... “cofiflz _m_ucmc_n_ 

unwammfl mwu_>._mm 
333:. 3:?0 

xLOBEmwF Borzoi tan—m .mfivwi 
wu_>..wm C:— U 0 I _U T. 0 E m 2 

‘J 

mmmiEm 
>u___nmuc30uu< 

L m m m 0 L 
mucwfimn. 

mm:_m> a A" COGS 



.22... 6:6... 3...... 
as. 95 >52 

92 53.6.8.2 2:83 
05. .w_mE>_n. 5:52 

on 62.x mu_co..w> 
as. .fi..._mz ._>_ .23 

.8533... o 
ucm 

.8330 o .82... c. n 5.2. uwmmma 5.35. 
2.... .5530... .o:o_mm_EEou .5 raucouom can 

.653 3:23:88 >2 mom... m9... 322.6... 
9.36:8 m... .0 EEmEEBn—um .sm: 2: .6.— 

mmEEEou m>==umxm .8522 9.... mEEou 
9.355.020 m5 596 EmEtSmo 

2: >9 uwucmEEoum. .2... 3.5w. 53 
9.9. “E: 33.3.3 28.2.6 umpmmsam: E... 

:. mamm=>tn @3333. 5.2. :3... 
3:23.82... .23... uw___<\_mco_m_>o..n_ I .25 5:3“. 5.2. 

.88 .mm .3390 
F.39.... 88 .8 =3... 3.8.... 

$20.32 5 33:2... 333:3. 
5.2. tau—m w:_u_qm_wI_I\_m:o.m_>o.n. 

I as. s... 252 

.88 Q .8800 swat... 
88 am .29.. 3.8% $22.28 

2......q 5 83.3.3 “.3833. 
5...: t3... >mwtsou\_m:o_m_>o.n_ 

I as. Ewan—8.2 2:22 

.88 .mm 
.8890 £9.25 

o~o~ dm =34. grout... $20.? 8 
3.533.. :. mmmm=>tg 333:3. 

5.2. tmum >mwtzou\_mco_m_>o.n_ 
I as. ~2.2.5:. 

525.2. 

.88 .mm .3300 :95... 
Row .8 E9... $.5t >m22.5. 
armocmmfi c. 83.3.... @3333. 
5.2. +23% m:_u_qm_mI_I\_mco_m_>o.n_ 

I on. .25: mu_:o..u> 

.82 .3 .238 .38.... 
88 .om =5... 338...... $22.93. 
osmocmso c. 33.3.... “.3839. 

5.2. t w:_u_uw:.w_m..\_mco_m_>o.n_ 
I as. .5532 .5. 3.3 .mucoEE_onn< 

EmEEBnam 6...... as... 92a B :28... < 262 9.3.2.2 mEI c358... 
«3:8 .5 

MIIIII..II.._.II. IflIIr. 
. ....| 

IIIHM .I..II...ai__ 
_ .I 

#:555q 
tau—m $3.35. .m 

m 
I._I.In.. 

Im.- 
. I_I..- ENERWSEI "EB .55... 
___ u565.59.”... I-.. 

I WIN—Wm. I I|<IDIZNGI<- 



o_>_ imam “28¢ 
92 .8232 55.33 

as. ___mE< HESS 
92 5E2). «.9332, 

0.2 68522.. 389:. 
.853Q o .25 

.3830 o :38 E h FEB 
33m :25: 9:. 3.23% EcofiflEEou 

>2 820m ucm mEmmm .mcoaflEEou 
>3 2.2.: mm; EmuSoE 9:50:09. 2: “—o 

“5:..an of L8 mmEEEou 9539m— 
_mu_um_>_ new $55.88 mEEBEuEu 

2: £95 EmEtmamo 2: 3 umucoEEouE 
tam 59525.. :mmn gm: SE. mmmm=>ta 

.mmow .mN 
5.22 zmzefi 88 .mm news. :5: 

36:85. EcmmhmEmEcfifimE 
>__Emn_ E mammzzi .mu_c__u 3333?: 

5:5 t3». 
w>=u< S EmEEBaammm 

.. 22 £3.22 $.33? 
.28 ‘mm 555. .3325. 

omom 4mm £822 :8: 868055 
E 33:23 _mu_:__u umfimscfl 

its :8...“ 
w>=u< 3 EmEEBaammm 

I 2). 609.022.. nachos... 
"mucwEqnEmmm 

wcoz .mu_:__u “.3833; of 923m 3 .539: < m:_26__o.. 2: 63:32.“. 9.2.8 .5 

.28 .8 .338 .3325 Rom “om __.a< wiUmtm @5235. >ucmmhmEm. 
92 .m2 mzmc< o E mmmw=>ta its :3... 

mam—E... E33 
as. 695.. «.885 o I as. .mz 2.9.3 

92 £333 .m __u_w_._ .- 
35333 o .88 .8 .338 59.2.: 

Em 633% o co>£ E h FE; 59..m 
core—2 o~o~ dm =E< wifiwtm BEES; 

2:. .cuEmE EcofiflEEou >3 umncoumm :_ 83:23 5:? :3..." 
326... E33 

“Em mEmmz EcofiflEEOU >5 wumE $3 I as. .033 89.2.... 
Emu—“.395 956:2 Lou— mBBm 35332; SP: 

EmEmu: ~23 2: B“— mEEou @2585. .33 6m 50.060 
.3522 EB «QEEEOU wczmzcmuwhu smack: o~o~ dm __.a< wkfimtm 

as... £20 EmEtmnmo 05 >3 coucwEESE z>w\mo E mwmwzza 5:5 :3...” 
3:3 

“Em 32.25.. :83 96... SE mmmw__>_._n_ I as. .3525 .m Eu... 
_mu_:__u LE fiasco. ucm mBSm .m:o_m_>ot_n_ "ma—3m _a:o_m_>o._n_ E9: acuEwucm>u< 

252 E9“— cEmucgud 9: 32a 3 :ozoE < 9.33:8 9: “.3535 96:8 .5 

.83 “an. 
30.85 .3225 



o_>_ ~mc_v_ 
$t 

0.4:... £9.66 896... 
on 6822 gurumn. 

92 Egg: .u. 
3%. 

Q). 3323 :52. 

0.2 63:; mm: 

on 58:55... £3. 
92 “cemaEmm 

22:2. 
95. gap—Em 326:6. 

as. 5390 SENSE 
92 £255.85. >cmfimm 

0.2 cQOcsS who—gown... 

0.). 53:3. :E< 
as. ~_v_mB.:u..~u 

25H 

t cEmEoE... 3 EoEqnnwmx 
I Q). Easy—“569.2 Ewe—pun 

.NSN .mm 
sews. $525 

omom 6N 59:22 Eat $0.252 

:_ 83:25 .mo_:__u 33833.. 55, 

tau w:_u__qm_w.r B EmEqgammm 
I 92 .ocuafl 

9.293;... 

.mmom 
.mm 

52.22 3:25. 88 an 63.2 
Eat $2252 E 83:25 _mu_:__u 

53333.. 525 tSm mEuEmEEE. 

3 EwEHagmmm I as. .2525. 
p_E< 

.NNDN 
.3 £9.22 £9.25 omom 6N _._9_m_>_ 

E9: 30.252 5 83:25 $256 
33833. FEB tSm «£23522. 3 

E32038: I as. .3856 2.3 

.33 
fl 63.2 .3395 88 ‘3 

535. 
E2”— >mo_o.:mz E mammzaa .mu_:__u 

“.3353. FEB tSm mEuEmEmE... 

B EmEaamom I as. finsm Ee< 
.NSN ‘mw 

£9.22 £9.25 
o~o~ .3 

news. E89, $29.52 

5 83:23 _mu_:__u 333332 fits 

tau oEuEmEEm... B Epaammz 
I as. 58:33 :_Em_cum 

.NNON 
.mm 55.2 fines o~o~ .mm 5.22 

E2“— >mo_E=mz E "Emu—EB _8_c__u 
“.3332 5:5 tab mEuEwEmE... 0... 

23560.98”. I as. .332 #328 
P. e _ Eaamowmamfl II 



E0...— >mo.o._:mz 5 83.3.3 _8_c..u 
“.3833. 5.3 tmum m:.u.qo.m... 

B EmEEEnawwm I 0.). 3.3.3 5.0.. 

.38 
.3 6.5.2 cmsefi 88 am gems. E9; $0.232 E 83.3.5 .mu_:_.u 

uwumwzcm. 5.3 tat. 
86.8598. 

3 EmEEBaamwm I as. damn; an... 

.NNON 
.mN new: .5325 88 .8 6.22 
:8: 30.932 2. mmwwzza .mu_:_.u 

gamma—um: 5.3 tmum mEuEmEflm... cu 
EmEEBaamoz I on. £323.... £3. 

.28 .mm 
6.22 @325 

o~o~ .mm :22). E9: .622s 
c. mumm=>ta .8.:_.u 533559. 5.2, 

t w:_u_.umEm.m... S EwEEBnammx 
I as. EamaEmm 9.096... 

.33 
Q £2.22 gmsefi 88 am 552 

E9.”— >mo.2:wz :. mmmm=>ta .mu.:..u 
533:3. 5.2, tmum wEuEmEmE... 3 

EmEqnammz I GS. :35: .522...“ 

.22 .mm 
5.22 59.25 

owom ~mm 
_..u._w.>. E0...— $0.232 

:. 83.3.3 .mo_:..u 5333.99. 5.2, 
":3...“ m:_u_umEm.m... B EmEEBnnmom 

I 9). £325 3.395.). 

.NSN .mm 
535. .5325 

omom 6N FBEE). E9.“— >mo.o._:wz 



.qam o cam :96a o 558 E n £25 
333 5:2). ms... .Smfimfiwm Eco_wm_EEou 

>2 umucoumm mm; 522, 8_:__u :55 «5 tan. 
oNom :822 LS 3.53: _m_u:m:_n_ 9: $0a .35a _m_ucm:_u_ ONON 

AN Eoefiaus 
37:6 :5: .25 

> Ems—.835 88 
:82). .5— «focus 

-, 
; #1;a 7519' “—0 263.96 cm “.3533 msmcfi Eo... 

«:02 3 .532: a 26.: 5258 EcofimEEou £9.22 2.: 53585 253. 333 .5655". 33:3. .m 
60:33.? 

o can 
nomonao 0 £96., 5 K 5:5 .98m core—2 mg .252 LocofiflEEou >3 36:88 83 52:3 :2 

toqwm “=23 Etc—2:”. 3cm 2: 965% £83. :93. _m_u:m:_n_ 30m 2.: “curse—anti team: 
3 cores. m mums 55mm EcofimEEoU trad .3255". Snow .< «I' 

2:”md 1.02 ' 
h. ll IIII' 

.NSN am .23. 3:25 88 
6m =34 E0: >mo_o£mm E momw=>ta 

_8_:__u 858?: its tau 9.3328 

3 Eng—.638”. I as. .m..__v_ 
8t 

.NSN “mm 
__a< £9.25 

88 am _E_< so: 33523.2 
>__Ewu_ E mmmmzza .mu_c__u 53333.. 

FEB #65 _m:o_mm£o._n_ 5.m uw___< o... 
EwEaammm I 0-5— Join—U «3.5... 

.28 .2 
__a< 598.5 88 .om 

.22 
E9; moxoctiwé >__Emn_ E momw=>tn 

_8_:__u @8339. 5:5 :93 9:3 3 
EmEEEnamom I on £20.). autumn. 

.28 .mm :33 .3325 88 am 
End E0: 5.33352. E 33:25 

.8_:__u @3833. FEB t w>_U< B 
EmEqqammm I as. ._E.._mm_._ .n. 305 

.NNON 

.II 

.mm 53.2 i=2...“ omom .3 news. ., III 
4. 

! 1 “”‘|.i..*|_dlwll. 



.mficoE 
33 m E .963 

2: 5:5 :ofimzumfi 
ucm >332 35...; 

Lo". #96 m Emmma 
95 23.83 S: 
“562:2 :53 

“:25”. 2: $38 
:3 oz ucm EEU 

$202 

93.3.... .5559. 3 05283. 50:53 “.3585 
2230 2: an...“ 32mm EmcofiflEEou an... 

“Emma :55 52 :wEbEmm 9,335“ 
m cautmEEsm 96:8 .5 ._.__>_n_ 

:0 Huang m: ucm 9.53 53233 
3:33 3-0500 “_o 333. E25“. 2.: 

:0 gang: cm 335m 5:3“. >.:m_>_ 
WWW“ “I h.“ 

.5386:t 
:3... 

$385 8 Emhmoa @232: 
a 5:5 gm E: 2: 82%.. 3 28m 

on... >2 9.0396228 hop. 3230 can 
383 can. 552:3. Is: 29:3 

m5. uE 26353 cm “.3583 52.5. oz 

Baum: 
3- 958 .4 

III! 
- 1 -JMU 

jUW 1. II II I": II IIIII 

A: Ems—55:: 
2383 an... 

acmEmhn—om _.=>_n_ 
.m 

mcoz 

.uwcfiumnm o .28 .8830 o cosp— E n 525 
39.m 

5:22 on... .358 ..mco_mm_EEou 
3 32.88 Es 653 RN32 Es. ow: 

95089.3 EmEm< «N; .80.. 
53.3353“. 

05. 295682 3:23:52. m5 963% 

0:02 

OH C0305 m w—umE mF—mmm hwcgmflF—EJU 
355:8 u_”-_<_ 

05 “.35m £m 
om 

-.rm :6 .2: B 
astmfié. 2: Eu. ..m__._ mm 8.82 32.9: 

.8155 352E? 3 cozmugon. 
m5 mctfiam: a EEO {8534. 

33m 9: “m5 Eton“: mam .3 
-0500 3 26 3:8: 8 228m: 3oz... 

“Em m>m 538:3”. mEEoUQ: ”—0 
323m 2.: BEBE V6853: :occmcm 

E acoEsuwfls 
“unison 

"E5 .< 

En 
“cache—ante; Barn: 

carnage“. :5: d 

.83 
39536.3 

smsefi 3.896“. 8039.30 _m_u:m:_u_ 
mHIéSOu we: @35m 25.3. 

LOSS 
_._ -.ufl zaamaunfii. hm 

m. acoEsumuus :mE 

. _w_u:a:_n_ 3-9.25 
W 



.E. 0 IoN. 
m 0.0 m:_00.-....-E 

05p 5I0I:._:0_5m 
>::0v_ ._0:0_mm_EE0u 8 5:300 00 00-05—0051 

..._0_:m0: 

00505:: 0: m:_05 0:05... [_..—.1. 

- H - i ..I.II. In. 
-- - H..I.I.II..-_.._..I . _.I EMI. Ea .50E0m0: 5.83 :000- 

5:0' E. 0. 
S. m 0.0 505:0 :0_mm0m 020.50%” 

.00>0_0E0 0:500 
0 U.0 I00:wE._0-.:00 

050. 3030: 0... ._0 E0E>0_0E0 .0_._5=0 
:0.— E00=000 :0 ._0 m:0_000__.___0-:_I0 .05.. 

00020>0 0... I _0::00._00I Amy 0:. 0m. N: >5: .5" 
-.._ ..III-w-I- . . I-__.- ._Im- 

I...- I 
III- _..] I. - .zowmummahzflxufl 

IIIIr-IIHIIIIIIHI 
IIII III. 

..505 H 
I>_0H0E_x0._0-mI0 W2 00. 500000050 003 50E; 

..E 0. 
mm. m 00 :0_mm0m 0>_Eu0xm_ 0E_ 50:0E0 

5:000 050. .E.0 mNHw 00 m:_000E 0005005 00.300: 050. 50:59.50 >::0v_ :0:0_00_EE00 00. 5:00.00 3 0005005 :0_=m0._ 0052:.— 0: m:_05 0:05... 
.0_E05:00 

3-0500 05 £5, 058 0...... >05 
50.. 000% 05... :0 $000 050. 50m_0._0 5:0 

0.002, .58: 0.003 _05000: 0500.50.00 £000: 
0:02 0:02 05 :3, 02, 0050. 50:000.. 905 m:0_u0:000\om_u .m— . . .0_E05: 00 

3.0500 050. m:_5:=0.::m 0000: 
5:0 8:0...— _005.__00 5:0 0>_00_m_m0._ 000050: _00E_00 

0:02 0:02 050. :0 000.050: 0>0m 50050500: ::0.@ 5:0 0:50.030.— 
.n. 

50500050 0 5:0 5000000 
0 000,0.— :_ 0 £55 500000 55.05. 0:... E0530: 

._.0:0_mm_EE0u 
>5 505:000m m0; 50E? E 0:0E500fls 

t000: 050:0: >0._:0EEou ONON 05.0. 03.500 5:000: 0:00:05 >0_::EEou £000: 
0:02 . 9. :0_...0E 0 050E 0E00: :0:0_mm_EEou ONON 05.. 500:00000 0E0__0_>_ 5.0:: 0.50:0: BEsEEou .u 

S “000.50.05.03 
50500050 0 5:0 5000000 00.0 .5030: 

o :90: :_ 0 5:3 50.0000 5:05. 050. .mE00: 0030053: 0NON 
:0:0_00_EE0U >5 505:0000 002, 52:2, :20 5:0 c. #:0005005: 

3030: :05.0~___.5 ONON 5:0 :20 00:0E._ot00 .:0.0 2,030: :05.0N___5 ONoN 5:0 00:0E50t00 
3030: 00:00:55 mHoN 0:0. 0>0..000 :0_0 00:0E._0..:00 2,030: :0_00N___5 .5030: 

0:02 B :05.0E 0 050E 5050.05 :0:0_mm_EEou mSN 0:... 500:00000 00:00 3:05. 5303:“: 33 .: 
005.3:0 _000_ 5:0 0000... .50 E0: 

0-_55__0.>0 
:05.0E._0::_ 0.0050. 050 :00: 



32:33? P) Prosser 
Empl°yees ‘ L l  Memorial Health 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, May 26, 2020 

TUESDAY, 5:00 pm. - VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA 

MEMBERS: 
Keith Sattler 
Glenn Bestebreur 
Brandon Bowden 

CALL TO ORDER 

APPROVE MINUTES 
Action Regum - April 29, 2020 Minutes 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
a. Review Financials April (Attachment DD) 

Action Reguested - April 2020 Financial Statements 

b. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal 

c. Voucher Lists 
Action Rg. '-uested - Voucher List (#151306 - #151771 for $4,921,713.77) 

d. Financial Projections / COVID-19 Funds (Attachment M) 

e. Work Plan in Response to Audit Management Letter (Attachment HH and II) 

ADJOURN 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 

STAFF: 
Craig Marks 
David Rollins 
Stephanie Titus 

David 

David 

David 

David 

Stephanie/David 



3232:.“ (‘5 P r0 5 s e r V' 
EmP'Wees L I  M e m 0 Hal H e olth SE’V‘Ce 
Medical Staf'l= Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services . . Respect 
Financial MISSIOI'I: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, April 29, 2020 

NOON - VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

MEMBERS: STAFF: 
Keith Sattler Craig Marks 
Glenn Bestebreur David Rollins 
Brandon Bowden Stephanie Titus 

CALL TO ORDER 
Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 12:12 pm. 

APPROVE MINUTES 
ACTION ITEM 
A motion to approve the Finance Committee Meeting minutes for February 2020 and April 8, 2020 as 
presented was made by Glenn Bestebreur. The Motion was seconded by Brandon Bowden and 
approved. 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
David Rollins reviewed the Financial Statements (Including PMH Clinics) for March (Attachment Y 
and Attachment 2) 
ACTION ITEM 
A motion to recommend approval of the March Financial Statements (Including PMH Clinics) as 
presented to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Glenn Bestebreur. The Motion was 
seconded by Brandon Bowden and approved. 

Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal 
David reviewed and discussed the Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal. 

Voucher List 
ACTION ITEM 
A motion to recommend approval of the Voucher List (#150779 - #151305 for $5,152,257.34) as 
presented to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Glenn Besterbreur and seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved. 

April 29, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 



ACTION ITEM 
A motion to recommend approval of the Voucher List (#150278 - #150778 for $4,404,743.30) as 
presented to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Glenn Besterbreur and seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved. 

d. Surplus Item Resolution # 1005; #1016; #12020 
ACTION ITEM 
A motion to recommend approval of the surplus Item Resolutions # 1005, #1016, and #12020 as 
presented to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Glenn Besterbreur and seconded 
by Keith Sattler and approved. 

e. DZA Management Letter 
David reviewed and discussed the DZA Ma nagement-Letter.(_Attachment V—1). 

f. COVlD-19 Projections (Attachment E) 
David presented the COVlD-19 Financial Model/Projection (Statement of Operations) scenario. 

ll. ADJOURN 
Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:50 p.‘m. 

April 29, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 



W M .  

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM: CRAIG .I. MARKS, CEO 

DATE: MAY 2020 

RE: CEO REPORT 

QUALITY 

1. COVlD-19 Update 
It has now been almost two months since the worldwide COVlD-19 pandemic was declared 

and our world changed forever. We have learned a lot over the past eight weeks yet know 
there is still a lot to learn as new information pours in every day regarding the virus and how 
best to fight it. The one thing that has been constant at Prosser Memorial Health has been the 
commitment and dedication of our staff to our patients, each other, and PMH. Collectively we 
are doing well and will come out of this stronger than ever; To date, we have conducted 459 
COVID-19 tests, with 89 (18%) of them being positive. Of those, 13 have been treated at PMH 
as inpatients, and the remainder have recovered at home. We have had six of our staff 
members test positive (unknown sources). Five of the six have recovered and one is still at 
home. Our priority remains to care for the needs of our community while keeping our staff 
safe. As we have now dealt with COVID-19 every day for the past two months (e.g. mask 
wearing, PPE donning and doffing, frequent hand washing, social distancing, virtual meetings, 
etc.) we are now preparing to safely transition to providing all the services we provided before 
the pandemic was declared. 

Prosser Memorial Health along with hospitals all across the country have realized that many 
patients have waited, and postponed elective and non-emergent care, understanding that 
fighting COVlD-19 was our priority, but non-COVlD-19 health issues also need to be addressed 
in a timely manner. It is important to recognize that so-called elective care or scheduled care 
often involves providing treatments and procedures that are critical to caring for those patients 
with chronic illnesses such as cancer, diabetes and heart disease, and delays in care can result 
in worsening conditions for these vulnerable patients. To this end, the American and 
Washington State Hospital Associations recently began marketing campaigns to encourage 
individuals that need care to go to their local providers and hospitals to receive that care 
because we are ready (Attachment A). 



That is certainly true at PMH where we have adequate supplies and other resources for any 
increased COVID-19 activity and we have providers and staff ready to welcome back our 
patients, with the proper safety precautions in place. The COVlD—19 Task Force has been 
discussing this for several weeks and is following the lead of our State and Federal 
Governments (Attachment B). On May 18"“, Governor lnslee signed a proclamation outlining 
the process for hospitals and healthcare providers to begin increasing the services they provide 
to their communities (Attachment C). In addition, the PMH surgeons and the COVID-19 Task 
Force developed a form to help surgeons and patients decide if they should undergo surgery 
now or continue to wait (Attachment E). Utilizing these criteria, on May 18th we performed ten 
surgeries and are prepared to continue meeting the surgical and other healthcare needs of our 
community. Finally, I want to once again thank the members of the PMH COVlD—19 Task Force 
for all their hard work and dedication and to share a letter Merry Fuller wrote to the Task Force 
(Attachment F). The performance of everyone at PMH throughout this pandemic 
demonstrates our strength, ability to change, and commitment, all characteristics of successful 
organizations that are well prepared to take on the challenges of a changing world! 

2. COVlD-19 Financial Plan 
You do not have to look very far to hear or read about the financial stress that the COVlD-19 

pandemic is placing on our economy, especially as it relates to smaller businesses. This is 
certainly true in healthcare as hospitals in the State of Washington struggle financially 
(Attachment G) and hospitals across the country are projected to be losing $50 billion a month 
(Attachment H) as a result ofthe COVlD-19 crisis. Fortunately, PMH was financially strong 
before the crisis and remains financially strong. Like hospitals across the country we have seen 
a dramatic drop in outpatient volumes, especially surgical procedures and adjusted patient 
days, which is a proxy for total patient volumes (Attachment I and 1). As a result, we have also 
seen a significant decline in net revenue, that we project will continue through the remainder 
of 2020 (Attachment K). With the declining volumes and revenue, we would be projecting a 
significant loss, however, because of the financial assistance we have received, we are 
projecting that we can finish 2020 near our budget goal (Attachment L and M). Attachment M 
also indicates how we are planning to utilize the federal assistance dollars over the remainder 
of the year. These projections may change, however, as we transition to seeing more patients 
and we actually see how quickly our community returns for care. 

A key to our optimism is the financial assistance we have received. To date, we have 
received $18.1 million to assist us during this challenging time (Attachment N). This $18.1 
million includes $5.2 million from Health and Human Services (HHS), $6.35 million from the 
Small Business Administration (SBA) and $6.6 million from CMS for Advanced Medicare 
Payments. Of the $18.1 million of assistance, only the Medicare Advanced Payments are in the 
form of a loan that must be paid back. At this point in time, we are not using any of the 
Medicare dollars in our projections. It should be noted, however, the AHA is pushing Congress 
to make the Medicare Advanced Payments forgivable in any future COVID-19 relief measures. 



At the present time, the funds we have received exceed our projected need and will be paid 
back if they are not needed. While it has been suggested that we should us the funds to build 
our new hospital or pay our staff more, this is not allowed nor is it the right thing to do. 
However, it is impossible to predict how quickly our business will return, which may necessitate 
utilization of more or all of the funds in the future. We are very blessed to be in this position as 
hospitals all across the country are laying off staff, cutting salaries and benefits, etc. Our plan is 
to keep our staff whole, with the exception of encouraging staff to take vacation, and to the 
best of our ability not negatively impact the take-home pay of any of our team members. We 
still have a long way to go, but at this time our financial picture is very positive and there is 
speculation that there may be more relief funds on the way. It is my h0pe that Prosser 
Memorial Health will not need any further assistance. 

3. Practice Transformation Grant 
The Practice Transformation Project work has continued the last several months, despite 

resources being diverted towards our COVID-19 response. The Practice Transformation 
Dashboard (Attachment 0) provides a detailed accounting of milestone expectations for the 
hospital and our progress towards achieving them. A similar accounting for both the Benton 
City Clinic and Prosser Family Medicine will be provided in the future. Follow up of high-risk 
patients has improved in (11 over the prior year. This progress is due to changes in the process 
by which follow- up occurs after discharge, management of patients who frequent the ED, and 
how referrals to the Community Paramedic Program are captured. 

Communicating with patients and families in an effective and meaningful way is the primary 
focus for the remainder of 2020. This will be accomplished with staff training on using teach- 
back methodology when providing patient education. Teach-back is a process for validating the 
patient’s understanding of the education or instructions they were provided. We will also 
implement patient decision tools, which help identify the patient’s willingness and ability to 
participate in the care goals. The efforts of the Practice Transformation Grant project facilitate 
the patient and their families to participate as an essential member of the care team. Merry 
Fuller will discuss this project at the May Board Meeting. 

4. May Board Meetings 
While we are trying to minimize group meetings, we are going to have both a Board Work 

Session and a regular Board Meeting in May. The main reason for this is to hear a presentation 
from our auditors, DZA (Luke Zarecor — Partner) and Gary Hicks, our financial consultant, on our 
Feasibility Study for a replacement hospital. Unfortunately, Luke and Gary will not be physically 
present at the meeting but will present virtually. Board members are welcome to attend in 
person or virtually and we will minimize the number of staff physically present. The public will 
not be allowed to attend per Governor Inslee’s Proclamation, but the meeting will be available 
via conference call for the public. The Board will not be asked to take any action regarding the 
Study in May, but it will be discussed again in June and possibly acted upon. At the May Work 
Session, we will also hear a presentation from Dr. Rivero and Christi Doornink-Osborn regarding 
our Medical Staff Engagement Plan. The Board will go into Executive Session at the end of the 



Work Session to discuss contracts, real estate and personnel issues. The Board will hear 
presentations regarding a proposed PMH Uniform Policy to be implemented in 2020, a Practice 
Transformation Grant and a COVID-19 update. These items will not require any action by the 
Board. 

PATIENT LOYALTY 
1. Community Support 

While the past two months have been very challenging for everyone at PM H, the support of 
our great community has been palpable and greatly appreciated. On May 8th, Fairchild Air 
Force Base conducted a flyover of all the hospitals in the Yakima Valley as a sign of support and 
thanks for everything healthcare workers are doing during this crisis. The United States Air 
Force did this across the country and raised the spirits of many healthcare workers. Our local 
community got into the action when they conducted a second parade around the hospital and 
our Prosser Clinics on May 11th as a way to thank everyone at PMH and kick-off Hospital Week. 
What a way to start this special week, especially this year! We have also been overwhelmed by 
the generosity of our community through their donations of personal protective equipment 
(PPE) and meals. Included with my report is a list, to date, of all the organizations and 
individuals that have supported us (Attachment P). Thank you! I have also included several 
letters of thanks that we have received (Attachment Q). We truly live and work in a great 
community! 

2. Patient Satisfaction 
While most of our focus the past two months has been on COVID-19, we continue to care 

for patients with non-COVlD-19 issues. To our staff’s credit, despite all of the distractions, we 
have been able to maintain our overall patient satisfaction level at 86.3%, which is just slightly 
below our goal of 86.6% (Attachment R). In particular, inpatient (acute care and OB) and our 
clinics, have experienced a significant improvement in patient satisfaction. It is also important 
to note that for those departments not meeting their goal, several are very close. We are also 
seeing that most of the responses are on the favorable side of the graphs. In the coming 
months, we will focus on moving even more of our patients to the ”definitely yes” category 
which will enable us to exceed our patient satisfaction goal. 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 
1. Employee Engagement 

This past week we celebrated National Hospital Week (May 11 — 15) which provided us a 
wonderful opportunity to thank our staff for everything they do for our patients and PMH 
(Attachment S). This year was a little challenging with COVlD-19, but we did our best to make 
the week special. Led by our Employee Engagement Team, Kayla Campbell, Gaylyn Concienne, 
Merry Fuller, Kevin Hardiek, Shannon Hitchcock, Anna Kellogg, Randy McCombs, Kristi Mellema, 
Kristal Oswalt, Bryan Scheer, Kaylee Swan, Annie Tiemersma, Rochelle Kmetz and Crystal 
Blanco, the week included lots of food (breakfast, lunch, donuts, ice cream and Italian sodas), 



competition (cornhole, graduation pictures, puzzles) and a lot of safe fun (Attachment T). 
Congratulations to the winners of each of these activities and a big thank you to everyone that 
participated (Attachment U). In addition to Hospital Week, we celebrated National Superhero 
Day on April 28th by having Merry Fuller, David Rollins and I bring ice cream to all the 
Superheroes at PMH. Looking forward, we will celebrate National Donut Day on June 5th by 
having the Blissful Bites donut truck serve donuts to all our staff at the hospital and clinics 
(Attachment V). I have also included the May Employee Newsletter which captures some of 
the activities at PMH in April (Attachment W). 

2. Aspire Awards 
For several years now we have been awarding PMH team members with ASPIRE Awards 

(gold, silver, bronze) for being caught living our Values. This program has been very successful, 
as we have recognized many PMH staff for the wonderful things they do every day. The past 
two months, however, we thought that we might be missing something with our current 
program. What was missing was a way to recognize teams that are living our Values. For this 
reason, we developed a new award, The Platinum Award, for PMH teams that go above and 
beyond to serve our patients. This program was introduced in May as we recognized our first 
team winners — The COVID-19 Clinic Team. Each member of the team (Dr. O’Connor, Daisy 
Magana, Claudia Blackburn, Steve Zirker, PA, Gloria Zuniga, Jaqueline Rodriguez, Mireya 
Aguilar, Monique Saenz, lsabel De La Cruz, Daniel Solis, Pam Morris, ARNP, Dr. Johansing and 
Laura Sosa) received a $100 gift card and our sincere appreciation and thanks for how well they 
have served our community. They truly are on the frontlines ofthis pandemic (Attachment X). 
Congratulations and thank you! 

3. Uniform Program 
For the past year, a PMH Uniform Committee lead by Rusti Wilson, Director of 

Cardiopulmonary Services, has been meeting to determine the feasibility of having an 
expanded uniform program throughout PMH. The committee has determined which 
department will participate; a draft uniform policy was developed; colors and types of uniforms 
for each department have been selected; a vendor for the uniforms has been selected; and a 
cost estimate was developed and included in the 2020 Budget (Attachment Y). We were 
prepared to implement this program in 2020 as outlined in our 2020 Strategic Plan, but with all 
ofthe uncertainty surrounding the financial future for healthcare in general, we have decided 
to postpone this project until 2021. We will share the program with the Board in May and 
encourage all staff to review the program and provide feedback to their department leader. 
We have plenty of time to make adjustments, so we look forward to your thoughts. 



MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
1. Medical Staff Recruitment 

Despite the COVlD-19 pandemic, provider recruitment activity has remained very robust. 
We are currently in very active discussions with a pediatrician from the Yakima Valley that is 
interested in joining our Grandview Clinic. The pediatrician has met many members of our 
team and is very impressed. The individual is currently reviewing a contract and hopes to make 
a decision by the end of the month. While we paused having any Certified Nurse Midwives visit 
us over the past two months, we currently have three scheduled to visit in late May through 
early June. We hope to be successful in recruiting our second CNM to join our team and add 
additional capacity on our Women’s Health Program. Finally, we have been recruiting 
Advanced Practice Clinicians (APC) to join our clinics in Prosser and Grandview and I am pleased 
to report that Afton Dunham — Certified Nurse Practitioner (CNP) has agreed to join us 
(Attachment Z). Afton has worked part time at PMH for several years as a registered nurse. 
Please join me in welcoming Afton to her new role at PMH! In addition to Afton, we continue 
to recruit for an additional APC to help cover evening and weekend hours in Grandview and 
Prosser. We are not quite halfway through the year and we have almost completed our 
recruitment needs for 2020 in our Medical Staff Model. A big thank you to Christi Doornink- 
Osborn for all her hard work in this area, in addition to all of her other duties! Also, a thank you 
to everyone in our organization that has assisted in our recruitment efforts because it truly 
takes a team to be successful. 

2. Medical Staff Engagement 
Dr. Rivero, Christi Doornink-Osborn and the Medical Staff engagement Team have been 

working on refining their Team Charter, the Medical Staff Engagement and Retention Plan, and 
a plan to reduce burnout amongst healthcare providers (Attachment AA). Dr. Rivero and 
Christi will review their plans with the board at the May Board Work Session. It is interesting to 
note that over the past two years the PMH Medical Staff satisfaction rates were 90.6% and 
89.0% respectively. These are excellent scores and Dr. Rivero and the Engagement Team 
deserve a lot of credit for this success. While these scores are good, we will continue to try to 
improve and achieve 100% satisfaction. One of the activities that has been very well received 
in the past is the Medical Staff /Board/Leadership dinner cruise on the Columbia River. We 
have once again tentatively scheduled this event for July 10, 2020. Unfortunately, due to the 
COVlD-19 restrictions placed on the State of Washington, we may not be able to hold the event 
on that date. If we cannot hold it on July 10th, we will work with WaterZWine to reschedule our 
event in August or early fall. Stay tuned as we work on this and other Medical Staff 
Engagement activities. 

SERVICES 
1. PMH Replacement Hospital Feasibility Study 

Last year the Board approved engaging Dingus, Zarecor and Associates (DZA) to complete a 
Feasibility Study of Prosser Memorial Health building a replacement hospital. Luke Zarecor, 
CPA, DZA Partner, led the work along with Joe Lodge, CPA, DZA Associate (Attachment BB). 



They also contracted with Jody Carona, Health Facilities Planning & Development, to complete 
a Market Overview and Assessment (Attachment CC), which was used in making financial 
projections. Gary Hicks, PMH Financial Advisor, also participated in the project as a 
representative for PMH. The project would have been completed last year but we decided it 
would be better to have 2019 audited financial statements included in the study. I do not want 
to steal the thunder from the experts, but the study looks very favorable. We plan to have 
Luke, Joe and Gary present the study to the Board at the May Board Work Session. Because 
this is so important to the future of PMH, we are not in a rush for the Board to take action. Our 
intent is to share the information with the Board in May, and let the Board direct us as to when 
they want to consider acting on the study (e.g. immediately move forward with pursuing USDA 
funding; continue building up cash reserves for a decision at a later date; or abandon the 
concept of a replacement facility). We look forward to discussing this very important study 
with the Board. 

2. Sewer Lines 
One ofthe challenges in working in a facility the age of PMH (in some areas over 70 years 

old) is that eventually the infrastructure (e.g. water/sewer pipes, roof, etc.) wears out and 
needs to be repaired or replaced. This past month was not a positive one for the PMH facility 
as two sewer lines were inOperable and needed to be repaired/replaced. One line affected the 
Business Office Building (Whitehead Conference Room, PFS, IT, Accounting and the COVlD-19 
Clinic) and the other was in the lower level hallway inside the hospital between Nutrition 
Services and Surgical Services. The first line could not be repaired because of the large volume 
oftree roots in the line and the large trees all along the line. The second line was the result of 
settling, which allowed water to stand in the pipe and rust it out. Fortunately, both lines are in 
the process of being fixed/replaced and should be ready for use by the end of this week. 
Unfortunately, these are not anticipated expenditures and they will continue when you have an 
older facility. They are also very disruptive to patient ca re and expensive to fix because they 
are emergency repairs (e.g. weekends, nights, overtime). I wonder if the hospital gods were 
sending us a message about our need for a new facility? 

3. Nuclear Medicine Project 
Since our last update, the nuclear medicine project has gained significant momentum. The 

Department of Health Construction Review Services approved the renovation of the existing 
therapy gym for the nuclear medicine project. The next phase is to work with KDA to review 
the project documents to comply with applicable WA State regulation. Once completed, the 
revised plan will be sent to the Department of Health Construction Review Services for 
approval. In tandem, we will put the project out for bid to determine the total cost of 
construction. We will request board approval for construction by the end ofJune. Our project 
is on track with a completion date by the end of December 2020. 



FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
1. Financial Performance — April 

April is projected to be the worst financial month on record in the healthcare industry across 
the country. Prosser Memorial Health would have been right there with the rest of the 
industry, however, with the financial assistance we received (e.g. HHS, SBA) we are now at our 
budgeted financial performance targets (Attachment DD). In April our gross revenue was 44% 
($5.8 million) under budget and 38% ($4.5 million) less than last April. Fortunately, our 
deductions from revenue were less than budget and we accounted for approximately $2.2 
million of financial assistance, which brought our net revenue to 12% ($669,394) better than 
our budget. Our expenses were slightly over budget ($30,343), resulting in an income from 
operations of $929,805. After adding in non-operating income, our net income was $986,436 
compared to our budgeted net income of $349,831. It is important to remember that without 
the financial assistance, we would have lost approximately $1.2 million in April. 

COVlD-19 is also significantly impacting our year-to-date financial performance. All of our 
metrics (e.g. gross revenue, expenses, patient volumes, net patient services revenue) have 
been negatively impacted, but with the financial assistance we have received, we were able to 
bring our financial performance back to budget. Our current projections indicate that we will 
be able to maintain our budgeted financial performance if our business returns gradually over 
the next six months as shown in our projections (Attachment M). At the end of April, our net 
income (bottom line) is $957,101, exactly at our budgeted level. As stated previously, if our 
projeCtions are accurate, we will return some of the financial assistance we received at the end 
ofthe year. 

In addition to our strong income statement, our balance sheet has also improved 
dramatically due to the financial assistance we received in April. In April, we experienced a 
positive cash flow of $7.7 million, bringing our year-to-date cash flow to $7.3 million. The 
positive cash flow is reflected on our income statement where our cash position has improved 
significantly (152.33 days cash on hand). In addition, our days in net accounts receivable have 
declined to 48.35 days. In conclusion, PMH is in a very strong financial position as we continue 
our battle against COVID-19 and slowly transition back to being a full-service community 
hospital. 

2. PMH Foundation Update 
This past week, the Foundation Board met and reviewed/discussed several issues raised by 

the Washington State Auditor (Attachment EE). When the State Auditor audited PM H, they 
indicated that the PMH Foundation should pay back the Hospital the $21,500 that the Hospital 
gave to the Foundation in 2018 to restart the Gift Shop. The Foundation Board had no issue 
with this request and agreed to reimburse the Hospital $21,500. The Foundation Board also 
reviewed a revised contract between the Hospital and the Foundation (Attachment FF). The 
State Auditor wanted the agreement to be more specific, especially as it relates to the services 
provided by each party. The Foundation and Hospital Boards will be asked to approve this 
agreement in June. A subcommittee of the Foundation Board has been reviewing the 
Foundation Bylaws and recommended several changes (Attachment 66). The Foundation and 



Hospital Boards will be asked to approve the revised Bylaws in June. Finally, the Foundation 
Board is still hoping to hold a PMH Foundation Golf Tournament on September 19, 2020. 
However, due to the COVlD-19 restrictions, it is still too early to determine if this will be 
feasible. Stay tuned.... 

3. Audit Management Letter - Update 
The Director of Finance has formed a team, the Audit Compliance Task Force, to collaborate 

and address all items as identified in the DZA Management Letter (Attachment HH) resulting 
from the 2019 Audit. The first Audit Compliance Taskforce meeting occurred May 19 and will 
be recurring mid-month throughout the remainder of the year. All DZA recommendations have 
been assigned a group to work through them specifically with deadlines of deliverables due 
back to the committee for review. Additionally, it has been identified in order to complete 
many of the policy recommendations, Standards of Procedures (SOPs) are needing completion 
and/or revisions. These SOPs have been identified and split into their own individual projects 
amongst the team accordingly. Each Task Force meeting will review, provide feedback as 
needed, approve to proceed with next steps, and ultimately formally publish the Policies as 
recommended with the SOPs that align with each. The Director of Finance will also provide to 
the Board Finance Committee project updates each month to review and assess 
progress. Included as (Attachment II) is the presentation provided at the Leadership Quality 
Meeting in May to provide more specifics to the taskforce, its purpose, process, and ultimate 
goals. This presentation will also be discussed with the Finance Committee in May. The Audit 
Compliance Task Force will continue each year and adapt as required for any additional items 
identified resulting from our annual audits to organize, address, and to ensure future 
compliance as required by the following audit or deadlines as indicated. 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other Hospital activities, please contact me 
at (269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the Hospital. 



Attachment A 

Home (https://www.wsha.org/) / For Patients (https://www.wsha.org/for-patients/) 
I Need Care? Get Care. We're Here. 

Need Ca re? Get Ca re. We’re 
Here. 

’5‘! 
1.; 

. 

EFO.§§§J W; KAISER PERMANENTEm A e31?“ 

Espafiol (https://www.wsha.org/for-patients/obtenercuidado/) 

Washington's 
response to the 
COVID-19 crisis has , . 
been nothing short of “It 18m that” mWTJ... 
amazing. By staying important. 
home, you've saved 
lives. Lately though, 
we're seeing the 
consequences of people staying away from health care, including: 

- Waiting too long to seek care for injuries like broken bones or 
deep cuts and ending up with serious infections that could have 
been prevented. 

- Not seeking care for new or worsening health conditions, such as 
warning symptoms for heart attacks or strokes. 

'bttps://www.wsha.org/for—patients/getcare/ 

Staff 
Contact 

(Istaff/beth- 
zborowski) 

Beth 
Zborowski 
(Istaff/beth- 
zborowski) 
(206) 577- 
1 807 
(lstaff/beth- 
zborowski) 

Related 
News 

Washington 
hospitals 

5/18/202 



Need Care? Get Care. We’re Here. - Washington State Hospital Association Page 2 of 

- Making themselves more vulnerable to severe COVlD—l 9 launch 
. . . . campaign: symptoms by not managing chronic conditions. Need Care? 

Get Care. 
Washington's health care providers are united in ensuring the (/articles/washingt 
availability and safety of accessing care. We're available to care for you hospitals- 
and your family, whether your concern is physical or :flgi'gn 
emotional. Don't delay. need-care- 

_ get-care) 

[ Find a location to get care 0 (https://www.wsha.org/for—patients/find-a-hb‘dspltblllyi 
w HA Virt'u l 
Press 

. . . Conference Hospitals & Clinics are Safe “articles/follow 
Care at clinics and hospitals looks different now. That’s because health up-wsha- 

k' k f h k virtual-press- 
care teams are ta ing concrete steps to eep you sa e w en you see conference) 
care, includin : 

3 Media 
Advisory: 

- Screen for symptoms and  temperature when anyone arrives at a Washington 

hospital or clinic, often before they even enter the building health care 
providers 

- Separate people with COVID-Iike symptoms from others. All unite to 
hospitalized COVID-19 patients are cared for in special units of address . 
h h 't l f th t '  t misconceptions, 

t e ospi a s, away m m  0 er  pa ien 5 encourage 

- Distance people from one another with reminders of safe 
distances and protective barriers in some areas 

- Limit visitors for appointments and patients 

- Increase the use of masks for staff and  visitors 

- Change the waiting room experience, or  eliminating the waiting 
room entirely 

- Increase cleaning of common and high touch items like door 
handles, elevator buttons, tables, and chairs. Clinics and 
hospitals always have high standards when it comes to cleaning 
and keeping germs from spreading. 

To find out which precautions a specific health care provider is taking 
to make care at their location COVID-safe, give them a call or  visit their 
website. 

https://wnmv.wsha.org/for-patients/getcare/ 

appropriate 
use of health 
care 
(/articles/media- 
advisory- 
washington- 
health—ca re- 
providers- 
unite-to- 
address- 
misconceptions- 
encourage- 
appropriate- 
use-of- 
health-care) 

5f18/202 



Need Care? Get Care. We’re Here. - Washington State Hospital Association Page 3 of 

What kind of care is available right now? 
Under Gov. lnslee’s current orders, patients have access to most, but 
not all, health care services. The order does allow for regular clinic visits 
so you can maintain care for any current or  urgent conditions. 

- Urgent and emergency care is available and safe to access. 
Patients with COVlD-like symptoms are separated away from 
others. 

- Doctor and clinic visits for routine care were never prohibited 
under the Governor's order. Contact your provider to find out 
what in-person and virtual options are available. 

- Telehealth visits connect you with your health care provider 
through phone and video conference. This is a good option for 
routine care, mental health, managing chronic conditions, and 
having new conditions or symptoms evaluated to determine if 
you need an  in-person visit. 

- Some surgical and  diagnostic procedures are now 
available. You and your health care provider will need to work 
together to determine if the procedure is needed urgently 
enough that a delay would have a detrimental impact on your 
heahh. 

While we’re not fully back to normal operations, you shouldn't delay 
care for new or worsening symptoms. Part of doing your part means 
staying healthy and connecting with your health care team if you 
experience troubling symptoms. 

Please do  not delay getting the health care you need. We strongly 
encourage you to call your health care provider to discuss your 
concerns. Many issues can be addressed with informed guidance, 
prescriptions o r  a tele-medicine appointment. 

[ Find a location to get care 0 (https://www.wsha.org/for-patients/find-a-hospital/)j 

As always, if there is a medical or psychiatric em ergency, call 97 7 
[mm edl'éite/JA 

' https://www.wsha.org/for-patients/getcare/ 5/1 8/2 02 



Need Care? Get Care. We’re Here. - Washington State Hospital Association Page 4 of 

112 Hospitals. One Voice. Hospitals and health systems that serve 
every community across state are concerned about the health of 
Washingtonians. We’ve come together as one voice to ensure you that 
clinics and  hospitals are  still safe, you still have options for accessing 
medical care, and your physical and emotional health is still of utmost 
importance. Need care? Get care. We're here. 

Videos 

02:00 
| l 

What your doctor wants 
you to know: Seeking care 
for stoke symptoms 
from WSMA 

'https://WWW.WSha.org/for-patients/getcare/ 5/ 1 SK 202 



Need Care? Get Care. We’re Here. - Washington State Hospital Association 

Legacy Health urges patients to not de... 

1'. . 

- . fi  motor of Women ; ' 
tProvidence Hea l th -18es ices  Nort v i . " -  I 

E .  
r; m 

Together  we have  started to flatten t h e  curve, How ever, we know - 
. t h a t  your heal thcare cannot  wait .  

.. -3_.7-,:-_. .._---.\ a _. 
_‘ 3 g ? ” -  cglinic V i s i t s - I  

Virginia Mason - New Day 
Northwest 5/5 - Tele-Health 
from KING 5 Media Group | sales 

08:19 

https://Www.wsha.orgifor-patients/getcare/ 

Page 5 of 

5/18/202 



Need Care? Get Care. We’re Here. - Washington State Hospital Association Page 6 of 

Pod ca sts 
Kadlec On Call  COVlD-19 update.  April 22nd. . t l  
2020 
Kadlec On  Call 

Affiliates 
Washin ten . . Association of @ Hespita (http://www.wahosprtalservncescom)fl washjn tonPtlic (http://www.awphd.org) 
Serv ices  Hosprta Dlstrlcts 

I 
(http://www.wahospitalservices.com/resources.html) 

JMflU’E‘FRY mamas 

Contact Us Most Popular Quick Links 
Washington State 206.281.7211 phone Member Listing [lour- News (mews!) 
Hospital Association 206.283.6122 fax memberslmember- about/staff] 

. o u. M , “  _ _ ‘  999 Thll‘d Avenue inf " w  h r M31) 
. M s  . 

Surte1400 ailto info wsh oard Mem r 4 W  Pa I nt lfo I 
Seattle, WA 98104 .patlgntsll 

Staff List labout/staff/ laboutlboard-of— 
Map / Directions trustees!) Bollgy I Advpgagg 
{Zapout/ggtt'mg-tg- . (lpolicy-advocacyl) 
wsha rna a n d  img  Bpokstorg _ Q- _ 

W resources/bookstpre- 
publications!) 

WSHA Stafl 
(laboutlstaffll 

lob Opportunities 
(labout/iob— 

2 m  

'3 0 Subscribe to O u r  Newsletter 

(hmpmmmtmukwm Mireispitaai-Sit‘iexamp'e-mm 
Subscribe 

Site Map (/site-map/) | Privacy Policy (/privacy-policyl) | © 2005-2018 Washington State Hospital Association. 
Terms of Use (/terms-of-usel) 

https://www.wsha.org/for—patients/getcare/ 5/1 8/202 



Attachment B 

Craig Marks 

From: Jim R. Chesemore <jrchesemore@psfinc.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 4:14 PM 
To: Jim R. Chesemore 
Subject: CMS Guidance for Reopening Health Care Systems in Areas with Low Incidence of 

COVID-19 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Flagged 

External Email: Please Proceed with Caution 

You may have seen this already. Butjust in case. 

Rega rd 5, 

Jim 

From: StayAlert! [mailto:stayalert@mcnhealthcare.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 3:54 PM 
To: Danielle M. Donovan 
Subject: CMS Guidance for Reopening Health Care Systems in Areas with Low Incidence of COVID-19 

Ell. 
I- 

Notice: - 
CMS Guidance for Reopening Health Care Systems in Areas with Low Incidence of COVID-19 
Source: 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 
Relevant to: 
All Healthcare Organizations 
Date: 
April 21,2020 

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has issued recommendations for reogening health care systems 
in areas with low incidence of COVID-19. According to CMS Administrator Seema Verma, “Today, some areas of the 
country are experiencing fewer cases and loWer incidence of the virus, necessitating a more tailored and flexible 
approach. Every state and local official will need to assess the situation on the ground to determine the best course 
forward, but these guidelines provide a gradual process for restarting non-COVlD-19 essential care while keeping patients 
safe." 

This new guidance, the first in what CMS states will be a series of recommendations, is based on the “Gating Criteria" 
issued by the White House. The Gating Criteria proposes that prior to reopening, the following is in place: 

0 SYMPTOMS: downward trajectory of influenza-like illnesses reported within a 14-day period and a downward 
trajectory of COVlD-like syndromic cases within a 14-day period. 

. CASES: downward trajectory of documented cases within a 14-day period, or, downward trajectory of positive 
tests as a percent of total tests within a 14-day period (flat or increasing volume of tests) CASES 

1 



o HOSPITALS: Treat all patients without crisis care AND robust testing program in place for at—risk healthcare 
workers, including emerging antibody testing. 

According to CMS, if states or regions have passed the Gating Criteria (symptoms, cases, and hospitals), then they may 
proceed to Phase I: 

0 Continue to maximize the use of all telehealth modalities. 

o Non-COVlD-19 care should be offered to patients as clinically appropriate and within a state, locality, or facility 
that has the resources to provide such care and the ability to quickly respond to a surge in COVlD-19 cases, if 
necessary. 

. Decisions should be consistent with public health information and in collaboration with state public health 
authorities. 

. Careful planning is required to resume in-person care of patients requiring non-COVlD-19 care, and all aspects of 
care must be considered, including but not limited to: 

o Adequate facilities, workforce, testing, and supplies 

0 Adequate workforce across phases of care (such as availability of clinicians, nurses, anesthesia, pharmacy, 
imaging, pathology support, and post-acute care) 

The following recommendations aim to give healthcare facilities some flexibility in providing essential non-COVlD-19 care 
to patients without symptoms of COVlD-19 in regions with low incidence of COVlD-19. 

0 General Considerations: 

0 In coordination with State and local public health officials, evaluate the incidence and trends for COVID-19 in the 
area where re-starting in-person care is being considered. 

0 Evaluate the necessity of the care based on clinical needs. Providers should prioritize surgicallprocedural care and 
high-complexity chronic disease management; however, select preventive services may also be highly necessary. 

0 Consider establishing Non-COVID Care (NCC) zones that would screen all patients for symptoms of COVlD-19, 
including temperature checks. Staff would be routinely screened as would others who will work in the facility 
(physicians, nurses, housekeeping, delivery and all people who would enter the area). 

0 Sufficient resources should be available to the facility across phases of care, including PPE, healthy workforce, 
facilities, supplies, testing capacity, and post-acute care, without jeopardizing surge capacity. 

0 Personal Protective Equipment: 

. Consistent with CDC's recommendations for universal source control, CMS recommends that healthcare providers 
and staff wear surgical facemasks at all times. Procedures on the mucous membranes including the respiratory 
tract, with a higher risk of aerosol transmission, should be done with great caution, and staff should utilize 
appropriate respiratory protection such as N95 masks and face shields. 

0 Patients should wear a cloth face covering that can be bought or made at home if they do not already possess 
surgical masks. 

. Every effort should be made to conserve personmrotective egu_ip‘ment. 

O Workforce Availability : 

I Staff should be routinely screened for symptoms of COVID -19 and if symptomatic, they should be tested and 
quarantined. Staff who will be working in these NCC zones should be limited to working in these areas and not 

2 



rotate into "COVID—19 Care zones” (e.g., they should not have rounds in the hospital and then come to an NCC 
facility). 

0 Staffing levels in the community must remain adequate to cover a potential surge in COVlD-19 cases. 

0 Facility Considerations: 

0 In a region with a current low incidence rate, when a facility makes the determination to provide in-person, non- 
emergent care, the facility should create areas of N00 which have in place steps to reduce risk of COVID-19 
exposure and transmission; these areas should be separate from other facilities to the degrees possible (i.e., 
separate building, or designated rooms or floor with a separate entrance and minimal crossover with COVlD-19 
areas). 

. Within the facility, administrative and engineering controls should be established to facilitate social distancing, such 
as minimizing time in waiting areas, spacing chairs at least 6 feet apart, and maintaining low patient volumes. 

. Visitors should be prohibited but if they are necessary for an aspect of patient care, they should be pre-screened in 
the same way as patients. 

0 Sanitation Protocols: 

0 Ensure that there is an established plan for thorough cleaning and disinfection prior to using spaces or facilities for 
patients with non-COVlD-19 care needs. 

0 Ensure that equipment such as anesthesia machines used for COVlD-19 (+) patients are thoroughly 
decontaminated, following CDC guidelines. 

0 Supplies: 

. Adequate supplies of equipment, medication and supplies must be ensured, and not detract for the community 
ability to respond to a potential surge. 

0 Testing Capacity: 

. All patients must be screened for potential symptoms of COVlD-19 prior to entering the NCC facility, and staff must 
be routinely screened for potential symptoms as noted above. 

0 When adequate testing capability is established, patients should be screened by laboratory testing before care, and 
staff working in these facilities should be regularly screened by laboratory test as well. 

All facilities should continually evaluate whether their region remains a low risk of incidence and should be prepared to 
cease non-essential procedures if there is a surge. According to CMS, by following the above recommendations, flexibility 
can allow for safely extending in-person non-emergent care in select communities and facilities. 

StayAlert! is closely following recommendations for re-opening our health care systems and will publish additional notices 
when more guidance is available. 

Resources: 

External Links 

. CMS Recommendations for Re-opening Facilities to Provide Non-emerg' 'ent Non-COVlD-19 Healthcare, Phase I 

For direct access to this StayAIert! Notice Click here 

MCN HEALTHCARE 
3 



Document Compliance Software for Healthcare 

Policy Management Software | Policy Library 
StayAIert! | StayAiert! Pius 

Contract Manager | eLearning 

Learn more at mcnhealthcarecom 
1777 South Harrison Street, Suite 405, Denver, CO 80210 

Written permission from MCN Healthcare must be obtained 
to forward orreprint the information contained within this notice. 

Copyright © 2020 MCN Healthcare. All rights reserved. 



Attachment C 

- Washington State 
Hospital Association 

Date: May 19, 2020 
To: WSHA Members 
From: Taya Briley, RN, MN, JD, Executive Vice President and General Counsel 

Darcy Jaffe, MN, ARNP, FACHE Senior Vice President, Safety and Quality 
Zosia Stanley, JD, MHA, Associate General Counsel 

Re: Overview of Governor Proclamation 2024.1: Reducing Restrictions on, and Safe 
Expansion of, Non-Urgent Medical and Dental Procedures 

On May 18, 2020 Governor Inslee issued Proclamation 20.24.11, which provides updated direction on 
expansion of non-urgent medical and dental procedures. The Proclamation is the latest in a progression 
of Proclamations and Interpretive Statements that direct levels of clinical care that may be provided 
during the COVID—19 Declaration of Emergency. The Proclamation is intended to be in place for the 
duration of the emergency or until it is amended or rescinded, whichever occurs first. 

WSHA is pleased with the direction provided in this proclamation, which recognizes and relies on the 
expertise of a wide range of health care community leaders in determining level of procedures that can 
be performed. WSHA chair-elect Bill Robertson, CEO of MultiCare Health System and Sally Watkins, 
Executive Director of Washington State Nurses Association, led this work and WSHA expresses its deep 
appreciation to them for their leadership. 

The proclamation allows medical, dental and dental specialty facilities, practices and practitioners in 
Washington State to provide non-urgent health care and dental services, procedures and surgeries 
provided they act in good faith and with reasonable clinical judgment to meet and follow the procedures 
and criteria in the proclamation. 

Here are key parts of the proclamation, summarized: 

COVlD-19 Assessment: Local Health Jurisdictions2 are charged with assessing COVID-19 status in their 
communities and that assessment should be updated on a regular basis. A link is provided to the DOH 
dashboard relevant to the assessment? 

Expansion/Contraction of Care Plan: Each facility or practitioner is required to develop an 
expansion/contraction of care plan that is: 

0» Congruent with the COVID-19 assessment described above 
0 Consistent with clinical and operational capacity of the organization and 

1Proc|amationz htt 5: :www. overnor.wa. ov sites default files'20—24.1%20-%20COV|D-19%20Non- 
Urgent%20Medical%20Procedures%20Ext%20.pdf 
Press release: httpsjlmedium.com/wagovernor(medical-services-resume-in-wa-4f7e578a820c 
2 Contact information for Local Health Jurisdictions: 
https:l/www.doh.wa.gov[AboutUs(PublicHeaIthSystemZLocalHealthJurisdictions 
3 DOH Data Dashboard: 
httpszliwwwdoh.wg,gplmergencies/NovelCoronavirusOutbreakZOZOCOVlDlQZDataDashboard 

1 



o Responsive to standards of ca re in effect in the facility, practice or relevant geography as 
determined by the region's emergency health care coalition. 

We believe most hospitals already have such a plan in place through their surge or emergency 
operations plans. 

Care Phases - A Key Concept: The proclamation directs that the standards of care determined by the 
area emergency health care coalition4 govern what level of care can be provided. Understanding that 
these care phases are a key driver of what levels of care can be provided is important. The phases are 
below: 

0 Conventional Care Phase. All appropriate clinical care 'can be provided. 
0 Contingency Care Phase. All appropriate clinical care can be provided so long as there is 

sufficient access to PPE and, for hospitals, surge capacity is at least 20%. 
0 Crisis Care Phase. All emergent and urgent care shall be provided; elective care, that the 

postponement of which for more than 90 days would, in the judgement of the clinician, cause 
harm; the full suite of family planning services and procedures, newborn care, infant and 
pediatric vaccinations, and other preventive care, such as annual flu vaccinations, can continue. 

Currently, the Department of Health has specified that the state, as a whole, is in the Contingency Care 
Phase, meaning all appropriate clinical care can be provided so long as there is sufficient access to PPE 
and, for hospitals, surge capacity is at least 20%. 

Definition of Harms: Evaluation of patient harm has been an important consideration in what care may 
be provided under prior proclamations. In contrast, our understanding of the current proclamation is 
the consideration of harm (as defined in the prior proclamations) is only necessary when in the Crisis 
Care Phase. 

Criteria for Resuming Non-Urgent Procedures: Recognizing the state has not yet normalized health care 
operations, the proclamation states hospitals and health jurisdictions will work together to maintain 
surge capacity and prudently use PPE to keep workers safe and provide needed care to the community. 
The proclamation also includes an extensive list of requirements that must be met by health care, dental 
and dental specialty facilities, practices, and practitioners. We will not provide the entire list here but 

4 Regional Healthcare Coalitions by counties, with contact information: 
https:[[www.doh.wa.govZAboutU5(Programsand5ervicenmergency PreparednessandResponsetEmergencyPre‘gar 
ednesngions/RegionalHealthcareCoalitionLeads 
5 Per the proclamation (page 5): ”...evaluation of ’harm’ is the same as described in the May 7, 2020, Updated 
Interpretive Statement related to Proclamation 20-24, and is repeated here: 
The decision to perform any surgery or procedure in hospitals, ambulatory surgical facilities, dental, orthodontic, 
and endodontic offices, including examples of those that could be delayed should be weighed against the following 
criteria when considering potential harm to a patient’s health and well-being: 0 Expected advancement of disease 
process - Possibility that delay results in more complex future surgery or treatment 0 Increased loss of function - 
Continuing or worsening of significant or severe pain 0 Deterioration of the patient’s condition or overall health 0 
Delay would be expected to result in a less-positive ultimate medical or surgical outcome 0 Leaving a condition 
untreated could render the patient more vulnerable to COVID-19 contraction, or resultant disease morbidity 
and/or mortality - Non-surgical alternatives are not available or appropriate per current standards of care - 
Patient’s co-morbidities or risk factors for morbidity or mortality, if inflicted with COVlD-19 after procedure is 
performed. Furthermore, diagnostic imaging, diagnostic procedures or testing should continue in all settings based 
on clinical judgement that uses the same definition of harm and criteria as listed above.” 

2 



will identify a few where we believe additional consideration or collaborative efforts by WSHA members 
to standardize practice may be necessary. 

Reguirement: “Exercise clinical judgment to determine the need to deliver a health care service, 
in the context of the broader health care and dental needs of patients and communities and in 
the context of the pandemic, and within the parameters of operation provided by the health 
care, dental or dental specialty facility, practice or practitioner setting in which they are 
providing services.” 

0 WSHA comment: WSHA strongly encourages hospitals to support clinicians in 
standardizing documentation of their clinical decision-making that reflects not just the 
patient need for care but also the broader context in which they are providing the care, 
including their organizational setting. To this end, WSHA has developed informed 
consent language that can be incorporated into existing consent forms or as a 
standalone consent form.6 

Re‘guirement: ”Develop a formal employee feedback process to obtain direct input regarding 
care delivery processes, PPE, and technology availability related to expansion of care.” 

0 WSHA comment: Recognizing many hospitals may have existing employee feedback 
channels they wish to leverage for this process, WSHA will convene members to discuss 
avenues to ensure this requirement is met. 

Reguirement: “Use on-site fever screening and self-reporting of COVlD-19 symptom screening 
for all patients, visitors and staff prior to (the preferred approach), or immediately upon, 
entering a facility or practice.” 

0 WSHA comment: Some member hospitals have expressed confusion about whether this 
requirement allows a self-reported temperature by staff or visitors or if actual screening 
at the facility is the only way to meet the requirements. Members have also shared that 
the efficacy of on-site fever screening has not been established. The Governor’ 5 Office 
and DOH have indicated they are open to clarification on this element. WSHA will ask to 
convene the group that worked to develop the proclamation language to discuss 
interpretation of this element and how it is being met. 

Reg uirement: “For clinical procedures and surgeries, develop and implement setting- 
appropriate, pre-procedure COVID-19 testing protocols that are based on availability, DOH 
guidance, if any, and/or relevant and reputable professional clinical sources and research.” 

0 WSHA comment: WSHA intends to dialogue with hospitals, clinicians and the 
Department of Health on this requirement with the goal of providing further guidance. 
WSHA will also be working to acquire testing supplies for our members’ use. 

Reguirement: “Limit visitors to those essential for the patient’s well-being and care. Visitors 
should be screened for symptoms prior to entering a health care facility and ideally 
telephonically prior to arriving. Visitors who are able, should wear a mask or other appropriate 
face covering at all times while in the health care facility as part of universal source control." 

5 WSHA has created two model consent forms for use during the COVID-19 pandemic: The Model Short Form is 
drafted to be insert into a hospital admission form. The Model Long Form is drafted to respond to interest from 
some hospitals to have a separate COVlD-19 consent form. 



o WSHA comment: WSHA is working with clinicians and hospital legal staff to develop 
universal masking policy and updated visitor policy guidance. 

Additional Considerations. Hospitals making capacity decisions are directed to take into consideration: 

Level and trending of COVID-19 infections in the relevant geography, 
Availability of appropriate PPE, 
Collaborative activities with relevant emergency preparedness organizations and/or LHJ, 
Surge capacity of the hospital/care setting, and 
Availability of appropriate post-discharge options addressing transitions of care. 

The proclamation also acknowledges that given the geographic diversity of the state and variation in 
system capacity and varying levels of COVlD-19 disease burden, it is impossible to have a uniform 
approach. It encourages participants to act with good judgment, within the context of patients’ needs, 
their environment, their capabilities and capacity. 

Penalties. The proclamation states violations of the order may be subject to penalties pursuant to RCW 
43.06.2206), which makes willful violation of the proclamation a gross misdemeanor. WSHA believes 
the prOSpect of these penalties, along with the highly restrictive approach of the prior proclamations led 
to a dramatic drop in the amount of care being provided to patients. While the penalties are a part of 
any proclamation from the Governor, it is our hope the additional clarifications made in this 
proclamation, along with the emphasis on clinical judgment will lead to less clinician concern. 

For Further Information: 

0 Taya Briley: tayab@wsha.org, (206) 605-7437 
0 Darcy .Iaffe: darcvj@wsha.org, (206) 216-2501 
- Zosia Stanley: zosias@wsha.org, (206) 216—2511 



JAY INSLEE 
Governor 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR 

RD. Box 40002 0 Olympia, Washington 98504-0002 - (360) 902-411 1 4' wwvngovemon wagov 

PROCLAMATION BY THE GOVERNOR 
AMENDING AND EXTENDING PROCLAMATION S 20-05 AND 20—24 

20—24.1 
Reducing Restrictions on, and Safe Expansion of, 

Non-Urgent Medical and Dental Procedures 

WHEREAS, on February 29, 2020, I issued Proclamation 20-05, proclaiming a State of Emergency 
for all counties throughout Washington as a result of the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-l9) 
outbreak in the United States and confirmed person-to—person spread of COVID-l9 in Washington 
State; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of the continued worldwide spread of COVID-19, its significant progression 
in Washington State, and the high risk it poses to our most vulnerable populations, I have 
subsequently issued amendatory Proclamations 20-06 through 20-53 and 20-55, exercising my 
emergency powers under RCW 43 06220 by prohibiting certain activities and waiving and 
suspending specified laws and regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the COVID-l9 disease, caused by a virus that spreads easily from person to person 
which may result in serious illness or death and has been classified by the World Health 
Organization as a worldwide pandemic, has broadly spread throughout Washington State, and 
significantly increasing the threat of serious associated health risks statewide; and 

WHEREAS, the health care personal protective equipment supply chain in Washington State has been 
severely disrupted by the significant increased use of such equipment worldwide, such that there are 
now critical shortages of this equipment for health care workers. To curtail the spread of the COVID- 
19 pandemic in Washington State and to protect our health care workers as they provide health care 
services, it is necessary to prohibit all medical, dental and dental specialty facilities, practices, and 
practitioners in Washington State from providing non-urgent health care and dental services, 
procedures and surgeries unless specific procedures and criteria are met; and 

WHEREAS, the extensive public-private collaboration between our state and local governments, and 
the state’s hospitals, health systems, and other providers of clinical services in addressing the health 
care issues created for people and communities by the COVID-19 pandemic is commendable; and 

WHEREAS, Washington State’s collaborative approach has been effective in addressing the 
significant public health issues associated with the disease, while greatly expanding the clinical and 
operational capacity of the health system to effectively care for COVlD-19 patients and safely provide 
preventive, diagnostic, outpatient, ambulatory, acute, and post-acute care for all people in need of care 



via both in-person and virtual means. The professionalism, expertise, and compassion of Washington’s 
clinicians, nurses, and other health care professionals during the COVID-19 pandemic has been 
exemplary; and 

WHEREAS in the early days of the pandemic, I, in collaboration with the Washington State 
Department of Health and health care system partners, established a data-driven approach to 
addressing the health and safely of Washington’s citizens and communities. The actions taken pursuant 
to this approach reduced the impact of the disease in the State. As the State moves into its Safe Start of 
the economy, it is important that the healthcare system move rapidly towards a more normal operating 
position and expand access to care for patients in a manner that is safe and equitable; and 

WHEREAS, I support extending Proclamation 20-29, which requires telemedicine payment parity 
through year-end 2020, when the new parity law in SB 53 85 will formally take effect. However, the 
extension must be approved by the Legislature. 

WHEREAS, recognizing that health status is impacted both by social determinants of health and 
untreated health conditions, it is vital that public and private sector participants in the health care 
system work to enhance public health capabilities and capacity, such as testing, contact tracing and 
follow-up, and that access to appropriate care be expanded as safely as possible; and 

WHEREAS, the exercise of clinical judgement by healthcare and dental professionals related to the 
care of patients is essential, and it is essential for all of our health and dental partners to follow the 
same procedures as outlined in this proclamation and work together to protect the health of all of our 
residents; and 

WHEREAS, the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic and its progression throughout Washington State 
continues to threaten the life and health of our people as well as the economy of Washington State, 
and remains a public disaster affecting life, health, property or the public peace; and 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Health continues to maintain a Public Health 
Incident Management Team in coordination with the State Emergency Operations Center and other 
supporting state agencies to manage the public health aspects of this ongoing incident; and 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Military Department Emergency Management Division, through 
the State Emergency Operations Center, continues coordinating resources across state government to 
support the Department of Health and local health officials in alleviating the impacts to people, 
property, and infrastructure, and continues coordinating with the Department of Health in assessing 
the impacts and long-term effects of the incident on Washington State and its people. 

NOW, THEREFORE, 1, Jay Inslee, Governor of Washington, as a result of the above-noted 
situation, and under Chapters 38.08, 38.52 and 43.06 RCW, do hereby proclaim that a State of 
Emergency continues to exist in all Washington State counties, that Proclamation 20-05 and all 
amendments thereto remain in effect, and that Proclamations 20-05 and 20-24 are amended to 
immediately prohibit certain medical and dental procedures, with exceptions, and as provided herein. 



I again direct that the plans and procedures of the Washington State Comprehensive Emergency 
Management Plan be implemented throughout state government. State agencies and departments are 
directed to continue utilizing state resources and doing everything reasonably possible to support 
implementation of the Washington State Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan and to assist 
affected political subdivisions in an effort to respond to and recover from the COVID-19 pandemic. 

I continue to order into active state service the organized militia of Washington State to include the 
National Guard and the State Guard, or such part thereof as may be necessary in the Opinion of The 
Adjutant General to address the circumstances described above, to perform such duties as directed 
by competent authority of the Washington State Military Department in addressing the outbreak. 
Also, I continue to direct the Department of Health, the Washington State Military Department 
Emergency Management Division, and other agencies to identify and provide appropriate personnel 
for conducting necessary and ongoing incident related assessments. 

FURTHERMORE: based on the above situation and under the provisions of RCW 43.06.220(1)(h), 
to help preserve and maintain life, health, property or the public peace, I hereby prohibit all medical, 
dental and dental specialty facilities, practices, and practitioners in Washington State from providing 
non-urgent health care and dental services, procedures, and surgeries unless they act in good faith 
and with reasonable clinical judgment to meet and follow the procedures and criteria provided 
below: 

COVID Assessment: 
Local health jurisdictions (LHJs) in collaboration with their health partners, should assess the 
COVID-19 status in the communities they serve. This assessment should be updated on a regular 
basis. Important COVID-19 disease information relevant to this assessment is available at 
https ://www.doh.wa.gov/Emergencies/NovelC oronavirusOutbreanOZOCOVfl) 19/DataDashboard. 
and LHJs should have relevant information as well. 

Expansion/Contraction of Care Plan 
Each health care, dental or dental specialty facility, practice, or practitioner must develop an 
expansionfcontraction of care plan that is both congruent with community COVID-l9 assessment 
described above, consistent with the clinical and operational capabilities and capacities of the 
organization, and responsive to the criteria provided below. 

Expansion/contraction of care plans should be operationalized based on the standards of care that are 
in effect in the health care facility, practice or practitioner’s relevant geography as determined by 
that region’s emergency health care coalition, as follows: 

- Conventional Care Phase — All appropriate clinical care can be provided. 
- Contingency Care Phase — All appropriate clinical care can be provided so long as there is 

sufficient access to PPE and, for hospitals, surge capacity is at least 20%. 
- Crisis Care Phase - All emergent and urgent care shall be provided; elective care, that the 

postponement of which for more than 90 days would, in the judgement of the clinician, cause 
harm; the full suite of family planning services and procedures, newborn care, infant and 
pediatric vaccinations, and other preventive care, such as annual flu vaccinations, can 
continue. 



Criteria for Resuming Non-Urgent Procedures 
Until there is an effective vaccine, effective treatment, or herd immunity and until supply chains for 
PPE return to a more normal status, hospitals and LHJs will work together to maintain some level of 
surge capacity in our health care system and prudently use PPE so that we can keep health care 
workers safe and provide the needed health care to our communities. To this end, the following must 
be met by health care, dental and dental specialty facilities, practices, and practitioners: 

Exercise clinical judgment to determine the need to deliver a health care service, in the 
context of the broader health care and dental needs of patients and communities and in the 
context of the pandemic, and within the parameters of operation provided by the health care, 
dental or dental specialty facility, practice or practitioner setting in which they are providing 
services. 
Continuously monitor capacity in the system to ensure there are resources, including 
ventilators, beds, PPE, blood and blood products, pharmaceuticals, and trained staff available 
to combat any potential surges of COVID-19, participation, as required by Department of 
Health guidelines, with the WA HEALTH data reporting system to allow for a state-wide 
common operating perspective on resource availability. 
Follow Department of Health’s current PPE conservation guidance, which will be regularly 
reviewed and updated by the Department of Health, as published on the Department of 
Health website at https://www.doh.wa.gov/Emergencies/Coronavirus. If the health care 
facility, practice or practitioner’s PPE status deteriorates, adjustments to expansion of care 
will be required. 
Review infection prevention policies and procedures and update, as necessary, to reflect 
current best practice guidelines for universal precautions. 
Deve10p a formal employee feedback process to obtain direct input regarding care delivery 
processes, PPE, and technology availability related to expansion of care. 
Appropriately use telemedicine. Appropriate use of telemedicine will facilitate access to care 
while helping minimize the spread of the virus to other patients and/or health care workers. 
Use on—site fever screening and self-reporting of COVID—19 symptom screening for all 
patients, visitors and staff prior to (the preferred approach), or immediately upon, entering a 
facility or practice. 
For clinical procedures and surgeries, deve10p and implement setting-appropriate, pre- 
procedure COVID-19 testing protocols that are based on availability, Department of Health 
guidance, if any, and/or relevant and reputable professional clinical sources and research. 
Implement policies for non-punitive sick leave that adhere to US. Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) return-to-work guidance. 
Post signage that strongly encourages staff, visitors and patients to practice frequent hand 
hygiene with soap and water or hand sanitizer, avoid touching their face, and practice cough 
etiquette. 
Maintain strict social distancing in patient scheduling, check-in processes, positioning and 
movement within a facility. Set up waiting rooms and patient care areas to facilitate patients, 
visitors and staff to maintain 26 feet of distance between them whenever possible, consider 
rooming patients directly from cars or parking lots, Space out appointments, and consider 
scheduling or spatially separating well visits from sick visits. 



- Limit visitors to those essential for the patient’s well-being and care. Visitors should be 
screened for symptoms prior to entering a health care facility and ideally telephonically prior 
to arriving. Visitors who are able should wear a mask or other appropriate face covering at all 
times while in the health care facility as part of universal source control. 

- Ambulatory patients, who are able and when consistent with the care being received, should 
wear a mask or other appropriate face covering at all times while in the health care facility as 
part of universal source control. 

- Frequently clean and disinfect high-touch surfaces regularly using an EPA-registered 
disinfectant. 

- Identify and implement strategies for addressing employees who have had unprotected 
exposures to COVID-19 positive patients, are symptomatic, or ill, which should include 
requiring COVID-l9 positive employees to stay at home while infectious, and potentially 
restricting employees who were directly exposed to the COVID-19 positive employee. 
Timely notification of employees with potential COVlD-19 exposure and apprOpriate testing 
of employees who are symptomatic should be a component of these strategies. Follow CDC 
cleaning guidelines to deep clean after reports of an employee with suspected or Confirmed 
COVID-19 illness. This may involve the closure of the business until the location can be 
preperly disinfected. 

- Educate patients about COVID-l9 in a language they best understand. The education should 
include the signs, symptoms, and risk factors associated with COVID-l9 and how to prevent 
its spread. 

- Follow requirements in Governor Inslee’s Proclamation 20-46 - High-Risk Employees -— 
Workers ’ Rights. 

ADDITIONALLY, for purposes of this Proclamation, evaluation of “harm” is the same as 
described in the May 7, 2020, Updated Interpretive Statement related to Proclamation 20-24, and is 
repeated here: The decision to perform any surgery or procedure in hospitals, ambulatory surgical 
facilities, dental, orthodontic, and endodontic offices, including examples of those that could be 
delayed should be weighed against the following criteria when considering potential harm to a 
patient’s health and well-being: 

- Expected advancement of disease process 
' Possibility that delay results in more complex future surgery or treatment 
- Increased loss of function 
- Continuing or worsening of significant or severe pain 
- Deterioration of the patient’s condition or overall health 
- Delay would be expected to result in a less—positive ultimate medical or surgical outcome 
- Leaving a condition untreated could render the patient more vulnerable to COVID—l9 

contraction, or resultant disease morbidity and/or mortality 
- Non-surgical alternatives are not available or appropriate per current standards of care 
- Patient’s co-morbidities or risk factors for morbidity or mortality, if inflicted with COVID-l9 

after procedure is performed 

Furthermore, diagnostic imaging, diagnostic procedures or testing should continue in all settings 
based on clinical judgement that uses the same definition of harm and criteria as listed above. 



ADDITIONALLY, when making health system care capacity decisions, health care, dental and 
dental specialty facilities, practices, and practitioners must, in addition to the above, consider 1) the 
level and trending of COVID-19 infections in the relevant geography, 2) the availability of 
appropriate PPE, 3) collaborative activities with relevant emergency preparedness organizations 
and/or LHJ, 4) surge capacity of the hospital/care setting, and 5) the availability of appropriate post- 
discharge options addressing transitions of care. 

ADDITIONALLY, given the geographic diversity of Washington, the variability in COVID-l9 
disease burden within the state, and health care system capabilities and capacity, no uniform 
approach to expanding access to care is possible nor would any such approach be effective or wise. 
It is essential that health care system participants act with good judgment within the context of their 
patients’ needs, their environment, and their capabilities and capacity. 

This Proclamation is retroactive to 11:59 PM on May 17, 2020, and shall remain in effect until the 
state of emergency, issued on February 29, 2020, pursuant to Proclamation 20-05, is rescinded, or until 
this order is amended or rescinded, whichever occurs first. 

Violators of this order may be subject to penalties pursuant to RCW 43.06.220(5). 

Signed and sealed with the official seal of the state of Washington on this 18th day of May, A.D., Two 
Thousand and Twenty at Olympia, Washington. 

By: 

/s/ 
Jay Inslee, Governor 

BY THE GOVERNOR: 

/§/ 
Secretary of State 



Attachment E *—
—L

..._
 

{'3 P F0 8 se l“ 
LI Memorial Health Place patient 

sticker here 

DECISION AID TO DETERMINE NEED FOR SURGERY 0R PROCEDURE 

It is the position ofthe State of Washington to allow performance of all services considered to be 
“emergent” or ”urgent” for which delay would result in worsening a life-threatening or 
debilitating prognosis. Physicians should use clinical judgment to determine performance of 
surgeries or procedures considered to be non-urgent or "elective”. To assist in that judgement, 
one or more of the following criteria must be met to consider moving forward with the surgery 
or procedure, check all that apply and include explanation for criteria selection: 

[I Expected advancement of disease process 
[1, Possibility that delay results in more complex future surgery .or treatment 
[3 Increased loss of function 
E] Continuing or worsening of significant or severe pain 
1:] Deterioration of the patient’s condition or overall health 
D Delay would be expected to result in a less-positive ultimate medical or surgical outcome 
D Leaving a condition untreated could render the patient more vulnerable to COVlD-19 

contraction, or resultant disease morbidity and/or mortality 
El Non-surgical alternatives are not available or appropriate per current standards of care 
El Patient’s co—morbidities or risk factors for morbidity or mortality, if inflicted With COVID-19 

after procedure is performed 

Explanation for criteria selection: 

Physician Signature Date 

Reference: 
State of Washington/Office of the Governor, lnterpretive Statement Related to Proclamation by the 

Governor 20—24, Restrictions on Non-Urgent Medical Procedures, April 29, 2020 
5/18/2020 



Attachment F 

P‘tProsser 
L i  M e m o r i a l  Health 

Hospital Week 2020 

Dear Covid-19 Task Force Members, 

One of the experiences for which I will define 2020 has been participating in our Covid-19 Task 
Force. Every member of this team has stepped up and stepped in to make a heavy load and ambitious 
goals. I have been reflecting on why it has worked and how this team will inform my leadership going 
forward. 

1. We had a clear goal despite the continually shifting variables. Our target never changed; it 
simply never stopped moving. 

2. We invited the right people to the table. People with the ability to solve problems and implement 
change quickly. People with credibility throughout the organization so that we could move 
rapidly with the speed of trust. 
We ensured all departments, locations, and disciplines across the organization were represented. 

4. We created a safe place for honest discourse and disagreement. We understood that we could be 
unified in action without agreeing on every detail. We did not allow ego or frustration to 
sabotage our efforts. \ 

5. We delegated clear expectations to each team member, ensuring that all essential tasks were 
reliably accomplished. The load was equitably distributed, and redundancies created to allow 
team members periods of rest. 

6. We honestly assessed progress and modified our approach until we found success. 
7. We established a precise mechanism for communication and added elements as we identified 

additional needs. 
8. We acknowledged and expressed gratitude for every member of the organization and community 

who partnered with us. 
9. We laughed a lot and enjoyed being together. 

D
J 

1 am so gratefill to each one of you. I am proud to be in the company of the committed. 

With love and respect, 

W 
Merry B Fuller, MSN, RN CPHQ 
Chief Nursing Officer/Chief Operating Officer/Risk Management 
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 
723 MEMORIAL ST | PROSSER, WA 99350 
a: (509) 788 6038 | | c: (509) 388—4334 | f: (509) 788 6013 
mfu|ler@prosserhe§|th.org l www.mrosserhealthorg 

Prosser Memorial Health | 723 Memorial Street | Prosser, WA 99350 | www.prosserhealth.org 



Attachment G 

i slit-P ) Lit? CE This isnt going anywhele if you go 6V8] ywhele. WI 11:1 ”I i 1 1‘“ ’1 

http:l/www.chron|ine.com/community/washington-hospitals-community-health-centers-face-a-new-crisis—red- 
ink/article_34ced572-8921-1 1ea—8234—47c854eb727e.html 

Washington Hospitals, Community Health 
Centers Face a New Crisis: Red Ink 
By Evan Bush lThe  Seattle Times 
May 4, 2020 

I fig; '1' ._ . _ 

Grays Harbor Community Hospital has been among the hospitals to reduce staff amid the COVlD-19 outbreak. 
The Daily World 

Jennifer Kreidler—Moss has no shortage of concerns to occupy her. 

When schools hosting Peninsula Community Health Services sites shut down, her organization lost touch points to 
schoolchildren, including some struggling with mental health or at risk of suicide. 

"I'm beside myself with worry," said Kreidler—Moss, the nonprofit‘s CEO. 

http://www.chron1ine.com/community/washington—hospitals-community-health—centers-face-a-ncw-crisis-rcd... 5151202 



Washington Hospitals, Community Health Centers Face a New Crisis: Red Ink | Community | chronline.com Page 2 of 

WEL COMING. 

', Anthony Fritz 
' MD. Bream Certified 

internal -.Med'tcl as 

- flatten angina: ' . 560.496.5145 
at 
:11. earth 

MyArborHe-nttho: g 

u .- 

I 

And since COVlD-19 began, 17% of the staff has been laid off or furloughed and March revenues fell $884,000 short of 
expectations. 

At EvergreenHealth Medical Center, the first U.S. hOSpital system to identify a COVlD-19 outbreak, March revenue was 
$20 million less than projected. The hospital system spent an  unplanned $3 million on personal protective equipment, 
testing and screening, among other costs. 

In the fight against COVID—19, health care systems have canceled surgeries, shuttered some primary care offices, 
created COVlD-19 wards and left dental chairs empty to prevent the virus's spread. And as asked, many patients heeded 
officials' pleas and stayed home. 

But now, as rates of new COVlD-19 cases and deaths trend lower, some experts and health administrators say the 
measures that helped avoid the pandemic's deluge are barreling health systems toward a second crisis: a flood of red ink. 

"We're bleeding money and people are cooped up in their homes, but it seems to be working," said Chelene Whiteaker, 
senior vice president of government affairs for the Washington State Hospital Association. 

Altogether, hospitals' budget shortfalls could swell to $900 million for March and April in the state, Whiteaker said. Federal 
funds are supposed to put these institutions on more stable financial footing, but Whiteaker said it's not likely enough. 

Myriad blows 

The financial blows to health care systems are myriad, said Bob Malte, a clinical associate professor of health services at 
the University of Washington. 

Patient volumes and revenues have fallen as patients stay home, Malte said. Costs are flat or have risen with COVlD-19. 

The mixture of patients seeking services is changing, too, said Malte, a former hospital executive including at 
EvergreenHealth. For some hospitals, that could mean an  increasing number of Medicaid or Medicare patients, who are 
less lucrative to the bottom line than commercial payers. 

Medical centers' reserves also have taken a hit. 

"Investment portfolios have been decimated," Malte said. 

Malte said he worried most for hospitals in rural areas that often don't have hearty reserves, hospitals in areas 
experiencing inequality because of race or wealth, and hospitals with a higher proportion of patients on Medicare or 
Medicaid. 

"COVID is underscoring we have a lot of inequities in our  health care delivery system," Malte said. 

Few institutions will remain unshaken, he said. 

http://www.chronline.com/community/washington—hospitals-community—health—centers-face-a—new—crisis-red... 5/5/202 



Washington Hospitals, Community Health Centers Face a New Crisis: Red Ink | Community I chronline.com Page 3 of 
"I worry about them all." 

. "Very fiuid" 

March was bad for finances at Evergreen Health Medical Center in Kirkland. April is expected to have been worse. 

EvergreenHealth planned to take in about $780 million in total operating revenue this year, said Chief Financial Officer 
Tina Mycroft. April is expected to tally up to $20 million to $35 million short of monthly expectations. 

"Things are very fluid," Mycroft said. 

Emergency room visits have dropped by about 60% and procedures by 73%, said Chief Executive Officer Jeff Tomlin. 

Meanwhile, costs rose about $3 million in March alone as EvergreenHealth invested in personal protective equipment, 
drive-thru testing, screening and extra staffing for COVlD-19. 

Mycroft said the hospital has cut planned capital expenditures in half for 2020, already instituted voluntary furloughs for 
some staffers, and sidelined others for lack of work. 

EvergreeenHealth has about 100 days of reserves, Mycroft said. Hospital leaders are looking to dip into that money, seek 
more federal funds and try to establish a line of credit. 

"We expect this recovery to be two years, maybe longer," Mycroft said. 

Uncertainty further clouds planning. 

How soon will patients feel comfortable returning for routine care? How many patients are now dealing with more 
emergent conditions because they went without that care? \Mll the virus that causes COVlD-19 produce another wave of 
rapid growth? 

Gov. Jay Inslee on Wednesday took steps to allow more medical procedures, which could help boost revenue. 

But Tomlin said it won't be like turning on a spigot. 

"It's going to be gradual," he said. 

Most at risk 

Community health centers, which serve vulnerable communities regardless of patients' ability to pay, could be among the 
institutions most at risk. These centers often rely on reimbursement from Washington state's Medicaid program, and also 
care for the uninsured or underinsured. 

An economic analysis released last month of Washington's 27 community health centers by the accounting firm 
CliftonLarsonAllen estimated that together they could lose about 59% of revenues because of COVlD-19 over six months' 
time, a combined loss of about $473 million dollars. 

The analysis relied on financial information provided by most centers through February, and assumed that a plunge in 
patient volume would last through summer's end,  but did not consider cost-cutting measures the centers could take, 
according to Kyla Delgado and Matthew Borchardt, the certified public accountants who performed the analysis. 

In that scenario, the analysis found more than 8,000 full-time jobs could be lost across the state's community health 
centers, more than 600,000 patients could lose a provider and 167 clinical sites could be shuttered. 

[ > x  

http://www.chronline.com/community/washington—hospitals-community-health—centers-face-a-new-crisis-red... 5/5/202I 



Washington Hospitals, Community Health Centers Face a New Crisis: Red Ink | Community I chronline.com Page 4 of 

"People aren't coming in for care," said Bob Marsalli, CEO for the Washington Association for Community Health. "You're 
getting into those scarce reserves to keep the lights on." 

At Columbia Valley Community Health. which serves Chelan and Douglas counties, visits for dental procedures have 
dropped by about 95%, said David Olson, the system's CEO. Routine dental services were halted to preserve protective 
equipment and avoid spreading the virus. 

The community health center, which employs about 300 people and sees about 140,000 patient visits each year, also saw 
medical visits drop by about half. 

Founded nearly 50 years ago to treat migrant farm workers, Olson said the health center is on the front lines of care to 
essential agricultural workers who often live in close quarters, could be susceptible to COVlD—19 and don't have many 
options for health care. An outbreak was recently identified in agricultural housing near East Wenatchee. 

Olson said North Central Washington hasn't seen the end of COVlD-19. 

"We're right at that time of year when people are coming in. They're getting ready to go out and plant fruit trees and farm," 
Olson said. "It's economics here, but we're talking about feeding a whole lot of people that don't live in Chelan and 
Douglas counties." 

Olson said the health center, which was growing before the pandemic, might need to forgo planned construction of a new 
clinic to keep paying staff. 

In the Seattle area, Neighborcare Health CEO Michael Erikson said the organization's monthly revenue had fallen by 
about 35%. Neighborcare offers 16 clinic locations. 

"Primary care for us is medical, dental and behavioral health. Each of those areas was hit with a torpedo," Erikson said. 

Erikson said Neighborcare has established a tent for COVlD-19 testing, kept three dental sites open for emergency 
procedures and converted about 75% of behavioral health and medical visits to telehealth. 

Still, the organization's shortfall totaled $1.3 million for March and a n  expected $2.5 million in April. 

About 30% of Neighborcare's YOU—person staff is furloughed or on standby status, Erikson said. 

"We're looking for the bottom," he said. "If we can find that floor in the next six to eight weeks, we can begin to climb our 
way out." 

Marsalli said the association for community health was appealing to federal and state officials for financial relief and also 
asking the state to immediately release some Medicaid funds usually contingent on quality measures. 

Grim bottom lines 

The statistics are grim for financial bottom lines. 

Harvard researchers, in partnership with a health care date company, found that ambulatory visits dropped nearly 60% in 
March and held low into early April for Pacific Coast states. Telehealth only offset a small portion of visits. 

http://www.chronline.com/community/washington-hospitals-community-hea1th-centers-face-a—new—crisis-red... 5/5/202 



Washington Hospitals, Community Health Centers Face a New Crisis: Red Ink | Community | chronlinecom Page 5 of 
About 20% of primary care physicians surveyed nationwide in mid-April by the Primary Care Collaborative predicted they 

' would be forced to close in a month's time because they lacked staff, cash or patients. 

Federal coronavirus relief programs have provided some relief, and Congress has approved more CARES Act funding 
than has been distributed. Still, what's available now is not expected to make up for health centers' lost revenue. 

"This pales in comparison," said Leemore Dafny, a professor of business administration at Harvard University who studies 
health care. 

So far, EvergreenHealth said it has received two payments of CARES Act funds, totaling $13.6 million, and well short of 
its March losses alone. 

The first $30 billion of CARES Act funding was distributed based on health care centers' Medicare billings. Other awards 
are aimed at rural areas, places hard-hit by COVlD-19 and for Indian health services. 

How the money is allocated has been the subject of contention. 

Using Medicare as a basis leaves children's hospitals out, said Jacqueline Barton True of the state hospital association. 
Washington state also is "more efficient" than states like Florida in Medicare spending, Barton True said, yielding a 
smaller proportion of federal funding. 

Targeting areas hard-hit by COVlD-19 makes sense, but Whiteaker noted that Washington "is not overwhelmed because 
we took early measures" that caused financial pain. 

"We've been feeling the financial pain longer," she said. 

No matter how the money is doled out, Dafny said there will be plenty to bicker about. 

"The costs of this are going to be borne unevenly," she said, but the national conversation is not about fairness, but how 
to keep vulnerable institutions open. 

Community Health Centers say they need more help. 

Neighborcare in Seattle received nearly $2.1 million through the CARES Act, "about one month's worth of the loss we've 
been experiencing," Erikson said. 

Columbia Valley Community Health got more than about $1.2 million -- the equivalent of about two weeks' payroll, Olson 
said. Peninsula Community Health Services received almost $1.1 million. 

Kreidler—Moss said Peninsula also applied for a federal payroll protection program loan, received a loan Wednesday and 
will try to bring some staffers back. 

More than 21% of Peninsula patients are experiencing homelessness. Without more support, "the safety net is going to 
collapse," Kreidler—Moss said, adding that clinicians were concerned about delayed care and reported seeing more signs 
of stroke and heart issues in recent weeks. 

Jill Homitz, a health policy expert and professor at the UCLA School of Law, said COVlD-19's economic fallout will leave 
many without insurance and unable to pay for care. Hospitals and community health centers could absorb more costs. 

"We had a decade of reducing health care benefits and shifting toward out-of-pocket costs, but if there's nothing in the 
pocket, the providers of last resort are going to have a tsunami of patients." Horwitz said. 

Erikson said safety net providers will be more important during the expected downturn. 

And after months of patients withdrawing from care,"What's building is a wave of health care needs that could crash the 
system," he said. 

b x  

.http:f/www.chronline.com/communityfwashington—hospitals-cornmunity-health—centers-face-a-new-crisis-red... 5/5/202I 



Attachment H 

Craig Marks . 

From: American Hospital Association <circu|ation@aha.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 05, 2020 7:29 AM 
To: Craig Marks 
Subject: New AHA Report on Financial Impact of COVID—19 

External Email: Please Proceed with Caution 

Click here to access a web or mobile friendlv- version of the newsletter. 

E h a w  ” H I - H  H Hui-lu— I—h II— 

May 5. 2020 

New AHA Report Finds Financial Impact of COVlD-19 on Hospitals 
and Health Systems to Be Over $200 Billion through June 

A new report released today confirms the tremendous financial strain that hospitals and health 
systems on the front lines in the fight against COVlD-19 are under. The AHA regort estimates a 
total financial impact of $202.6 billion in losses resulting from COVlD-19 expenses and lost 
revenue for hospitals and health systems over the four-month period from March 1, 2020, to 
June 30,2020 — or an average of over $50 billion in losses a month. 

"America's hospitals and health systems have stepped up in heroic and unprecedented ways to meet 
the challenges caused by COVlD-19. However, the fight against this virus has created the greatest 
financial crisis in history for hospitals and health systems," said AHA President and CEO Rick 
Pollack. "While we appreciate the support and resources from Congress and the Administration. 
many hospitals are still on the brink. We need further support and resources to ensure that we can 
continue to deliver the critical care that our patients and communities are depending on while also 
ensuring that we are prepared for the continuing challenges we face from this pandemic as well as 
other potential emergencies." 

For this report, the total financial impact on hospitals and health systems includes the costs of 
COVlD-19 hospitalizations, the impact of canceled and foregone services due to COVlD-19 on 
hospital revenue, the additional costs associated with purchasing needed personal protective 
equipment, and the costs of additional support some hospitals are providing to their workers. For 
example, some hospitals are providing child care, housing and transportation for their front-line 
caregivers and other employees. 

The financial impact estimates in this report do not include other important costs borne by hospitals, 
such as the increases in drug and labor costs that have resulted from the pandemic. The extent of 
these increases on hospitals will be better understood as more data becomes available. It is also 

1 



important to understand that the report estimates costs through June 30, 2020. and it remains to be 
seen how quickly life will return to normal across the country in the months to come. Hospitals will 
likely continue to see lower service use While treating COVlD—1 9 patients beyond June 30, which 
would result in continued financial pressures. 

Further Questions 
If you have questions, please contact AHA at 800—424-4301. 

Unsubscr-ibe 
© 2020 American Hospital Association I 800-424-4301 

800 10th Street, NW, Suite 400, Washington, DC 20001 



.1133 a; 88 $223 at 88 

Em; BE m> E93 
“mm—Sm m> 3&m 

omom _:Q<->._m::£ 
mwSUmuoE _mu_m1_:m 

pin—mm: _m_hOE@_>_ 5090.9;— 

__ EwEfimfld 

.253.“ 9.; cN 

I.._L1.:E1 
1-= * 

1 .1 
1E 

1. 

OOH 

com 

com 

an;1 

com 

com 



332 at, 88 3.05 a; 28 Esta. at. $8 

28> Sta m> GAR: 
5925 9 $55 

0N8 __a<->§:2 
38 E25 8:23 

5.3: _w_.oEw§ .6305 

q £3532 

ooom 

000m 

000% 

ooom 

ooow 

coon 

ooow 



5828 88 3925 88 

mscw>mm “oz 
:2m .mtoEmE .335 

v. pscumfid 

.mswud mHON 
ooodoodm 

ooodoofim 

oooyooocnm 

ooodoqmm 

ooodoo‘wm 

ooodoodm 

ooqooqmm 

00060046 

8338 



888:2 2958 
.833?» 5.830“. 83 883m 88 

9:8... 52 
5.3... .m...oEw.>. Emmet. 

.. Each-.395 

.m3pu< mHON 

8868.3 

8888i 

8868i 

8883. 

88584. 

ooodooé 

ooodookm 

ooodoofi 

ooodooé 

ooodoofi 



N00 H was; 

5.0m: EtoEmz 
mmOLQ 

1‘ 
A. 

5. utmEsumH—d 

L 

“83 “$3 2“m mums 
I find $3. “:3. $3.9 .. l I I .00. Ease: mamfimué fig 2.183 Earn an 56.5 a 

2a. and": hug: <35- $2.3: madam 83% need: 
an? «$43 $3. $93. 33%| 

Exam 3%.: 33.55 “am. 830 3%.t 
.39? Emma: $8.83 $8.95 8B5: 

2.8- .832. Smdmfi $5.9- $8.3 Etna 83mm 935. aa.” $.d 33% gm..- v8.9- 0.3.8» 8q $3.a 

RN- wanna. name—Ra $9.2. SSE... F858...” nua.«m~.« .3”.o 

«a- $3.8: 523$ .39.” Bugs.“ 832.3 58.93% «3.81% 

.5- 
ESE". $33.3 “S...” Rama} . fining $38.3 25:53 

:2. 33.8.2 named” $2: Sada 8°93 39mm; 33%; 
go mama 31$? 4%.: maxfim ooodnhw $m.m$.~ 2.133, 

gum 3mg gums; #3. 8.8.3 hammmh $.d «$.m am. 338. $135 $3 $32 vvm.~m~.m Eudfid 53.68; 
«a- 38.8. $133 $3 5.3 Egan...” 33Q «£58..» 2.3- :33: and“; $3 93% 53mm 35% $38. 
5- $363 mamas gator Sofia» 0853...“ amigo.» 8326 
«5 Sta E33 $3 macaw Exam £18m 31:: 
gm gamma mmm.~mm.m $3. 3...;m 339% 98.2.3 53L} 

am. 38.33 2”?m .3..." $3.83 owning nua.E.m.an Vaughan 
gu $m mwo.3m.~ $0.2- .2?q mcc.amm.~ gunman Snead 
am- fiafim. fimfifid $3 «$68 o2.m~m.m $3o munmmmd 
E- 83.03 9353.3 $3 83“: 5989mm www.mSHm 832.8 

av $8.93. 83 Ed» .33 33E...” 533.3 «3.33”. 3....e..u.um :3. Emma»: “mama id»- “.333. $33; $38; ESE 
uomfimwfi m8.nmm.~ 

83$ mood: 
omnaoflm $386 

$3- 33.23. 353.3. $3 35.3»... 853.3 39.83» $o.~..m.fi 
“and- 538.3 gunmen 39.2. 835.3. «mum—5.8 «Swag $198.8 «0 mfidm $183. $3 mad». 31.8%“ 838..“ $3d 
$3 53R mm¢.¢n~.~ $3? Sudan 558.“ math; $8.83 :3. .3585”. Sqnfifin 3%? 8:31? waning 318%: 55.31% «a- 3min. hm~.v-.~ 5% «808 omofimd 

.333; «.383 
an? 08.2%. magma“ $¢Nm «:53 25mm? 50....59 $35.3 .33. 8263.3 Rndmmdm $93 EMS? 8353 «353.5 mtfqfi 
gm? 538$ mmnfimoww «$3 :3o mmo.8~.~m Ffidmmww www.mmmdm 

a“... D: 
:0. 38.815 83363 sad? 838.2. manage. 5503:. 5153: 

:3. 33.33: $33.8“ ii $38.2. 
ommdmwdur 3338.. ammofidm 

and- 68535 33q $5 593“.“ 938.3 333% «unwomdw 

=3" unto—o... as“ 33...... 23 $33 2.3 .33.. 
wzo_._.<m_mEo "—0 ...zm.2m...<._.m 

5.9%.: .50... 
:33: unafiano 
335 2:02.. am: 

2:02.. acsufino :92 .86... 
$22.m 9:930 :02 EEO 

$83m $225 
mEous E0533. 

03:96”. x3. 
aEeoE 9592.0 :92 

fined 352.. 9522.0 

mam—Baum 959.30 in... 

mwmcwnxm 52.3-52 Echo—6 
mmmcmaxm 9:830 550 

co_fiu_toE< w coafiomzamn 
mean. a 3:83 8:935 

823.. a 22:3. 
550 - mmoEmw nuance—E 

$55: - 8233 5338:."— 
8:35 

5:5 - mom”. .mcofimmEE 
gagging - ammu— .m:o_mm£9n_ 

£80 .053 .5355 
.693 33:23.“. 

3:33 
92.5.3 

323a DEM—930 

3:95: «a: 
03:96”. man—230 .650 

8523.2 he 55 E935 5:02.21 :85»?— 
m 5500 2 359 £580 550 

mus—n. Egan. ml... 

0:55”. waver—om Evan...— an: 

63:05”. E9". «noses—En .20... 
Son. Rm 

98 $20 
moo—.5323 $3055.50 39.0 

9553.3. 550 
maim— 323032 

28622 
28:65. 

30:35.? 3302—50 

35.6m— mqam “cu—fin. $20 =30... 
E23930 

E332 
0.526"— 90228 Egan. map—0 



N .8 N mun“. 

:8.“ “$3 Rama. awn .m “$3 $3 $3 $8.3 “Rm..." $5.3 Emma. “Quin. an“... “Raw “$3. “Rim. “and" Wampum ammw mm: mmmqw $8.3 “83% “3...? mam. “.83. 
$33... 8q 8&8. $33 33% egg $33 «mafia 3&3“ omega $3.3 

Rudd. «8.5 Sham 218 98.8 End... 95.8 Rude 95.3 833 Rama munch «3.3 $5. 8m 8m 8.... 8m 8m 8m 8m 8m 8m - - .NNN. 
33mm. 38.3 28.3 :33 :32. 33.3. 38.3 :85: :33 Emma... $3.9m. Hands 6933 

33m“ -~ - - - - 80.3 80.3 Boa: 8.0.2 313 wmofi Rafi 
Egg Soda 83K 82:. 30.2 Sod... ”8.9.. 33K ”8.2 Ewan EEK and... 2a.: 

333$ 33% anus“: mud—am «manna 839. «.343 3&9... 33$ mafia 33 an“ m: a: 
$8... man “.32.. 

Ens“. mam Rum mag Rum Run”. amen ”£d x3“. 
«mach—v.3. «SHEA. 8139.... «diam madman 35.8...” ”ma—.86 madame £8.53. 858a 233$ 33:...“ Raga...” “an. RH- $3. 

- .. 
_. .. ....h an- “8 fim. mm? Eu. Ea .L 

«mafiafi 353." 838." mania; $58.” means." 33%.... 83mm.” Nada..." 333.” 3:33 «3.33 34.5%.” mini; 33m 33m Emanm mag 33m 33m 33m mamas... mung 2.98“ Ewan: “3.3: 
www.mmhfl hwmfiwn Egan 33$ Bmdfi BEN Emafi Bmdww hmmfimm .5d 33% «$.52 Rm.-~ 
«9.93 03.3 81mm 83m 83m 81mm 83» 02.3 83m 83» $35 mm~.mm 818 
23.2.“ 2%m 23$ £33 mnmdwfi Rama” 9%m 2%m 9353 :33 $38 Ema: 33.2 
again.» 98.8“ 338 macaw 29.8” macaw dfi 985% @858 81%” $33 $.d 853 
238.. mania. mHmAm 33m mHmAm 23m .2m 33m mHmAm 33m Rhee $3.. mfifl. 
a 3.08.... «.33.... Rm.mmm NBdB «gamma Swim 8.3% 83%. £33 3.t 332 33.3 91.d 

$6.95 83.. no“? mafia. m8? 8%.. 83.. 3%? 33¢ amtmm «8...: mummm 8a.? 
8388 893m 8Q 8.....o $Q momgm momgm 8%o mam? Hum? mmm.$~ 83R 33% 

a .... . ... . .. . .. a... mm? ..... ... 
. _ . aw 

findnmam $335 $185. E36. 
833...” Seaman «8.33 mmodfifi mm».~um.~ Ragna $38.». «3.31m magma 

89.3”.“ .5.t «mam: Nag“ 933 mama: 333 mmmdfl $35 83% 31%l Emma 80.3... ..mm.m§.w 83m... 33mm $33 $353 manmmm $33. mmm.mmm 33m mmmamn mamas. www.mmm flock... 
$33.8 Hmmdmt~ 8:83 mmmfima mfifitm ~m¢.mmm.~ 3e63,.” mafia.“ £3.83 “Edema Rodmea madam.” Sedan.” RH. .n “ma ... - n ..H Ru- . . 3.2..- wmm- 

. .- . u. 

mzmbaé .... mfiwmm. 3%...m fifi. imam... .mmwmm... . Emwwwn .mmuwmw .awmwmw... .mmmmwm mewmm. mung»: to... 
am...“ 

. - 
mm am.“ 

I 
“Sufi- 

m8" mam x3 Rum a3 
- 

am: as.“ 52.. a3" 
98.25“. "8.5”..." E336 $0.923 mung...» 5.386 95636 Bag..." 53m ...m 3.336 252$ 98.8»... «Egan 
«8.89 83.3 ~26... NEE. 8&8“ ”3.3. $33. Snood ~33 mmmfim “3.3 33:. 31% 
833m. . Lam. . . : , . - . . . . . - mama..." 83q 

256.: 33.3%d 
30 9:8 Mada t6. MEEUE WED .... mmmm 32.3.0 o... .082 DoodHH ooofi 

853m Ema... 81mm.“ R33 m~m.mnm m¢m.mmm emmdoflw 

3336» $33.... manna... 93.35. 89.33 538... Swan... «5.83 Samoan $9.35 mafia... fined»... $133 

85 5.3 93.2."... SE85 Bung.» ”ammo.“ Samoa.“ 336% «No.95. 83$...” aflsfia Ramona Sana... 23.35 
5 tone... namemm 833 Sqmnm mmudmm 33% 8062. 8d 8d mmmfimw mafimum $3.3 mm¢.mmm 

813.3 30m $33 .3d $33 mi?” 83.2 oomgm oomgm 28.9,. $33 858 match 

Haunt. 
Badman 53.8: 312....» “3.33. 333.... 35.86 fie.8m.m «$.33 253$ 318:6 Sagan... 31:3 

unwind «3.3” 833 Sedan 3%a 8mg mafia mid: .53: SQ? 33% 83.3 2:4m 
80.33.. mummy? :3.t 33mg mmfimfia Roam...“ 83am; 80.83 80.3w ”mummm gamma.“ Noammma ~mm.o...m.a 

£338 313% @533 855m momfiwmfi Em.3¢.~ KERN “$.83 Emawma oom.mwo.~ Sagan mmmqmmd 33$.” www.mmodm £3.93 mmm.~mo.~ 80.83 26.3w.” wn~.~3.~ E..mm~.~ 3min.“ mundane m3.mmm ENE“; mom.o~n.~ mmm.~mm.~ 

am“. an- .m. I .. ... u. “MN- «mum- 3.3.- an- «.2. .. “mm. mm Rn. 
.. . Atom- Eu- .fimT “awn. 

...m mm? £3- “me an 
Run- an“. .....wu- man. an“- new- RNN. “mam- 

«saw. an? am. when am 
2.5.3..n 393%? Woodman“ 

magnum" «3.53” 8.5.8.3 89.815 eggs..." 98.83 333.5 
...—5.53.: «manning snowman” 

$3352. $3t «.85m $3.".d 333m 8335 Sodom.» 80.83 80.83 “5.3% Emma.» mmflfifid 833.3 833.3 89.83 8983 coo.oom.~ 80.8....“ 98.03.” 8°58.“ ooo.oo~.~ 80.8%.“ memwoua 3.3m...“ H333 93:83 

a .3588 .3525: .338 fiasco... 59... E 2.2 Es. =3... 65: rain"... J9EE. 

£98.. Eek 
59a! mew-5&0 

33$ 9:3:— 32 

2:8... ucaflano .32 .39.. 
“3:3v 95930 .52 .650 

89.3m 529:. 
083:. «cm—53>: 

03:96: am... 
058:. 9522.0 :02 

Ammo-c 
quE 9522.0 

mumcnnxm ace—20:0 .80... 

mmmconxw Esq—-52 Echéaw 
mmmcwnxm mczfloao .650 

coamNEoE< a. 55858 
3x5... a umcmnfi 8523: 

3m a £35m 
.550 - magnum 33:05.". 

mags: - $233 5322:; 
3:35 

5:5 - mg”. .mcsmmuuoi 
332mg."— - wwwu _mco_mm£o..n_ 

380 .83 @853 
.33 Emanusn. 

Bum—.3 
322$ 

mumzonxm 9522.0 

3:96: E... 
3:93. @5930 .650 

@528: no Hazy Enact 5:83.."— 0.85%.“. 
m_.n=>oo 9. 352 3:90 .550 

mug". .925“. m1: 

0:55: 3228 Evan; a»: 

wagon EB". 20:03.00 .30... 
San Rm 

98 €20 
nous—~32? 3.505550 39.0 

$55.32 550 
$3.. 85082 

28522 
28605. 

away—9522 33093-30 

«3:05». 33:3 Eons... 39.0 .30... 
E05330 

333:. 
0:53: 335m ...—asun— 009.0 



88kg o~o~.mo.mo> .933 «5.25. 9.6”. 

.l| 
fltflfimfl. a 009.5..." a" mmnfimufin ...... moNfihmfi... m “—50... 

- ... 
- a I u" 

- 
.. I u" 

I “w 

- 
a 

....m. - u Romans. - .. 8a.... m 89.3 m 53.35390". 5.53223. .... 9...... 53.3.85 950.528.. $3.5m ...: 

...“.m u u... 
0.46.... 

as. I m tdhd...‘ w NMhdhné. m cargo—...... m1... 
....3. - .25. 3.3. .233... «ES 

v9.6 - m can ans. 8......“ m 8°...IN m ....s Ea... 32.8.... ...... Em... ...s 

.225... maé5ou§mm .u ESE: ...._.... . _. 
._ V9.6 - m 38.9.... Beam m coca... m .42m ....8 <3. 3% 

H. 
.. ;:vE.u::E§E§fEm Emsg 

...uwmnufimuufl gnawing 15:33.5? ‘ . 
. .... 

.....fifiEi... 
3.8.3.... ...... 3m...$§..?.4££. . 

.. . u. ,... tit Eu... 
.5... RES... S.._?m.._fi.¢.fiucmi 

Engage. 353.....3... 
m. 

...m. 33 an... - m mmlmdmmd 
.... magma m :8. 32.5.9... 5.632.. :93. 3...... 58.. E... a... 5.532.. ..a a... 4...... .5... m: 

. gaunt ma “Rain .33 “won .0". use: . g .. 
Eh? 

..nfiov..asu.;_§ EEC... 5.2.353.» 333. ; 1 
L ....m: ..o 3.3 .3 mmmammumm ESE. 535...... . 

$11.3... 
Ea... £5.38 .3532 ... ... 

... .... 
.... .q u. .....m. 33.3%. m 38.3... 33...? - m. 

.363... .9. 83%... m 355%.. «.3.q .o 3:99.. 3.35.... BEER. Eng—.22 as... . ...... .. 
up US$93 flags... Eaflflqfi mo $.03 nfi . . 

SEER? .. ... ...: . .. .Em. - m Sofia? gnawing. - m EAR v. 33.2.. m .555. 3.35....“ m2... 
wuzwuw... 

maids was am Ema—...... .ucuflnEooW , 
...... - m 82.52... o~a~....a< - m Sudan m Sudan m 2.256.. 3.35.3. mm... 

.....m. - m 38%.? 33...? - m 83 m 8% m 
. .....u $9.6”. 2.. “5.3. 5.3: .o 3....5582 5353.8 .335 

mag—m. .0.— mEUE... 5.53.9.3 539.29.. 

mayo: .230 0%... .5553: ubux Ema Eu 25‘ 3383. ...—25¢ 82...... car-«£530 
mes—E...— ”...—2.33:0 

Cup—0&1 .U...0Em_). 
EV 

.wmmoir 

2 52:55; 



.3553 5.30.. w... B 2%.: Ho: 30: m....... .88. <2 
_ 

N 28> £53m “56.3.3.5 93% 
9.8 m B umcmfimm $53.“... .0 59:5: m... 3 £32 EmE_m:maEm. 

. 
<2 3.3m EmEEEaEm m.H.<~ 

.... 
.. 3._.n.m:onwm¢\uu.§om ammo MUN..- 

. w- - 1| WM .. .I|.- 1..-. 1.. 
.- .m 
.w .. 

.. J. 
.I. _n. H H]. 

. J -Efimusayfig mwouufi..n..~ «car 
3:53...” ”.55... .mEBtom >..::EEou\n.n.u .0. mm. Em :o..m.:mEm.:E. . emimfiméEatom m:..m.m3:. >....::EEou 

Eczwuzum “corn: .8.— mu... .20....333 ucm 8:033 o 
O ”Sous—.3: “5.m xm... cm... 3 5:833 ucm Emu m:.u:m::m 952m 28 :5. E29. .0. 230: 53833. oooéwWEwEga. 3.33.0 

.tm 35.0 .0 833.”..t m:..wwE\:o.u8:.um B .9329. 9.".m 

=.E.:=EE8 So .0 5.3.. w... ..q.>o......:..~ 
3 :o.mm.:. .50 5.? 3:9... =25 m. 593.: m2... . 

.wEo... 
.8522 583:3 8.52: 3.5.8.0 :m 3:. 5.829: 5.3: .3582). .88.... 22. B 3:33.? w 3...“: _...s 80.8.... SEEP—ES... 8.59;. m...... . 

65552: :8 >2: .253. m c. a. Bu: .6... 29.2. .8: :23. 28 
.9888: 9: 3.32 >2: 83:». B :m.o.m>:... 23 E25... :2: :96...“ 3.2.208 m. .5638. .533 39.2.2. .wuoE >525: 2.8 m m. 1.29. mg . 

“$5.9: 5.35.232... 9E0... .382). .3323 8.89:. 

.:o....mou .6409 m5 .0 :2. mm “8.3.... m...... :. :osEmmE $38.“..t m m. 5.m .m..oEm.>. .mmmoi . 
.2: m. 1955 of 5E... .o 5.8... .o 8...:3EEou 2:3:3084 ac... .5 B. m. 598.: 2.... . 

3:2... 5.8.3.2 Emcwn B 365.6 5.8: .80. :. 35:53:. U6 :o....: mam 2 a: 8:30.: E5 m.>.u m...“ 5.2. EoEwm.mm 33.9... m m. “E2 9.... . , 
Es: “33...... 5.58.382... 3.3.3.2 _ 

.flmou 28......3: 326.. .m 
Exam: 5.3.38. 383E. 

.N 
.28 .539... .85... 

.H 
co .mom a... fi...» atotw :o.umE.o..m:E... @1050 m... .8 5.3.33. 9... m. 2.5.9.. 082.. .8..q um.3:mu-..:m=ma .:m..u..:u Em .xém 5.96:0: 28.q 3.83 $523.. one... .6 xmm .o 30.q 

>.3mE.xo.o.o.< . 
.32. coed: cc: :BmcEmmB “mmmfisom :. 33:38 3.: £58 1050 

5.8.. 5.3.2.0: 905:... S .65m m:.v...o.s 5398 U5 >...m..m> m Ea... $5358.58 .0 mc..m.m:ou :o....m8 .223. m m. 19.00 
.559 .28... .0 3:55.58 «55582.. «353.8 .335 

.. ....._ 25: 3.53:]- 
l 

W... imam .mli 
2.. £o 53...“: v.3 D¢<0m1m<n 5.24.3.0 ZO_._.<_>_¢Ou_mZ<m_._. mug—.55....— ONON-mHON 

._<_._.n_mO—._ 45:05.22 ”ammo”?— 

o “59:53:. 



Qm 
- :80: $03 $3 «Ea—:53“. 

m}. $8: $8: xmm m:o._m:m.....\m:c_mm_e:u< £25m 
«mm 

- 585 563 5mm 35:3. mam. 5.. 553:5: om. 
m3 

$8: . :83 n5mm 20.3333. 35:35:: $3-8 

3.9525 Enemmmcaz 2m... .32 .6 8 Na 3 .89 "8.5.5 5:855... in 5.35 
.EmEommcmE 

5.3... .59: no... :65 B v.28. :55 33...: 5...:5 cm... a: 26:8 m 5:5 392%.: :cm 
:o.mm_Eum :m:o.5 :wmmcwE Em 5:059. «889.: 3:85 2:3: 085 :o 5.296.: “Em 3:355 858: B 9.8 22.5 m:_._:m:w .5.— mm:_.m:_:m 8.89.: .8m -8525 n.5 :o....3:mEm.n.E. m5 5:5 

.9. m5 3 9.258.585. :0 2.9.3. 20528.8. 5:52. 32.: U5 EmEmmmcmS. 
.>..E£ :5... E52. m5 5:5 35.5:t ::m 

EmEmmmcmE 952.. 5:5 woe—.8520 w>o.a.E. B 8.5.:5toaao 5535...: 25:9. :8: «Bummcs S .mEoEswE. $.38 .338: m5 2 BEER 5:5 3:53. 
55:8. 9: 

B .835 o... 38:03.. 5:: mgtoaao :8 355:: 935 25352 $5.23. :58 :35 25 3 E3333 
.28 a:-50:8 “Em :mE wmficumfi om. :m 8.96: 3 

53:5: m. 55:58:. mE... 5:52. uEumgm S5 .6: cadEBflU Emu .6 :2: cc: Baum... 5:52. :5 5:5 3:32: am. m5 95:53 5.5238: cm. h.o mE... «.5 5m 
:ozqEwE :8 250:: Snack. :9. 2.... .353 55.58550 2.: :_ 3925:: 2.5.9.383 

:3: E: 96: 2.88.. 26...? :8 9:5 5:58 :35 mm .8383. :m... 
535.: .883 m5 232%: 8.5.5:: 03:... .tonw. :9. m5 mcfiz cor—5:3. m. norm: 558-3 

m :_ $.35 EOE ._o : 5n. 35:823.. «5:, am. U5 35:52 
6928.: “PE :5 85m 8.8.5::m .296 B www.cstoaao 38...: >:m 35:2: 3 35.858 8:232. 

>.:.m:.0 tm .852). :5 >: 3525.. 553.833 m. 88 comm. :2: “592.8% 3.388% 5 9.32m 2m: 8 mfimE B 5.5 EmEmmmcmE wmmu “Em 3.5.... 
.38.: 5:5 32.: 3:53 9.5:... 5.32% 53:9: m5 505228 Em gm: om 55:5 5.3.53-9. :< .EBm>m @553: 5m. :5 mEms 3.95:3. Em 3:59. 

6395 
c5232. .85s V7,... 985 :8. m5 8. 3 055:8 305.53 33% .u:m 3:58 5.53:5: om. :m... $555968: 58-3.2... $0928.: 5022656539.: 

.25 6.5.5. tam: 05898 .mEoEswcn. U6 5.5.2.: m5 5:5 
.382: 5.58.523 :m: .50 8:52 cc: 3335 mm: 5.8... .mtoEmS. :mmmohn. 

35:t 
woman—85 EonBoz>mEBNE -mo. 552.8 899.35 5.85 

-toqwx uambcmfiwmmcms. mmmu Emtzucou 20.8.8.3: goo: 323.953.: Eco—559:: 

-toamx aimbcmEmmmcmE 38 28.588 Lam—mcmthcofiflecg goo: :ot:n.....\m:o.mm_Eu< £23m 
Itoaw: 

uambcmEmmmcms. mmmu E8528 20.3.5.3 55.53:. goo: 30.353: 95:2 two... 353300 

m:o_mm_E:mm._ 63:35:: >8 om goo: 3053:3331 .8 35:32 -toaom o_Qm.\5w_>mm EwEmmmcmS. mmmu “catsucou 
mum; om. :o 55:52 

33>... 623350.). 558.525.... 5.: m~.<~ 
*E cwonxm can?! 5mm.— nm<0m1m<o 5.24:0 ZO_._.<_2m_Ou_mZ<~—._. mU_._.U<m_n_ ONONumHON 

._<_._.n_m0_._ ._<_m_0_>_m=>_ minnow—m 



_ I 
.>mEBmm m :o 29.. mmsu >2“. 25 m m_ m2... .cmEQ ucm fizmcm £8. E 0983 uB mm: 33>t 95 8.3% 5.53:5 $88.0 533:3 5.5c 

l I 
.GmEBE m_ 3:82 a .6 6v m_ “—5.550a cm 357.... Q:->>o__oh_ B“. 9.8 ”—0 523.5 :8: m 96; $333 28.5 B mumE m_ BEBE 

Ema. .umEEmE mm ummmmhnum Em 23¢: a: 26:8 can ESE Emzma 2mm. 2: E umEmEauou 8m 2.8 82:. .EmEtmnmo 559m «5.86 amgamm 
E393 Emsmfiso .EEmEn. umm mEBm .25 38¢ ‘mumacEm >__Emu_ .2: ES“— 8928% __m :o Bun—:38 2m 2.8 9.93 @9285 "33:3 omgmsumfiémon. 

.5 53828 wE>oE B an; 2:0: 8: :0 9:88.23 wfi :_o_ 53 :5, «3:285 350 .333; 28:5 .3235 am. ._o 25.0 m >2 .253. m S 86 580 >2: 
So. :o_mm_E_um E38588 cBwEE Em 33> 82>. .3t was: 3 Emma m :o 388. mu_qm._mn_ BEsEEou of >9 286 2a 33> mEo: "835 8:0... 

I 
| 

.8336 
cm. mg... 5 635832. 96 22a 28 Eam— damtaoaam mm 28 8255 82:39:“. =m >3 mumE Em 20:62 

.282 2033 03m 2: E 335E303 cam “5:3 2: B umcmfimm 2m 2: >9 uBB=E£ m_ mEccmE Emu 35:3 u8=§amon S”. "EoEnsgmn cm: 950 
dos—833m E228 EmEzuou ucm @255 tau .5. new 2m =< "cow—3:3 

.mfiom 
Baggy. £538. 2: tongsm B 85865 coca, 8328. SEE: >856 BEE 

._m:o:ma:uuo ~_mu_m>;n .588 3 33:“: 8?. m_ a. 5.: 26:8 E9. 3“— uBSEE mm Bufizfimu. Emu Egan. So >5 88:3: m_ meg—3:8 Emzma "9.28.3 Earn.— 
"umflza: mn 33358.. EoEammcaE Emu N.m.<~ 

.>__E£ ucm Emzma 9: U6 mun—.282“. new 23m: 2.: 33:68 Em; $83.m 368 9.6 EwEmmmcmE mmmuv Emma. mcorficmt. 9.5 So .cflufiEa 9: 5:2, 
8:285“. 2 mu m a: “mm .o EwaEwE >=E£ B So some :25 $223 .386 83$: :33 .mEccmE 28 Lou— >=E£ new E28,”. 8: 5:5 .62: EmUEEm 

.o .csutfiymao .comm 8:3585 962.35 "23 “—0 flown—mm =m :_ mains. :o_m_uo_u E >=E£ .23 p533 u>_o>:_-EwEwmmmcm .3323 can “:38“. 

o... .25 a: “ma m_mt£m: SE5 mpcmEpaam 96; @9286 Boa 88 >H_m_uw% .85: .o gun. m 96; go: on oEs 353mm 
.88 *o $365 :8: 9: £3, 

a: 26:8 @9286 “won 3522: 52:2, :22 wmgmcuma. tqBmsu m @282 3:3q =< uncoEmcmb $0.8m Emu ouncmébcmfiommcmi Emu cam—Bahamian. 
I.m_mocmm_n 

US 82982 552E? >33 Bu, qEEB 
ucm 63296.”. a 52¢ 28 c8=mcoema < 3:053 :23 .8 Emu “—0 cm... 38:28.2. m an: -23 93855.3. tan. 33:33 3:25 .5— 23 conga... 

I 282, Efio 396 3533 can mEBm .2 
.83 ES 888 0... 8.258% m_ Emma mEccmE «928% 8.25m < .ufimEEma BEzEEoo BEEN 

.8528: BSEEmE fimEEmfi cummnm Jmfimcmfi 8:038:80 .8529: _8._m>;a 
5%s wnaus >9: EwnEmE E5363. 

.HmBmEEca new 6233 .508 cwmmcmS. 88 in 8:833; wfi mwuaufi Emma 2:. .88 
8 HI). 35:28 m_ 225... E8.“ EmEEBmfiEE >=mu < 3.25: cummn-Ew3 >__n_o a «55:33-28 33355.5 “Ea 22:23 uEPEu .8 Emu 3:5... 

v.3: “mo—E... pm 035 .2 mfltcstonno H.m.<N 
Neaxmoa 

$03 $03 A3mm 39385 Eongmz-_mam_>_ 
_ 

oxo 
<2 <2 .88 9.2.3. :8: 388:8. 

E as; 3...? as . 
83829 556 zoF<zmommz<E 8.55... 88-88 

._<_Emo_._ ._<Eo_>_m=>_ 530E 



"Eu-0.9... 
0:200:30 :0 0...... 50> :. 000.00.: «50.. 0:0 000.200 $.00: .0..0.>0:00. 0000:0005 m:.>.000.. >.u:0....:u 0:0 00:030.. >:0..: 2.0... 0:50:00. 0>.00.:0z nédm 

.20... 
90.00000. 00:000.. o 

20.0000. .00.0.:w w 5.000.000. “0.00:000 00.0000 U.0 00:000.... o 
”:00..0m 020.00.. 0 

000.2200. 000.200 5.00.. .0..0.>0...0H. 0000:0005 .0 000: :. 3:030... 0:0 .50... 0.H.m~ 
3:00....0030 00m. 0:0Emm0mm< 0E0... .0200... 00:00:00 E030... 0 

000.000.... .50 000000 00 000: 0.... 0.6... 5.3.0000. 5.00... .0..0.>0:0.. 00 30.08080 :u.:>> m.u.m~ 
.00.>..0m._0.00m\00._0000~_ 000000.532... ”:0...0:.0.0ou 0:000”. . 

”SIS. >u.::EE0u\:0.0.m>..... 0.00:w0.0\:0..0:_0>m. o 
”.2”. w 5.0.9:... m:.:00._0m o 

000.200 
0..“ 00005.... 0...... 0:0 000E090 000.200 0.0.00: .0..0.>0..0n. 0:0 .50... 0. H. 0N 

v.00... £0.000000 
09050.0 am“. 0.... c. 00020:. 

. 
0...: 0.80 0. 00m 5.000.000 .3058... :m.0::.0m. - 

0.050330 :50... 0.00 c. 000000.20 05 080 8.010.001“: 
0.8 00 00 00 H0 .000 05528 0. H. 00 

lm:.:00.0m 5.000.000 E3100- 0.00.. o 
| .m.d_._n.\~.d.._n_. 00.000300 .0. 000200.300 5.00... E0000 .- 

.0000 000.00 ..0 .00.:05 0:0 3:0.000 000000 2.0030839... B .000. .0 0:050:02. 0000...- 00:00.3. N.H.mN .E0Et0000 3590.5 0... .0 0...: 0:00.00... :0 ._0£.0 E0... 090:0... 0 
B .000 005.333 :0... 0: 30:8 0 0:0 :00.0:.0>0 A.__._.>_ 0 0.0.. 00.0.00 :0. 0.0.. .0 00....E00. 3:00.00 :4 0.0.0.0. 0:0 m:0...0....0>0 5.00.. .020... 

>0:0m._0E0 0030.... 0. 0.02.00 0. 0...... RE >000 :0 0...... 0 00.. 5.00... .0205. 0>.m:0:0._..Eou .0m..0:0m.n_ :0 8000.05 01.200.00.000... .0 ES. 3:5 o 
25.0 00.000... 2.80.1.2... :000 0.0 0.02.02. 0. ......00... .35.: :. 90.0.0000 02...... :4. 0.0.00... .0..0.>0..0m 0:0 0:0“. >._0E..n_ .0 :00.000._-0u o 

".000... 5.5.002. 5.00... H.H.m~ "5.00... .0:0.>0...0m *0 00.00.92. .0:0.uu0...n....m HdN 
”02.0....02 

00.0... 0E0: m:....0_0 E00 00.000080; 0 m 0.00....0. 0H. 3.5.8.30 
0 0 E0080 .28: 0.50.200 

000.. ___H H H . 3.8300 £00: 0:03.20... 0.00 N EQN Emu.-m EMTN w mm 00.02 00.0.0.m0.. 
o 0 0:30.00... c0302... 

0.00:6... 00.. 0.0.0.3820 H 0H 0H .. 50.0.... 
00-0.00: .0<-H 0 H. E 0.0.02 00.002 

. 0 o 0220.... 
00 md NO . H0 .000 0000.. 30.003-200.30. 0:00 m.m.<~ .5 0000.0 000.2: .00.. Dm<OmIm<o ._.Z<m.0 ZO.._.<SEO".mZ<m.... mar—.05.?— ONONéHON ..<.._.n.mO—.. ._<_m.0.>.m=>. mummOm—m 



00000000500050 300000 00 000.0000. 55000.0 00 0000...... 5000.0. 000 .0000. 00.00050. 000 30.050 00300.0 00... .. 
0.00000 000E00000E-...0m 0....NmN 

00.0000 00 0002 3.050000. 0. .200. 000.0002 00.00000 
0.0.00 .0 .5005. ...<_>. v.0 0030033000. $50.03 0.5).. .0052. 0000 000 0. 000.020 0.00 0000.0.0E. 00 3.00000 00300.0 .00 00000.0... 02. 000... .50... 5.0.3 00.0000 00 0002 "00.00.50 .00. 0.00 50030000-... .0 00.00.0000. 00.3000 0.0000. 3.0.5 

00.0 
0000.503 000.5050 0.3 00.2. m0..mm0.00 0.. 00 0.00000 0.0300 00...... 00.00.05 ..000 .0 000 000.50 000 00 000 0000. 500.0 :00 z: 0.. ... 0000:0080 000.50 000 

00.0 000E503 000 m0.000_0>0 0. 0...... 2.. 00 05.. 0.5 0.000. 0.9. 000 :0 00%.... 0000.000 .0 0008000000 000 00059.0 02. 00 0. 00.0000... 00 .000 00.30000 
00.... 00.0 305020.000 .0000... 05..00.000 00 0.0000 00 0000.00.00 0. 00.0000. 50.0.00 .0. 9.300020 0000.50 :0 .0 2.00.0. 200000. 0 200005 0.00.000... 

00.00.000.030 00.0.00. 000 .0 0.000 0 0.. ...2. 00300.0 .00.. .00 00.00000. 0030030 000 .0000: 
.0 0030033000. 000 000 200 00.000000 0.0 0000.... .0E3 00 00300 0.0.0000 0 .000 m .010 00 00.000 0. 0000.03.00: .5000 0...... 00.000.000 00.2. 0000.000 00 

000500.00 00 0000 
.00000000000. 00.00030 00 00.00000. .0 0000.503 00303.0. 00 00.002. 0.00 0.00.2. 00 30:0. 00.... 0000.000 .0 05500.00 00 0000 00.00000. 

00000.0 >00. 00300.0 000 0.00.3 0000000.. 0.0 00.0 00.000.000 .0 0.000020 0 00.2. 0000.000 00 000500.00 00 0000 00.5.0000. 9.0 00.0000E 0.. 000...: 0000... 
000.00.0000 000.000 .00.. 00 000.0.00 00.000 5.0.5000 .0 00000.. 000 000 00.00... 5.0.5000 00 00.00.0000. 000 000000 00 000 00> :00 00.00000. 50.5 muédu 

I .05000m. 000.000-000.>.00.0.0om . 

I 20.055058 0.00 000.000 .- 
A2000.000 0000 00.5 Edda 

“303000 
0.00 0.00 00 0.002.000 002. ".0000. 00..0E .0 =00 00000 0.0 00 32.0.. $205 

.05000m 000.000-000.200 .0300 o 
200.050.0800 0.00 000.000 o 

I "00-2.0.5.— 00 000. 0000.000 00 0000.000 000 00.50.0500. 3.0.5 .0000 
000.50 00 0000.. 0050.00.00 0.00.>0.0 0.0..0 .0 000.500. 50-00.2030 o 

.050000 000.000-000.200 5.000 o 
20.055050“. 0.8 5050 o 

l2...z.._.,§_::_.§=...a $0.002. .- 
000003003 00000.0 000.. 00.5 0000.000 00 0000.000 000 

.00.000.00000 000 30.00. 0000 0.5E000>0 00 00300.0 000 0000 000.5 000 .50... ouédw 
.00.00.0.00 000.500. .0 00.0.> mm. .005 00.5.0 000300000 00 0.00000. 0000.50 . 

05..00.000 0. 0020000000. 00.50.00... .00 00300.0 000000000000. 05% 
”0.00 .00 0000 0.3 0. 0000.50 050.0. .0 0. 00 .09. 0000 3300073050... 0000000003000 00.00000 0>.0.0m0u . 

0.00 .0. 000.. >0.0000.-2~_-.m.d_..0\~.d.._0. 00.000.000 . 
“0.00 000.00 .0 .00.000. 000 000300 000000 >..00.000.000>0 00 0000 0.000 «£000.00 .0 000000.000. 00000000000... 0.0.05 .5 0000.0 000.5. 00.... n¢<OmIm<o 0.259 ZO.._.<_>EO"_mZ<m... mU...U<m_0 ONONumHON 

._<....0m0_.. 04:00.22). MummOmn. 



.25 000.00.... 000 0>00 00.... 000 3 00.30 S 0.00 >000 w .0002). m0.00000.000: o 

.2... 00>... 000.050 00> .004 . 
".03 0.00 0003 0.000 000 00 00.... 3.0000. .0000: .03 0000 .00 $0.03 0.0 30> 0.03 000.000.000.000... 00... 

.00.0 0.00 00.000 0 00 000E00.0>00 000 .3 0.03 00000-00... 3 0.0... 0 .3 000000 ..000 3.0000. 0000.000 0.00 00 300000.02. 0.0.0.0 .003 0000. 000 0000 .. 0.03 0.00 0003 E03 000 00 00.... 000 00.03 30> 0.0 0.03 00003000080000 0.0.0000 000.5 >.Nm~ 
INC .0 000 000 >0 00300.0 00.000E E03 0 0.> 

00.000300 m0.0.>0.0 00 =..... 0.5 000.3000. “.0 00.0000_.00. 00-0500 3 030 00.3000000. 00 3 000 000.0000 00.0.0... .000000.0.0E. 00> 002 0.000 0000... o 
"0.00030 0000000000....9000 .3 0003 00.00 0.0 000000.000 000000300 000000000330 000.5 9w 

00.0.60 3 0002 05000.0 0. o 
"000E0m0000..=00 .3 0.00030 .3 0000 ..000 00.000000 0. 0000.000 00.000 3 00.0: 0.... 0.0 0000.000 000.... mdmu 

9030.000 $00.00... 
23000000 0300300 00.005.000.200 .008 000.0005 0003.00 .6000... .20. “01.”. 000 0. 00000E0000 0000.00_0>00 00.00. 00 000 00.000 .000 .- 

0300300 00.000.000.200 .0.00m 0300.0.000 0.00 000.000-20. ”000.000.0300 00.0 00.000 000 00.0000 .000 o 
..0000:0m. 00.00_._\000.>.0m .0000 000050.000 0.00 0000.00-25 ”00.00300 0.0.> 0002.000 0 

00000.0 3 0002 ”.0000 0003 00.... 000 00900000000000 0.00030 3 0003 0.0 00.000030 00.0.0000 000.0 000.5 admu 
.0030”. 000.0000 H .000 0.000000 0.00 00000.0000 I .305280 0.00 000.022.. 

. 
000 $00 0.. 32.0. 00.00% 0.00 

<5. .20. .. 
.0 _ 080 0.00 0.8 2.9.0 00.200008. 

.0000 00 «.0 
0 00 00 .80 "00.05 00 

0.00.00.00 
.. 

. <2 $00 03-2.2.0”. 00000 0.00E0.00 >0.03E0.00 
0.00.00.00 

.. 
mm 080 3.05 20080.00 3.0300000 

.380... .0. .5... .20 000 080 2.8 0:9... 00.00.000-08. 
.03.. _ 00 00 00 00 .80 05.00.20... .0008... 

"00.0... 000E0wM00E 000 00.003.030 .00 00.0030 0000.00.00 000.0.0000 0.0.0000 00000.0 .3 00008000000 0.00 m.~m~ 0900005 0.00....02-_00.000_>. 000303 >.000E.x0.00< “0.00 0.00302-_00.000_>_ o 
00.00.800 000030.03 .000.00...000 000.0000. .0 $0.: >_000E.x0.00< ”00.00.8000. 000030.03 >0n. 0m 0 

am. 000 00 0.0... H0000.000 0mm H0000.000 m_om\00.00~._.0: mm. o 
0.00030 000—0000005000 0.00000 000.... “00.0.0000 0000 00...: 0000.000 .0 3.00030 000E00000E.0.00 .3 0303 0 0. 0000 000.0 0.0.. 00.... ~.~mN 

00.000. 000 00.0..0030 0000.... .00000 00.000300 0000005 
000000: 2.0.00 0.00.... 

.0000... 00.0.02 .003... 0000.00... 00.0...000 .0.0000.000 00.000... .00. 00... 0.00... 0.00 .00... m00._ 
.0 00.0.0 .018 0000.00.04. 00.000.0.000 

0.00 3-00.6 0. 00 00000.0000 HEM. .Em0 0.00.00. 00 3.030008 0:00 03-2.2.3 00000 09000050000 000.300 00.000 1.20 2.02.002 20:0 :20 00.2.2.3 
000 003.00. 00.0.... 00050000000000 0.00030 3 000.3000. .0533 00 00000.0: .0535 3 00m000= 0000.0. 000 0.30. 00.30.00. 000 000.0..00 00.000... 00 .. 

H0...00..02 0H.~mN 
.5 300.0 000...... 000. om<OmIm<o ...Z<~.0 ZO....<.2m.Ou.mZ<¢... wU....U<m.0 ONONImHON 

..<_._.0m0... ._<_m_0.>.m..>. MmmwOmn. 



0.6.0.... 0. 0002 "00.3.0 02. 00 000....00 .:0E000:0E :0..00.00E 0>.0:0...0.0..:00 0N.0.m.mN - .E0.m0.0 m:..0..:0_>. :0..0..000.0 ....00... .0 .:0.....000n. 0.0.0 :0.m:...00>> 0... 0. 0.00.0...00 0.00.00... 0:0 .0..000.. .00 o 
.0.00> m :.......s N .0:0...000 :0 0:0 .00> 0... :......s .00.>0.0 ...<.>. 

0 000 0. m:..0E0..0 0. :0..0N.:0w.0 .00 .0.. 5.00... 0>.0:0..0.0:.ou 00 ..000 0.05.00 >....0:.E00 0000.... 00.0 0... :. 0.00..0>0 0.0 0:0.0.:..0 00.00.. 0.4.... o 
..:0..0..0.:.E0< 0w 0.00.0 

...0.m .00.00.>.. 00......Eou 00:20.08 .52 0... 0:0 00....EEou 00000020.... 0.. >00E.0..0 0... 0. >..0..000 00:. 000. 
.0.. 00.500. 0. 0002. 0... .F .0.:0>0 00.0.00 00.0.0. :0..00.00E .0\0:0 0.0..0 :0..0.00E =0 .0. 00.5.0.0 02.00 02.00.08 0:0 

.00..0m..00>:. 50:00....000. 
0000.0... 00000.0 0... b 000.0 0. 0. 00000.0 00:0.0000 >...00.0 000.00.. 0 0:0 5.0.00.0 >.0.00 09.00.00... 003.000.. 0.... .0 0..0.0>0 00.. .0.00E.0..0 0.. ... o 

00:00. >.0:._0.00.0.0.:. 208000008. 0000 32.00.3050... 00.. 0.0.30 >200... 
:. 00.00.0...00 00.0 0.0002000 00 00:00.0m 0:0 0:0..0000EE000. 00.0.3.0 00:00. >.0:._0.00.0.0.:. >..00 :. .000.0...00 0>..00 :0 0. .0.00E.0..0 0.. .r o 

00.0 $00.0... 0.0.0.0300 00:0. .000 
m0.0...0.>. 6.0..00 >0..0.v. 600.2. .:0E0m0:0E :0..00.00E 00.000: 0.:0..00 .0.. gm... 0.:0..00 00....000. o 

..:0E0m0:0:. 
02.00.00... ..00000 .0... 0030.. >.0.0.0..0.. .N 

00.00000 0:0 00.00.0000 .0 00.0.0800 0. :0..0...0:000. :0..00.00_>_ .. 

$530.6. 0... .0. 00.000. .00.00:. .:0..00:. =0 0.00.0.0. .0.00E.0..0 0..0..0 0.... . 
...0.5 

00 ..00000 >00E.0..0-0.0. 0. 000000 Rem ....2. 0.002. 0 0.00.. ow .0.00E.0..0 0..0:0 :0 0>0.._ 02. .. 
"0>..0..0z ~.0.m.m~ 

I .000. 0.00 0... .0 :00 0 00 .0.00E.0..0 .0 .0.00E.0_.0 .00.:._0 0 00.0.03... 00; 00000.0 0.. .. 00 02.00 . 
"2.0.00. 0:0 .:0E0m0:0... :0..00.00:. 00:0..0E0000 00..00.0 .00> 2.0: 00.00.0:. .0... m:..50..0. 0:. .0 0:0 0000...”. H.0.m.mN 

.:0:.Wm0:0.>. :0..00.00.>. 0.m.m~ ...0..00.:0E:.00 

>.0:._0.00.0.0.... 0:0 00000.0... .00..00 0>..00..0 0.0:. 0.00:0 0. 000 0:0 .052... .00 
d. 0... :. 00000.0 :00 009.0 00.050.00.000 0.... 000300 o 

05.0.8 0. 0002 ..:0E0m0:0......00 .0 ..00000 .0 :0.0.>0.0 0... :. .0..00_0 0.... 00..00.0 .00> :. 0000.050 :000 00.. >..00000 .50: .0....5 NH.~mN 0.30.00:0E 0. 0... .5 .0.. :0..000d :. 00.00.00 00.0000... 0... :0 0000.. E00000 .:0:.0M0:0E...00 .0 .000E. 0... W:..so:0 ..000. 000.0: 3.w .0 
0:0.00...>. :. 00.00.. 00.0000... 0E00 0... 0.. :00 000... .0... 0.02 000......00. 00> 

.0... 0:0...0:00 0:. .0. 0.000 .0 00500.00 ....00.. 00000020 0.00 :0 .:0E000:0E...00 .0. ..00000 .0 .009... 0... 0.00.. 0. 0:.00 00> 0.0 00.00000. .0....5 adumm .m:.c00.00 00.000.000 E0..00-.000 0:0 00-2.2.0. 00.9.8.0 .:0..00000 .00..00 00.0.5.0 00 02.00000 00>.000. =0 ..0.0 000.0.....m. >..E00 0.. .. ”05:. 0. .. a 
05.000 0. 0002 0.3.000 .000 0.... :. .:0E000:0E...00 .0 ..00000 .0. >..00000 00..00.0 .00> 0. 00000 00> 000.. .50... m.~m~ 

0.000000. _....2. .0..0.0. .0800. "000.200 0.00 0.0.0.0000 
.000 0. 0000 0.000000: 0.00.. 000. .00....2. .0..0.0. .0E.00 ”00.0>::0m .0 5.00... 0.00: 00.0... 

.000 0. 0000 0.000000: 0.000000. .00....2. .0..0.0. .0....00 u....00_._ 0E0... 00...u-..... 
0.000000. .00....2. .0..0.0. .0....00 “000.200 000000 0.0.0. .0530... 

0.000000. .00....2. .0..0.0. .0....00 0.000.200 ....00.._ .3002. ....00... .0.:05. 02000080800 o 
“00.0000. .00 0:0 .00.00 000.: 0. 00.0000. 0... 0:0 ...0..00 0.... 50.5.0... .0.. 0:. .50.. 0.00.0:. .00.:000. 0000.. ->..:0EE00 :000 .00 0.:0..00 .00> 0. 0.n0_.0>0 0.0.... 00> 000.0000. 00000.>..:0EE00 .0... 

.000.0000. 00000->..:0EE00 0.... 0. 00.... >...:00. 000.0000. 
0.... 0. 0.:0..00 .0.. 00> 00 .50: 0:0 .:0E0m0:0:....00 .0. £00000 .0. 0.:0..00 .00> 0. 0.:0..000 9.0.: 00> 00 000.0000. 0000..->..:0EE00 .055 m.~m~ .5 0000.0 000...... .00.. D¢<Om1m<o ._.Z<..._U ZO_._.<_>.~_On_mZ<m._. mug—0.0.3.0 ONONucN 

._<_._.0m0_._ 45:05.5). mummOmn— 



n...000.>.00 
00000 00>.000. 002. .0>000 0.0 00 .00? 00.0.5000 00> h0. 00.0 

.m.m~ 
00.0020 0. .02 

o 

l00u.>.00 
0000000000.: 00.000.00E 0>.000...0.0E00 .0.— 000.0.000.0 0.00 000.00 00.000... .00> 0000 00.0 

.m.m~ 
000.000 00> 000 0>00 000 0.00 00 00 00000. .02 .. 

I000.000..0..0 
0000000 .0 00000.0000 0. 0000000000.). >00.0...... 00.n— 0>.00.000=0un.0 

.m.m~ 
0000000. 00.000.00... 0.0.0.000 o 

000.000.00E 0.0.. 00.... o 
0.002.000 u0. 000.000.0000. >360 .010 ”00.0. 0000 0.00.00 0 .00 .000 0.0000 0.000 0 0020.000 000 000.. 002. 0000.000 0 

0.0.00000E 00:00.0 0000.0 000 00000.0 00 0002 
I 000.000.0030. 00.000.00E 00.000. 000>00 000.2.00 000.000.0000. 00.000.00E .0.— 00000.00 0000.000 0.0 2.0... o .0 .m.0~ 

.000.000..0 
0.000 >.00..0.00.0.000. 2.00 0 

0000.000 000. 00000.0 000.000 000 00000.2. 00.00.00 000 2.00.0. 000.000.3000... o 
05. 000 0. 000.00000EE000. 000 2.00.0. 00.000.00_>_ . 

I 00000.0 00 0002 00.00 000.000 0. 000000 0.000 .00 00 00.00E.0..0 000 0000 2.0... 0.0 .0.0N 

0000.00. >0 0.00.. 
.0000 000000.000 >00E.0..0 0000.00. 00 >0._.00_.0>0 000 0.0.. 00.. .000E00000E 00.000.000. 00.2. 00.00.000 00.0000000 00.000 00 0.0.. 02. 0002. 0 0.000 0.. o 

0000000000000 00.000.000. 00 0.00 00 00.000.0.000 .00 0000000 00.00....000 000 0. 0.002. .00 0.00.. >000. 26......0 .mdu 
0. . 0 000.5 o 

A>00E.0..0-0.00 000000.003 0000.000... 
.0000.000..00 .0... A00.000 0.00 00.0 .00 0.00 00 000.00.50.00 000000 00.000... .00> 0000 2.0... 0.0.0.00 .0.00> 

0 0.00.2. N .000.0.000 00 000 .00> 000 0.00.2. .00.>0.0 .005. 0 000 00 00.00E0000 
0. 00.000.00.05 .00 000 00.00: 00.009.200.00 00 0000 0.000. 00 >0.00E.000 0000.00 00.0 000 0. 0.00.. 0.6 0.0 000.0.0._0 000.0.0 ._.<.>_ ...<.>_ 00 0.000000 0 

000000.00 00.0..000.0 0.0.00 0090.5 000 26:00 0.00.220 .00.000.. .00 .000..00.00 00.0..000.0 0.0.00 .09. 00.0000. 0.00000 00.0.000 .00.0._U >00. o 
.E000>0 

.00 
00 .00000000 000.000 0000 00.2. 0000000 00.02. .0000 000.000 0.00.0020 00 00000000 000.>0.0 00 =02. 00 00.0000 00 00.. 00.000.000. 000000 0 000.>0.0 

0.0 0000.000 .0E000>0 .0000 00.2. 0.00.>0.0 00 0.5m. 000 0.> >.000... 00.000.000. x0. 00 0.00 0.0 00> 08.08 .00000. .9000. .00 00 02.0 000 E000>0.0.0..0 
000.000.0005 .00 >0 20.000000 0. 00.02. 2%. 05m. 000 0... 00000...00.. 0. 0.00.>0.0 000 000.0000 0.00 .0 0020.000... 000.00 000.000.000. .0 00.000.0.0ou . 

00.000000 00 0.00.2. 0.00 .0 00.0.000.0 0000 00 000 00.000000 0200.800 00 0000.00.00 0. 00.00._.00000m 00.000. 00.2 o 
"02.00002 0N0.m.m~ 0.00000. .00.). 00 .0080”. o 

.0..0..0. 00._0.0000 000E000: 0E 0.0.... ”00.0.00 00.0..000.0 .00 000000.00 .0000 00 000 .0006... o 
0.000 

00.00.. 0.000.000 000 000.... 00 0.0.0000 00E.00. 00.000.000. 0>.000t0-0000 000.0 000 000000 000 00.0.>0.0 00 00.0.0 00000000000 000 2.0...0. 00.000.005. .- . 
“0.00.5.0 000 00.0000 0.00 00 000.0.000.0 000.00 0000.00.00... 00 00.000.0.0ou o 

”00.00._.00000. 00.000.005. o 

0... 0000.0 000...... 0...... 950001045 ...Z<m.0 ZO.._.<_>.m_Ou.mZ<m_... 00.0.00}... ONONéHON 05.000... 050.055.). MummO¢0_ 



00.200 0.0.00... 000 0.: 26:0. 00.00000 .00.. 
_ 

3 H .9025 .0.00m 
0:00 0000.. 000 3.0... 000 3 w 0.0.90.0 0.00E0.0.. 3.0300000 . 

o H 00.000000... 
0 m. 0>..0..0.0.E0< 

o 0 600.0006... 00.00... .0.o.>000.m. 
o c 6.00000 00.00... 

am: 
.00... 000.0000: 

0000.0. 000 00.000000. 0 00.00000 0000 00.6.0 0. 0:00 0.: 26:0”. m 0 S). 
o m 2.... 

3. 0.00 .0630. 00:. .0258... 
00030. 000 0.0000m0.0 09000000 .000 00.6.0. 0.. 0:00 a: 26:0“. .0: w 2.. 

.00. 
00.0 0000.000... 0000.0. 000 8.0000006 00.00000 0000. U6 2.030.. .03 0 00.0.0050. 

.000... 00 md Nd ad 0 
000.0... .0 00.0000 0.00 00.0.6... 00000 .0000 0000 0.003 .00 0.00... >00... 26... 060.0 0w0.0>0 00 0.5“ 

00.00 00. 0. 30.000.05-305 0.0000 262 
42.00.03 0_.00-__0>> 

<z-m..m.>-..0>> 0.004. 
0030 00. 0. 0.0.00853005 00:04. 

"0003 00.26.60 000 .0. 00090006000 0.000050 ”0.00 0...: 000 0.00.0. 0000.0 m.<m 

0.0... .0 00000 .5 0.00.0020 0. 000000 0020000.. . 
.0060 000.000. .. 

".000... .0 00.006 300.000 00 00006.0 0.00. 000000 000.000 00000000 00.0.6.0 0. 00.000... 50> 26... 0: :00 0000... min 
mw> 0 

00.1.0 
..000 00 000000 0.0.0.00. 00.. 00.5 600.0000... E00. 0.00 0 00 000000 0.00.... 0 m>00 Q50: .VN 0.6.. 00 000.0000 0000.000. 0.00.000... 06> 0000 5....000 0000... 0.5. 'nrall I. 

I. | 

._ 
.* 

“UH- 
in: 

@fi‘F—Wfl‘gm 
.. 

0 ..m 
.._ 1F. 0. 05.0.. 

.I 
_ rlb. Aflqllllwi 

-. 

.00.00.00_0.E00 
0:000. .300 0.00.6 0.060200%... .. 

m.0>0. 000000.00. 060.0 02. 003 00.0.5 o 
0.0000 .00.0>0. 0.0.00 00 m0 0...: 000.02 o 

00.000.009.00 00.000.005. U6 .5030. 3000.0 0.00.. 0 
0.000 00.000.000. .0 00.000... 000 000.00.... o 

[llama—00 
000 mm000>.000t0 00.000.006 06.0.0. 00 00: 00.000... 00> 0000 00.0000E 00000.0 00...... 0.0 

.m.m~ 
<2 0 

.0. 0000.0 000.5. .00.. oz<0m1m<o ...Z<~.mv 20.505.10.524”... mug—.543...— ONON-mHON 
..<_._.n_m0_._ ..<EO.>.m=>. ammmOmn— 



OH 

.:0:: 0:8 500:: :0:0 :. 85:8 0>.:00::0 0::. 0:85 0... 85:8 0>.::>0::. 5080.5: 0:: 808.: 
.3 

d: 0::. :. .50.: 0.50:: 0055: .3 
0:8 00. 80.0830 0280: 0:: 20:00. 00. 8.050: 50.00: 8:05:. .3 

.5058 08:8... 000::::m. 

.3 
80:58 50.5: 8005:. 0: 80.53550 ::0::0.:::. 0:: >:.:.:0.0. .2 

800.28 280.0 00>0::E. 
.3 

8:38:00 85: :0 :0::::: 0:: 8:05:. .0 
850:0 5:00:00: 80:080.:5. :0 >:....:.m:0: 0:0. 0:: 800:0 5:80:05: 500:: 8.8.0.0 :0 3:50:05 0:: 808.: .m 

.At::0->.>.. 
.::.:0: 500:: 0:: :0 8: 0::. :0 5.0850 >..E::\::0.0:: H 

8.00:. 0.:0E0m:::..:.:.8 :0 :0.::::0E0.:E. .0 
8000:: 0m:::8.0 8.80: 0::. :0 >0:0.0_..:0 0:: >:...::: 00>0::E. .m 

450:0: 0:: 508.5888 0828.080: 00>0::..:. 
..: 

.:0.::0:00 508.00.: 500:: 8.025. 8008.505 0:: 80:0: 50:...0500... 508.005. :0 >0:::00: 0:0 8.>0::E. .m 
8.03 500.805 :0 80.8. E0: 00:::.: :0: 50.050.08-05 8.80:5. 0:: 50.800.02.28 8.85:8: .N 

0:8 8. 0.5:: 80::. ..: 889:: 5.88.50 :0 00.50:: 0::. 8.0::::m. .H 
058000: 500:: :0 08:: 8025.5. 8.2.2.0: 0:: 00020:. 5.: 0.85:8 omom ::0 

">028 0003-00.58: :0\0:: 05.: :0 “.80: : 0: 03:85.95 0020.035. .0 o 
.::0.~:_::0: 

5:80: 0:0 :0: >028 ..:E 02 . :0t::: :2: 080.950 0.0.5 m>0>::m 05:: :mm "00...:30: >::E .50.. 0:: 50 58 0:03 «>028 >::E .5... o 
.00... 

8.28 . 0:00 >0:0m:0Em. 

Am: 140...: 8.0.08.5 0:: 0::0 050...: E0:: 8508:. 85.5.50: 8.26:0: 0:: :0: 08: 0:: m>02:m ">028 0...: 8.3000: 0. 5.5.3.0: 5:3 . 
...:E0 0:: 05:: >: 02628 0:: 80.5.80: m.>.0 0:05.; 80:: 450.205. 

05:: >0 00:03:50 0:: 0:: 802:: fiE08>m 0:: 80030:: 0: 85.00... :0 E0E808< :0E850 8.82.: m:...<0... 0:: :0: 08: 0:: 85.0030 
m.>.0 A..:.05 

.8: 8.850 :0::80: .::0.80:0::: 
.:o0:0> >t:: 0::: : :m:0::0. 000.0.:E00 0:: 8028 80:00:: "005550 8.0: >028 0:: m. .50... o 

850.5: :0 >028 0800-00.58: 
>_:0.:0..: : 5:050 in... 

- -.[M 
..:.WW -_ .. - _- - u .\ II. 

.. , ,r :81: 08008002 «0...... 
:::8 ..:0:: >..:::0> 

08:02, 

85-05... 
850: 8.0.8.. .0 0.:0E::0::\00_..:0 :. :080: o 

~00...E:: 0:: 800.5: 00 8000: 000550 
0::0.::..:E00 00.52: 50>: 0.000 .50... .m0...:::: :.0...... 0:: 8:05: :0: 8.0050 :50: : m. 050: .::._._0: :0 00.85 00030:: 050 :0 8000: 000550 aim 

II. III II 

550:0: 00.8.0.0 o 
:28 00:02:00 0:050: 00.55 0: 000: 5.000.505 ::0> 8000 8.50:: 0050.53 0.0:; min . 

:E :80}. :83! 8.. O¢<Omzm<n ._.Z<m_w ZO_._.<_>E0"_mZ<M._. mug—.542: ONON-mHON 
._<_._.:m0_._ ._<_z0_>_m=>. mummOm—n. 



NH 

'55 |-E....s_._...§s I... ligmégé . 6...... 30.3 5000.0 
0.2 

:0 30.3 0030300 >3. 0.0 003?. :00. 0030 00.03.. 00.3 0.030033 03.0000 0 .05030 00 .0 .3300. 30303.3: 00300.0 .0 .00.>0.0. 0.003 030E000>0 0 :0 
50.0.0 60300.33 0:0 0.00 030.00.. 00 00.030 5.03.. 0:0 00.30 00 0.0.2.030 mm... 0.3 E0... 0000 03.0.0... 00 0:02. 030 0000 00300.0 50> 3. 00.3 33:00. m.~<m 

00.000.00.888 .0 0.00m. 
~.3000 .00.00.>. 3030.00.03.53 000030.800 0030.03.00 03.2 >0. 2.00.030 0.0.3 000. oz o 

E00... >0_.03d :030E.000:0.... 00300.0 >0 2.300.). c 
5000.5 cm. 0:0 E00... 0:03.030... 0.00 0.3 >3 >0.00>> o 

. . ”00.0 00300.0 
0.3 .0. 0.5.60 U00 :0 05.30.30. 0. 00300.0 50> 3030 .50.. 33:00. 0.00.. 5.300. 0 :0 00.0 00300.0 0.330 50> .00 0 .200 :0 .3030. 

_0.300.0 00300.0 50> N. N<m 

50030.0 .0 00.00.0300 .33.. 00.300. 0.. 
000. 00.00.5000. 00300-..< 

00.03 00 00.03.00.030 
30300.53 .00.000... 030.000-... 

| "5000.302 3030....00030... 00300.0 50> 00 00.000. E000 0.00 .0 .03033005 0050.0 0000.0 "00.....00 00.3 :0 000.00 
0003.3300 0:0E030.0E. >0..030 ..0:0 03000 00.3.00... 0.00 .0 0030303300... 50> 0.0 00.3000... >0._03.0 0.03.3 .0.— ..00.03_0 0000 033 3. 0.00 :. 00.03.030.00... 

0.00030 00 2.00.033 0000. 00 00.30003. 0033 0000. 00 :0 00.000. 3.000 0.00 .0 .0:03300.0 0 00.30... 00 00.530. 0. 00300.0 50> 630000.33 03.0 .00 H.N<m 000000.300. 9.3003. 030 0000: 0005000. 3.0500 00 030 0.0 
:. 00.00030 0E000 0000.0 .0 00.00.300.300 0.3 000: 0000.0. 0mc300E 0:0E0>0.0E. >0..03d .0505. 00030000 303003.005 05... ”00> 00000... o 

0.300.302 303003.250... 
00300.0 05 0323...: 0.3000 0.3030 09.3003. 000:... 09.300... 0303.03.00... >0..03d .0500... 00030000 003003.005 50> 00.3 000000 0000.0 "N .00>N.N<m 800... ..o .0505. :0 0000.000 00.00N3_lw.o 

03> 00> 00000.... .- 
60:00.3 .0.0.0|.0000._| .0.:00 ..... .0:0.0.:._0 .0..030~.30m.0 0003.0... 00.3 

3.00... .d .0500... :0 0330.000 00 000000 :33 003003.090 0;... H. 0.4.... 
.n . 0003.03000300 >0._03d 00.3.0000. m 030000... 

.UHO 

<2 *8 05:00. 0.00... .0 0308000305. 
<2 .08 8.000000 00.0650 

8:80 
ONONxm 00030.0 0.0.0003 00 3000 00“. $000 $00 5.000.000 3.30.00.00.00 

.000... 06 _ no . N6 00 .006 00.0 0.0.0.000 :0 00003.00... 000.0300 min 
<00 ”0:0 .. 

<00 ”0:30.50 . 
00.003 0:0 0>00 00.... 0:0 00 00.3w 0.. 

00.00 >000 030 .0.30.>. 953000.000: ”>03: o 

l .30... .5... .2... 5%.. 2.. .5 380.0 30030.. 002 D¢<Omzm<n h2g0 ZO_._.<_>_m_Ou_mz<m_._. mug—0.04.10 o~o~-m.no~ 
._<_._.n_m0_._ 05:05.5). mummOmE 



NH 
|0w:0_._0xm 

:0_00E._00E_ 5_00_._ .. 
08“. 0 

.3033 am 0000_::EE00 03 30... €03.00... 05 .0": .2000 005 =0 000_0m 00505000.... 09050:. 
cm 9.0.0000 00 «00: 00500.5 50> 005 00050.: 05 £00.02 £00.. 2.000000 0 00 09050.1 

am 00 «.003 0:0 55:5 000500 525 0000000 0:050:00 N526 

I .30 “=8 2.23 03 5.? E203 mam. .0 
008008 GEM— 

I . . 0mm _ 35.); £8 0:93 03 55, 3:208 B a 
.0000 «0 00 00 00 .80 .H_ 236 

50200 29:95.. £00; 8 £3, 38:3... 0. 
. <m._.\<m._. 00:000.. 0 Eu; 0: 5:5 00:02.00 am. 00 

.0000 00 mo 00 0.0 .000 
0.00 00 82002000 

0:0 0.2005908. 0500:: 00 “000.0000am 0:000:00 E 320.50% 0839.59: 00 3:20 030 0m00. 00 53> 0000080000 00050302630000a0 0000 000:”.— .. 
000000.. 0x0E 0:0 mun. 0:05? “00.0500 3:05.000.— >t0=02 o 

00005005 00 0.50; Nu FEES 00:00:08; 00900 F. 03300003... 0003 05> 00200000 00 wmmn 0.000. 00 0000:0u . 

0.20000 00.00: 0:0 mun. 0:050; $5.500 am 50:02 . 
0905000 00 «.003 0:0 55.? 0000000 0:20:00 002000.. 0:3 at»; cm 53> 00:0..000 00 3% 0:09.00 05 0.000... c 

|”0:0_000_0m 
220050.000 0.00 m526=£ 05 :0 23m. 38 

ton. 5:00: 0:0 050: 00: fl :0_00~_:0m00 0E. “02 0000040 .. 
0:0E0_0E_ 00 .0002 "tom 5.00: 0.5 050: m_ 020002.090 50> 005 000000 0000:. 93 

009055 0.2008805 0:0Et0a0o >uc0m00E£ mam. was: 90 03 ”00> 0m000< o 

mm:_m0mm0_>_ 0.....00m 00005 ._0\_u_._0 000005.000 .050 3.000 m:_30=00 05 00 0:0 0000. 00 9:0: 0_ 0500.5 50> 005 000000 0000:. SE 

.8605. 0>_000__0u 9:0: 00: m_ :0_00~_:0m00 0;... ”02 000004 0 
£005.05. 02002.8 0.50: m_ 5.0050090 05 005 000000 0000:. .36 

l- 
. :5....E % ad .6 :0; .5“— 00:09.00 ma- 0500 00 0000020 0005000.. :4 .02 

000004 .- 
5.5000: 00000302 0050550000.... 00500.... 5.3 000E0m0mc0 0>_00< ~.m<m 6085000.. 00 :o_m._0>__u 05 00 00:0 .000m_>0: 0200500205 .50 5:5 00m0mc0 202000 03 60> 00000< o 

0050000000000 05 0:00—0:25 00083000 20:0 05 000.00: .000 00050.00: 00 00000302 0050000000000... 0500...". 5:5 0m0m:0 20.52 0.93 
A:0_%00000m 

ONQN E03 0_m000._0m mam “00000500 0: “00000008 c0_n_ 0_m000._0m 60000.58 0000 0:050; 600000.. m:_>>0=00 05 0000203 2000.030 :05 0.00. 02 .. 
"000000: 3:030 E00... 0000 0.9.3 

E. 8c .0832 023 D¢<Om1m<o ._.Z<:0 ZO_._.<_>_mOu_mZ<m_._. mug—54m."— ONONAmHON ._<_._.n_mO—._ adios—u.)— mummOm—n— 



m.“ 
.1350 05 >0 0000.2: m0>.u:._0..:..00 m:.:._:0. .50. “0:0. 0.: 00:05: .0032: 0:0 5:0. u: .05 “005... :3: 

(Mb. 0 
"mu:::.0.t:: .0 m0E:z H22: 

«EH 0 
.0>0..: «50:00.: m.::0.>.0:. 0005 .0 

0.5 0:: 00E:: 00.3.... 3:0... 60:500.: .5500 :...:..00:0.. .50. “0:0. 0: :. 00.::.0.t:: 08:00 .:0.:..0 000:: .d 30> .0 300050.: 0.05 000...: 00:0... :04: 
m:.0m:0 o 

60:052.... 05 .00.: on 20:95 2.0.3.... .0 0002:: 05 .0. 200:: :0.a0.:E00 0:0000..E 0.02.00 00200.... u:..0..:0:._ 
.0 03:5: 05 :0.— .0050002 

0: 55:56.5 030:“: 0:302 m:.0.>0..: >n. 05030:. .83... 
:0.0.:E._0..m::..... 0050:... 1935 05 5.2. 00:0:0 >._3". 9R 

40h - 
2:0> 05 .26 00000:: : 2.20.50..." >23... .:.u:0.._0:x0 .0 .:0E=000 0:0 .0 E:E.:.E : 0.00.2200 N4: 

.00_0.::t0::0 

_::0.0:0:.00 33:05.: 0.005 0. 55:05: .50 002.00.. 0. 0...: 26: 2: 02. 2:350:02 00:0:02 3-0500 .50 0. 00:988. 0.0.5 30.5000. :4. o 
":0.u.:::_:xm. 63¢: 

00>..:._0._:__00 m:.:._:0_ >._0.:0::E 05 :. 00.::.0.t:: 00> 00: mm: 00.0 00:02: .50 . 
200.20.: E000 5 :m.::: 0. 0002 6.00... 

.:0E0m:::5.-u:0m 0:: 
.00.... u:...:.>.-:0.0.00o 02:..lm 

.m:.:.: 2:0 02:..m "5:05. .0: :0.m2 ._:0> :. ._::....0B\:0.mm0m 
0553. :0 “0:0. .0 :. 02:30.20: :Hdh - 

1. 
.LL... ....=._:._.....\m0>.u0._0..:._0u_m:.:._:0.. 

h 05%. 0.20.5002 0.5.”. 5.:0... _:.._0:._0_>. .008... o 
00. 0:... o 

5.:0... _:.:0_>. 0>.m:0..2:Eou .. 

I 
.:0..:.::0: 

055:: 50> :0. 2:0 .0 0:05.055 
0:: 55:50.03 05 0>0..:.:. 0. 0053.003 ”E2050 :. 20:20.. >0.::.:E00 .2302 .0\ 0:: 20:20: 3.5.8500 .:....0.2-...m... .0 0:00.: 02.. 00:0. 

:0 5.2. B:0.:02m< 0:: 0.0::Eou 2:0 00::0 ...2. 00.002: 50> 2052:: >..::..:E00 2.0.2-5... 
0.5 00:0. 0: 5.2. mu:0E00._m:\30::E00 2:0 200:0 50$... 

mam. o 
0m::..0xm. :0..:.:.o..:_ 5.:0... . 

xmn. 0 

".053 .5300... 00:0.::E:._00 02. .50.. ..:u.:00.. 05 :0... .>_::: “:5 ._: 0.00.3 
.:0.0:E._0.:. 00.0500 cm. 

055030 .0 00.0: 00502: .=._0> “:5 00050.: 05 35:00. 6.0:... 2.02.3.0 : :0 09:50.0 .:u.:mo... .0 0.00.5 0:0 55.2. “5.0:: 5.2. 00:0:00 ::-2.0=0".~m..<o 
0: 

005080“. m=mU wcozn U\D amu— # 

Q0 0::0 0:0..: 03 5.2, 0.8.0:: m:..sm .. 

.032 0::U 0:0..: .03 5.2. 9: 35:35 a. 

.50... ed ma NO 10 .009 333 
mam. 0 

E082: 03.5.. .3. 0¢<Omzm<n ._.Z<m_0 ZO_._.<_>EOn_mZ<E. mug—hug...— ONONéHON ._<_._.n_m0_._ aim—0.2m.)— Mummnuma 



S” 

.mumo: 858m: tam 239:5“t 338% B Loumms cosLouficmt. 8:22; 9: fits 5E 26: ES ”mm; #33 o 
.tOtma 

:oBmEhotzmfi Queues. m5. mESu 3.352 38:88 can 2:52“n 33:22 .25 338% B hoamms cesarean—22... 8:35 9.: PE; “3.2 mag 
53:2; 

EmEtSmc 5.8; 23:“. 
.3c EmmSm 232.5:2 

.333; 3.38% 
.338; 85:523. 

8:358; 88 3:3 .- 

IncozmeEou—E 
3&m $553 2238 B 29m 95 En mmEtmm 52;; 55> Nag 

”Em. mtmudzo cm mEm: Em 35 “mm; $35 o 

6, 
y .sm umEtqzo «flaw ln||. | I I1 - H - I _J. 

H .1 an. .T w. _.>.mo,_2.....__uu._. =o_umE.ou_:_ 532.. m 0.3%. <9. . 
"magma—BEE". uB oEmz 33R 

<2. o 
he 8o .335. as D¢<Omzm<n ._.Z<m_0 ZO_._.<_>_~_Ou_mZ<m—._. mU_._.U<mn_ ONONéHON ._<_._.mmO_._ ._<_m_05_m=>_ mummOm—n. 



Businesses l 2111 

Ace Hardware 
Becky’s Coffee 
Big Weezy’s Barbecue 
Castle Catering 
Chukar Cherries 
Davey’s 
Dutch Brothers 
El Caporal 
Farmers Insurance 
Grandview Chamber 
Jades British Girl 
Jeremy’s Public House 
KD Floral 
Mustangs for Mustangs 
Pepsi 
Prosser FFA 
Prosser School District 
Sister To Sister 
Sunheaven Farms, LLC 
TNG Heating 8: Air Conditioning 
The Orchards in Grandview 

Attachment P 

PMH has received donations from businesses and individuals during the COVlD-19 pandemic 

Individuals [13.] 

Dr. Sharon Dietrich 
Jean Feaster 
Mallissa Garcia 
Lynne Geddis 
Mary Lou Gnoza 
Randy 8: Connie Hecker 
Polly McKinney 
Kevin Morris 
Drew & Meghan Puterbaugh 
Barb Sawyer 
Tillie Smith 
Anjie & Jesse Torres 
Carl Wagner 



Attachment Q 

-' .1. 
'1'. II.-__ I??? 4" 1, i f :  i 1i ’1'; fl i f .“  "471.14 / )  f f.‘ ( i f ;  1: 

'- '1' T ’F l r r -QI  fi4.1"g{1...14 { 4 4 4 1 '  £11.35 4'13 
' I I - '  

1 I" . 
,r J . 1.. . I I. ' 14.» 4.1.11 11111121 .111 .1" ,I '. 1' . 

1'; .. .' I 1 I . , 
II t J r é f  . [ i  - 3  I, (VF-.11 Lfil-{A’ 

' I 
I 

,‘1 1 II - ' [1"- . I I II 

.414’111111 1:14 1 1 
' .  

.1- 
._1— 

'
"

‘
.

"
.

i
 

3
5

'
 

I
n

!
 

.125“ 

’13: {1111311114115 (“L-£1 %;/ jfi  ‘ 

fl 5”” Tfiifi 14 111t 1131-! j f imfg 15 STA 151.5. 

n11.11111.34- K1111: 11111. Hpfikrurfrmn “Tu (41,1114 1111.111: 
flaw-4} 3413113: H W M Q  71:11:11,111 N f fl l m g s i fi fi  

11111111111171 1711.411? 511-1114 11.11? 41.131114 
1.1.11” 11141111116114 I f }  téUfi-V w&}§ -111 ‘?1  T 13» 

I 5 5 Mfi  b11113 5 W C I I 5 1 1 3 3 ‘ 1 1fifi1 ‘ lfi—fl }  flfifil 1 4 " ?  
{4.143% H’wffi’l’? T7 1:..1111111444411411111‘1‘3 W'RJ 
f}1qh§1nfi-4 4.4111,! 121144 { ‘41  141,14” .11»: Lu‘: ”3’; 

4 1 4 1 1 1 4 4 4 1 4 1 4 4 . 1 1 1 1 . “  ”f3! 61?!!1111111‘5’: 

r41? Wflkfiw kfld  K15“. . .11.. 511111 .111, 1.1.11.1 1:. 
[3614k £11" '}”"1“h'1 day-«111 3 . I I 1 - ; 1 = . 1 7  44:11.11 4111*: 

$411411 43111125111“ @vgafl. {11 1.4.11? 1111:1114: NIL": 7 

% ~ : § ; £ £ é i g j fi  51411411; 41.1.1.4 111.4141 1:1". £15: . 1 4 1 4 :  

{61111111144 T131 111,;III‘Tc 1:01.111». 11111;» 1111111111” 
” fi fi w i é  443.4141 “$451.41 mafia H4117“ 

flyi ' i ihviumiflfl  111-1 M d  jfifi  7;ME n h j  

.TE  1:111:11 I 5 9  L115 14111—1 5 3  711411; 15111117111111.1355: 4,1 
(14?“ fi t ? ! ‘ % ?  fit 1:44”, i :  fiwflwflftr 

Tn. 5 83111-1 fd f ‘ lL I  551111113 5W’fl1  
13111-1111 LT111Wg131TFr11111-113 

r ' _ 1 : 1 l l 7 m E  _ [ 3 3 "  $ 1 1 4 4 . } Q Q T 1 ‘ L 1 1 1 - h 1 - L  ' L 1 1 - 1 5 ‘ g f 4 1 5 4  

(741.11% T111111 4 a ffi r m  73111. 41545111111115". I 
4’34”“-’ 11.14.1111; 1 71111-14 1.111141 14-11111 E11111“! i f  I 
UHF-15 SE 11-1 11.71214 .1} {14111—111 4fi111: 
.1131, 15111411 11:1 '3"? 1- }_ g-Ifi ’ i f ’  Ij’fi‘vfh 

--.4411 £11.. .1361; M E  I“ TIME-"fin “11451 (“1511:1- 141.1151- 5 ' 3  
1410111 ,1I."’ I I 11144111: 51’1'1’1-15' 



.03a 
_m_umn_m 

39: .3 «:0 9:3 3... 

:0» gems... 

53523395 

muzmmfi *9 3% B. 

39.95 Emu 0...? 

Enema Eaton—E 

30E 2: M: can 
.hma up: 9.2m :9» Eu; 9—3 

vice... Egan—m m5 Mu. :5 



Ilutvw in .. 
0321.2 

Luz—mm: 
_._...m_._oEw2 hwmmoi 

M— HGOESU§< 



m n n. r” h _ —. J; I. WW ELF-firlrl‘MIM—f . L MWI. 
Wvuw I & 

“I 

I I ..11 l 
._ 

. . 
I I . 

H t I 
... 

. - Q . .... H" 
n n I 

—I ll - II It. I I‘n[ ..I. '. .JI p 
II I I1 

: ._ .. H 
-u, . ... _..|. _. . I .. 

H.... .. mumta ._ .. . _ .. .. It; - 

7.1 F1. - __ . 
_ 

E1. 34% 
hm... _ . ‘ _ 

.l... 

. ... 

:3 $3.. II. 
hp! . 

Ill I'll-l 

i; a if,“ '1. wt 
r ..u I.- H_.l. |.. l |H_. .. 

l __ 

_II1_ 
”11.1 

Nn=>_ 



550 I noizgcfio I .35 .26 I EZEEEQ I :93, 
oz began 2... banana a» has“; «9., 53:53 oz 3.355 oz taE 5» mass“. may bonito 

n. 

usEooom 3:35 acmEamm 2:25 

$¢dmé~on HO gnfimwonflon End 

:3? ".28 
DmZEEOU HZm_._.<n_Z_ 



350 . Estuxm I $95!... $50 I fiozoofiu. ' $92. : 

Son .3... no... 0 :30. .35; En. .aoxm u 3 w none urn} Euzuuxm 

ll . I 
a m « 

nowiozggoE 3 3335583. .6 33.9.3-.. 
3..§§.....§E 3 2.655583. 3 32%;... 

gimboufi ctr _ $Ehoufi ___a< 

$5.8 A128 
._.Zm:2H~_<n_mn_ >Umm—m2m 



oz aux—Eon— 

a 

.350 I 09:22:.c . “uni... 

a: 538.5. 3.1330...“ gaming 

5:6 I “uiiifio I #9: 
oz £38m 8:332“. 3:355 

ow 

u:aEEoue¢E=o§ 

gmdwéuon a; 

:3? ".28 
mm<u mh3u< 

.. I F 

vcmEEooom 2:25 

“.30m-wa.¢~ 
fia< 



850 I mo>a§ccun I s98. :50 I 3:3c I was... 

3. sagcfin 9: 532a 8.» manner. Srasefin oz Managua oz giant 2:. 53.5 noigccwn 

o o I u o o o m 

ucoEEoumfi 2:25 acmEEoumw. 2:03 

cadmméuom D._.> $.03“ Janka” En? 

Egzuo Eumnm 

:q% ".28 
mu<._m_._._.~=m >.:_>_<u_ 



350 I myrbugcfin . $9.2. bun—o I “£20355 I #93. 
0: aEEcon 0: afifiofi no} £39k. no} BEEE oz 5.03:2 92 .5396 may.» MESS“. 3..., buzzer” 

.l .. I a a : w 

ugfifiouom 2:25 3:022:63. 2:25 

gndmémon HO fiaémromhon :54. 

.5? ”.28 
mmu_>~.._m_m 

._<U_w~_:m 



£50 ' fuzouam I $9.... .550 I Fozuuxm I 693.}! 

noon coco 55> .cufiuxm 230 300 Eu.» n§=uuxm 

I 

o o 

_. 

mfiucuEEoomm no veep—=35 m=_u:oEEoomm mo “50::w 

$m.~m-ouou n_._.> _ _ #Rowow __tn._< 

:3? ".28 
_>_<~_wO~_n_ 0mm GZ_>>m 



3&0 I Eofiuxm - 3:» .550 I Eozouxm I 89.» 
2:5 33b9,, Egauum E 33 35.5.9 "iauuw 39". 

‘ 

F 

m 

l mu . :. .. 
m. 

mEocoEEooam mo 3.95.9.5 2395550001 no 502.233 

g “.363” P; 

:Em A "._<ou 
n5-._._Om_ 

u_z_._u 



EEO . E2396 I $9.2. 
.. 

.25 8233 29.... 
.33 Bow .3; 323$ I I 

noon 260 be, “5.3% 

I . N 

«gnu—agoucucu 3 uEnnoEEmuom E. gags...— wgzsumfionwtu 3 acficafifiouwm no 33:...o 

:93 -08” E.> _ ._$mm..uu_c~ .__._n_< 

:33 A ".28 
10.x 

$253 55.2; 50 u. 



Attachment 5 

2020 HOSPITAL WEEK 
This is how we care. 
Send your high school picture to Annie Tiemersma by Noon on Friday May 8th. We will collect all 
pictures submitted and then post on Sharepoint during Hospital Week. Whomever matches the 
most correct pictures with staff names will win a $50 Visa Gift Card. Second place will receive 
$25 and 3rd place will receive a $10 gift card to the Busy Bean. 

MONDAY'MAYII o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o  

Breakfast: 7:00 AM — 9:00 AM - Department Leaders will deliver breakfast to you based on your order 
form. (The order forms were emailed to all stafi and are posted on Sharepoint) 
Parade: Step outside the hospital at 11:00 AM for a little fresh air and community appreciation. 
Food Drive: Let's fill up the gift shop with non—perishable food items for our local food banks this week! 
Drop ofi your items in the gift shop from 7:00 AM — 3:00 PM. After hours please leave your donations 
with the house supervisor to put in the gift shop. 
May Madness Cornhole Tournament: Find a partner and let Community Relations know your schedule 
Monday and Tuesday and you’ll be assigned a time to play your match in the courtyard area. We will limit 
the number of games we have going at one time and no additional spectators. Each clinic will receive a 
PMH Cornhole game and bean bags to participate too! Email your teams and your scores to Shannon 
Hitchcock at the end of the day. We will use all safety precautions including wiping down the boards 
and having hand sanitizer available. Masks will need to be worn while you are playing. 

T U E S D A Y ' M A Y I Z o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o  

Blissful Bites: Donuts are still a go. Busy Bean drinks are free — 1 per employee. Donuts and drinks will 
be delivered to the Prosser and Grandview Clinics. Blissful Bites will serve at the hospital 7:00am - 
9:00am and Benton City Clinic 11:00am — 12:00pm. 
Food Drive: Continues for non—perishable canned goods to benefit local food pantries. 
May Madness Cornhole Tournament: Tournament continues. 

W E D N E S D A Y ' M A Y 1 3  O I O I O O I O O I O I O O O O O I I 0 0 9 . . . . . .  

Staff Lunch: Staff Lunch will be provided in individual bento boxes from Jade‘s. If you have food 
allergies please let Shannon Hitchcock know by Monday May 11th. Meals will be distributed to the 
evening shift at 8:00 PM. We hope to distribute your hospital gift at this time too. Fingers crossed our 
shipping deadline is met! 
Food Drive: Continues for non—perishable canned goods to benefit local food pantries. 
May Madness Cornhole Tournament: Tournament continues. 

THURSDAyiMAYI‘; o c o c o o n o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o . . . . .  

PMH Puzzle Mania: Stafi= are invited to participate in a timed contest to complete a unique and 
challenging puzzle. The top 12 finishers will receive PMH Logowear valued at $25. 
PMH Foundation Scholarships: Will be awarded outside in the front entrance area of the hospital. 
Food Drive: Continues for non—perishable canned goods to benefit local food pantries. 
May Madness Cornhole Tournament: Tournament continues. 

FRIDAY’MAY15 n o c o c o . o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o I . . .  

Ice Cream Social: 12:00 PM —- 1:30 PM in the Vineyard. Night Shift — treats will be delivered to your 
departments. Healthy treat options will also be available. 
Foundation Friday and Spirit Day: Wear your PMH logo wear and jeans if you're a donor. Increase your 
payroll deduction by 5% and receive a short-sleeved Foundation t—shirt just in time for summer! 

- {‘3 Prosser 
I! Memorial Health 



A t t a c h m e n t  T 













. . n . 1...... 13.3..“ ......d. _ u ., . f ,1 
. .. .EW. .. ...___.. 3 . . ,. . r ruf.n.4.u......rM.H.fl F. 



m
L

L
-|_

-:n
'_

_
._

 -f_. ‘ 
_
 F 

_
 «_ 





4....1 9 I49 ll! 
‘ fl 09n*ut.l l 1 Lu .- and t . 

411* 

0!. beat“. 
I 3. O ‘3". 



(‘3 Prosser 
‘! Memorial Health 

Senior Photo Game 

Answer Key 

1. Tonya Thompson-Speights, Care 
Transition Team. 

2. Nora Newhouse, Human 
Resources. 

3. Jeff Fitzjarrald, Emergency Medical 
Services. 

4. Rochelle Kmetz, Human Resources. 

5. Marla Davis, Acute Care. 

6. Rocky Snider, Human Resources. 

7. Sara Dawson, Surgical Services. 

8. Dr. Whitaker, Emergency 
Department. 

9. Karolynn Thompson, Patient 
Financial Services. 

10. David Rollins, Administration. 

11. Andrea Valle, Health Information 
Management. 

12. Alicia Valle, Patient Registration. 

13. Sasha Thomasson, Care Transition 
Team. 

14. Donna Williams, Patient 
Registration. 

15. Jim Schab, Diagnostic Imaging. 

16. Merry Fuller, Administration. 

17. Crystal Blanco, Human Resources. 

18. Lindsay McKie, Pharmacy. 

19. Jill Pagel, Care Transition Team. 

20. ShaRonda Lewis, Diagnostic 
Imaging. 

21. Marta Meza, Patient Financial 
Services. 

22. Carol Allen, Administration. 

23. Kristal Oswalt, Prosser Clinic. 

24. Phillip Braem, Information 
Technology. 

25. Molly Schutt, Prosser Clinic. 

25. Lynn Smith, Medical Staff. 

27. Amanda Hibbs, Diagnostic 
Imaging. 

28. Angela Carey, Pharmacy. 

29. Miranda Smith, Diagnostic 
Imaging. 

30. Kristi Tuor, Information 
Technology. 

31. Tricia Hawley, Specialty Clinic. 

32. Shannon Hitchcock, Community 
Relations. 

33. Stephanie Titus, Accounting. 



{‘5 Prosser 
I! Memorial Health 

34. Annie Tiemersma, Community 
Relations. 

35. Sara Parrazal, Acute Care. 

36. Lindsey Schutt, Family Birthplace. 

37. Christi Doornink-Osborn, 
Emergency Department. 

38. Craig Marks, Administration. 



{‘l Prosser 
Ll Memorial Health 

Senior Photo Bonus Game 

Answer Key 

1. Gloria Zuniga, Prosser Clinic. 

2. Dr. Wenger, Emergency 
Department. 

3. Amanda Schilperoort, Acute Care. 

4. Timothy Shipley, Emergency 
Medical Services. 

5. Darla Don, Materials Management. 

6. Cassandra Cazares, Acute Care. 

7. Dr. Sollers, Women’s Health 
Center. 

8. Aurora Weddle, Diagnostic 
Imaging. 

9. Dorien Garcia, Health Information 
Management. 

10. Laura Montanaro, Grandview 
Clinic. 

11. Alex Carballo, Diagnostic Imaging. 

12. Meagan Bronkhorst, Materials 
Management. 

13. Nancy Sanchez, Patient 
Registration. 

14. Steve Broussard, Maintenance. 

15. Mara Ripplinger, Laboratory. 

16. Tasha Sears, Materials 
Management. 

17. Wendy Clapp, Materials 
Management. 

18. Diana Ramirez, Patient Financial 
Services. 

19. Maria Rubalcaba, Patient 
Financial Services. 

20. Casey Hollenbeck, Nursing 
Administration. 



Attachment U 

(‘5 Prosser 
I! Memorial Health 

Hospital Week 

Cornhole Tournament 
Grand Champions: Craig Marks 8: Kevin Hardiek 
2nd Place: Alana Pumphrey & Veronica Reyna 
3"“l Place: Jim Schab 8: Joe Fitch 
4th Place: David Rollins 8: Stephanie Titus 

Puzzle Mania 
Becca Warnick 
Carolina Pineda 
Diana Wilson 
Laura Montanaro 
Lourdes Tiatenchi 
Maggie Sanchez 
Maira Cabanillas 
Mara Ripplinger 
Mariann Vanguardia 
Maricela Rivera 
Miranda Smith 
Tasha Sears 
Wendy Clapp 

Senior Photo Game Round One 
Carolina Pineda 
Dorien Garcia 
Jennifer Kernan 
Jim Schab 
Meagan Bronkhorst 
Miranda Smith 

Senior Photo Game Bonus Round 
Lizbet Razo 
Maira Cabanillas 
Meagan Bronkhorst 
Tasha Sears 



Attachment V 

In honor of National Donut Day, 
Blissful Bites will serve at the hospital from 

7:00 am - 9:00 am and Benton City Clinic at 
11:00 am - 12:00 pm. Donuts will be delivered 

to the Grandview Clinic and Prosser Clinics. 0 

This is how we care. 

{‘3 Prosser 
LI Memorial Health 





Community Support 

. -  ' * ‘ l  - 
91-1 _ ._ . .  - .- . - - ' I '— f 1 ' 1' ' I __ - ' - ' " .  . '  _ . . '  L'_‘_'i  1. r .‘. ._ 
‘45:!" »—-« -~ ' .  7- *E‘FJ . . 4' “-1" _ _4 . ."- :5_!_,  _i._._—- . __ . 

__“L!'l‘!3“" ‘ t r ”g igs. . .  I ‘21:; _ - . . !  N
I!-

 
‘:

-.
. 

On Saturday, April 11, 2020, over 30 cars drove by in a "Thank You First Responders Parade" 

Thank you to everyone who donated to first responders and healthcare workers at Davy’s 
Burger Ranch! 

Also a big thanks to Grandview community member Kevin Morris and Big Weezy‘s 
Barbecue for feeding the hospital and clinic teams lunch and dinner! What an amazing 
and delicious gift! 

2 /  THE PULSE 



Thank you to Superintendent Matt Ellis for sending in the cavalry: Dave Schell and the 
maintenance department, the building principals, and Prosser School District nurses 
who marshaled all available Personal Protective Equipment and delivered it to 
Prosser Memorial Hospital. 

Perla Zepeda Farmers Insurance in Sunnyside is treating community heroes (Hospital 
workers, first responders and law enforcement) with lunch, gift cards and coffee. 

THE PULSE I 3 



Community 
Support 
With barbecue season here, having 
a working BBQ is a necessity. When 
Prosser ACE Hardware heard from 
Jim Schab that PMH's BBQ wasn’t in 
working order they went above and 
beyond by gifting us a brand new one! 

Emergency Department Team 
- = - ' . _ | - — I  ‘ i  7 i i - I H I ' I , . I . 1 : . . _ : . ’  % —-. _ ‘3" *J '  ~- 'r'l‘m' 

While it’s unknown when life will resume to normal Flicka Arquette, Stephanie Honey-Morrow, 
Silvia Cervantes and Jaron Raymond are finding ways to have fun and smile. 

4 I THE PULSE 



ASPIRE 2::e 
Awards 
Our ASPIRE program recognizes team 
members who demonstrate our core values R espect 

Promote Teamwork 

Integrity 

of Accountability, Service, Promoting 
Teamwork, Integrity, Respect and Excellence. Excellence 

Congratulations to Sasha Thomasson, our Patient Care Coordinator, for receiving a Silver ASPIRE Award! Sasha 
was recognized for her continued efforts assisting a patient access the resources they need, meeting this patient 
at doctor's appointments to ensure a continuum of care, and making herself available when other needs arise. 
Sasha has gone above and beyond helping this patient get the care they need. Thank” you Sasha! You're an 
amazing caregiver and we are so thankful you are part of our PMH family. 

We also took a pause out of our "COVID—l 9 New Normal” clay to recognize two outstanding members of 
the Prosser Memorial Health family. Brian Brindle, Echo Tech-R in our Diagnostic Imaging Department, was 
recognized by Pediatrician Dr. Carl for coming in on his day off to perform a pediatric echo on a patient. 
Congratulations Brian for receiving a Gold ASPIRE Award for being there when the team and the patient needed 
you! We also recognized Dr. Santa-Cruz with a Silver ASPIRE Award. After working a 12 hour day at the Grandview 
Clinic he stayed after hours for a pregnant patient who was not feeling well. Thank you Dr. Santa-Cruz! Both of 
you are great role models for living our ASPIRE values! 

THE PULSE I 5 



Happy Retirement Francie 8: Alan! 
H @‘hml' 

Willa, 
u, r, p... 

I» a!“ T“ , c 
T—IL 

6 I THE PULSE 

Mount! 

Francie Poole, Executive Assistant retired! 
Although we couldn’t have a traditional 
retirement party due to social distancing, 
Francie’s day was made special by each of you 
who said farewell and decorated a card. 

Alan Steen, CRNA, 
retired after spending 
31 years at Prosser 
Memorial Health. Thank 
you Alan for serving 
your patients, staff 
and out community 
with exceptional care, 
passion and dedication. 
On behalf of your entire 
PMH family, it has been 
an honor and a privilege 
to work with you! 



Blood Drive 
PMH hosted a blood 
drive for employees in 
partnership with the 
Red Cross. Thank you to 
everyone who donated 
and supported the Red 
Cross in this effort. 
A special shoutout to 
Sara Dawson, Shannon 
Hitchcock and Sofie 
Flores for your help! 

We unofficially refer to Carol as "Chief Cat Herder" as she masters the task of keeping the 
Administration Team focused, on time, and responsive. That is no easy task but she does it with 
patience and grace everyday! Thank you Carol Allen for everything you do! We’re so glad you’re part 
of our family. 

THE PULSE I 7 



Year of 
the Nurse 

2020 has been deemed the Year of the 
Nurse and is the 200th anniversary of 
Florence Nightingale’s birth. Our team 
of nurses are dedicated to providing 
compassionate patient care every day. 
If you haven’t already, view the video of 
Stephanie Turner our PM H’s facebook. 

This is how we care. 

Prosser Memorial Health, in partnership with the 
k M USTANGS Prosser School District, Thrive Coalition, Boys & Girls 

Club of Prosser and Comprehensive Mental Health 
{ MATTER will launch an online mental health initiative for 

youth in our community May 7, 2020. 

Mustangs Matter is an interactive, social media-based platform where teens can talk to local 
mental healthcare providers like Heather Morse, ARNP at the Prosser Clinic and discuss a 
variety of different topics facing youth today. Mustangs Matter has an lnstagram page with 
lGT Live to view the discussions in real time and submit questions and comments. The videos 
will also be available on the Mustangs Matter website: www.mustangsmatter.org. The website 
also has a number of resources for youth and parents, phone numbers and a dedicated email, 
mustangsmatter@gmail.com, where someone can reach out directly if they need additional 
resources or have a concern they would like addressed privately. 

8 I THE PULSE 



National Superhero Day! 

In honor of National Superhero Day, the Administration team honored PMH staff by delivering ice 
cream to departments and clinics. 

P M H S T A  F F Please remember to schedule your mammograms 
and to see your primary care doctor. 

‘ -_—_— i ”  _— ——— — 
h _ __ ‘» p = . ‘ I n ]  -_‘._;_;mfi ‘_-"__, I f  __ Specials valid for the 

“ '1: _I'L.‘{.__1r.__1='-€Li ‘1 “ A“ in ' ' ‘ week of May 11 — 15 with 
Pam Morris and Jessica Luther -—.. :4 -—-u~—- 2:.2- 1c-'-I.t.- ,7, .'-'~ ._1._._; - 

- " ”a l 5 ”D We ”E 7". . 
b (by appointment only). 
' " ~ ' I 

BOTOX® JqDERMo JqoERMn-sn ,' 
SlO/Unit XC ULTRA PLUS .0 
(Botox® service is $450 $475 . 
generally 20—25 
units per visit) . 

. 

0 . i j i . .  

i . . . I . . .  THEPULSEIQ 



2020 HOSPITAL WEEK 

MONDAY'MAYII  o l o o a c o u o o o o o o o t o o o o - s t a t u e s .  

Breakfast: 7:00 AM — 9:00 AM - Department Leaders will deliver breakfast to you based 
on your order form. (The order forms were emailed to all stafic and are posted on Sharepoint) 
Parade: Step outside the hospital at 11:00 AM for a little fresh air and community appreciation. 

Food Drive: Let's fill up the gift shop with non—perishable food items for our local food banks this 
week! Drop off your items in the gift shop from 7:00 AM — 3:00 PM. After hours please leave your 
donations with the house supervisor to put in the gift shop. 

May Madness Cornhole Tournament: Find a partner and let Community Relations know your 
schedule Monday and Tuesday and you'll be assigned a time to play your match in the courtyard 
area. We will limit the number of games we have going at one time and no additional spectators. 
Each clinic will receive a PMH Cornhole game and bean bags to participate too! Email your teams 
and your scores to Shannon Hitchcock at the end of the day. We will use all safety precautions 
including wiping down the boards and having hand sanitizer available. Masks will need to be worn 
while you are playing. 

T U E S D A Y ’ M A Y I Z  I O I O I O O Q I I I I O I O O I I I O I O I O I I I I  

Blissful Bites: Donuts are still a go. Busy Bean drinks are free — 1 per employee. Donuts and 
drinks will be delivered to the Prosser and Grandview Clinics. Blissful Bites will be in Benton City 
at 10:30 AM and drinks will be delivered. 

Food Drive: Continues for non-perishable canned goods to benefit local food pantries. 
May Madness Cornhole Tournament: Tournament continues. 

1 . 2 ; “ )  Prosser 
LI Memorial  Health 

10 I THE PULSE 



W E D N E S D A Y ' M A Y I B  I 0 . 0 . 0 . . . . O I I I C I C C I O I O D I I I  

Staff Lunch: Staff Lunch will be provided in individual bento boxes from Jade's. If you have food 
allergies please let Shannon Hitchcock know by Monday May 11th. Meals will be distributed to the 
evening shift at 8:00 PM. We hope to distribute your hospital gift at this time too. Fingers crossed 
our shipping deadline is met! 

Food Drive: Continues for non-perishable canned goods to benefit local food pantries. 
May Madness Cornhole Tournament: Tournament continues. 

THURSDAY'MAYI‘Q 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 c o o - 0 0 0 0 0 . . .  

PMH Puzzle Mania: Staff are invited to participate in a timed contest to complete a unique and 
challenging puzzle. The top 12 finishers will receive PMH Logowear valued at $25. 

PMH Foundation Scholarships: Will be awarded outside in the front entrance area of the hospital. 

Food Drive: Continues for non—perishable canned goods to benefit local food pantries. 
May Madness Cornhole Tournament: Tournament continues. 

FRIDAY'MAYIS c o n c o c t i o n - c o c o o n - l o o - c o c c c o o c  

Ice Cream Social: 12:00 PM — 1:30 PM in the Vineyard. Night Shift — treats will be delivered to 
your departments. Healthy treat options will also be available. 

Foundation Friday and Spirit Day: Wear your PMH logo wear and jeans if you’re a donor. 
increase your payroll deduction by 5% and receive a short-sleeved Foundation t—shirtjust in 
time for summer! 

1 This is how we care. 

'HE PULSE I 11 



Anniversaries 
Happy 1 Year 

Gabriela Corona 
Prosser Clinic CMA 

Michaela Capello 
Radiology Echo Tech 

Happy 2 Years 
Bethany Foster 
Paramedic 

Jaron Raymond 
Emergency Department RN 

Jazzmine Cruz 
Laboratory Assistant 

Gena Stephenson 
Admitting Patient Registrar 

Evelia Galvez 
Acute Care Tech 

Eileen Lai 
EMT 

Happy 3 Years 
Heather Morse 
ARNP 
Kevin Hardiek 
Director of Information 
Technology 

Happy 4 Years 
Justin Herzog 
Radiology CT Technologist 

Macayla Hunt 
Dietary Aide 

12 I THE PULSE 

Happy 5 Years 
Juanita Degollado 
Dietary Aide 

Danielle Palacios 
Family Birthplace RN 

Liliana Rangel 
Emergency Department RN 

Neil Taylor 
Paramedic 

Kimberly Safford 
RN Resource Nurse 

Happy 6 Years 
Peter Park 
Patient Care Coordinator 

Lynn Smith 
Medical Staff Coordinator 

Happy 3 Years 
Steven Zirker 
Benton City Clinic 
Physician Assistant 

Happy 9 Years 
David Stowman 
Radiology CT Technologist 

Happy 10 Years 
Diana Ramirez 
Revenue Integrity Analyst 

Happy 11 Years 
Raquel McGraw 
Laboratory QA QC Technologist 

Bryan Scheer 
Interim EMS Director 

Happy 12 Years 
Angelita Rojas-Gonzalez 
Laundry Worker 

Happy 19 Years 
David Moon 
EMTBZ 

Happy 20 Years 
Jason Raver 
Advanced EMT 



Birthdays 
Christopher Wells 
Surgical Services RN 

Paul Weisz 
Maintenance Mechanic 

Lindsey Schutt 
Family Birthplace RN 

Lucia Magana 
Prosser General Surgery 

Karolynn Thompson Center CMA 
Patient Billing Services Collector 

Laura Sosa 
Grandview Clinic CMA Mariann Vanguardia 

Laboratory Microbiologist 

FDr. Minor . 
rosser InIC . . Rochelle Kmetz Thallee eght 

Chief Human Resources Officer Prosser General Surgery 
Center CMA Kaylee fiwan II 

Patient Bi ing Services Co ector 
Heather Calhoon Robert Roy 
Outpatient Special Procedures RN Cardiopulmonary 

Res irator Th ' Irma Mendoza p y erap'St 
. Grandview Clinic Patient Registrar 

Cathleen FIerro 
Family Birthplace RN 

Ana Martin 
_ Emergency Department Tech 

Linda Bouchard 
Revenue Cycle Director 

Bryan Scheer 
Interim Director of EMS 

Dr. Wali Martin 
Emergency Department 

ShaRonda Lewis 
Diagnostic Imaging 

Selene Chavez Ultrasound Tech 
Family Birthplace RN 

Brittney Balmes 
Diagnostic Imaging L ndsa Oswalt . 

Bgnton city Clinic CMA CT TEChno'Og'ST 

Betharéy Foster 
Hope Ramcilrez CMA Parame '° 
Benton Cit inic _ 

y Kale Guerln 
Paramedic 

Josh a Ammann . . 
Paramgdic Nlna Klewm 

Paramedic 

Jesse Hale Jr. 
Laboratory Medical Lab Technician 

THE PULSE I 13 



Publicity 
The Yakima Herald—Republic 
featured an article on how 
Prosser Memorial Health 
has responded to COVlD-19. 
The Respiratory/COVID-19 
Care Clinic team has done an 
exceptional job demonstrating 
excellence and teamwork. 

Heather Morse, Psychiatric NP 
and Pam Morris, ARNP hosted a 
Facebook Live discussing Mental 
and Physical Wellness. While it’s 
unknown if life will resume to 
what it once was, Heather and 
Pam gave advice on how to cope 
with the new normal. 

The Spokesman Review wrote 
an article about how Prosser 
Memorial Health is facing 
COVID-19. 

> SharePoint 

14 I THE PULSE 

Access your benefits information 
by checking SharePoint Benefits 
and Retirement pages. Contact 
Nora Newhouse if you have any 
questions, ext: 6688. 



Healthy Rhubarb Crisp 
Prep Time: 20 mins Healthy Rhubarb Crisp 
Cook Time: 50 mins Amount Per Serving 
Total Time: 1 hr 10 mins (1 serving =1/9th of recipe) 

. _ Calories: 171 

.I I! n Q _  " _ 3 . ' ‘ .I ' Crisp Topping Calories from Fat: 130 
j? . _ 3/4 Cup Almond Flour % Daily Value* 

m ) : ...- ., 1 /4 Cup Shredded Fat: 14.4g - 22% 
P RING hfl’ j -‘-' 3",, . Coconut Unsweetened Carbohydrates: 7.7g —3% 

" ‘ 1/4 Cup Chopped Pecans Fiber: 3.5g - 14% 
1/3 Cup Swerve Sweetener Protein: 3.4g - 7% 
1/2 Tsp Cinnamon 
M; Tsp Salt 
5 Tbsp Chilled Butter and 
Cut into small pieces 

Rhubarb Filling 
2 pounds chopped rhubarb 
1/3 cup powdered Swerve 
(more if you like it sweeter) 

Crisp Topping 
Preheat the oven to 300F and line a baking sheet with parchment paper. 
In a food processor, combine the almond flour, shredded coconut, chopped pecans, sweetener, 
cinnamon. and salt. Pulse a few times to combine. Sprinkle with the butter pieces and then process 
until the mixture resembles coarse crumbs. 
Spread the mixture on the prepared baking sheet and cover with another piece of parchment. Use a 
rolling pin or your hands to press down firmly so that the mixture sticks together. Remove the top sheet 
ofpapen 
Bake 20 to 30 minutes, or until edges are golden brown. Remove and let cool completely — the mixture 
will continue to crisp up as it cools. 

Rhubarb Filling 
Preheat the oven to 350F. Spread the rhubarb in a 9x13 inch glass or ceramic baking dish and sprinkle 
with the sweetener. Toss to combine. 
Cover tightly with foil and bake 30 to 35 minutes, or until the mixture is bubbling and rhubarb is tender. 
Remove the filling from oven and remove foil. Break the cooled topping into pieces with your hand and 
place over filling to cover completely. Serve warm, topped with whipped cream or keto vanilla ice cream. 

THE PULSE I 15 



‘— 
d‘w 'IL' 

_ I .  "471' "g, _ .-_._ 4;. . : 

'II I 

II-l 11‘ H : F _  'I '"-_- 

. g x11; ‘ 1 1 ' _  L :‘L. “ r  I ( f ?  K T  r—VF y ' -a"—-I If} ,5: iln' 
- _  l I . 1 I I l _ r _  '- II > . T 

; ,. 
*— — I I  

I 

I' 
_ I 

_ I -  

r 

_ -  

_ _  I 
I -  I 

.I 

I 

— 

l.-_V 

“ a  t— _ _ 

I 
,‘
1
 

_
'

I
i

J
 

i
 

III
'II

H
H

" 
I
1

:
 

E 
I

I
I

 
[

1
:

 
W

I
]

.
 

I
I

:
 

J
 

L 
I
”
.
 



Attachment X 

{‘3 Prosser 
L 4  Memorial Health 

Platinum ASPIRE Award Recipients 

Left to Right: Steve Zirker, Gloria Zuniga, Jaqueline Rodriguez, Mireya 
Aguilar, Monique Saenz, Isabel De La Cruz, Daniel Solis and Pam Morris. 
Not pictured: Dr. Johansing and Laura Sosa 



Attachment Y 

{'3 Prosser 
8 !  Memorial Health 

UNIFORM PROGRAM 

2021 _ 

May 18, 2020 

Prosser Memorial Health | 723 Memorial Street | Prosser, WA 99350 | www.prosserhealth.org 



., 
{Lb Prosser 

I Memorial Health 

Here are six reasons for color-coded uniforms in hospitals: 

1. The Patient Experience 
The patient’s perception of his or her caregivers is affected by the caregiver’s 
appearance, perceived skill and the patient’s ability to distinguish between his or her 
healthcare providers. 

Patient satisfaction, which is influenced by the patient’s perceptions, is one element 
of the entire patient experience. Hospitals routinely administer patient satisfaction 
surveys to outgoing patients. In these surveys, patients often comment on their 
caregivers’ lack of professional appearance, as well as the inability to identify who 
was in their room. Conversely, organizations that make the change to standardized 
uniforms report increased patient satisfaction in these areas. 

Why do patient perception and patient satisfaction matter? Healthcare is a 
competitive space. Peeple who have a good experience with their caregivers and 
their hospital stays overall are more likely to recommend the facility that treated 
them. More importantly, research shows the patient experience is an indicator of 
quality and associated with better health outcomes. 

Patient Safety 

Studies Show that patients have trouble distinguishing their caregivers when there is 
no uniform standardization. This presents a safety concern when patients, their 
families and other caregivers are unable to identify the primary, licensed person 
responsible for providing accurate and consistent care. 

Caregiver identification is of importance in pediatric and labor and delivery units. If 
an organization employs a clear role-based uniform standard, including embroidered 
logo, it is much harder for an unwelcome visitor to blend in with, or even 
impersonate, care providers. 

Employee Satisfaction 
While organizations are discussing plans to color—code, staff commonly express 
dissent and anxiety over the preposed change. However, once dress codes are in 
place, even the most skeptical of staff members often experience a change of heart. 
Employees see the enhanced atmosphere of professionalism and subsequent 
improvement in patient perception of the organization. And with the addition of 
color by discipline, staff enjoy a sense of team unity and pride with their fellow RNs, 
radiologists or physical therapists, along with easier identification of fellow 
employees. 



“We actually receive comments from employees that they think it looks professional, 
it was a good decision to make, there’s pride in wearing the logoed umforms and 1n 
having the patients know which caregivers are nurses versus techs. 

magnet mama 

Many hospitals strive for Magnet status awarded by the American Nurses 
Credentialing Center (ANCC), a subsidiary of the American Nurses Association 
(ANA) which recognizes quality patient care, nursing excellence and innovation. 
Further, Magnet status is used as criteria in several other hoSpital rating systems, 
including Leapfrog Hospital Survey and US. News & World Report. 

To achieve Magnet status, hospitals must demonstrate nursing best practices, the 
highest standards of professionalism and exemplary quality of care. Hospitals 
seeking the designation recognize the need for a standardized uniform program as 
part of their commitment to excellence. And when hospitals can boast of achieving a 
“Magnet culture,” studies show they excel in the areas of patient care, safety and 
satisfaction. 

Medicare and Medicaid Incentives 

Patient experience is officially measured by the HACAHPS survey, which includes 
questions about a patient’s communication with nurses and doctors, the cleanliness 
and quietness of the hospital environment, the patient’s overall rating of the hospital 
and his or her likelihood of recommending the hospital. All of the questions are tied 
to the patient’s perception of his or her care providers and the organization as a 
whole. 

Branding 

Image matters. A patient's perception of an organization and its brand becomes 
reality. Magnet status reflects positively on your brand. Professionally dressed staff 
in standardized uniforms featuring a brand’s embroidered logo present a powerful 
picture of expertise and authority to patients and visitors. Health care is increasingly 
competitive; how an organization is represented by its employees affects patient 
satisfaction, patient outcomes and, ultimately, the bottom line. 



* (‘l Prosser 
k !  Memorial Health 

Policy [I Procedure I:I ProtocoIIPre-Printed Order I:I Other: 

SUBJECT: Departmental Uniform & Color Coding NO: @ : 

I New [I Supersedes # ; Effective Date $ 

Author Rusti Wilson/ Wendy Date of Electronic 
Clapp Distribution 

MediCal Director! 
Dept. Manager CAH Oversight 

Administrative Policy Committee 

Committee Other 

. Audit Review: Initials: 

Date: 

Policy 

Designated departments will wear specific colors in order to assist with patient care delivery and 
identification of personnel by patients and families. 

All employees must dress and maintain a personal appearance that is professionally 
appropriate for his/her department. Department specific policies will not supersede or contradict 
the Departmental Uniform & Color Coding policy. Exceptions to the dress requirements 
caused by individual departmental needs requiring deviation from these standards may be 
approved by Administration. When an exception is approved, it is put into departmental policy 
format and reviewed with the HR Director. 

Uniform Definition 

A uniform is a special set of clothes which some people, for example soldiers or the police. wear to 
work in and which some children wear at school. You can refer to the particular style of clothing 
which a group of people wear to show they belong to a group or a movement as their uniform. 

Goal 

Create an environment of caring and clinical excellence, making it easier for patients to 
differentiate one specialty or department from another. 

Implementation Timeline 

January 1, 2021 (adjustable timeline) 

Departmental Uniform & Color Coding 

Uniform & Color by Discipline guidelines will be in full compliance. Failure to comply with this 
policy may result in progressive disciplinary action. Occupations color selection was done by 
designated job function not location. 

Departmental Uniform & Color Coding Page 1 of3 



"3 PFOSSGF 
‘ t ’  Memorial Health 

Upon hire or during the first year of employment. The allowance funding will be available for 
designated employees to purchase uniforms from the identified vendor/vendors. Newly hired 

employees will need to order their assigned clothing at the beginning of their new hire process 
to assure they have them by their start date. 

Additional uniforms may be ordered from the program vendor/vendors at the employee’s 
expense throughout the year. 

An authorized LOGO is optional and paid for by the hospital. If selected it must be embroidered 
on the upper left side of the top. 

No alternate color, trimming, or stitching is allowed. Any color/print shirt, short or long sleeved 
shirt, andlor athletic sleeves, may be worn under uniform tops. 

Note: Departments must carry a supply of uniforms in their designated color for short term 
contracted staff to utilize. Long term contracted staff will be required to purchase their own 
uniforms in the contracted department designated color. 

Per CFO request the Surgery Department, Maintenance Department and EMS weren’t included 
in the cost analysis. 

Ordering 

- The selected vendor/vendors will set up an online ordering system with the selected 
styles and colors for each identified department employees. 

0 Upon initial start-up of the program, Materials Management will set up a system for 
employees to try on the vendor uniforms in their selected sizes and place their orders. 
For new employees after the initial start-up, Human Resources will incorporate this 
process into the onboarding of the employee to ensure that uniforms are ordered in a 
timely manner upon starting employment. Fit kits from vendor will be kept in the Human 
Resources area. 

Note: Employees purchasing their uniforms outside of the selected vendor are at risk of not 
being complaint with the program and policy. 

Departmental Uniform & Color Coding Page 3 of3 



H omwm 

£335 500 

Nc. 39c co. rdd coda rd oodh rd 

owdcfivc 00.0w coNc o cwfi rad coNc 
.N wcdvivc coNcc _.N 

dicocc NoNNd coda _. dd.c_‘ rd coda —. cc. v Fad codaw N 

SudcoNd wd. _‘ c coNc N owéohc coNc c ONoco. rd coNcc c 

fidfiocdw Dodo co.Nc o cacw coNc w NQNNdéd coc aN 

caNVdc Vd. _‘ FNc coNc N oodd coNc o cacd coNcw a 

dddOd vc. _. vNc coNa N wc% coNc a owdr _._Nd co.Nad or 

NHcVN. rd Vddc rd coda N 00.0% coda o cddoo. rd codad N 

Nhéo _. .ac co.N 5. ; coda av coda coda o ch. rd _..Nc codad E. 

dc.aaN.aw Ncficwd coda c ovédcc coda c ch. rd _,.Nd 
codad 3‘ 

ccdwNKw coda coda o Nadac. Z" coda E. VNd cd codac ca 

EuocN. _‘ Pd Eudovdw coda Na ccddN. 3w coda E. Nadd‘VKd codac do 

whww N w._.m_w a w._.m_w w 

I I 5 

all Al. | 
.fl 

duo. Axum. 
“E ._ y. 

. 
.4.|.-r|..l.. 

>0; .7 1 a... 
.- 

FL 

>.n__m.u_. 

12051:. ,_ 
fl 

22:0 > _ ..L,....,._.q....__ 

_. 
2mg: 05 om. _.._.._ 

+ 

E9. - g._ 
590'. 

..... 

II I. 
$03 an... 

. Eéofiamoam- 

_ 

J; 
I 214... ”.1. 

.r .. 

_ 





.Ucmb 50> cmfimcmbm Ucm mucwtqw Egg 2: w>oEE_ dozuflmmmm Emma mmmmbE :8 numtmEm 
E 85261 EEmoa ESE: 96% < dam 2508 @tm mcEE .9: mm 53m 208 Ucm 80:28 EBmB mEm: zucEm Ucm >_QE_m mEEmEQ ESE: mEOU ficoEmEE mgzbmtmEm c9985 Ucm 33mm. 35:35 :< .88 E3492 3% 3323mm, .5c ._mu_6mE mEUEUE mmEmEuE waEsE mmobm mcosEmmE 88 5:8: Lou. mEEmoE ESE: 9.6% c_ mmN=mUm ®mgsbmtmEm 

I v I ||I n” All 
I .v...__: .15.. LIEU} to. 

. .H......n...-. (“Tm ‘.. .r... 
IIIL... .. 

numtmEm E @96a mEBt 965 

m: H30m< 



.9335. go mwxfl émEoEEw 29:35 Ho: mwou Hmou 

53% 5mm; 5% E + x~ 
flaw v 

58; $.0m 
5mm; ._x B a: 

mm. 5; 8.2; 
3.3 a + x~ 

.33 m 
$.m £3; mwdmw ._x 8 as 

$.85 NEE «mama + x~ 
flow N 

No.89 «3% Na. Ea ._x B a: 

8.8a 8.8% 8.3% 
_+ x~ 

:6 F 
8.9% 8.3% 8.8% 

._x 3 a: 
umMOHuIU: 

fiwmwcg 
IO.hQ.—D>mm. 

Edmgxmog IIIU hhhhhhhh 

mmMOmMmu 

3420.330: 

aim gum 03 film. _. i 

@9m 

335 22.3.0; ”52>. \ umou EwEEOmma‘ 



mucm§o=m 
ESE... m_nm__m>m 

mwm 8 E mo. 

1.. .1.... 
1.41%..391 Li .- .- 
._InEigWiE. . Lifting. 

...,_. 
..1§_§£i§aufis.i§:2 

. 
u 

... 433.0% E..£.ED 5&3: 1.. .. ._ws. 5305 w... B @583; 

.630.“ 223.5 m 29.53a fiDM><m hzm 2.5.4m < ._dm 

20.. 3 EwEtOmmm 
£822... 355% 

.3229: U5 32> nqBma 

9.3.q U5 So mcSmQ .o mucm§o=m 
.55 9.3: 555:; .3? at: 

:o uwuma mwmmcuSQ __m :0 Sta 
E2823 Uwumzommc 9: >980 t 

gmxuoq 
.6 So mucw..wt__u 9t .8 >8 

8. 3%.a an ___.s .65 .328 
___.s mucm§o=m :9: “9.2. 3:053 

mE..o.__:: 55353 329.3 
3 E: 2:02. mbnEmE tm m .5 

.3895 3 E9: 26:... .0: 
___>> ucm Emmagm wwmmm .83 cm 

.20. .65. .5.— Uw>oEQm .0: m. #2: 
E3. cm :0 wucm§o=m :2: mm: 

B .5 >9: u= .20.. :2... 8 nwcmfimm 
coon mm; #6: EwEtOmmm 9.: co 

2:0 wucm§o=m :05 mm: 3:. tmum 

mmUZ<>>O._._< Egon—.2: 



228E... ._ $8.... 

3.3.... cums mu... 85.5.3 52. .8... 8.3.3 mscfiEu. sum .8 5.55.3... “5.53 .35 0 

£9.35 E .22 have 5.; 2 SE... 2.8..mEoSm 2. =5. 8532.... 50.... m 

.53. 59. o. 3...... >..mu.LmEoEm m... =5. one. .59. 
E... «8.... 63...... m... 2.... 5.... .63.... a... mag...» 59. .tmu .50.. o. .2383 53.2.. 5.... at... V 

6.8.39 528...... 352...... .59. EB. “no.3 .Em SEE no. a... :. LcuEtommd. :2. 38.0 m 

6...... a... .a £58 £9. as o... a. 8:93.... 88...... «53.9.. 59. new N 
6...... E .55 a... co «BEE; u... 26...... .2053... am... a Em a. tan: :9. L. .53... 28m a... $8.... 2 Mun—”Hug 

.c. 3.5.... 
.9... E9533 2...: m Em x.m=o.>u._.. 3.59. L. 

.5 .53 
E... 2033...... 2...... a .3 2%.... 

.aoom 9......8 .59. mammmuum 2.39. oz... .9... m... m. a... .. 

.295 ESE: 5.8... .m..aEms. .33.. u... E .553... 59. B =. :m.w r 

"occurs... 50> on... 3 .50... 

.22w SEE... 5..m .mtoEus. $39.. a... 9.2 33...... .Eofiuuw 35.05.. 
:9. 5...: 028$... 533$: uzgfi 3.08. 8 3......8 ._.=o.. gauge... 52. .26..» 8.. .65. 

$5.03 59.. 2 BEE». tam £2. :. 3832.. 
.3 5...... 3:: v.2. 2. =5. 9%... =1 . 

$.32: Eaton a... S 359.... on .2. an... no... 5 =m 
£5. a. 9...... u... .3... =9. 28.... 353m 2.. mains anemia... 59. 0.3 mm ”55:09.2. . 

9:3. 33.29;...» E wmmcmnuxm 8 2.5.2 o: m... ....s 22.» . 

"mus: 

ugh—1m 
mm?— 3.82 E... 3.93 «=3 HE... a... :. Evan... on 3 2. 5.3.2 .3 .38 .52. mom... 8 Ham on 

30.63» .6 3526.... 58...... a 5...... .50.... 2.3% .88. 5.3... .mtoEms. .632... a... “E .unEmE m m< 

.53 

L.- LEufuu..h. I... 

Ne. 
-
—

—
-
—

—
-
—

-
.
.
g

-
 

_
 

.I... 4...: ram... taut. :2...— 

r551 ._ . . __ . can... .c— L. F. i. 2...: - -. 3 

WEEK 
2 Hagan tan .5... 5 33893. 6.. 28...... En: 22. an. _..3 Emu... .3 . 42.39... 62.3 m... .2 3.8.... an. 5.. >5: :9. E ..mEm 

U5 .3... :3 2.82. BEE... 
Eu 3.308 €8.35 50.. 93 mm #255012. 

_ 
.95.. 323.998». “.6 momcmzunu E mEafi. a: an E... 2mg... 

_ ”3.5: 
i 52.92% 

you. new 5.2.. 5.... .m...._. a... a. 3.5.0... on 33 can: .3 EEO 5% mom... 3 mam um 
_ 

_ .858» 
.25.... 85...... a :3... :3... 2.3% .58. 5.8... .mtoEus. 539... u... .o .350... a m... 

.58 

\Hw 

:5 .. _. ._..,......_.... ....u....._.._ a _....r. 

5.0m... EEOEmz 

.wmmoE 

60:55.3... 53:8 8.2% .wEBmsu 
cc... 20.52pm... Ewe. 

.2308... 33.52% 
29232... :2: Lo .CmEEE. m 5.2. 332q 

50> 2939:. mco.umu.::EE8 =m .uwN.E3m:u 

ZO.._.<U_ZD.>:>.OU .>_<~.w0~_n. 



.cosmucfiwgm E326 
._o ucwEtmawu commcmE 3 cwxon on :3 8:33 mo>o_o_Em .EwEo 50> 3.325% 3 EmUEw .23 295m : om 25 

...__....=_.....=..fi.. 
a . _. .oEm: 935395 2.: 5:5 2.259 

W. 
Eh“... . . 

1111.11.11. 5mm 232 >235 ccw 23233 Econ—E... 
I 

4 I. _'I 

.1 .. . R .. . . «It. 
MogoEEw 5.3 3:955 mnEumtmEmnmEaaEm . ,fl.mé._._w.._.‘..___n 

. - . 
n. 62.253 5:5 533:8 3mEE=w ucm 2:: 02mm 

. l'.’ 

.. n... .. _....i._..- lupus?“ 

TI“... 
.-.., I .II. I 

1 yr. 
1.? 

.. 4 .1 

>mm>_._mn_ omN_Z<UmO 



Emm m__m 32q .2: Emu Ema”. 

m mwucm>>0=< 

ELEE: 382a @630 5:32 umcwao 

26s EEO 3.4.:c 33m \ E28 

5 mmgoaem. .835. 3220 __m £83 520 

3% on 32. cm 3% om 
9% OE. 

mZ_._m_S=._. 



aztub 5.23 «2.23% 3:23u 985: 

5393 5.m 3:255. £55.23 

RV 

Ewuémml 
3:522 

EoI 

536 I 

$5020 I._.._<m_IDm_._._ZD 

mmPZmU Addy—Oms— DZd. Agata—mo: “Hmmo w H 

E 9%m 
memm—mrm mmiugwhddmm ombowHo 

HQHGOO 

my 2: . E0582 ABM 

.tmOI =mcgmz :55: 

96.2 haw: . 

5:60 .2232 . 
5300 914 

41—0: 
* 2206mm 242 24m. 

.550c 

9.3m. 3%: . 
@3a =32q 

Moamswmowm 

QMEAAm—Boé 

“Lafififi 
53:30 

.5m m_:_m.__> 
«)4 

mmUm—mumm 



ESmbflEEum E .0856“: oE: m3. ucm tram Lou— bzfim wctmEo vcmamuE 
.. 

mcEEQ mc_u_m_> L8 b=EmEEmE tram 3555. 
. 

mESm cozufimzmm “:3q 3:3: .. 

tflm ‘6“c _mu_vwE mcoEm 225 US wmcwm . 
masgumtm—tm 

L28 ucmb wUmE-EBm:u 
E $3530 mmflzz .. 

630550 3 332.2 EEMPE E325. 
omo. fits mELEE: 3.8328 .525 mucoEtmawu om “mmfl um E mmm>o_QEw ooo.m 

can... 822 . Ecumsu cuts :o_uum..—m_umm NEED—wa- 

ging “Em ammE_ 6:95 mo>oEE_ 
856; L355 .352: uwmmn.>u_m._u>_cn 

.mmw>o_QEw o... 253% mELou—E: 25m 8 mcosao @9520 co_umuo_-:_:E .mnsbmtmEm om: . 

Eton Egon—E: 88mg mnzbmtmEm 9: :o mELBE: :05 .220 8 mwm>o_QEm wEmcm. . 

23m ncm L28 .mmfi Ecumsu m. 33b 8 mnsbmtmEm \SEEm . 

E28 vcm mmtsm co 30> o... www>o_QEm >>o=m new 265m coEmE m 20... 
o 

tSm 5:5 3.:m 533m corumufismm Emzma Emcm .. 

boEEnEw owe. Ecumzu 53> £2o Eats: 33:28 m EEtE . 

Ears—om 
mama: Ecumzu “~m 8 2%.. 53:2. m BE”. o 

E439 tfim Ema 
. 

539333 “:2q 989:. o 

3332:: 8:30:97283 m #0 mafia EOE mms .0:a m “comma; .. 
>D DIFW m W<U 

mamco=msu 



1...! 
- l - . "  
I 

‘3 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Heal th 

' ‘1 . - r  
J I ' I  " 1  

“—1-. I 

Group Uniforms Powered by 

SmartScrubs 

SmartScrubs # Vendor # Description Price 
71375 WW665 Ladies V—Neck Top $13.98 
71455 WW655 Ladies Mock Wrap Top $14.98 
71443 WW340 Ladies Snap Front Warm-up Jacket $18.98 
71506 WW050 Ladies Natural Rise Tapered Leg Drawstring Pant $15.98 
71180 WW160 Ladies Mid Rise Straight Leg Drawstring Pant $16.98 
71171 WW170 Ladies Mid Rise Straight Leg Pull-on Cargo Pant $15.98 
71536 WW685 Ladies Maternity Mock Wrap Top $23.98 
71535 WW220 Ladies Maternity Straight Leg Pant $23.98 
71376 WW675 Men's 1-Pccket V-Neck Top $15.98 
71359 WW695 Men's 3-Pocket V-Neck Top $16.98 

71359T WW695T Men's 3—Pocket V-Neck Top— TALL $18.98 
71407 WW700 Men's Underscrub Knit Top (Tee) $13.98 
71460 WW360 Men's Snap Front Warm-up Jacket $19.98 
71490 WW190 Men's Tapered Leg Drawstring Cargo Pant $19.98 

If“? o‘fieapigeew 1.31.332: - fit; 
Vendor # 

—'il' |4r 

SmartScrubs # Description 
71363 WW620 Ladies V—Neck Top $15.98 
71364 WW610 Ladies Mock Wrap Top $16.98 
71797 WW710 Ladies V—Neck Top w! Princess Seams $17.98 
71244 WW602 Ladies Round Neck Top $18.98 
71365 WW310 Ladies Snap Front Warm-up Jacket $19.98 
71367 WW110 Ladies Mid Rise Pull-on Cargo Pant $17.98 
71368 WW120 Ladies Mid Rise Drawstring Cargo Pant $18.98 
71405 WW105 Ladies Mid Rise Tapered Leg Drawstring Pant $18.98 
71248 WW011 Ladies Natural Rise Tapered Leg Pull-on Pant $22.98 
71344 WW005 Ladies Mid Rise Straight Leg Drawstring Pant $23.98 
71366 WW690 Men's 1-Pocket V—Neck Top $17.98 
71671 WW670 Men's 3-Pocket V-Neck Top $18.98 
71379 WW380 Men's Snap Front Warm—Up Jacket $22.98 
71798 WW320 Men's Zip Front Jacket $26.98 
71369 WW140 Men's Fly Front Drawstring Cargo Pant $21.98 
71257 WW012 Men's Natural Rise Straight Legflnt $23.98 

Scrubs: Add $2 for sizes 2X-5X. Career Apparel: Add $2 for sizes 2X—3X, $4 for sizes 4X-5X. $6 for 6X. 
Add $3.50 for embroidery on all tops and jackets. Prices do not include tax or shipping. 



Group Uniforms Powered by {‘3 Prosser 
‘ 9 ’  Memorial Health s m a r t s c m b s  

SmartScrubs # Vendor # Description ___ —Pr4?é—:_—_' 
71006 2624A Ladies Round Neck Top $22.98 
71007 2625A Ladies Mock Wrap Top $23.98 
71151 CK623A Ladies V-Neck Top $24.98 
71354 CK865A Ladies Rib-Knit Neckline V-Neck Top $23.98 
71008 2626A Ladies Long Sleeve Underscrub Knit Tee $16.98 
71837 CK370A Ladies Zip Front Wann-Up Jacket $29.98 
71009 2391A Ladies Rib Knit Collar Zip Front Warm-Up Jacket $28.98 
71358 CK065A Ladies Mid Rise Tapered Leg Pull-on Pant $27.98 
71023 1123A Ladies Low-Rise Drawstring Pant $26.98 
71024 1124A Ladies Low-Rise Pull-On Pant $24.98 

71136A CK110A Ladies Mid Rise Tapered Leg Jogger Pant $27.98 
71991 CK910A Men's Zip Chest Pocket V-Neck Top $25.98 
71152 CK900A Men's V-Neck Top $25.98 
71465 CK650A Men's Long Sleeve Underscrub Knit Top $19.98 
71153 CK305A Men's Zip Front Warm-up Jacket $33.98 
71157 CK200A Men's Fly Front Pant $29.98 
71674 CK004A Men's Natural Rise Jogger Pant $31.98 

SmartScrubs # Vendor # Description _' Pfice— —_ 
71346 1346 Cherokee Unisex 40" $17.98 
71446 1446 Cherokee Unisex 40" - w/ Soil Release $18.98 
71440 4403 Cherokee Workwear Premium Unisex Lab Coat - 38" $28.98 
49476 15113 Meta Ladies 37" - Performance Poplin $17.98 

4947GT 15113T Meta Ladies 37" - Performance Poplin - Tall $19.98 
49964 1964 Meta Ladies 37" - Fine Line Twill $26.98 

49964T 1964T Meta Ladies 37" - Fine Line Twill - Tall $27.98 
49593 17010 Meta Ladies 39" w! Nano-Care $29.98 
48004 885 Meta Pro Ladies 35" Tri-Blend Stretch Lab Coat $31.98 
71439 4439 Cherokee Workwear Premium Ladies Lab Coat — 33" $26.98 
71378 1401A Infinity by Cherokee Ladies Antimicrobial Lab Coat - 40" $28.98 
49590 17020 Meta Men's 40" w/ Nana-Care $30.98 
49467 1963 Meta Men's 38" - Fine Line Twill $26.98 

49467T 1963T Meta Men's 38" - Fine Line Twill - Tall $30.98 
49483 15112 Meta Men's 38" - Performance Poplin $17.98 

49483T 15112T Meta Men's 38" - Performance Poplin - Tall $19.98 
47069 762 Meta Men's 40" Knot Button iPad Lab Coat $30.98 

.. _ I  1'" ._ ‘ i i i ' i ’ :  _ = . - .  

SmartScrubs # Vendor # Description Price" 
74488 LST640 Sport-Tek Ladies PosiCharge RacerMesh Polo $11.98 
74500 L500 Port Authority Ladies Silk Touch Polo $13.98 
74767 LK600 Port Authority Ladies EZPerformance Pique Polo $14.98 
74748 L568 Port Authority Ladies Cotton Touch Performance Polo $18.98 
74489 ST640 Sport-Tek Men's PosiCharge RacerMesh Polo $11.98 
74504 K500 Port Authority Men's Silk Touch Polo $13.98 
74806 K600 Port Authority Men's EZPerformance Pique Polo $14.98 
TBD K568 Port Authority Men's Cotton Touch Performance Polo $18.98 

Scrubs: Add $2 for sizes 2X—5X. Career Apparel: Add $2 for sizes 2X-3X, $4 for sizes 4X—5X, $6 for 6X. 
Add $3.50 for embroidery on all tops and jackets. Prices do not include tax or shipping. 



r , ‘  . Group Uniforms Powered by 1.} £832.? SmartScrubs' 
SmartScrubs # Vendor # 

7 Ladies 3/4 
LW1 

SmartScrubs # Vendor # 
74897 

7 Stretch 

Garment 

SmartScrubs # 
74853 Ladies Color Block Tunic 
74867 Men's Color Block Service Shirt 
74956 Ladies Pull On Pant 
74989 Unisex Pant with Pocket 

:. - i .3- rs: "Tail-66‘ _ 
SmartScrubs # Vendor# Description i . Price" 

49928 3301 Edwards Garment Unisex Classic 10-Button Chef Coat $22.98 
74883 2000 Edwards Garment Unisex Basic Baggy Chef Pant $22.98 
74933 HT04 Edwards Garmet Unisex Beanie Chef Cap - Velcro Back $6.98 

74929(BLACK) 3331 Edwards Unisex 12 Button Short Sleeve Chef Coat With Mesh $25.98 
74929(WH|TE) 3331 Edwards Unisex 12 Button Short Sleeve Chef Coat With Mesh $22.98 

74931 9008 Edwards 1-Pocket Longflstro Apron $9.98 
74924 1305 Edwards Unisex Button Front Shirt with Mesh Back $14.98 

74923(BLACK) 1302 Edwards Unisex Snap Front Shirt with Mesh Back $14.98 
74923(WH|TE) 1302 Edwards Unisex Snap Front Shirt with Mesh Back $12.98 

I - ' .  f. 

SmartScrubs # 
74524 Men's Short Sleeve Industrial Work Shirt 
TBD Short Sleeve Solid Shirt 

74540 Men's Industrial Work Pant 
74579 Men's Industrial Pant 

Scrubs: Add $2 for sizes 2x—5x. Career Apparel: Add $2 for sizes 2X-3X, $4 for sizes 4X-5X, $6 for 6X. 
Add $3.50 for embroidery on all tops and jackets. Prices do not include tax or shipping. 



Attachment 2 

AFTON DUNHAM 
99802 Hillview Drive Kennewiclg. WA 99338 (509) 528-5888 aftv13_ball@hotmail.com 

Family Nurse Practitioner (FN P) 
Completion May 2019 

o A passionate, enthusiastic Nurse Practitioner that is committed to patient-centered care 
and evidence-based practice. Over 10 years of practice as a registered nurse in the 
Emergency Department setting taking on various leadership opportunities. Competent in 
executing department standards of practice and health care operations. I thrive in team 
environments that are fast paced, that require efficient planning, critical thinking, and 
rapid decision-making skills. 

QUALIFICATIONS 

0 Emergency Medicine 0 Provider Collaboration/Communication 
0 Patient Education and Safety 0 Clinical Preceptor 
- Holistic, Patient-Centered Care 0 Process Improvements 
0 Team Leadership 

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATIONS 
- Maryville University, Masters FNP program, St. Louis, MO present 

*clinical experience available upon request* 
0 ACLS, BLS, PALS certifications, KRMC Tri-Cities, WA 2020 
0 Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Training 2016 
0 Certified Emergency Nursing certification 2015 
0 Advanced Trauma Care Nursing certification 2015 
0 Western Governors University, BSN program 2014 — 2015 
0 Columbia Basin College, Tri-Cities, WA 2007 —— 2011 

Associates Degree in Nursing 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Prosser Memorial Health, Prosser, WA 2019 — current 

0 Registered Nurse: Emergency Department 
Trios Health, Kennewick, WA 2019 — current 

0 Registered Nurse: Emergency Department 
Kadlec Regional Medical Center, Richland, WA 2011 — 2019 

a Registered Nurse: Emergency Department 
Kadlec Regional Medical Center, Richland, WA 2009 — 2011 

0 Nurse Tech Licensure: able to perform all skills that have been signed 
off in CBC nursing school 

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE & COMMITTEE INVOLVEMENT 
0 Member of Sexual Assault Committee, KRMC Richland, WA 2017 — 2019 
0 Member of Caring Reliably Committee, KRMC Richland, WA 2017 — 2019 
0 Member of ED Sepsis Taskforce, KRMC Richland, WA 2017 —— 2019 
0 Member of Kadlec Sepsis Committee, KRMC Richland, WA 2016 — 2019 
0 Rapid Performance Improvement Team (RPI), KRMC Richland, WA 2016 — 2019 
0 City of Richland Youth Basketball 4th & 5th Grade girls 2009 — 2010 



Attachment AA 

(:bProsser 
Memorial  Health 

Medical Staff Engagement and Retention Plan 

2020 



GOAH 

To create a homogeneous, dynamic and adaptive culture, based on our Mission, Vision and Values, with 
a solid foundation centered on our six pillars of excellence to increase medical staff satisfaction and 
retention. 

This plan will be guided by the Medical Staff Engagement Team with evidence based, successful 
strategies to promote teamwork, collaboration, leadership, and problem solving to promote Medical 
Staff satisfaction and retention. All Medical Staff are encouraged to participate in this plan. It will 
consider state of the art technology to allow us to provide the highest quality of care in a respectful and 
timely manner. Considering the medical provider as a valued and indispensable part of team. It will 
promote a transparent process with provider wellness and work and life balance. 

The Chief Medical Officers will be role models of excellence for the medical staff. 

DEFINITIONS: 

Culture of Wellness: Organizational work environment, values, and behaviors that promote self-care, 
personal and professional growth and compassion for our colleagues, our patients and ourselves. 

Efficiency of Practice: Workplace systems, processes, and practices that promote safety, quality, 
effectiveness, positive patient and colleague interactions, and work-life balance. 

Personal Resilience: Individual skills, behaviors, and attitudes that contribute to physical, emotional, 
and professional well-being. 

PLAN: 

Provider Code of Conduct- 

Define the idea! Physician Qualities (Confident, personal, respectful, thorough, humane, 
empathetic and forthright}. Reflect our current Mission, Vision and Values, with emphasis on 
cultural, gender, transgenerational and religious sensitivity. With specific attention to avoidance 
of bullying, harassment of any kind and to deter any behavior that can create internal or 
external damage to our organization. To promote transparency, error prevention, and fluidity of 
our patient care. To encourage scientific excellence and camaraderie. 

New Provider On-boarding- 

Onboarding is as systemic process with the goal of achieving an excellent fit for both the 
provider and organization. It promotes a better understanding of our culture, mission, vision 
and values, and cultivates long-term relationship building, access to information, and fosters a 
feeling of belonging. 



Have a Buddy— A buddy is someone to help the provider to get to know the culture PMH. This 
person can be from a different department and will help acclimate over the next year to social 
activities of our organization, makes new providers feel welcome and promote cohesiveness 
across departments within PMH. 

Have a Mentor- A peer that will help navigate the job processes and procedures. 

Check-Ins- Conduct integration meetings with HR, hiring director and buddy. Coaching and 
support should be ongoing until onboarding is accomplished. 

Check in timeline: 

HR Buddy Mentor Clinic Director 

I First Day a Introduces Buddy o Gives tour In Meet provider 
in HR, review 0 Complete HR 0 Introduces to staff . . 

. . p05ition, 
orientation , . . 0 Lunch With overVIew of first 
0 Lunch with provider 30-90 days. 

ro 'der 
p w i Lunch with 

provider 

I First Week I Follow up with o Introduces I Meet with 
provider, answer provider to team provider 
questions. members 

0 Set up weekly 
0 Invite to social meetings 
activities of PMH. 

First Three Months 0 Touch basis on i Continues 0 Track progress 
provider integrating into 

. . . . . . 0 Set up monthly acclimation and somal actiwties , 
meetings engagement. 

Beyond Three 0 Seeks feedback 0 Support provider 0 Available for I Conduct Stay 
Months on onboarding for yearly cycle to occasional Interview 

process ensure provider feels questions . 
o Prowde welcome and f 

supported. per ormance 
feed back 



Orientation to our community and area of service, fostering involvement and altruism to 
enhance and strengthen our community ties. 

Provider Mentorship Program- 

To develop and initiate regular ongoing educational programs about the culture and philosophy 
of the clinical area and organization, electronic medical record (EPIC) maintenance and 
development. Regular continued medical, clinical and leadership skills related luncheons and 
meetings. Regular training and understanding of their work area flow and process. Vignettes and 
mock drills. 

Identify future leaders and get them involved. Encourage participation and offer career 
development opportunities. 

Provider Satisfaction Survey- 

Completed annually by all members of the medical staff. Assess engagement of medical staff, 
gives them a voice, and gives leadership tangibles for change/ improvement. 

Physician Rounding- 

Build trust, increase communication, recognition of others. Leadership team will identify and 
appoint mentors (i.e.: Clinic Medical Director, Chief Medical Officers, Department Directors, 
etc.). 

Physician Stay Interviews- 

Informal interviews that offer understanding on why provider will stay and what might cause 
them to leave, builds trust between leadership and provider, and improves retention and 
productivity. How provider views leadership impacts how they view their employment 
relationship. Create a stay plan from interview responses. 

Typical Questions: 

Why do you choose to stay at Prosser Memorial Health? 
Why might you leave or what may entice you away? 
What is most energizing about your work? 
What more do you want to learn? 
Are we fully utilizing your talents? 
What are your career goals? 



What, if anything, is inhibiting your success? 
Where can we support you more? 
How do you like to be recognized? 
What can the organization do to support you better? 

Medical Staff Socials- 

Build camaraderie, trust and communication between medical staff. 

Physician Recognition- 

Utilize ASPIRE recognition program to celebrate success, accomplishments and reward excellent 
performance. 

Provider Wellness Program— 

To encourage a healthy and balanced lifestyle. Identify risk factors for provider burnout 
(caregiver fatigue) such as substance abuse and provider mental problems. Promote access to 
fitness and wellness programs, including a Physician Support group. 

Provider Service Excellence- 

Utilize Prosser Memorial Health Service Recovery program. 

Medical Staff Engagement Team Retention Assessment- 

Does anyone in the community relate to the provider on a personal level? 
Does the provider feel there is emotional support from partners and the community? 
Are the provider’s family and partner included in social events? 
Is the family happy- do they have a sense of belonging to the community? 
Can the provider find adequate time for family and recreation? 
Are there any unmet expectations and are the original contract terms being met? 
Are referral patterns established and appropriate? 
Does the community utilize the provider’ 5 scope of services fully? 
Do on-call providers need additional professional support or professional enrichment? 
Does the provider have a retirement plan? 



Vision P".  Values 
Patients P )  P r 0  8 S e r Accountability 
EmP'Wees L i  M e m o r i  c: I H e c: I t  h Semi“? 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services ‘ _ Respect 
Financial MISSIOH: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

Medical Staff Engagement Team 

Purpose 

This team is responsible for ensuring that the highest level of service is consistently provided to Medical Staff, and for 
developing ideas to continually improve that service. The team shall align and promote our Mission, Vision and Values, along 
with the six pillars of excellence; Patient Loyalty; Medical Staff Development; Employee Development; Quality; Services; and 
Financial Stewardship. The team will identify what Medical Staff needs are and remove barriers to establish a strong cohesive 
work force. We want our Medical Staff to be exceptionally pleased with every encounter at PM H. The team will focus on 
retention and recruitment strategies to support the needs and longevity of the Medical Staff within PMH and our service area. 
Medical Staff Engagement Team will commit to: Transparency, Innovation, Healthy Workplace, Individual Health and 
Teamwork. 

Medical Staff Engagement Team will identify: 
A) Medical Staff satisfaction barriers. 
B) PMH “dynamic cultural standards" which make an excellent and desirable place to practice. 
C) Strategies to create wellness, collegiality and excellence with physician development. 
D) Training tools needed to provide excellent care. 
E) Provider recognition program to recognize contributions within Prosser Memorial Health 

Functions 
0 Participate in recruitment efforts based on the PMH Medical Staff Model and community needs assessment. 
0 Develop a Physician retention plan which includes work/life balance, competitive income, workplace excellence and 

collegiality in a progressive medical community. 
0 Review results of Medical Staff engagement survey, create action plans around opportunities for improvement. Make 

recommendations to the Administrative Team, Board Members and CEO to accomplish provider satisfaction and 
retention. 

0 Promote the PMH Medical Staff through a variety of marketing methods, as outlined in the 2018 Marketing Plan. 
Integrate the four core concepts of Patient- Family Centered Care into every aspect of care provided at PMH Medical 
Center; Respect and Dignity, Information Sharing, Participation and Collaboration. 
Develop a new provider onboarding and mentoring process. 
Develop a Physician wellness program. 
Develop a Physician rounding process. 
Develop Medical Staff led educational seminars and luncheons with CME quality and value. 
Enhance recognition and appreciation of the Medical Staff. 
Work with IT to develop EPIC specific training tailored for Medical Staff needs and desires. 

Report Frequency and Format 
The Medical Staff Engagement Team will document minutes of meetings and report summary level items to the Leadership 
Team or appropriate committees as determined by Administration. 

Frequency and Time 
The Medical Staff Engagement Team will meet monthly on a Friday from 7:00 AM- 8:00 AM to include small focus groups with 
Providers. The team allows teleconferencing to enhance participation, although, physical presence will be encouraged. 



Vision A"... P Values 
Patients ‘d ‘ r O S S e r Accountability 
EmP'c’Yees Memori  GI Health Semi“ 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services _ _ Respect 
Financial MlSSion: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

Procedure 
M W  [latest edition) shall govern procedures at the committee meetings. 

Quorum 
The presence in person of at least fifty percent (50%] of the committee members shall be necessary to constitute a quorum 
for committee transition of business. In the absence of such a quorum, any meeting may be adjourned from time to time by a 
majority vote of present members. 

Voting 
Questions at the committee meeting at which a quorum is present shall be decided by majority vote of the team members. 
Team members shall not appoint a proxy or vote via proxy. 

2020 Medical Staff Team Members (proposed) 
Dr. Jacobo Rivera — ACMO, Engagement 
Dr. Sandeep Joshi 
Dr. Caroline O’Connor 
Dr. Heidi Weaver 
Dr. Derek Weaver 
Ryan McDonald CRNA 
Pamela Morris ARN P 
Diane Microlis, APNP 
Merry B Fuller, Chief Nursing OfficerfChief Operations Officer 
Rochelle Kmetz — Chief Human Resources Officer 
Shannon Hitchcock — Chief Communication Officer 
Kevin Hardiek — Chief Information Officer 
Lynn Smith — Medical Staff Services 
Alana Pumphrey — Director of Clinic Operations 
Christi A Doornink — Osborn — ED DirectorIProvider Recruitment 



2m ~m ‘Eofiogcehgo EEU 
_ 

F 0.22 Edi d: 5522 2.82 

-‘ . 
_ 

5395 corcwumm R 
. 

ucm mmmc=25 36.39;. 



"Lt-UNI fiflEGEwi 1‘ 

530%... «L 

2223 . 
505$.a . 

$223 .528 3553955 . 
:o_E:..m__u >__Emu_ . 

SEE—um. Ucm 33% min tam _or_0u_< . 
$553 tfim Ucm :m_u_m>;o_ Ecmf . 

m: 
moEumEEE vcm v.38 Etm _mu__umE E; E . 
52mg Emu Ucm corumuszmm #:2m $26.. . 

mmucmzcmmcou 

EwEtmag .9329. Qmwfi . 
COEmNQEOudP—mm 2,0.— .. 

3055 U5 mycmEEEpwo pmwmcobm 

cozmsmcxm _mu_m>_._n_ 
EmMmmcm . 

mmmEEo EcoEoEm 
BSU< 23:22 nmtE: 

mEoEE>m 

.cormbmsc .5 $95 Ewan—En 95 
3 . _ a. 3.. m >=mam= cor—wasp: .5 zumcmbm .mcozoEw ._o 32.3% “to cormsmcxm "H30 : L 3 m 



. .__ . 
...Il._ 
. I III - Ir... ._ I... —. — 

.1. 1.1....1'rrqlllnifnli 
.‘lq‘fllrnflvtu 

‘il. .ll‘l «If. 
LufJ.lTafl.fil-I. 
5.”. n . .. an... l.| . .. u. u L .._I ._ ... 

F... 1.5.1... (If... .r...4_.:..._... 
. 

. .1... .. ".n a I....___ 
. ...-IHI 

.I.r.r...._p . .n ..u I 

H... 

I. _.. 
I II . 

.. H. 
. 

.. .I..-.... +.- -..1. 
-LMML... 

.- . . -r. .. I.........1.nn...... rffllxwmnhj 
.41.] w. . ._._ .. v......._¢._..-1.......1..r..... .. M... 

. . . _. . 

..u. 

_... 

r. .q. 

.. 
._ .—..— 

I: 
_. _ a 

”1......1... 
......L_..fl .23....» a... 

.2... ...L. 
on...” I...l 

.r 
(HI—I. 

33.”.m 3km: =¢ 33.52:: 
E Eecfim 323 we. .5 $33.; .6 E95 Sow “@238 

. 

.__m.o0_>_ mmm 2.355 DION—25h t . 

355mg 
.accmfim 

555%.. 
Eccmmfiei 

toga: :3 

52.5 $05.25 :m_u_m>_._n_ @HON 



5305 «U 

EwE=EE 
_mco_mmwu_oLQ twtoamh 

.KSV .. 
505:2 mEucwtxm nxwwm . 

>=mcozmz . 

23> N E55; COEmNEmmLo 
mcsmg E 82:93 x? . 

EwE=EE 
_mco_mmwu55 nwtoawm “Kim . 

50:53 mEucwtxm xmq . 

39m copmcfmmz, . 

murmsmum >w>._:m 



gram: 5:050: ‘1‘, 

LOmwn— fax 

33:: EB tmum E239: :wméuwn m>sumtm fl cosmuEzEEou . 
88 3.: 265m 205% cosmbflEEUa‘ 

:55 53> 2520328 Emtsu 5:5 Umcmzmm 
musuma B mumE @006 

3:25 no“ m m_ cozuflmsmm Emsmm 
53mm: U5 _m>m_ LEI 

:35 Us >w>_>_ ES, #552? . 
6mm? 2329mm tSm _mu__ow_>_ . 

cozumfizmtsm ESE x98 . cofimgmmtsm 3282 fig . 
mHON . mfiom .. 

corumu—mrmm mmam .3:q 5.m _m_._oEm_>_ Emmoi 



crow: EcoEmf ‘1' mmOLn. .FK 

EmEmmwmm< :03:m Emmb EmEmmmmcm tfim .8:q . 
mucmzwuxm 83m $3395 . 
EEmoE mmw:=w>> 525E . 

coEcmoUmm :m_u_m>;n_ . 
228m tm 28:52 . 

mcficsom $3395 . 
533m cozuflmzmm .5338; . 

EEmoE 2:33:22 $3395 . 
mEEmonéO . 

Uzucou v5 280 . 

.EEJEEOU ccm cosEmmE US £39m 933 
Ucm mmmcmfi B :30 m5 ___>> Er: EEmoE 83:38 vcm 83.63 m :mfiwo . 

:mE 205551 .25 EmEmmmmcm tan—w .8522 



55mm .DEOEmF 

5395 
x?“ 

' 

EmEfiEuwm Eggabofimho am 5030255000 EEC . 

:2m30 _mu_c__u 3585 SmEQEE mam? . 

mqwm imam E335. .ctEm :5: . 

EUEO cosmELEE EEU £32m: :_>mv_ . 

EUEO cozmuEsEEou EEU £00535 coccmcm . 

EuEO 38:83 5:51 ”EEO 
~NEEv. wzwcuom . 

EuEO mcufiwao “—mEUbqO @552 3:5 5:3 352 . 

..._Zm_< .m__o‘_u__>_ 6:20 . 

mzm< KESE EwEmm . 

.25 .2980: cm? . 
Lm>mm>> Em: 

.5 . 

5:890 3:960 .5 . 

Emoq 33:3 
.5 . 

$q .8522 v.26 Pcfimfima‘ 
.EmSE 0382 

.5 . 

emaEwS. Emma. cNON 

Emmy 2: £2 EQEO E285. EEU Emumfimd‘ 23% $3530.; . 

$38q 0... imam _B:wEtmnwEmE_ 33:. . 

EmEuEmg B “—055 _mu_tmE 99.: ESE . 
«Saw... $0365 .25 mEucmEqUmE... . 

mam—u. can auction . 

mcficzE $3395. Emfificou . 
mEEmonéo . 

mEEEmE 536$ . 
$3m ELEQE Emu—mmcou . 

mmwcw=mcu . 

mcozaow can mmmcw=wsu oNON 

Emfl. EwEmwwmcm imam _mu_um_>_ 





many .HoomHmN 0M5; 
65m m3 6060; mo_ 

L3 UmmmHm 
hfiam 

bfiemmom 5:o 
Etoaoz .6395 Win... “NA 

A 
0.3m $95083 

a Monmmfi .30a 

mm EuEfimtd 



£5.53 23E sou—can Egg fl. :0q _ "3025 

N 
(H 

mofiEzwm m>=m>._mmcoo 
9-9500 

mEEz cam mgmoo mcozogwcoo 
Ema EmEzaoE cm_o_m>cn_ 

80:20 9:29 65m $3303 252 
m9“: cozwcs 

wcoqzmw< >mv_ . 

303.5k 



35:583. 23.... unfit-u 3% fl :OuwcCN _ mag—a 
m 

(H 

Em: :o :30 £80 
ozwm 099.050 mo_>._mm Boo 

w::w>ww_ mo_>._wm E33 52 
:o=_mon_ 

EZ :_ 30:20 Em 
.wmw:mn_xm_ .wm::m>mm_ u_o mEmEBEw 

:o=_mon_ H02 ho 35::m . 
mozmm ccw wEwEEEm _m_o:m:_u_ 5890; . 

Boguokwo 



3.5.882 uni... air—nu fiwEUommc a 592.5 _ 3025 

.V I. 



55583. 2......— unit-u 3.... $5.53". a cauwcfi _ 3625 
m (NU 

wmwmfl Ucw Emu—C0; LO..— mwwmgop‘: Qoo . 

momcoaxm EEO Ucm 653:8 68935 .8250: cam mm .mocwcoEEE Ucm 9:89 5“— wwmmobE mmcmaxo fisccm Axum . 
3:38 @3295 Lou. $3205 0833 fizccw “xiv . 

8m cam wmtmfiw Lo“— wmwoE wwcwaxm fisccw o\om.m . 
8E5: 

ncw 
.mEESmomEfica £2.33 203:5 

.322m 332050. .30.. 6853965 B“— womwohoE mwcogxm _m::cm 05m .. 
wmwmmzoE 2.2 $9.20 fisccm o\om . 

mote co=m=£ . 

maofimasmmaw KnoM 



35583 33.5 Eaton EdwEUOmmC fl SuwCCN _ $023 

w 
{IE 

220305 E 33205 was. £265 cozmfiaoa 

53> E05680 @322: B m:_o> EmEtmn Ew___oc< 

go :5 $3 .58 0E0 Saginaw 

$0 $2 3% :2“ 0E6 Emam 

$0 9% “as“ $0 0mm 53q 
.xm :2 gm :3 05 ESE 

3m :3 § § 32 56 830m 

$8 Rom Nam 38 

$326.. mm 3885 2 m:w_> 25.0 
98305 26: 89: Lou. vofimEzmo 03:99 Ucm motflmw 

rNON 6cm ONON 
5 $9: Us 2 5? .mm 

9: Em .5..c 
58823: 9: 

.256 
>593 05 6011 9: E 825 9:03 @0255 Em: mm . 

mmmcmco 0E:_o> cam 95330.5 262 . 

Afiosataoov maotmasmmdw hum 



3H.._..a......=.__uon":a... 
Immouwcfi _ 3025 

x. 
(H 

I l l I I 
my 

I 
flIII 

I l I 
“331% #:mu Emflmam :2.“ a n _ 

fiwufifla 2.54. 
559%“— Eg—flm 5..“ . .|III IIIIIII I II I .. 

I'll we“... 
'. II“I :HMIWI‘ -I. 'I 

I Jgaa a... 
_-IIII Elfin“ 

“ * IIII 
lHI ill ,al I III III III.. . 1w... “Saga“ 

xufihunai a..." 3.9““. ”:53. iwgaemfiafifi E3... 3.5.3...“ ad 
Erik—wan: Hungarian =5; 3.. msgufiifis “in. iii"... I .I II M - n .I. h . I - . . 

Essa .02. an BENT- Ecougficwumme.“ 32. 
“Wang: fimoiflégfiaaem E3232 E_fii_£.§aafifia knoafiaafim £53393 

§_§§un 350 fine.“ 
.559: 25a Banana :5: 
Eigfia u.:__u E525 :2.“ 

m . n . E 3.333%; I as 5% In. . El. I 
Ens...“ . . . A22... ”Eu caimfiécasrufiuaaea “gag £35.25: #25 339.“. ad 

3.3.55; 255 $32.95 3“ . 
an xii 255 asaEflu 3 

“i. 
m. I __ n g #3“. egg QM 

$3.35.. REE games . a 
ham” 355 £33325 3 

«in... I Fugue. #33... Eng—ES: Eamon“... 
_ 

a.“ 
, 

II...“ 
.wsumufilflmwum 

I.” 
1 

Il . III .I 
mfir 

I 11" 
I 

l . . I l.[ 

Ema E95569 :m_o_w>:n_ . 

6055303 maomumEDmm< %0M 



3:55.301 ".3...- taint—un— EmUOmmc a :9c _ .3025 

w (E 

8o @5253 I vmom bmzcmw . 
5202550 I 38 LmnEwomo I NNON Emscmw . 

cozosbwcooéa .cosmeaqm <ow: I FNON LwnEmomQ I 262 . 
”w:__oE_._. 

$m.m 
- m .6 $6.. 5925 E 263 

96:3 .650 vcm <om: E0: 8:38 
9: 

.3283 9:3 8.. ooodofi E mEoE 52:55:00 
358 59c 08.85; 

59858 .358 59: 80.03% 5225 85558 he ooo.ooo.ma Em 623x: .25 EoEqm Lou, ooodomdw mEoE 
.380 =82 ooo.m 5.8a mEE: vcm Emoo cozosbmcoo . 

30:53:08 maotmasmmmw %0M 



fifiagnfia 1.55“. sEUOmmc a cOuwcCN _ .3025 

a (E 

300:0 Emu vmmmcmE 2862): 385 «Now co 59% 80.03. a .98t 28:85: 
9:85 omom :0 833 000.000. 5 I tone 500 28622 :0 

mflmoo fiEmmw Howto me ___>> cmo_ E9095 cozomfioa xomcgmm 
ooodmmdw - E9021 53090.5. xomcgmm . 

0863a - £520 .650 . 
ooodomfiw - 205E Emumu wII . 

mcmo._ Ucm 3:90 
mcozmcmqo RES: 8 ESP. I (.mnEmomQ 

_wE._oc 9 539 33.8.5 
I BnEm>oz I mcsw 

m:_o> 2,2 I 32 I Eq< 
2-0500 . 

Afiosamuaoov waofimasmfia REM 



3:52:83. one... vast-u HawEUOmmc .w cOuwcmfi _ "302—0 
2 (H 

magma. E950 :9: .659: $6 o\om.m - m u_o more 592:. . 
$8.65 2m. $920 Esccm Axum mD . 

Lootm b___omv_ 39... 5h— umEsmwm 5265 9:29 02 . 
$59.38 02520300 _. 

Avosatcoov msg#35534 REM 



55583. 23.: 3.5.6 3.... 5.50%: a cOuwc _ "5025 
E‘ 

mEoafim 
Emocwfim 

ammooHom 



Isaiag 9.3.... unit-u EwEUOmmc a $8c _ £625 

N_. 

8:68.83 8 8848.2: 8 88.88.: 8 8868.8 83.3.8 8 858.8 8 5.88.8 a 85.388 38% 33. 

88.3.8 
888.8 88.83% 8883*. 88.8.8 8188.3 88.3.8 5... 3.8 

33$ 89588 83 
88.3.8 838.: 

88.83. 
88.83“ 

88.88— Shina 88.23; 888.2 Haggaifi. no 
- 88.8 8c - 88.; 

83am - - 888 805° 88.3385 
385 - 88.: 88.8 88.8 

88.3 2%: $82 - “83>? 385 
83 8.8 8.8.8 8888.: 8888.2 

8888.2 5.88.: 
833$ - 88883 E80 8 a: 2 a 828: 3888:: 

83.8 83.8. 83.8 884.8 88.28 
eagm - 388 808882880 

5m “nofiouuwm fine...— 
3 @838 8 man—sang :80 ES :30 

88.83 83.8; 88.8“; 888$ 88.8“; 688; 8.32; “8.88.: 
88888 Egg 5 a: 2 8 BE 80888 fig 8“ 85 

5936 utwhfiutoz 

8888.8 8888.8 8288.2 8858.8 83.8.: 838.2 momma: awash: $33 House 38. 
88.8» 88.88 838 80.3. 88.nl8 

83.88 Ewan :58 m... no ._ 95 
88.: 88.8 88.8: 832 88.8“ 888 8mg - $0885 838$ 
88.5. 88.3. 833 88...? 88.8 $8.3 83.8 «.8. an “8235 
88.8 88.8 88.8 888 88.8 “8.88 88.8. $8. E 5:5 
88.8 .. 88.8 .. 886m ._ 88.8 88.8 88.8 83m 3..m 
mead. 

- - - - - - 88.8.8 
388 588288 “88 €8.35 8288mm 

8888.2 88.88_ 88.83 
88.8q 885$ 88.382 8988 8843.8 

8588 280885 é 383% ms. 
.885; 

”mu—SEOODM 

88.8.“ 88.8.. 88.88. 88.88 88.3 83.9. 838 - 38583 
A8886 8. 8a.: a,“ a 88.8% a 88.88 88.3.8 88.: w a 88.88 a 838.“ 
“83380 is Ea 85 

E366 “R9230 

38 m8" «8" :8 88 28 88 :8 @553. 53% nae? .30? .50.? .53.? 53* 53* .53? 

Has”. 0.- OH a an“. 39h a mac ouch «use 39% a man ouch fiaw—Q—fifl 13m.- 33: Enum- 3mm: 

wean—5:0 wean—E50 

coflmmom 32 mo muaoaoufim 



€5.53 33.... tau—tau EmUOmm: w :9c _ 3025 

Mr 
(I 

88.828 8 838.8. a 88.88.: a gamma 8. 838.8 a 838.8 9 85.8.8 8 88.8.8.8 a 58383.. :85 Shea. .3858: a 

838.3 88.8.8 88.85... 8%: 88.288 838 8288 $8.8 
SEE 8558. 

88.8.8 88.8% 88.5.8 88.5.8 8%88 8838 88.58 888.3 88885: - - - - - - - - 03:3 88 .8 82838 
88.88.: 8888.8 8388.2 88.5.8 888% 88.2% 838.8 58% 3338805588862 

58838. 8.2 

- - - - - 88.88 88.88 88.8 855... 98:88 8502 88; 388% 8589 
$3333.? 83.9.» fimtmQ 

88: “.8 838.8 8338 8888.2 seaflofl 88.8%: 88.8.3 88.8.8 
""383 859 

88.5.8 88.3.8 88.838 888.2 88.83. $2.: 
3.88% 88.8% 

388889508553 
88.? 88.88 888:; 88.83; 88.88.. 

- 8368 - @8080 8 “8.8838 
33 :88 

88.8.88 8888.8 8868.8 88.8% cosine 882.: 88.83 8386 5:8 8&5 838.8% 
€2.83 

hflmfiflflfifl 
“89.380262 

8083' 
838.8 

838.8 88.88. 88.88 as :88» 8n8? 8888823289 
88.88 8.8m 88.8%” 8%: 88.88 838 88.88 

- 88 .8 0823 38 . 82.50 
88.8“.“ 88.88 88.88 88.88 88.88 38.88 88.88 88.8“ 38 €3.83 8 =888a - 88.88 88.8 .. 88.8 88.3 

8.8 88.8 38888298 8388. - - - - 88.884 
88.88 88:; 888 £85.83 “88 88.88 388m 

88.8.84 
8.83 88.83 88.83 

88. _ mi 88884 838 888 953 8384 
88.88.“ 88.88 88.88 

88.88 888.8 888.8 5.83 88.85 
@883 88288 8:8 8252 
88.83 a. 88.23 a 88.88.. a 88.88; 88.88; a 82.83 88.28 m 88.83 a 2888 $2584 

hmwummcuwm u amkkanu 

88 88 88 88 88 88 88 :8 20888 82 n5. 
.8358: 

how he» a; .3.» .83» has 23> he” .5 3087: gamma: £88855 
«mavens-rm «93365.! 

«nae «ham «Macy-PH enau 33H flow-Samm— Euflefimm: imam—Guam: 

3:850 3:850 

$555883 coummom 32 mo $555385 



Hanging. 23.... 25:6 finmEUOmmc a :9c _ 3025 
.1. 

( 

lav-Q83 88.83. 8865 88.8% 88.2ws 288mm $8.83 $88 as: 8.83 33 

88.838 88.88“: 8868.8 838.3 838.8 898.8 fifififi 838.? 
3835388398509 

88.54 88.83 88.83 8882.3 @334 838; $8.83 838 3:5 
88888 8qw8a 88.83 88.88“” 

838% 3328 88.83 «mama; 882 Eu 8:3 
833 88.3 88.5 888% 83.8 8%? an?“ 83m 85 88 8885 
88.88 88.88 83.8 88.2». 88.88 «8.88 ~28». «38¢ 088385 En £89m 
88.8% 88.83 88.83 88.83 88.23 83$.” 3.8% «£83 883283 as 886083 
88.8 83% 838 88.88 88.8: 83% 88.o $8.88“ 

8&5 
888m 838 838 88.88 

88.8% and: £28 £8m 8883 
88.886 8383 88.8% 88.8% 8888.“ 88.8% 83.83. 3&8? 8:88 
8q$qm 83 H 1m 8883 88.3..“ 88.88.? 88.83 238$ 8888 83:8 3388.“ 
838.8 88.83 8883 88.8% 88.8% 88.83 

88.83 82.83 
802888085 

gins 885% 888% 88.25. 88.9q 28.8% 85: 8 85:? £23 333m 
8868.8 ooo.mow.mm 88.8mm 88.893 83.8.8 58.3.8 «8.88.8 Saw—«mom 8mg 28 888m 

wmmmmkfiw 3&3:m 

838.8 88.5.8 8%. 8.8 88n8 88.8mm 8.8.88.8 Ewflmfi $3848 
mosnawaagflsfi 

88m 88.0% 8&8 88.3 88.80. 
“8.8.8 833 88.98 

“85 
88.88 8888 888mm 88.88 88.8: 238; Ema 58.? 

3:80 
- - - - 888mm 88.8». 

838 838 €288 3:38 888." 858 fifiogm 
88.818 88.5.8 8 88.28.88 8 88.638 838% 88.818 8qfinm 83q 0892 8E3 808302 

3:285: MauuamaQ 

38 n8" as" 38 88” 38 as" :3 
.50? be 0.? .30? .50? ham? has»? he? .53? 

«use much ease ouch amuuaoh away ouch “manna—PH ism-G”— 
mmm— flow-3 

“mm flanks 
mum 

acme—:30 team—=90 

“Summon “oz 5 39:30 

as momcvmxm .moaagom mo 3855385 



85582.. :3: 15...“. 5%.”.m Sauce”. 3028 
E. 

( .IIII 

8.8.80.8 a 88.838 8 Sagas. a 88.83:. a 88.93% a 88.818 .8 8388.8 8 88.8.8.8 a .525: 85.58.9379 
88.83.... 88.0.8.3. 88.890. 88.338 88.0.9.8 “8.88.8 898.8. 893.8 888... 

. 
. . B .8. “oz 

. 

88.088 88.888 8882.... 88888 88.8% 98.8% 9 9.88 88.83 
88.8 02. a 8:20 

- - - - 88.88... 
- - - 08889 9.960 2 83...... .3889 83 - - - - 88.2% 

- - - 8588 e-9>00 2 BER 38.0 

88.088 88.888 88.81..” 88.8% 88.8.0.3 98.88...“ 8:.o 88.83 98598.. 2-9200 8&3 88.9 8.. s 8890 

- 88.88 88.88; 88.88 
- - - - $88.88.... 0...... 8.58.3...80 

88.a 88.8% 88.88 88.83 8888.3 8.8% 8:88 83.83 
388 E8”. 283 $885 .96 $8055.. “339 

88.83 88.83 88.88 88.88 88.88 88.8 28.83 83.8 02. 938863822mfiaaoaoa8.8 - 88.83 88.83 
- - - - - 88 853%.. 506 - - - - - 8.8... $93. - 883580 

88.3 88.3 88.3 88.3 88.3 88.3 88.93 
- $885 88889 .28 8% 8898859 

88.20 88.80 88.80 88.3 88.80 88.8: 88.30 
- $8.. a 8...: 883580 

88.80 88.80 88.80 88.80 88.80 88.80 88.80 
- 339.5 .99.. 80 

88.8 88.8 88.8 88.8 88.8 88.8 88.8 
- 8:32 8.... 80 - - - - - 88.8 88.830 88; 332... 88.98 8 9.8 .80 

88.88.: 88.0.8.0 988.83 88.98 88.83 f 183 28.83 88.8: 
.88.... 0.23.: 

88.8.. 8888 88.5 88.0.: 8883 88.3.. 88.89 88.: 888 0888 .8989 
88.88 8888 88.88 88.88 88.88 88.88 838 88.8 88808 8.. 88888. .8 8839. 

9.033.803 $3996.. Maauxmmcncz 

£8 88 88 :8 88 98 28 :8 
use? .30? .50.? use? use? use? .53.? use? 

a man charm “— man who.”— e use 29% a man who.”— 
e man. whom— Hwouheu 

amm— Eomhca "aw—H Eaten mum 

50—3900 
. 

$23900 

80:58:08 GoEmom 32 E 39:30 
was momaomxm .mosagom .6 3:053m 



3§==oE< 23.... lit-u H: 5.5n fl Suva—"fi— 3025 

e (E 

25625 2.325. a Sciag .5. 83¢t a Scawmem .5, 2525.. 8?: 20:3 :z 
ooodowm 83o oooflmownm economqm 08m 88 €30 
Oshawa coonmmqm coonmmmw o8n Ed oooflommnw 5% 3m 

@8636: oooflmmmse casings 8333 Seamus“ mooqmaéflsfifiaoflsfi 
©8538 258nm“ 89$q Seesaw ooofiaqe 380888 550 
832$ 2568“? Sofia? Seaman». Sofimwnom 28%: 

ooqmehwm 838“? m 25$q w 25“oa % ©85a m 88622 
moofiw30=m figomhfioo 

83868 O32 Ea ooosanofi coonmtE 
©859q 2532 8E3 38% $80 

33 «SN «SN :3 as” 
.50? .50? use? use? .30? 

“manganem wade ouch umaoohcri ”—23 26h ~930t 

4m hog—Eooonwfluam— Ewe? 

2596M ooyuom 525% “oz 



5:52:26: 23.... wait-u 3..mn a 5...c _ .3025 
t, 

( 

. 
1N fin ad ad. m6 hm ed a...” 

“.9523 outflow 39—. 3:53 3.5:: SEE—Z 

acqmfirw a 5.8%? a 8%v a 8223 a 936$; a $38; $8.m Eva? €n 3:3 3% EEE Esp 
$8.m cavi 805% a? 8%? E 32 338 Ram: 0385 3225 
Boga“ 93m 832; Sofie; RENE mung; 3&8 :38 Egg Eofim 

”mania q3 Bon— 
..fimmfimhawma wumimw 33c Eaaaw 

8o.£o.o_ ooofifl 89.3% 82m 83mm? 3.36 Ewan Edema 8E3 52. .E 05%: 2:83 “oz - coo-coo 085m - - - - - Ewan comma—mam gem 
Sofie; aging ooowmo 8%? 8%? 3 32 ESE 3mm: ”3&6 5835 

8333 838d 83%.” 8°i 25.23 amhmfinm Saga; “3.8% 
afifiuoau Em Bugging 

gas 2% - - - - 89.85“ 
- - - “Magnum 943200 B @038 mmonozwhom SBA 

- - - - schema 
- - - 053% 2-958. 2 832 350 

80.3% a 80.8% a 83%“ a scan? a 88.56 a gamma. a 23% a @358; a £3398 8&8 gang Es managofio macaw 
ooEom 5% .Sm man—swag 2:02: 32 

mmuxmxpg mowing SEN 

VNQN mncn Nflcn “non anon afica waen “Man 
53% use? use? Eu? use? use? 39% 53> 

«Quench $395,: “many—em $398,; “Quench flow—Saga flow—Sam— Hum—Baum 

03mm 0939o outflow 50a 



nap—3.592% "En—E tea—tun. 
£95089. a £00c _ 9.....q 

w _‘ A 

a: a: a: a: a: m: a: m: 2.5 E. is??? is as :23 3:532: in: 

camcofi 83g: o8.§.8 Seamed. 95a agate“ Swamom omega“ 8 go guano 
“Seaman sagas 88.33 88$a acacia gaming. 8:58.: $38.3 

gauges“ Ea. gingham a3 
83%; 80.32 8&8 8%: 8o 3 32 E32 mama: mean“. ESE 

83%: 98.89: 833.8 838% acqfimdm magma“ $.83“ mania? 8835 ”flange 35 

832.8 Sagan Scampi ooodmwwn 83q 3qm 832.2 gunman: BE 8 @8535 as :28 38H 
89.3%“ 8°93: Hanan: 838.2 magma E332 aa.¢mfl_ - afimag _§8 é a: 2 3 33 25595 
83q osaonfi 8,.d H.868; Scam”; Enema; 8%":3 Rama: afifiag $93 é an: 8 mu 8%.: again—go 58 Es :26 
”scammed m Squaw a 83”} m 832w a 83m? 85$ m $.93 a amqm a afifiéu £8 Ea ago 

353‘ to .65“??? 5.3 3:» can fimfignfira 29G 

£3 23 n3" :3 as" as" 22 E." 
.53? .56? 53> .38» .53? 53> use? use? 

:3 «new «use 0.5m «use ouch «as... 0.3m 339:5 fieflSaE Rev—Sufi.“ 33.3» mi 

Unwm no ammo Emma 



genetic-ion EwEUOmmc a Sums—EN _ mag—n 
9. 

mmcoumoso 



E00. 3033 .BBB 
@ 

Eoo. maomwv©mmco= I / 
So. am. mom m 

.‘ @583 fimoommmN mDOZHQ 
mmcmfi ._o_:mm .<n_0 6984 m2. © H 

Comm—«8.5%: “N A 
83:00 



Attachment CC 

‘bPresser 
Memor ia l  Health kl 

Market Overview and Assessment 
July 2019 

Prepared by: 

‘ l ‘  .. HEALTH FACILITIES PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
RESEARCH DATA - ANALYTICS ' STRATEGY ' IMPLEMENTATION 



In the spring of 2019, Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) based in Prosser, WA retained Health 
Facilities Planning & Development (HFPD) to collect, analyze, summarize and report its Service 
Area’s demographic, socioeconomic, health status and inpatient and outpatient use patterns 
and volumes. The Report is also to include market share and future volume estimates for PMH. 
This request relates to PMH’s pending United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) 
financing application. 

This Report provides and summarizes the requested data and is divided into three sections, as 
follows: 

I Section 1: Overview of PMH and the Primary Service'Area (PSA) 

II Section 2: PSA Resident Inpatient and Outpatient Volumes, PMH Market Shares and 
Competitor Profiles, and 

I Section 3: Future Volumes (TBD) 

Data sources used in this Report include inpatient hospital discharge data supplied by the State 
of Washington (Comprehensive Hospital Abstract Reporting System- -CHARS, inpatient, 2014— 
2018), Claritas 2018 population estimates Iruven Outpatient Estimates, US Census data, the US 
Department of Defense, Robert Wood Johnson 5 Community Health Rankings and the 
Washington Employment Security Department. l 

Where possible, data is provided just for the'priir’nary‘serviCe-are-‘a (PSA). For some data points, 
data is only available at the County level (Benton County and part of Yakima County) and is so 
noted. 



In summary, the data shows that: 

I Jody to write when data complete 



Section 1: Overview of PMH and the Primary Service Area 

A. Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) Brief History 

The Prosser Hospital Association was established in 1943 to raise funds to allow for the 
establishment of a community hospital. Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) was opened in 1947, 
and one year later the Prosser Public Hospital District (the District) was approved by the voters 
and the Prosser Hospital Association was disbanded. 

B. PMH Today 

PMH is a 25 bed Critical Access Hospital (CAH), meaning that it is rural, operates 25 or fewer 
beds, meets other applicable requirements and is paid allowable costs from Medicare and 
Medicaid. The intent of the CAH program is to mitigate financial vulnerability of rural hospitals, 
thereby assuring that essential services exist in rural communities. 

Today, PMH provides family medicine, advanced surgical care, obstetrics, and emergency care. 
PMH’s mission is to improve the health of our community, and its vision is to become one of the 
top 100 Critical Access Hospitals in the country. 

PMH is located in western Benton County. Its services include a broad array of primary care, 
acute care, outpatient, and post-acute care, including: 

I Level 4 Trauma Center I Swing Beds 
-. Emergency Cardiac Level II Ii Behavioral Health 
l- Emergency Stroke Level III I Teleradiology 
I Inpatient 8: Outpatient Surgery 
I Obstetrics 

PMH did operate a long-term care unit until October 2010 when it closed the 36 bed nursing 
home. 



Primary Service Area/ Public Hospital District Definition 

Figure 1: The Primary Service Area 
"" ' " The legal boundaries of the District include the 

communities of Prosser, Benton City and 
Paterson. Each of these communities is located 
in Benton County. Table 1 shows the patient 
origin, by zip code and county, for PMH’s 
inpatient discharges. As seen in the table, 
approximately 40% of PM H’s inpatients come 
from the Prosser zip code. The larger District as 

well as the adjacent communities of 
' " Grandview and, Mabton, located in adjacent 

”7:1: Yakima County represent the area from which: 
n 1) more than 70% of its inpatients reside and 

R , _¢ _ 2) wherein PMH has at least a 15% market 
share (for non district zip codes). For purposes of this study, these communities were defined 
as the Primary Service Area (PSA). ' 

In addition, and, again, based on the patient origin data in Table 1, the communities of Granger, 
Outlook, Sunnyside, and Zillah, all located in neighboring Yakima County, are considered PMH’s 
Secondary Service Area (SSA). 18% of its inpatients reside in the SSA. HFPD did not include 
these communities in the PSA because PMH’s market share is less than the 15% cut off used to 
define the PSA. The PSA and the SSA are illustrated in Figure 1. For the PSA, the District is 
outlined in blue, the remainder of the PSA is outlined in green, and the SSA is outlined in 
yellow. Throughout the remainder of this Report and unless otherwise noted, the focus of the 
analysis is the PSA. In the report, the terms "PSA” and “Service Area” will be used 
interchangeably. 

Page | 5  



Table 1 
PMH 2018 Discharges and Market Share Based on Patient Origin 

Discharges County Name PMH Market Running Total 
Share 

99350 Prosser Benton 404 39.1% 40.5% 
99320 _ Benton City B=enton 30— _ 3.5% 43.5% 
99345 Paterson Benton 1 3.7% 43.6% 

District Subtotal 435 22.8% 43.6% 
98930 Grandview Yakima 233 22.1% 63.8% 
98935 Mabton Yakima 53 17.0% 69.1% 

PSA Subtotal 721 22.0% 72.2% 
98932 Granger 6.6% 19 6.6% 74.1% 
98938 Outlook 10.5% 16 10.5% 75.8% 
98944 Sunnyside 8.2% 133 8.2% 85.6% 
98953 Zillah 3.3% 13 3.3% 90.3% 

SSA Subtotal 181 _ 7.4% 90.3% 
Other Benton 51 95.4% 
Other Yakima 12 96.6% 

All Other Counties 33 100.0% 
Grand Total 998 100.0% 

Source: Washington State inpatient CHARS 2018. Excludes all newborns. 

As defined by the Federal Health Resources 8: Services Administration (HRSA), the entirety of 
both Benton and Yakima Counties are rural1 and each has Health Professional Shortage Area- 
(HSPA) designation for primary care, mental health, and dental care. HRSA data is only available 
at the county level. Table 2 reflects the service area HPSA designations and scoring. The 
highest score (greatest shortage) for a HPSA is 25. 

Table 2 
HPSA Designation by Select County 

Designation Type Geography _ Approval Date Score 
' Benton County Primary Care Geographic: Entire County 10/02/2017 ' 16 

Dental Care Geographic: Entire County 8/31/2017 18 
. _ ,. _ Mental Health Geographic: Entire County 8/27/2017 . E 

Yakima County Primary Care . Low Income Population HPSA 09/24/2017 17 
Dental Care _ 1 Low Income Population HPSA 07/26/2017 I 19 ' 
Mental Health Geographic: Entire County 08/23/2017 18 

Source: HPSA Find (https://datawarehouse.hrs.gov/tools/anaiyzers/hspafind.aspx). 

1 Rural Health Information Hub "Am I Rural" — Report. 

Page | 6 



C. Demographics - PSA 

As depicted in Table 3, in 2018, the PSA had a population ofjust over 45,000. Nearly 56% of the 
population is Hispanic. Since the 2010 census, the PSA’s total population has grown by 7.2%, 
while the Hispanic population grew by 16.0% and the population age 65+ grew by 32%. In 
comparison to the PSA’s 7.2% growth, the State grew by 10.7%; however, the growth in the PSA 
far surpasses the average growth rate in communities served by the State’s other CAHs (4.6%). 
The PSA is expected to continue to grow (5.3%) through 2023, with the fastest growth occurring 
in the 65+ and Hispanic populations. Again, and for comparison, the State is expected to grow 
by 6.0% between 2018-2023. In contrast to many rural communities in the state, the 
population of females of childbearing age (15-44) has also grown and is expected to continue to 
grow. 

Table 3 
PSA Population, Estimates 

Pct. of Pct. of Pct. Ch . 2023 Pct. of Pct. Ch . 
201° Tot Pop 2013 E“ Tot Pop 2010-20g18 Proj. Tot Pop 2018-2523 

Tot. Pop. 41,978 100.0% 45,003 _ 100.0% 7.2% 47,380 100.0% 5.3% 
Pop. By Age ’ 

I 0-17 13.579; 8£9- £8_49.I 399% __ __9994-14.272 I. sci-£41 3._194 j 
18-44 | 14,520 I 34.6% 15,857 35.2% 9.2% 16,893 35.7% I 6.5% , 

I 5454 I 9,727I 23.2% I 9,812 I 218EII079%_I 9,803 I 203% I HI  
I 65-74 . 2,463 I 5.9% I 3,466 f 7% I 49% _ 3,945 I 8.3% _ 13% I 
_. 75-84 _I £264.. £94! £49 I 9994. 2994 1,917 ! 4.0% _ 27,395. ' 
.I 85+ . 472 II _ 1.1% I 528 _ 13% 11.9% . 550 I 1.2% II i29’5__ 
'_. _ . I _ _ _4_ _ __ .I _ _  _ . _ _ 
IITot-0-64 _ __ $217 I 90.1% I 39,503. 87.8% II 4.5% I 40,968 . 86.5% I 37% 
. Tot-654+ _ I 4,161III M 5,4941 12.2% I 32.0% _ 6,412 _ 13.5% I 1_6.7%_ 

Hispanic I 21,674 . 51.7% I 25,138 55.9% 16.0% 27,765 58.6% 10.5% 
Fem. 15-44 ' 8,248 19_.6% ' 8,782 ' 19.5% 6.5% ' 9,332 ' 19.7% _ 6.3% 

Source: Nielsen Claritas 2018— 

Page I 7 



As seen in Table 4, within the PSA, Prosser and Grandview have a higher percentage of Hispanic 
residents that the PSA as a whole. Mabton and Benton City/Paterson are growing faster than 
the PSA as a whole. 

Table 4 
PSA Population Comparisons 

2018 Total 2023 Total % .2018. % of .2023. 95 
Population Population Change pan.” Total Hispanic Change 18-23 Population Population 

J 99350-Prosser 14,674 15,578 6.2% . 6,735 45.9% 7,594 12.8% 

J99320—Benton City 10,043 10,651 I 6.1% J 2,354 J 23.4% _ 2,774 17.89: 
J 99345—Patterson: oJ _'- _ - J _ _  .- J _ - l _  _ _ ._ J - 

Subtotal District J 24,717 26,229 12.3% 9,089 ' 36.8% 10,368 J 14.1% 
J__9§930—Grandviow | 15367 J 16,430 J 4.3% J 12,330 J 78.2%_J 1E9? 8.7% J 

_ 98935-Mabton 4,519 | 4,721 4.5% 3,719 32.3%J 3,998 7.5% 
J Subtotal PSA ' 45,003 47,380 . Q. J 25,133 .. 55.9% ' 27,765 Ii 10.5% J' 
_ Benton County ' 197,826 J 211,302 ' 6.8% 43,589 22.0% 7 51,275 I 173%— 
J Yakima County 254,171 263,678 ' _§7%J 126,944 J 49.9% J 140,088 1—0.4% 
'uTasiington “fl  7,445,902 “7,895,335 J _ 6.0% J: _364,80_3 J 13.0% . 7111,0837 153% ' 

Source: Nielsen Claritas 2018. *Reported with Prosser (99350). 

D. Demographics-SSA 

As depicted in Table 5, in 2018, the SSA had a population ofjust over 38,000. More than 75% of 
the population is Hispanic. Since the 2010 census, the SSA’s total population grew by 5.5%, 
while the Hispanic population grew by 13.3% and the pOpulation age 65+ grew by nearly 17%. 
The growth in the SSA is less than the growth rate of the PSA. The SSA is expected to continue 
to grow (4.6%) through 2023, with the fastest growth still occurring in the 65+ and Hispanic 
pepulations. Again, and as with the PSA, women of childbearing age are expected to continue 
to grow as well. 

Page | 8 



Table 5 
SSA Population 

Pct. of Pct. of Pct. Chg. 2023 Pct. of Pct. Chg. 2 1 0 0 Tot Pop 2018 E“ Tot Pop 2010—2018 Proj. Tot Pop 2018-2023 

Tot. Pop. 36,228 100.0% 38,232 . 100.0% _ 5.5% 39,980 _ 100.0% 4.6%_ 
| Pop. By Age _ ' 
I 0-1_7 13,988 ;. 36.1% 1 13,191 I 34.5% I 0.8% . 13,450 . 33.6% “20%”: 

18-44 _ 13068 36.1% 14,052 . 36.8% |. 7.5% _ 14,812 . 37.0%__ _ 5.4% 
, 45-64 6,836I 18.9% 7,211 I 18.9% , 5.5% 7,524 I 18.8% 4.3% { — —  _ _ _ _  . _ .. _ _  i _ _ _ —  .. _ _.__1 I 2' — l  I 

. 65-74 1,742 4.8% . 2,207 . 5.8% 26.7% 2,436 _ 6.1% 10.4% _ -  _ . . _ ___.T _ __ _ , 
I 753-84 1,035 2.9% . 1,097 I 2.9% _ 30% . 1,295 I 3.2_% ; 1_8.0%d 
I f :  1.... -459 .' 1.3% . -474 I 1.2% 1 3.3% _ 463 1.2% _ 23%“ 
. _ _ _  - 1 _ l  _ _ _ l  _ .1 _. __ . ._ 
Tot-0454 32,992 _ 91.1% . 34,454 . 99.3% 4.4% I 35,786 _ 89.5% I _3.9% 

__T_ot-6_5+ l_ 3,236 I_ Iflql _ _3,7lS I 9.9% 161.7% 4,194___ 10:51” __ 11.0% _ 
' . . J . | 

Hispanic I 25,219 I 69.6% @577 I 74.7% g 13.3% .. 31,137 I __71-9% - 9.0%__ 
Fem.15-fl4 I 7,353 I 20.3% I _7,833 _ 20.5% I _§;5% I 8,209 I 23534. 4.8%_ 

SouE‘ei' Nielsen 'Claritas 2018. 

Table 6 demonstrates that within the SSA, Sunnyside, the largest of the communities, is 
growing at a slower rate than the other communities. More than four-fifths of Sunnyside’s 
population is Hispanic. 

Table 6 
SSA Population Comparisons 

2018 Total 2023 Total 
Population 

98944 - Sunnyside 22,341 23,015 

99353 —..Zillah 7,839 8,300 

98932- Granger 5,644 6,141 

98938 - Outlook 2,408 2,524 

Subtotal SSA I 33,23 2 39,930 

Benton County I 197,826 211,302 

Yakima County 254,171 263,678 

Washington 7,445,902 7,895,335 

Source: Nielsen Claritas 2018. 

Population 

% 2018 
Change 

18—23 
3.0% 

5.9%- 

8.8% 

4.8% 

4.6% 
6.8% 

3.7% 

6.0% 

Hispanic 
Population 

18,141 

4,172 

4,600 

1,664 

28,577 
43,589 

126,944 

964,803 

% of 
Total 

81.2% 

53.2% 

81.5% 

69.1% 

74.7% 
22.0% 

49.9% 

13.0% 

2023 
Hispanic 

Population 
19,293 
4,837 
5,152 
1,855 

31,137 
51,275 

140,088 
1,111,083 

% 
Change 
18—23 
6.4% 

15.9%- 

12.0% 

11.5% 

9.0% 
17.6% 

10.4% 

15.2% 

Page | 9  



E. Socioeconomic Characteristics 

Unemployment data is available only at the County level. Though unemployment rates have 
improved since 2014, rates in Benton and Yakima County are still higher than that of 
Washington State. Benton County’s unemployment has gone from 7.5% in 2014 to 5.2% in 2018 
(a decrease of 30.7%). Comparatively, Washington State’s rate went from 5.7% in 2014 to 4.4% 
in 2018 (a decrease of 22.8%). Yakima County has also decreased since 2014, going from 8.7% 
to 6.3% (a decrease of 27.6%). The data is summarized in Figure 2. 

Figure 2 
Unemployment Rates 2014-2018 

I Benton County I Yakima County I Washington State 

.7° 
7.5% 8 A 8.1% 75% 6.8% 6.7% 

4.7% 52% 

5.7? 53% o 5.2% 5.3% 5.5% 

l l 

l . 

2014 2015 2016 2017 

5.3% 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Seasonally Adjusted, Average Annual 

Page | 10 



Table 7 shows the PSA’s major employers, which is generally agricultural or public in nature. 

Table 7 
Employers, by Number of Employees within the PSA 

Employer Employees 
fie. Michelle Wine Estates 1,100 
. Walmart Grocery Distribution Center . 719 _ 
I Gjndview School PSA _ LGZ _ 

Zirkle Fruit _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ __ 18L _ _ 
FruitSmart _ _ - _ _ 368 _ fl  

I Prosser School PSA _ _ g fi  _ _ _ ,  
l Pisser M_emoria| Hospita_l I _ _ 300 —_  _ 
. WSU/IAREC ___ A)? _ 
I Benton County Government I _ 1_44__ _ . 

Tree Top, Inc. _ 1_2: _ _ __. 
I Milne Fruit _ 120 — 
I Yakima Valley Farm Worker’s C_|ini_c __ _ 116 _ _ 
I Conrad Adams Fruit _ _ _‘ 100+_316_seasonal 
_Chukar Cherries W _ _ _ __ 100 — 
_ Bleyhel Farm Services 89 _ - _  
. J_M Smucker Company _ _  _ _ _ ____ _75 _ _  I 
. Yakima Valley Collegi I _ ___70_ _ _ 
I Vijelch Grape _ fl _ 
I City of Grandview_ __ _ _I 538 

Benton Rural Electric - _i _ J m .11 54 
I City of Prosser ... Hm I _ - 50 _ 

Shonan (USA) _ 50 
Source: www.mg. tricitiessites. org; www.g_ ortofgrandvie w.org; www.p__ rosser.org 

The average household income for the entirety of Benton County, Yakima County, and the PSA 
is lower than the State (Table 8). Within the PSA, the communities of Prosser and Grandview 
are lower than Benton County and the State. 

Table 8 
Average Household Income by Area, 2018 

Average HH Income 

98930 — Prosser ' $54,251 
99345 — Benton City * 
99350 — Preston . $66,230 _ 

District $60,524 
98935 — Grandview $55,145 
99320 - Mabton $70,380 

PSA I $62,656 _ W 
Benton County $79,097 
Yakima County _ I _ _ _ $65,030 _ 
Washington $88,288 

Source: Nielsen Claritas 2018. *Reported with Preston (99350). 

Page | 11 



E. Health Status 

The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation’s County Health Rankings compares and ranks counties 
(relative to the health of other counties in the same state) on more than 30 health status 
indicators. 2019 summary composite scores for Benton County and Yakima County, compared 
to the State, are identified in Table 9. 

Benton County is among the middle-tier of the 39 counties in the State regarding health 
outcomes and health factors, meaning they are similar to Washington State on many measures 
while Yakima County is in the lowest quartile. Out of Washington’s 39 Counties, Benton County 
ranks 15th in health outcomes and 20"h in health factors while Yakima County is ranked 32nd in 
health outcomes and 38“1 in health factors. Health outcomes include mortality and morbidity 
and include such factors as premature death, poor or fair health, poor physical or mental health 
days and low birthweight. Health factors include: clinical care (uninsured adults, primary care 
provider rates, preventable hospital stays and diabetic screenings), health behaviors (adult 
smoking, obesity, binge drinking, motor vehicle deaths, teen pregnancy and chlamydia). 

Table 9 
County Health Status Indicators 

Washington Benton Yakima 
Health Measures _ —_ _ — 

% Fair/Poor Health — 14%7'F _ 15% " 31% ' 
%Smokers 14% : _  13% . ____ 15% '1 

% Obese 28% ’_  56%7 _ ”312% 
Health Risks ' __ _ 

% Physically Inactive _ _ 16% 17% . 22% 
% Excessive Drinking ' _ i 7 18% ' 20% 17% 

Access to Care - L 
Primary Care Ratio 1218:1 1467:1 ) 1580:1 

Dentist Ratio 1237:1 1396:1 l 1439:1 
Mental Health Ratio __ 310:1 ‘ 466:1 l 376:1 
Percent Uninsured 7% 7% ‘ 13% 

Preventive Measures " ,1 7 W 1mm” 1 ' 
Preventable Hospitalization Stays 2914 “41—62%“ 3773 

% Flu Vaccinations 44% i 1. ““4Q"%" 46% 
% Mammography __ 39%”W 46% 38% 

Community Measures 
HS Graduation Rate 79% W _ 77% 79% 

% Unemployed 4.8% .1 5.5% ”—63%- 
% Children in Poverty 14%“ W 17% 26% 

% Single-Parent Households 28% 31%, 39% 
Teen Birth Rate (per 1,000) 20 ' 23 46 

Source: County Health Rankings 2019 

Page | 12 



Section 2: PSA Volumes, PMH Market Shares and Competitor Profiles 

A. PSA Inpatient Volumes 

Hospital inpatient data was obtained from the Washington State Comprehensive Hospital 
Abstract Reporting System (CHARS) for the period of 2014 to 20182. This data represents every 
hospitalization occurring in a Washington hospital regardless of payer. 

Total inpatient discharges for patients residing in the PSA totaled 2,918 in 2018. Discharges in 
the PSA increased by nearly % between 2014 and 2017 before declining in 20183. (Figure 3). 
PM H’s discharges from PSA residents increased by more than 35% during the 2014-2018 and 
then decreased as well in 2018. PMH total discharges (regardless of where the patients 
resided) increased by nearly 57% over the period of 2014 to 2018. 

Figure 3 
PSA Discharge Trend, 2014-2018 

3,500 3,068 3,134 3,153 3:252 3,194 
3,000 

2,500 
2,000 

1,500 
1,000 473 594 513 590 540 

500 
o 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

I Service Area I PMH 

Source: Washington CHARS State database, 2014-2018, excludes all newborns, swing beds and observation. 

Total inpatient days generated by PSA residents are shown in Figure 4. Among PSA residents, 
total days increased by 8.2% between 2014 to 2017, and were relatively flat between 2017 and 
2018. Similar to its discharges, PMH’s PSA resident days increased by 33% between 2014 and 
2017 but decreased by 8.5% between 2017 and 2018. PMH total days (regardless of where the 
patients reside) increased by nearly 35%, excluding swing bed census, from 2014 to 2018. 

2 Less than 1% of PSA discharges went to an Oregon Hospital. 
3 Please note that Astria Sunnyside did not report any inpatient data for the second half of 2018; likely due to 
issues related to its electronic medical record conversion. In this report, Astria Sunnyside’s utilization in the PSA 
has been doubled to account for the underreporting. Therefore, total PSA discharges and patient days for 2018 
are estimated. 

Page | 13 



Figure 4 
PSA Days Trend, 2014-2018 

16’00° 13 937 13,363 ' 14:000 12,349 12,301 12357 
12,000 

1,291 I 1,527 1,453 1,720 1,574 

10,000 

8,000 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 

I Service Area I PMH 

Source: Washington CHARS State database, 2014-2018,'excludes all newborns, swing beds and observation. 

B. Hospitals Serving the PSA 

Table 10 depicts the hospitals providing the predominance of care to PSA residents. It also 
depicts their change in inpatient discharges and patient days between 2014 and 2018. The top 
hospitals serving the PSA include PMH, Kadlec Regional Medical Center (Richland), and Astria 
Sunnyside Hospital (Sunnyside). Additionally, there are other providers in the Tri-Cities (Trios 
Health, Lourdes Medical Center, and Lourdes Counseling Center) and other Yakima County 
providers (Astria Regional Medical Center and Yakima Valley Memorial Hospital) with market 
share. 

PMH experienced the largest increase in discharges when compared to its peer hospitals in the 
PSA, gaining 167 discharges from 2014 to 2018. Overall, the market is estimated to have gained 
126 discharges over the same period with Sunnyside Hospital and Other Yakima providers 
losing the most discharges. Nearly 65% of the increase in inpatient PSA resident discharges for 
PMH came from Prosser residents. 

Page | 14 



Table 10 
Change in PSA Inpatient Discharges 2014 to 2018 

Changein 
PSA ‘ 2014 2018 

Hospital flame ' Resident Market Market 
Discharges Share Share 
2014-2018 

PMH Medical Center 167 15.4% 20.0% 
Spokane Tertiary W 69 1.7% 3 3.8% l 

I Kadlec Regional Medical Center _. W' 51 . 36.9% 3 37.0% I 
! Seattle Tertiary W : 25 6.4% 7.0% W” 
‘ Other TrI-Cities W — 23 l 7.4% ' 7.3% W 

All Other W W W W W ‘W W T 19— 1.696 " 2.1% 
Other Yakima W I W —86 W 8.17: 5 | 

Astria Sunnyside Hospital W WW — W I W-l—ZTZ 30% 1 17.3% I 
- w m u _ ‘  

Total Service Area W 126 | 10E0% 100.00% 
Source: Washington CHARS State database, 2014-2018, excludes all newborns, swing beds and observation. 

As depicted in Table 11, PM H’s average daily census (ADC) of PSA patients increased between 
2014-2018, from 3.5 to 4.3 in 2018 (22.9% increase). PMH’s total ADC increased from 4.2 in 
2014 to 5.6 in 2018 (33.3% increase). Its average length of stay increased actually decreased 
from 2.94 in 2014 to 2.73 in 2018. 

Table 11 
PMH PSA & Toatl Selected Inpatient Statistics 

Days Discharges 

2014 " 0to 64 1.7 2.2 613 ' 739 273 333 
65 plus ' 1.3— 2.0 7 W 673 734 l 200 215 
Total 3.5 4.2 1,291 1,523 473 ' 553 

2015-.-- W0to 64 20W W WWWW 2 .9" WWWWWW 743 1,060 355 "513 
W 65 plus W2.1W 21W" 779 359 239 262W 

Total “4.2 """" W """""" 5 .3 """""""" 1.527 1,919 594 775 W .11----- ...-____.---- - - - -- -.-_-_- 1- 
2016 o to 64 2.4 3.2 366 1,165 411 556 

65 plus ' 13W WW179WW 537 673 262W 330W“ 
Total Wilo ' 5.0 1,453 1,343 613“ W756" 

"5617W Oto 64 WELEW' 37 W954 1,341 441 "”641 WE 
65 plus "2.1 ' “ W24 766 339 249 290 
Total .12 21-.-- 1320 2-230 690 211m 

2013 0 to 64 .4 3.5 375 1,265 409 605 
65 plus WW1?)~ """""" " l """"""""" 2 T2 """"" W 699 ' 737 231 262 """""""" 

l Total ' 4.3 ' 5.6 1,574 . 2,052 ' 640 367 WWW 
Source: Washington CHARS State database, 2014-2018, excludes all newborns, swing beds and observation. WW 

Page | 15 



For all PSA residents, regardless of which hospital they went to, the largest services lines were 
General Medicine, OB/Delivery, Orthopedics, Gastroenterology, General Surgery, and 
Cardiology. Table 12 shows PSA resident discharges by service line from 2014 to 2018, with the 
fastest growing services lines (since 2014), in terms of number of discharges, being Orthopedics 
and Cardiology. Decreases occurred in OB, GI and general medicine, gastroenterology, among 
others. 

Table 12 
PSA Discharges by Major Service Line, 2014 and 2018 

Service Line 2014 2018 Change 2014— PMH 2014 PMH 2018 
Discharges Discharges 2018 Market Share Market Share 

General Medicine _ 746 773 3.6% 20.1% 25.0% 
' OB/Delivery 641 609 _ -5.0% 19.5% _ 39.6% 

Orthopedics __ .3219 l .m-§7_7___ ._ 14.6%_ ___! 13.4% ‘ 11.9% 
Gastroenterology _ 300 260 _ _ . —11.3% L 14.7% . 1-32%.”... .1 

1' General Surgery _ ‘_ _223 [ 2g : 9.6% I; _ 5.3% l 6.8% fl 1 
Cardiology | 176 ‘ §6_ , 34.1% E96 17.4% 

_ Neurosciences l _ E1 l 152 l 16%. i 103% 1 17.1% l 
. OEO'OEV _ _ 35_ .. 13 _ 1 23226 . 4:791; _ 54% 
[Other l 70_ .1-.- 1o_5 l__ _59.o% _ 5.7% l _ _4.8% 

lnterventional Cardiology L _ _68 ___._ _8§__ ‘  __§.5_% _ 0.0% J 0.0% 
fsychiatry J. _72 _q _c j -16.7% : _ _6.9% j 9.3% 
Cardiac Surgery _ _ 47 _;_ 44_ . 45.4% _ 0.0% . 0.0% 

' ceLOB J_ 40 l _ 3§_ “J ___ 5.0% ; 23% _ 23.7% l 
Rehabilitation ,__ _ _41 . __ 34 ; -1_7.1% 12._2% _ 0.0% _l 
urology l 34_ ; _§g_ _ _ ~11._s_% - 5§% _ 0.0% 
Gynecology 60_ g -5§.3%_ _ 33.3% 28.0% 

lTotal — 1 3,069 I 3,195 l _ 3.6% T 15.4% I’ 20% 
Source: Washington CHAkSState database, 2014-2018, excludes all newborns, swing (Eds and observation. 

Similarly, the largest service lines at PMH for PSA residents were OB/Delivery, General 
Medicine, Orthopedics, Gastroenterology, and Cardiology (Table 13). Since 2014, PMH’s fastest 
growing service lines have been OB/Delivery and General Medicine. 

Page | 16 



Table 13 
PMH PSA Discharges by Major Service Line, 2014 and 2018 

Service Line 2014 Discharges 2018 Discharges Change in 
Discharges 
2014-2018 

OB/Delivery 125 . 241 . 116 
. General Medicine _ _ £0 _' 193 ; 43 

Qrthopedics _ w_ __1__ i 1 _45_ W l 3 
_Gastroenteglogy 44 ' _4_7 __ ....... ' _ _1 ____ _ 
Cardiology M . 33 lfim 41 .. _ i _ 
Neurosciences ~_ * , - 1_4 7 _ _2_6 _ 12 f 
genera|§ugerv ____ , g 12 ___| 5 3 

. Other OB ____ _ _  __ _ _ _ _ g _____ g -2 
Gynecology .— 20. 7 _ _ _ _ 3_ _ 
Oncology _ _ _ 4 M 7 -13 
cec ___ _ _ ‘4 _. 5 ._____ 1 " 
Urology _ _ ___ 2 1_ 0 m -3 w 

I Psychiatry_ _ _ _ J __5__w l 2 _fl_ M351 m 
. Rehabilitation_ _mmmw ' _5__ _'__ _ _Q _ -5 
I _ _ FEM _ 473 i 640 T— 167" 
finite: Washing—ton CHARS Sta—te— database, 2014-2018, excludes all newborns, swing beds and observation. 

C. Inpatient Market Share of PSA Residents 

Table 14 depicts market share and top competitors for each major inpatient service line. The 
data shows that Kadlec Regional Medical Center (Kadlec), a tertiary regional provider located in 
Richland, is the predominate provider with a market share of 37%. PMH’s market share 
increased from 15.4% in 2014 to 20.0% in 2018; an increase of 30%, but it remains second with 
an overall market share of approximately 20%. During the same period, it is estimated that 
Astria Sunnyside lost nearly a quarter of its market share. 

Page | 17 



Table 14 
PSA Market Share by Hospital 8: Service Line, 2014 to 2018, (Discharges) 

Kadlec 
All 

Other 
Seattle 
Tertiary 

Cardiac Surgery 

—Cardiology 

Gastroenteroldgy ; 

General 
Medicine 

General Surgery 

‘ Gynecology 

Cardiology 
Neurosciences 

l 

I 
. 

Interventional I 

n 

r 

03/ Delivery 

‘6—rtho—Edics 

Other 

H Psychiatry _ 

Other O B  

I Rehabilitation 
_ _ . _ _ _ _  _ _ 

Urology 

'l'otal 

4; 

I 

Oncology A 

I 

i 

1 

l 
2018 ‘ 

'.
._

 
I 

_ Astria 
Regional Sunnyside 
Medical Hospital 
Center 

0.0% 59.6% 0.0% 
0.0% 47.7% 4.5% 

18.8% 36.4% 26.1% 
17.4% 46% i3% 
14.7% 45.3% .2 20.3% 
17.7% 40.2% ' 22.6% 
20.1% 42.2% . 22.1% 
25.0% _38._3fi_ __ _ 19_.7% 
5.3% 44.7% 14.0% 
6.8% 40.4% _14.4% . 

33.3% 23.3% 28.3% __ _; 
28.0% 40.0% * . 16.0% 
0.0% 55.9_%- o.0% _ 
0.0% _ 51.2% 18.6%_ 

10.7% _ 38.3% 10_.7% 
17.1% 44.1% 5.3% 

_1§-5_% 24-922 1___j‘:5_-4% 
39.6% 23_.6% 29.5% 
4.7% 48.2% _'_- 8.2% 
6.4%_ 440% _ 7.3% 

13.4%_] -33-1% _10.6% 
113% E5]. _4.8% 

15.7% 37._1% 129% 
4.8% 39.0% 17.1% 
27.5% 30.0% 30.0% 
23.7% 26.3% 10.5% 
6.9% 1_2.5% 4._2% 
3.3% 18.3% 0.0%_ 

12.2% 51.2% 0.0% 
0.0% 58.8% 0.0% 
5.9% 26.5% 5.9% 
0.0% 26.7% 13.3% 

15.4% 36.9% 22.6% 
20.0% 37.0% 17.3% 

Other Other 
. . Spokane 

'i'rl- Yakima Tertiary Cities County 

0.0% 27.7% 6.4% 
0.0% 6.8% 25.0% 
3.4% 10% 1.7% 
4.7% _ 7.6% 1.3% 

' 8-394 8-24 Oi 
1. 4.5% , 5.3% 3.4% 
J 3§%__[_6.7% " 1.5%— 
' 5.4% 0' 4.5% _; 2.8% 
124% . 9-287 J 44% 

5.6% i 4.8%__! 72% 
5.0% L8.3% _‘ 0.0% 

39% . 0.0% _. _4_.0% 
1 145% f 39.7%_'_ 0&3: 
{ 7.0% . 5.8% 10.5% 
! _3.8%_ _[ fl 1 3.1% 
l 3.3% . _4._6%_ _I_ 7.2% 
"6.7% l 2.8% l 0.2% 
. 2.6% __' 3.1% l 0% 
112.9%l1414 ' 2-44 
____5_.5% _ 2.8% 8.3% 

18.8% II 8.8% 0.9% 
_ 1_25.7%_;__5.‘6% 2.1% 

T 1.4% ’ 8.34 g 7.1% 
I 2.9% 7.6% _ 10.5% 
J 2.5% 7.5% |_ 0.9% 
_ 2.6% 13.2% 7.9% 
[ 56.9% ; 4.2% l 1.4% 

45.0% 10.0% 1.7% 
' 19.5% 2.4% I 0.0% 

14.7% 8.8% 0.0% 
l 5.9% 17.6% 17.6% 

6.7% 6.7% 10.0% 
7.4% 8.1% I 1.7% 
7.8% 5.0% 3.8% 

6.4% 
15.9% 
1._7% 
3.8% 

_ 50% 
89% 

[_ 3.1% 
3.0% 

l 183% 
I__ 43.94 
] 1._7% 

4.0% 
2;9% 
4.7% 

23.7% 

7.0% 2.1% 
firm:— Wagington CHARS State database, 2014-2018, excludes all newborns, swing beds and observation. 

Page | 18 



Inpatient Payer Mix of PSA Residents 

Data in Table 15 shows that Medicare is the primary payer for discharges in the PSA, followed 
closely by Commercial 8: HMO. Over half of all discharges are paid by Medicare and Medicaid. 

Table 15 
Provider Inpatient Payer Mix (Discharges) of PSA Residents, 2014 and 2018 

Commercial 8: Medicaid Medicare Self-Pay & Other 
HMO 

2014 2018 2014 2018 2014 2018 2014 2018 
41411 52.4% i 50.0% ' 12.3% 7.3% _'34.2% 39.1% 1 1.1% 3.6% | 
222:: Reg'mamed'ca' 36.1% 45.6% 10.2% 4.3% I 47.7% . 47.0% J 6.0% _ 3.0% l 

'A—sfia Sunnyside Hospital 16.6% ‘ 9.1% 50.0%; 51.4% _ 29E 37.7% ‘ 4.0% 1.8% 
Other Tri-Cities 48.7% . 27.7% 159% 16.1% _ 33.6% I 50.6% _ 2.7% l 5.6%" 

:OtherYakima County 44.9% ‘ 47.8% 20.3% 12.4% ‘ 32.0% ' 37.9% 2.8% i 1.9% 
(SpokaneTertlary i 33.3% 29.2% 37.3% 40.0% . 23.5% _ 26.7% f 5.9% l 4.2% 
’SeattleTertiary ' 30.5% ' 38.3% 34.0% . 29.7% j31.5% 27.5%. 4.1% 4.53fl 

All Other } 29.2% 32.8% _ 18.8% l 31.1% . 41.7% j 32.8% i 10.4% i 3.39;: 
i PSA Total - _ ‘ 35.3% 46336 . 2i8_% I 14.9% 337.6% 41.5% 4.2% 3.4% 

Source: Washington CHARS State database, 2014-2018, excludes amwborns, swing beds and obsertzation. 

D. PSA Swing Bed Volumes 

Total swing bed discharges for PSA residents totaled 84 in 2018. Discharges in the entire PSA 
have increased by 65% since 2014 (Figure 5). PMH has a dominant market share of PSA resident 
swing bed discharges (96.4% in 2018) and overall, has seen a significant increase in swing bed 
discharge volume since 2014. 

Figure 5 
PSA Swing Bed Discharge Trend, 2014-2018 

120 
100 34 84 
80 - 
60 
40 
20 

2015 2016 2017 

I Service Area I PMH 

Source: Washington CHARS State database, 2014-2018. Kept swing bed unit only. 

Page | 19 



E. PSA Outpatient Volumes 

To estimate outpatient PSA volume, HFPD obtained 2014, 2016-2017 outpatient estimates from 
IBM Truven Analytics’ Outpatient Profiles, Code Profiles“. Truven collects governmental and 
select commercial outpatient claims data at the CPT code level which, after some adjustments 
for unavailable claims, produces estimates by zip code for specific CPT codes. Table 16 shows 
the largest service lines (by volume) include lab, physical therapy, X-Ray, ED, and outpatient 
surgery (minor5). 

Table 16 
PSA Market Outpatient Volumes 8: PMH Market Share, 2014, 2016-2017 

2014 PMH 2016 PMH 2017 PMH 
Service Line PSA Market PSA Market PSA Market 

' Volumes Share Volumes Share Volumes Share 
Lab Tests I 248,505 TBD 312,066 TBD 327,086 . TBD _ 
Physical Therapy sessions . 81,186 _ TBD . 94,147 TBD . 91,197 TBD 

l X-Ray Procedures IW I _ .. 34,835 I; _ TB_D _ 23,499 _ TBD ! 23,446 I TBD 
Emergency Department6 _2},§2 I _ _T_B£ I 22373 I TBD I 21,743 I T32 _ I 
Outpatient Surgery procedures, minor i 1_9_,_697 I _T_BD__ _. 15,792 . '_I'BD 14,417 I TBD _, 

I Outpatient Surgery procedures, ma]or__ 7,824 I T_BD I 1,712 TB_D _ 7,558 I :Bg_ _| 
! cr Procedures _ __ [ 4,334_ l _ TB_D 7,157 I TBD i 7,3§4_ l 30 ] 

Ultrasound - Other procedures _ __ I 5,113 I T80 I 7,355 TBD __ 5,793 I TB_D 
Mammography Procedures __ i___ 5,7_72 I’ _ _ TED l 5,118 i 18D 1 5,064 E TBD 
MRI Procedures . 3,410 __'I_'BD 4,139 TBD 3,958 TBD 

1, Ultrasound - 03 procedures: _ [ 3,370 _, TBD [_ 3,150 , TED J 3,644 ' T_B_0_ 
Gastroenterology Endoscopy Procedures 2,836 . TBD 2,856 TBD 2,945 TBD 
Echocardiography 2,739 TBD 3,010 _ TBD I 2,710 T_BD_ 
Chemotherapy visits I _1,990 TBD 1,395 _ TBD 1,411 TBD 
c_ardiac Rehab visits _ f 635 | 'II'BD 1,304 TBD _ 1,252 I TBD 
Occupational Therapy sessions 365 TBD 455 TBD 406 TBD 
Nuclear Medicine 404 TBD . 273 . TBD 297 TBD 

Total ' 434,246 ' TBD ‘ 510,312 ‘ TBD 520—310 1'00 
Source: Truven Analytics outpatient estimates 2014, 2016-201 7. 

4 Truven market data is only available for 2014, 2016, and 2017. 
5 Truven defines minor surgery as those occurring in Hospital Outpatient Departments and Physician offices; while 
major surgery is defined as those procedures occurring in ORs. 
‘5 Truven updated its Emergency Department methodology in 2016 for WA State counties, including Benton and 
Yakima County. 

Page I 20 



Table 17 shows the current PSA volumes for new and established patient office visits. 

Table 17 
District Outpatient Office Visit by Type & PMH Market Share 2014, 2016-2017 

Office Visit Type 2014 PSA PMH Market 2016 PSA WH Market 2017 PSA WH Market 
Volumes Share Volumes Share Volumes Share 

New Patient 22,142 TBD 22,084 TBD 21,185 TBD 
Established Patient 169,946 TBD 139,473 I TBD 140,312 TBD 

Total I 192,087 I TBD y 161,558 l TBD 161,497 — TBD _ 
n 

_ _ _ _ . _ . _ _ . _ . . . _  _ . - _  

Source: Traven Analytics outpatient estimates 2014, 2016-2017. 

F. Competitor Profiles 

An overview of the main competitors is included below: 

Kadlec Regional Medical Center 
Kadlec Regional Medical Center (Kadlec), located in Richland, WA, opened in 1944 to care for 
Hanford workers and their families. Kadlec offers primary and specialty care including open- 
heart surgery and interventional cardiology, the region’s only level III Neonatal Intensive Care 
Unit, acute rehabilitation, an all digital outpatient imaging center, as well as a number of other 
services and programs. In early 2014, Kadlec affiliated with Providence Health 8t Services with 
the goal being controlling health care costs and providing improved services to Kadlec’s service 
area. 

In 2017, Kadlec established two express clinics, one in Richland and one in Kennewick (both 
with same day appointments, published pricing and operating 8am to 8pm, seven days per 
week). Today, Kadlec operates 48 clinics in six communities and offers 26 specialties. 

Kadlec is currently licensed for 270 beds, with 254 available". Over the past 10 years, Kadlec has 
increased its licensed bed capacity from 203 to 270. Kadlec has a Certificate of Need 
application pending requesting another 67 bed increase. Approximately 58% of Kadlec’s 
patients come from Benton County and 7.7% from PMH’s PSA. Kadlec’s market share of Benton 
County is approximately X% and its market share of the PSA is 37%. 

Kadlec is 26.7 miles and 31 minutes from PMH under normal drive times. 

7 Kadlec submitted a certificate of need application requesting approval to add 67 acute care beds in three phases. 
The original decision date was March 2019. Based on current timelines, a decision is likely by late summer/early 
fall 2019. 

Page | 21 



Astria Sunnyside Hospital 
Astria Sunnyside Hospital was formed with the consolidation of two hospitals (Valley Memorial 
H05pital and Sunnyside General Hospital) in 1986. Astria Sunnyside became a critical access 
hospital (CAH) in 2004 and offers a Level IV Emergency Room, Intensive Care Unit, a Level 1 
Cardiac facility, a Cancer Center, a Family Birth Center, Nephrology, inpatient and outpatient 
surgical services, wound Care including a hyperbaric chamber, an intensive outpatient 
behavioral health services and outpatient hearing and speech services. 

Astria’s 2018 market share of Benton County is less than 1% and its market share of the PSA is 
17%. 

Astria Sunnyside Hospital became an affiliate of non-profit Astria Health in September 2017. In 
May 2019, Astria Health filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy citing-issues with an electronic health 
records system and a company it hired to manage its revenue cycle last year. Astria Health 
indicated a large number of accounts receivable claims had not been processed resulting in a 
cash flow shortage. Astria Health expects to emerge from bankruptcy by the end of 2019. 

Astria Sunnyside Hospital is 17.3 miles and 23 minutes from PMH under normal drive times. 

Trios Health 
Formerly Kennewick General Hospital, and owned and operated by Kennewick Public Hospital 
District, Trios served Kennewick, Pasco, and Richland—and surrounding communities. Trios is a 
an 110 acute bed hospital, Operating two campuses (Southridge, which opened in 2014 and 
Auburn Campus, which offers women’s and children’s services). In the Spring of 2018, Trios 
Health filed for bankruptcy and it was acquired by LifePoint in August 2018. 

Trios’ market share of Benton County is approximately 24% and its market share of the PSA is 
4.5%. 

LifePoint Health, also acquired Lourdes Medical Center and Lourdes Counseling Center in late 
2018. Lourdes Medical Center, a 25 bed CAH that also operates a 10 bed acute rehabilitation 
unit) is located in Pasco, Franklin County (adjacent to Benton County). LifePoint also owns and 
operates Lourdes Counseling Center, a 32 bed psychiatric hospital located in Richland. 

Trios Health is 33.4 miles and 33 minutes from PMH under normal drive times. 

Page | 22 



Section 3: Future Projections 

TBE) 

Page | 2 3  



fl 5.8. .3 8550 2.5 a 5.....53 .55 .8 85... a 5.. 5.. 5» 5.25.5 » . 55¢ .88. 

5555.5 5959.5 535.8 35.5 .5“. .5... - - - 55¢ 550 - - - 00cm_mm can". uwfiamcm - - - $0004. 035535 
535.5 85.33” 535.8 85.5 .5". 5.2525. - - - £80 555...". 5555:... mesa—am ucsu 

.. u n Bong E0550 :02 .550 d “cop—0305.:— 

SEwwfi 2:512 N553” 5.....5: 5.3 55.08.: «5.52.2 535.9 55.5.". a .5: >55... 52 
$563.5. 3858.5 515.5 

55.5550 55.358... 
335.5 0555.5 5.53.. .5555 a 5.". 5555 

«5.556 855.: . v5.58“. 
5.....5... .550 52 .33 05.55 25.53 5.53 .05.. - 55.2% 85.555 a0 5 5.. 555... 5 0.5m. - - 98.8.... m0 5 5.. 0.55 5 m0 . 55.05.: 535.2 233.8 382 555.50 58. 

5°52 - - n.0 5 5: 553 .550 - - 58.58; .582 35mm. mm. 0.5m 5 
55.05.... 20.5% «55...... n.0 5 5.. 255a 55m. - - - .582... 328m. 8555.... 55 

«25...: ”5.55.: 55.5%.? .E - 55.5.50 55:“. 555... .550 52 5:55 .5655 535 550 - 55.0250 55:". 
5.5.5:; «5.2.3 N55? .5: - .5". 5555.5 

«5.5.x... 5356 «E. r 5.2 5.....5... .550 .5: - - - 55“. 52.. 00: $5 - - - 5.....5... .550 5:5 
5m. .2 55.5 55.5 5.55.". .55.... 528... 598...? «5.55.: 55.535 55... .550 EB - - 95.8...” 

555m 0500 5550 m 5.5. 552 35.5.5 55.... .550 550 
«5.5.. 55.5“ 835 555m 28.5.... «Eu 55.8 :35; 53.5.. 50.23 

5255 252.". 
858 835 835 5.5a. .5 o. 5.55; 550 535 535 «5.2.. 

5.55. 
53% 5w. .5 «5.5...» 5.55“. 55a .80 26.8» 52.5.... 5.53 
55a. 55m .5 EB. 5.5.551 

5.55 «2.55 535 555m 5h 5550 535 :38 “5.5.... 
535.83... 5m 
55.53 ~5.2...~ 95.53 5.....5... 555m 5 5.5.. 
538; 58.5; 55.5.“ 5.555 5.582.. .5. :3 535.2 «5.53 

5.5.505. .55; 52 - E :5 53... .50 55.5 .0 0.5m 5 5.5a. .550 $5.835 38.53: 88.5.0.3. 255.55: 5 5055...... 55.. 5N5. .50 55 0: m0 5 5.5a. .550 535.2 53.5.8 «5. 5.5 
5.6.555”. 3582 .55". 520 

55.5.». 95.2.“ 2.35 555.. 55.5.50 5 552 5 5.5a. .550 
08.5“ 83.5 Sofiu 255.". 5.5. 5 5.5a. .550 598k. 55.5 .55....» 95555. 5553 a 58 

23.3»? 39$a 333»? 2.333 89853 33.3? 
85.8 .25". 0 5.55... $32 

one" .5 .52 
“—02.6 coca—um 

5.00... .otoEmz y 
00wm00n. ‘rk 

Do acwfisuwfid 



] 
man man new 3'» who a...» rmlulrg an“ 

www.mmmdm nww...mm.m~ mmofmmdn 

wmmdmodu anecbmdm mmoéwmdm 

Exammhww 5‘... EYE. «occupmfim 

his. .. rm. 5. 9.105.... vmvdoqmw 
moimhtm movdhwfi moimtxm - - mhmfimo. .. 

3.0.80.6 m refine... whodmod 

EQENK mmndmm... 91.... 56.. 

chmdw $.d $3.69 
. . www.mood oowdmm omwfivN mm ...oNN mohmwv mohmov 2.....m wkmdmw owN. rum cowimm... . mm P .mNm mmhfimm 

awed 5.0 vd ...m.~ mvmdwflm 
new... a... marina... Sawdww 
mam.hh.. 1. tan .wmh.$. vmmdm .. 
956 F... whmfi...‘ ”~99... 
08.0..N godhw ooodhw 

2.3. 3...... anon. um...” 33.e 

coca—um 3:...“— $ 85.3....— .50... 

8:23 9.5". .30... 35.8 .25". 3.0.33”. 35...... ES". 33:52:: 8523 ES". 
$5.55.. .30... 

$2.35... 2250 82 :38 
a0 .0 .9. mates... .0 xcmm 

no .5 .2 xcmm m: we 
go .o .8 $3.. 3.30 
go .o .8 magma. $5... 

35.52.. E25 82 

mo_.___am_._ .550 .58 
82%: 22.8 .25 

magma 622:. 3284. $55.. 0500 3.550 
3:961 9.8.q mIm 32.0.00 

8.5... Em 0. 839.8 .25 
23.6.. :oaam. .80 

03:96”. .8... 3:200 
$3.9m: case”. 4. =25. «59.9. £589.. 

58 SEE... .0 .23 .o .5.t .550 
Eon. VEmm w: mm. .0 20....0n. E250 

mam—3.. uo~._m..n_mo a 3.02 .o co...5n. .cmtao 
039...... 22.3 .o :o.ton_ .cmtso 

35...... as... a «2......5 

38 .8 
__:_< 

.395 353m 
5:00: 5.556.). 

.mmmoE 
‘1' 

'K 

E «8.2. a 853.3. .8 3m 3 a 

mag... «3.8.... 338.2 anatodu. 38.338 £3.55“. 338.... $35.? RN83... 
.33..” $3“... 3.8....” 

mm».....¢.m. 83%.. 23%.... 
- - @868; 

8a....» 
- - 

E9038 «$.35. 83$... NBS. $3.3 33$ 
838.. «$63.. «8.23 

238.... ”5.80.... 35%...“ 33.3 3%.: .38.... 
”8.8... £3.83 80...... $32. 8...... «8.2.. $38 833.. .m..-m.. ”8.8 :38 $38 

".85.... 533.2 «9..d .8339. 8868...: 6868...: 98.8.3 .moflmg «mafiwdw 

NEH... $238 338... 23.5.3. 33...»... 33...»? 

309.4 .53 

£39.. .050 
9.39.. 03.95:. 

£80 9.055". 005.352: 
3899. .2950 :02 550 w .5533. 

.cwEnficm. w. .5... €2.05 52 
5.5.0230 3.5.3882 

.cwEnEUm. w Em... 3.2.2.... 
ucm. 

333. 3.2930 Emom 
.583. 26.6mm. mm. scam m... 

E308... 26.0mm. meta—5.. .o E3 
5... - 5.5.90...a 3.2.5". 

:28 - 5.5.0230 3.2.5“. 
n=w._ - ES". umm:m..:>> 
wuss". .83 00.... 3....“ 

£03... .2950 .30... 
39mm... .cwtao .550 

mmmcwnxm. v.32... 
E952. 

.26.". ban. Em ES. c.0933”. 
m_am>.mowm v.98... 

moamzmoom Egan. 32 
93.82.08: .6. mwucmao=< $0.. ”Emaflowm ME =§< “Ewe—fin— map—Q 

«.55.n bacon—aw... w :80 

2q 



$2.. 18.3.... a $9 - a 5...... a .953 a .33. 2.3.... .2. $3 8.6% a $3. “868 a. 5......” a «2.8.. a 
.. 

.$|n.. 
3......" Eu... 

3...". 83mm .36.." 2:8... 2.5.2.0 .8: .8... $3. $3.». #7 .94.". 2o...» .8...» $8.- 89.6. $2. 2...... a him 8» .omcmnxm. 958... 9.5.2.0 .52 3...... $.. .L $.. mm. .3 25 
$8 3%.... $..- .m..$ 83...... 38$: magnum. .33.... $2. $8.8. $m $2.3 $8.8. 88.6... 

$m- $3.. $..- .818 $3.... 3.3.. 2.8... 2.5.9:. $8- 8.5 $ .N. 8...... SEN 8...... $.. amusmm $.. 2...... ~32... «3.m «2.25m .8. $. 2...... $e m2... 8...... 23$ 
«.53... gay—mac no: 

Pal... 
tuck... E Mafia: 35$. acne-.m- .§.. «58:. 9.3.5.... $3. «Page $3... .368 3.4...." 83.3 

$.. 39%.... $.. .333. 5.3.... 80.3...." «35...... 9......2... .5... $a 23...... $.. 33...... .368.» 8.5....» 
$3 ”$4.8... $. .38 83......- ~om.....m... 

$2...a 323-82 .sozzm $2 3.5%... $.. 2......- mmmfiq. 23.8.. $«. 2&8... $2 5...».- ouo.8.. $3... $2....q 8.90.6 .25 $.... and... $3 3....» 83$ $3.. 
$N~ 5.5.. $o 02.. .8.8.. Stu... 5.53.55... a 5.3.858 $- .35.. $ .- 82.. 5 33$ $8.3” $.m .558 $.3- 8......<.. 33..“ 8... .mm 8...... a «2.8... 8:23... $3” 2...»... $8- 82$. $1.... 8....» $.. 82.... $a 83.. m.n...m... 83$. 3%.... w «.95.. $mm. $.38 $2 «2.8 2.3... 21$. 

$.- .32.... $.. $36 aqua... «5.93.. .25 - 3228 3.22.... $3- ....u.....~ $.N $93 madam manna... $m $32 $.. 9...... «9...... mwmdm. 82...: - “8.28 3.9.2.... $... “at...” $8 8...». 8...... 9....» $.... oB.....o.~ $.. 8...... 25.53.. «$.85 
8......5 $m- 333 $3 «3...... 3...... 98% 

$0 $33 $2- 3...... 23.... End.“ .25 - m8". .mco_mmo..o.n. $..... 2.3.. $3.- 83.»... 83.. 318 
$mm $8.3... . $.- 338. $9.90.“... $5.83 25%.... - 3...“. 35.3%... $8 53$ $8. 8. 3.... $8....» 3...... 
$m 93.83. $.... 8.6.2... m8.....~$ cabana. £80 3...... 3.3.55 $m lemme-3...” 

$... 68.8.. $3»... 29.3.3 $N- $32.... $..... 88.2.». ”2.3.. 8.3... 3...... Emacs... $3- $8.89 $8. $5.... 2.3... 8... .8 
$.. 232$ $m- Gab... 8.62.... 8.3.3 9:29... $5 8...Q $3- 83.3.. 533 ”8.8. $.. 8...~....... $.- 88.“... 33$... 33...... 3.5.3 $» m...$2.~ $.. «5...... $3.83 2.5....“ newcoaxm. 9:830 

$¢ 9. tuna...“ $n .uu. . .m Sign..." Ems»... .N 3:26.. $2 $2 «on. .m ..m $m. 39.8.. Soc-Ba .8636 
$8.. 8%.... $8m 593...... 8nd...” magfi 2.5.6.. $330 350 $23 83... $. .5 mm... .03 32$ .38....“ 
$9 9358.... $. 33.2% .. 83R...“ 8m.8m.... 

2.5.5... 325.... 2.2.9.. 52 $9.- «2686 $mw. 382$. .. magma .38....” 
$... .mu.mm.....~ $2 mung...»- mww...5...m Stat...“ 3:93.. so... 20:33.. .83 $0... mmm......... $3 .35“... «Pod-8... anus? 
$3. mm...-m.. $2 89.8.... $.53... 33.... 5...... E... $.m- 892$ $..~ 83.. 81%. $38 
$2- 8.6% $.N E32 .238 8.....9. 28 2.55 $9.. 96$. $2. «2.8. 8...... Rad. 
$m. 25.3w...~ $2 Ewan... $363.3 Ewe-2...“ «8:26.... $302.50 .2. $m..- 3.....8... $..m «8.5.... $3.2m... . 5.5.5 $m- 2.0.3....“ $2 made... 3.68.8 Em........~ 

“3:25.... 333.28 320 $9.. SHE»... $31 $9.8... 8.62... 2&5...» $3 Sodom $8- sandal 
2......- wmufim $5532.30 $8- $5.“. $... 2...... 2...»... 8...... $9 .3636 $2 2m........ 98.93... 83......» 8...... 3.3092 $...- 33%.. $2 «8.3.... 31...... $38 

$.2- oumde. $... 83%.. 83mm. .. «3.8.... 28.3.... $8. 2.3...“ $8 3.....8 88......- Sada...“ $m «8.3.... $.N 8....2.~ 218%... 8mg... 28.3... $3. o..~.mn.... $8 $38.. o.........~ $.38 
woocfi¥9=< fiaumhcou 

0::95u— Ear—h MEG—965360 

.$m- «$22.... $0.- 3......Ré m.......~..m .2.$....... 3:25.... mooEam 22...... «new .3... $8. 5...... .$ $..... sandman. $3.82.. @358... $.- $8.85.. $0.- «8.2%... 
_ 

.8584... m8.mm...8 Engage $3 Show...» $9.. .83....9 .m._.8.o. 23.86 
$.. 8mg... 9 $9. .mu....~m. . $.53... .. 83...... a .52.... $2- 93......“ .. $.«. .212... .. «268$ . minus...” a 

03:25”— mqflm ”Ea—awn— mug—0 
o... m2. $. smut; «mu—=5 333. $. 23> $_ 85...; gunman .253. gar—n. enun— Ou Lwa> hotn— uE—ucm EEG: 

.mmmo..n_ 
3..” .8 =3... 23.225 .0 «coEwufiw 

£2061 _U_._OE@Z 
\J' 

'\ 



cut-EN.» 

Ngdmmfiu 

«mafimudr 

ceicmufl 

:3...8.s 
$350.9 

0% 
33.83 

hunfimofiw 

Edmod 
Famdhhfi 

«8.35, 
893 

emiwom 

S than 

30.....— Im<0 huz 

muzazm 

02.22.0mm 

moz<4<m Iw<0 

Iw<0 z. MOZ<IU hmz 

mmF_>_._.o< 02m>z_ >m cum: :20 .52 
33:91 «5.532.. 

20m £391 53a co mumooen. 
gimp—0.5a Efimo 

mm_._._>_._.0< 02....mm>z_ EOE". 250..“— +540 

sFémn—O >m nun—50¢."— =m<0 ._.mz 

35%: E $32q 0390:. 
30mg. 5 3320:: $3800 

nah—n20 02—2103 
-_<._.O._. 

£32 “—0 2mm :0 Eng 30.. 

205325n 
3:0a coafloflaon 

Ammo... msooz Ez 

cwwdcofi 

”Twining“ 
ommfinwfi _. 

.252 
w._.<n_ O... ¢<m> 

mzopgmn—O >m 1939 .52 Oh ioz. .52 

anon .8 .22 
£50.". :30 he E9556 

5.3: 6:050: \ 

oundwofi 

85.65 
8.8d 
08 

A $.83 

333.» 

mNtSmd 
gangs 

«3.33 

893 

hwmdNN 

09¢.c 

.533 
5205. hzmmmao 

JV mmoEArx 



n I H E H 

23.83.. 3.....3 $3.3... 83.3... .313... .«3. r. : «3.3» .33 3.: 33.32. 2 :3... 31.3 333... 30.... 29.0 E: 

«3.3».3 3m.3...3 “3.3 :3 35.3.3 3.33.3 3231.3 93.33: 353.3 5.5.3.2 93:35 5.33... 53.23: ozazm 
333.3 3.5.3 @3333 mamas... 23.31.: 8.23.23 353.2 .3235 93.3.: «3.33.2 2.35.3 3.35... 02.22.32. 

325% :26 
H“ H . 

i a“ H 

23.3.... 32...»... 63.3: 33.3.... .813: 33.3: «363 .3152: 33.93. as... E. 3.3» 39.33.. .33 2. 32.2.... .52 

.313». .393: «3.3.. .313: .853 9.3.3: 5.3.3 3.5.3». 35.3... .839. 33.3. .2233. 32.5.51 922.352. >2 nun: :93 E: 
33.3. .3... 313.. 333. «3.33 3......3 93.3.. .33. .33. .33. $3. 822% 2.2%... .5335. 

cam . - - . - u .. . . - - Sow «33¢ .5.a ca @3321 
.333. 83.3 : 83.3. .233. 333... 8353. 38.3: .333... 83. E: 33.3... 33.3. gnaw: 3.322.... .338 

3.55... 3.59.2. so»... 35... :93 

333... 333 2.3.3". .313: 33.3... 98...... .3. 3. :33: .513: $33.. 33.3... SEE.“ mzo=<2mmo >2 $2502... 290 E: 

98.33. 333 23.3 £3.23. .33.... «5.3 :32 2363 :3. .3. 3... .3 as... a. 3.3.. 3.....3... c. @328... $35... 
Q3334 3.23m .8. .8... 83.3.... 23.3... 3...... 82.3... .3... .3... 313 33...... 33.3.: 3...“... “.3“... 5 $3.92.. $.2q 

.2223 52.2202. 
:36 «3.3 35.2 533 3......3 38.3: 33.3 33.3 «8.3" 83.3: .333 23.3.. .53 

Sam. .. - - - - - - - a - . Emma... .0 02.2% no €30. mac. - - - - I - - - .. u + - :0..m~EoE< 
.333 2.3.3 3m...- Raga 33.3 8.33 .333 8min =93 E 53 «5:3 .353 35...... 5.5.82.8 

33.3: .352... .313: 13.93 333 $2.63. 2.... 3 3......3 .3...» 32.3.... 335. 3.3:. .30... E282. Ez 

mzoEEmEO E 23.0 .52 2. usooz. E: 
.38... .38... .82... .38... .952. .923 .32.... .38... .22.... .35... .39.. .223. 

3...}. 3.3.... 3.3". 3-3.. 3.8.... 3.32 3.25 21.8 3.9.... 2...... 3.5... 2.3.... 
53.23 

33 .3 .22 
22.. 5.5.... N. . «as... 230 .o .5523 

5:09.. .020s 
‘1‘, $30.32!... 



gnu-E .53 km: 

wow—(lam :90 

:39 2. ”02110 km: 

. waged 02.5.: .5 nun... :30 km: 
mcamzflza fi—a 

3.53 $335.33.. 3399m— =2t— 
flceEzmn. Eamficfl EoEoEow 

mag—mam. n3 
3:33". Emu—wa— 

xun. =aw 
nEoO €3.53 

<> 
0.6235. 
Eng—5.2 

_m_EmEEoo 
amamuufl mks—misread. 

fights-man. >fl nun—SOME IMF... hm: 

r050 
.3553. .w—coummv 125n :30 

3:256."— EoEwn. :02 3:5 

mm..—.=E.0< B::.mm>z. :01". ”5:04". :30 

838..“ $5.: .33.: 8863. 38.8: 53...: «363 £55.: 83.33 

«363.2 83.3.2. 59.3.3». $32.2. madman! 26.315 93.33.... 353.2 93.93:... 
333.2 Sagan... magma. 333.2 «863.2 3953.2 2....33. $53.: $9.85.: 

«8.3:; 3.5." 33.3.: 38.33 33.8: Rani: «3.8» 525:: 33.8». 

:35“: 38.3: 83.3 33.3: $33 33.8: 3.3.3: $25: 63.5: “No.8: A83“: 33.3 35.35 893“ 33.83 33.3: 33.5.: 58.5: 

Buds? 35.3» 522.: £3.89 55.2.3 Eamon 233 5:8: $3.3: 
$1.5 $8.5 

- $8.3: $3.5 :2.n twig. $3.5 £2..v 82.3%: $2.5m: 33.23: 5»n 85%: "3.3%.: 338:: figafid 88.8%: - - - - 8:33.: A833: 3:52.: £938.: 835%.: $3.83: 82.5.: 2869.“: 38.85.: saga: 
3%.: can: 38.: 33.: 38.3 38...: 33.8: Ewan: ate: 

Raga". «3.21m 83:. 5 .5356 S finned «8&3.» "Edam flask...” "2.2....m ”3.3%.“ «36% mmd 53:“ £38 SEE 3+8 8E9. 
and: mE.~2 «8&2 EBB 8E8 33$ Samoa 85.3“ 23.... 8.32 83.: 5d «3.8 «atom: .38 22:. 
~38 RN...» 8am» 52.“ 25.8 2a....” «6.2 $3.. 

333; 83$; 33mm 3.33 539"; $35.. 8983 wagon 
was“; mafia“; 56:; SEE n85”? 8985 Sudan; mama... 3:85 833.... 95.8.5 «REE 8m...:.~ 83:; 53.83 ethane; 

m3 .553 .52 . .53 333 .53 .553. .53. 359.. 3:18.... 9'13“ 
3 sea: g mg. mg gag nag «Eng 33 n 

02:23—m 20¢...— mBOJu. :90 

Raw an E9. 
.zaEaSm so... :30 625 
55.2.. 3:0s 

:mmmohn. A \J lrt‘ 



..$.. 888 . $8 
mmwm 8.88 2.8 

$2 88 $8.- .88. 8... 8... 
$2 8.2 $3. 8.... m...mm 8.8 $2 8.... $2.. .82. B... 88 

$2 8.2 $8 8... 8.8 5.2 
$¢ 8.8m $m 8.2 2.2.m 2.8m 

E 8.2m $8 8.8 8. 8 88m 
$8 moém $8 mm... 8.8 8.8 

. 

$m £88 $m 2.8 8.8m 8.8m 

$¢mm SK .8... 2m.m o8.m $2 22.. $v 2.... 88m 8m.m $.. 08.8 $8- .28. 22... 88 
$o 2.8... $8- $8. 88.... m8.” $m 82.8 $8- :8. 8m... 28.... $2 88$ 8. :8. 2.8 2m... $2- 85.. $2- .23. 92.8 28.2.. $8- 8.8 $2- :8. 8o... 28.» $8- 8.. $8- 82. :8 :8 
$2 .2 $.... 2... 22 22 

$2- $2. $2- $8- $8 8.. 
$m 8.2 8. .85. 2.2 2.2 $m- 8.m $m no... m...m 8m 

$2.- 83 $2- 35 ~82 8m; 
$2- 8.2 $2- .8. 2. 8.2 8.2 $2- m26 $8- $2.... 8....- 888 
$2- .... $8- .2. 8 8 
$2- .8 $m- am. :8 m8 
$m- 88 $m- 8m. 08 m8 

$2- 83 $2- 28. 23 Em; 
$2- :8 $8- .8: 8m 2m 
$2- 8.. $8- .8. m8 8.. 

uuflx. .x. flop—fits, amflfiflfl Wand. 38...... 3...“. flan. 8 ..uo> 

5:60... .0...OEmZ 

.5m... 

M"rm—Pu. Ban. :6. 

wE-E 535...... umfimbcoo 

m.m....n. 22.0.. 88:25 ..< 
m.w..l.. 2.20 3.09.50 

m.m....n. ENE...- 3958.30 

«ME 2882.". 

w.m....n. mazefiEm. ..< 
m. -..n. Eugen. uwmoafim. 

amt-n. .220 Encapcm. 
...zm..<>.=.um ugh-4.5... Mona... 

m..m_> "35.0 5.8.... 9:232. - 1.2.". 
285 0......0 2.0.38.0 - .-..2n. 

285 0.5.0 L082n. - ....2n. 
22> 256 an. SE8. - _.__>_n_ 

0.5.0 ~£8586 1.2.". 
mmm. 30.0.3”. 

Ema-r E2238. 
285 .85 mocmmzwfim. 

8.5.9391 .8550 
«2.53.2. 

.8. 3:32.80 Emu Ezu< 
.umm 9.2.0 - >20 .0 £98... 

mum-.03... 
.238... 

- >20 .0 £95.. 
mma..m>< 

392.85 023.6... 
2..»c 2.80 mam-.03... 
28 .58; 8.2.3. 
8.92.8.0 tom @530 

3928.0 2.2.2.... 
m:o_mm_Eu< 2.2.3.... 

mann— Euaunc. .20... 
game @530 2.2.3:. 
mhmn. 0.34 2.2.3:. 

muE:_o> $3. 

omen 6n ...=.< 
8.8.85 05.9.2.0 >3. 

. $2 8.8 8.88 2.5... 

$8- .82. 8... mmd 

8.2 2..mm 8. 2 
$82- .88... 82 32. 

$8 2.2 8.8 2.2 

$8 8.8 2 2.2m 8.8m 

$2 8.8 8.2mm 8.8m $m $3 8.8 E8 
$2 8.8 8.8m 8.8m 

9.8. m8 8.... 
$8. .82. 2m 8... 
$2- 62. 83 m8 

$8- 38. 28 88 
$1..- .8... 8o; 28 
$8- 8mm. Eqm 88.2 
$8- 2.2.... 8o.2 08... 

$2- .8... 8.... 8m 
$8- .mm. 2.2 mm 
$8- .2. 8 8 

$8- $2- $8 $8 
$8- 5+. 2.2 8... 
$8- .2... 2..m 8m 
$8- E... 28 88m 
$8- .82.. 8.2 2... 
$8- .38. 22.2 8 
$8- .m. 2 2 

$2- .2. 8 8 
$2- .2. mm 8 

$8- .m2. 2.... 8m 
$1.- .8. m2 8 
$8- .8. .8 m2 

.8 Scat—.5 .mausm .2502 

‘1‘ 

Ark 

9.3m 55: 



0H0“ 0NON n....> 

_IL_.- 
$0.00.. 

$0.00.. 

$0.00.. 

$0.00.. 

$0.00.. 

$0.00.. 

.90... 

350 can >3. :3 H 32.23:. .m.u..wEEou n 0.3.022 I 23.t H 

Umn. >02 ...UO ...n.mm 034. 
....= 23.. >5). "Ed. was). 2.31 

$5.0 3.2.2...“— >n. 355: $20 0N0N 
$ ...0 $0.0N $0. ..0 $0. 

..0 
$.00 $0.0m $0. ..0 $ _.. ..0 

$0.9. 
$¢.0 
$...0 

$¢K 
.25 Em and =8 

$5.0m 

$h. ..0 
$MKN 
$ ...~.N 
3:935 .m.o.mEEoo 

$0. ..0 
$0.N0 

$0.00 

$0.N0 

0.00.005. 

$...0N 
$0NN 
$0.00 
$0.00 

9.3.v 

one" .8 =54 
mun-.5 3.35:."— 3 2.55m. 

5.3... Etofiwfi 339:. 

$0 

$0M 

$0N 

$00 

$00 

$00 

$00 

$0... 

$00 

$00 

$00H 

0.0m 
0NON D...> 

own. 
>02 
...00 

ban—mm 
02¢ .50 

2...... 

><.>. 
In? 

1.3). 
mm“. 
2.3.. 

5:22 



5:5 .95.. >3. tum .0 3:23“... REE—:55”... m.“ 33.q I 9.3.q I 
o8“ at, an >02 to Ema ma. .5. 22 .522 $2 ”.52 mm: 

.8 
$3 

r- 
*8 

x8 , _ .n 
_ _. $8 

r . g8. 

_ x8 

_ . x2 

I._ 

_ $3 
1!! | _ . - 

_,|._ $3 
I. l .l .|. .82 

mum—U 3.2.5:."— >a 03:25.... 32 Snow 

$0.03 fiwd.‘ {omdm .3». FN .xédw m SN 
$6.8. $3. $.d $m.¢~ $93 omen 0.; 

own 
>02 
.50 

.Eww 
03¢. 
.55 
23.. 

. >32 
$0 8. $5“ gum. S 53.3 Qamdm ”Ea. 
$0.02 $3. 4%.: 

.xaéw $v€~ 132 
£6.03 

.xhd gut: n“flacw gadm mm... $98., 9.8..” $5; {Emu .dw 25. ES... $50 Eu .9... :8 8:33.... _m_o._aEEoo 28622 28605. 5:22 
. 

as .on ._.=.< 
mum—o 3.055". >2 2:35”. .02 

5.3... 53:85. 339:. 



mucus". .0 .5395 «3.... 9:235 
5q _m_u:m:_n_ .320 9.53.. 225 

“flowuzoo 
83.9... .83 

88.35 .83 

552.5 868...”... 868...“... wt in o m. a... 0 
24.3.3 2.63.3 3.33.9 ME .5... 02:93.. 9.5.2.0 52 
fidm $5.8 .33 3:961 9:930 .oz .0 a... n ma $2.55.. .95 .80 .33 
853.3 59%...» No.83.“ 33.9.3.2 

- Eh. .2. 3:28 .2... .80 .33 
8......» 24% 3.3... :8... BEES .2... mm... .33 
:68 8.3“... .8t 8.3m. 39.5... .9... pub". 9.832.". 

a... 
fin $16 $38 .25 “En. 
$55 $93 30.3 02.0.52... fiBEEEoo 

m9... 5 $93 $95 Emofios. 
gm. 5 $.....m gm...” 9.3.35. 

fix; 0==0>om map—0 ha— mcq—Ow 0::0>fl¢ “can—Gm 
38% g...“ gala s... Esflfimmoéfiua 

mm... 5. F Emu moEwm Ema 
3.2 3.2 8.: .23: Em... .0 on... 2.53.... 
m _..m EN mud can”. 9%:o figs—mo 
$8.9 #9..” 3mm... 3.... 35$ .5 E33. 

owdm nnéom and: A... 2.3.. 5530 
3.03 3&9. 3.8 8.33 was... so ammo 

mm; 5... 3d 3 95”. .550 
3&6 made 3.8 

$.33 0.5.3.801 9.583. $2 
$9...." $3 .85.. .25.". 58 9.5.30. :53... <98 9.530 
.3... $3.. $5. 38 596.2 mmmoxm 
gm.» g...» .3... 3... 59...... 9:230 

3:3. .3: 
8%“ Enos «4q 5.2... .oz 
33... «Ewan Samar «95.3... .30... 
Se... Bod 2m... son. 2.3-93 
2&5 25.0.. Bed “5% .5 9.39.3 $5.55.. €3.33 can .550 

agar 8Q? 33; 30mm... 3...". $2 
35: «Emu «8.2 .322 2.9.08... 3:38.. 
m an mmofi ooh m.:oE.ma>:_ tam :30 36:32:... 

.88. 32w 35.3. 
SN 8.. EN Eolfimam Eu .5... $.32“. 0. 22.53. 

Re... Eb.— 3~.~ 9.6.". :30 9.5.2.0. (em—m. 
Ba Em 35... £35a .95 2.5.6”. .0 ammoxm 
E. 8.. 9:... $322.0 EB. 38... 38:. 

«8.2 «atom 85.2 853m. 8.3.2.0 ES 
«3.8 3:. ..N mmmdw 2.5.6”. 9592.0 .33 

nhNdN 899. 08.2. 
2.5.6”. Emir...— 52 

8°93 moan—Eaton. _a_o:u=_n_ 
8.. mad cab .62.. x3 030 .3. mo... 

$6.3. .3d 
$0.3. A0355. «EEK .05 2.3., En... 

find» .39 .3? .x. $5.5m 23.350 
mN m.~ 0...... 

3.83 .65 .0 £95.. «magma... 
m...» Qua mém 33 3.9.80 3.3—3. 
ad m6 E. .3250 ammo amfim>< 
«mm; emu... 5...... 20.3.53. Ewing. 
own New mum aco_mm_Eu< 

. c.5355 

E 203: 
anew 

.cn 
__.=_< 

mcozfiano $352.."— 
5.DmI .U...OE@_>. 

._ 0mmOLn_ a!‘ 
‘1‘ 



Ammo: wEoUE mcsmhwaol mmmcwaxm mEEmQO Each-III... wscm>wx umzlll wscmSwz EB“. macro—Ema .muoklll. w: cm>wx mmuEmm “:2q $20 :32. 

ombwn om-:ma mfiémo ma -UO 2-3m 2&3 

.0:t m_m3u< 

3-5: 3&9). mfiind 

6868.: 

08684 

80.83 

83o 

ooodoo€ 

ooodoofi 

0006006 

ooodoofi 

ooadoofi 

0006005 

ooodoodfi 

ooodooéfi 

8068.2 

ooo.ooo.m.n 

ooodooéa 



22 2.. 2..- 22- $5.. 2...- 2.... 22 22 22. 2..- «5 :5- 5:2. 5:: Ea: «2...... 2:22. «.2 
25- .5- 2... 2..- 22 .2 F- 22 .2- 2..- 22- .5 .2 .5. :.:o:. .2... ES. 2.5:... «5:22. 58.0 

.5- 2.. «a- 2... .5 .5 «a 2.. «a .2- 22- 2.. .....«. 5:2: 5.... EB. :22: $5.5. «5.92.0 
25.5 25.5... .85... 25.8 25.2 52...... 55.5 

.25 25.5 2:5... 2...... 2......5 22.5 2:23. .oz 5 2 a 5: 3...... «5.5 
.52. «2.2. 2...... .52. «8.9. «2.5.. 2«..... 2:2. 225 55.... .22.. 25.2. 3:22. .«z .o «a .. a: 2.....«5 

2:2 .2... 2.....- 2:5 2...... «2...- .5... 25.5 $2..- «5.2- 
.2... «5.5 .8... 358:. «5.99.0 :oz. :55... 

2N2 2«.«. 
.22- 2m... 

.22 25. «5.5 2....” 
.52 .22- .5... 2.: 2.2 59...... 2.... 

53.58 a 32.3; 5 W232 a a 5565 a «3.5.. 5 ”52.8..“ o 5«.....« a 25.8 a 8.. .5 a «2.55 a «8.2.. a «2.2... a «2.2... 5 .53... «58:. .o: 
5.5.5 5.5.8 «3.5 «3.5 «2...... «3.2... 58...: E5 5.5.2 «b3... «3|? «I232 «36... «EB... «55.2.0 .52 .23 

85 . - .22. 
- 8...... «5.5 

- o8... 
- 83 - - .3595. «58:. «29.80 :oz 5:6 

82.55. 35.2. .«22. 82.2. .235. 52...... 82.5. 85.2.. 52.5. ...««....«. £85.... $5.8. £8.53 
3:35. .5225 

«8.2 52.2 58.2. ««5.«« «5.5 «5.5 «2.8 «2.5 25.5 52.5 «8.2 «2.2 52.2 «58:. 55.52:. 
55.2. ..5.«« «5.55 9.5.: 58...: 52...... 5.5.5 .22. 55.2 55.8 5N2. 25.5.. 2...«« 2:23. :2 

0:50:— mc=EunO :02 

58.2.. 2.2.22 82...»... 55.52 «3.2.. «a. «3.92 amok... 5:5 62.65. «5.5: «2.8.... |«|..«.§. 
.53... «ES... «55.2.0 

«2.5...5 «5.3.3 «5.3:... «««.52.5 5252.5 2.5.52.5 «5.5:... «8.55... «5.55... «2.53.... ..««...5... «3.25.5 «5.5:... 53:23. «5.22.0 .23 
25.25... ..........«...« «2.8.... «2.2.... 52.8.... 2:2 ..« 55.55.. 58.25... 52.22; 5:52... 5:...52.« 55.2.5.2 «5.25.. 323.5 3:332 2:26 
«5.2 «5....2 «55.52 «3.8. «2...... «2.52 22.....— .«3...2 «222 55.5 85.2. «2.52 5%... «8:25 2.5.30 5:5 
«55.52 2......«« «5.««« ««m.««« ..5...«« «2.««« .....«.««« «8.....« «5.«..« .. P «.«..« 23.8 5«.«..« 53.2 ::_.:«_EE< a 52:2..3 
«2.5.. «2.5 «2.2.. «2.65 «5.5.. 58.5 «2.8 «5.8 ««...«« m 5...... ..««.«.. 2...: 55...... «9:2 .5 3:8... «29:2. 
«5.5. 5«.«2 «8.2. 5.....2 «2.52 29.52 55.52 232 25.52 5.2... 2«.«2 2.52 2...«..« $2.... a 5.38m 

52.««« «2.55 55.52 2... 5« «2.52 «8.25 55.52 .««.««« «m... 5« 55.55 «5.....« 55.52 2«.««« 
2.5 - 58.255 3522...“. 

m 5. 5 «2...... «8.5.. «2.5.. 85.5 52.2. 85.2. 85.2 «5...: «5. s. 55.3. «8...... «2.8 52...... - 58.2.5 38:23. 
55.55 2«.«2. 55.2.. «3.2.. 55.2.... «2.5.. «55.52 52.2 «3.8.. «8.55 m..«.««m «5.25 52.2... 8.3.55 

«2.2.. 5:2 52.5 «8.2. «2.5 5.....«5 «8.2 «8.5 «8.2. «2... 5 «2... 2.5.2 2«.5.. 
5:5 - 58.. 3:25:22... 

52.2.. 5822 85.55 «2.52. 235 52.55 ....«.2« 8«.««.« «2.555 2......«5 8 F .58 m2...«« 5«.««« 
55.92:“. - «can. 2:222: 

««.......«.« «8.....«.« «2.52.... m..«.2«.« «8.5:... «2.8:... 53 2... 52.83 «««...«...« 5.5.95.2 J «:«.:«...« «5.52.5 o2.«3.« 5.58 5...... .:.o......=m «8. 5« «o...««« «5.52 58.25 «2.2.... 2«.2.« 53.5 «2.5... «5.25 «5.35 .E F «2.. «2.85 «8&2 .83 32:25. 
«5.52 «5.2... «2.55 «5.25 52.52 «2.85 235 52.5.. «o«.««« 5«.«....« «2.2... 52.8... 8.55 2.22. 
«2.5..«.« ««o...«...« 52.2% «m.....««.« «5.8....« 5«.«««.« ....e.«..«.« «5.«««.« «o.....2.« .5...5«.« «««.2«.« «55.«m«.« 25.2.3 

8......«5 
magnum 2.3.2.0 

55.52... 55.5...» 8:68... «5.52.» «2.2:... 53.52.... 5.22.5 «2.5..» 31%... 8.35.» E25... 55.515 «5.52.5 3:32.52 
«««.:w«.« 5.2 52.5.. 5.....5 555...... «5...: 2...... 25.22 «2.2. «5.52 «8.5 55.2« 85.5.. 3:23. «5.92.0 5:5 

«55.52... 52.5.... ..«..... . 5... «2.5«5 -«««.«m«.m 
58. 5:... 25.525 «2.2:... «5.2:... «5.32.: «5.5:... :«o. 22.5 «2.58.... 3:23. 58:55 .32... .2. 

«««.«:.«.« «8.5.5... 1222...... 
.3.5o.« 55.52... «8.23 «$55K «5.58.... «825.5 8.....2..« 55.2.? 52.58.... 5««.«.....« 

3:23.. EB". 55:33.. .38. 
55.58 52.52. 52.2 «3.2.: «2....5 «2.2.. «2.5.. «2.2. «««.««« 22.2 ..«....5« 52.8.. 8:25 «.3 Rm 

«2...: 58.2.. m««.«..« 59...: 58.5 5......«2 2.....2 «5.2. «5.52 5.....«2 2.....2 «5.2 «5.2: 
28 3:20 

«5.««...« «2.2:... En«.5m.« 
«3.23 «2.22.: «2.5:... 555.23 «2.53 55.255 «2.52.- 

55.5....” inm2.85.o 
I 52.55... 

32:32.4 328.28 $9.0 
«8.2. 255.5 «2.53 832 .592... 

«2.2 52.2.. 53.. «3.52 «««.«« 22.52 52.52 «2.52 
5.55.2532... 

«2.2... «8.55.. «8.55.2 «8.95... 58.5.... 55.8.. «2.5.5... «2.2.... 22.5.... 26.53 ..««. 2 5... «2.52.. 5...«....... 
8.5”. 5.2022 

85.53 55.55.« «8.53 «2.«......« mmm.««m.« «2.55.5 2.......«...« «5.25.. «:«...m«.« v5.8...« «5«...««.« 8....2...« «2.5:.« 28.3.... 
«2.58 «:«.«««.. «a.....««.« «««.««o.« 2.....5.« o«o.5«.« «852.... 2.....2.« 55.8...« 5......«...« 5m:...««.« 55«.m2.« «5.2.... 

28.8.2 
“00:956.: 5:895:00 

«can. 22:95"— EOL... “com—0:32”— 

:5«.55.« «5.25.: 52.5%....2 
«8.53.2 «Saga. «9.55. .2 «252.2 83.5.2 «5.35.2 

«2.8.x: 
«««.««Io.2 
«««...««.2 «2.2 2.2 

3:23. 53.3.5 .52... .529 .59... 
«5.55.5 «5.25... «22...... 5..._.«o.2 5«.«««.2 «5.2.... «55.25.... «55.25... «5.5...» 55.52... 2.52... «5.55.... «2.52.... .5535 
52.5.5.3 3.5.55.3 25.2....” 5 «5.5...« 5 «55.5...« a «5.«5.« « 85.2.5 5 «2.55.« a ::«.««m.« a «55.2.2 « 5:..5.« 5 «:«.2«.« 5 o5...5.« « .::_.«..:. 

II 

annals Quin: 2.3.. 2.5... 2.3...— m .152 «Elna 
2.35 2.9.3. 

2...... 2-5... 

$5.... «.2552... 232.230 no «co—=35» 

cup—Um...— _U_..0Em._). 

..®_mm0..a 

«in: 219. 

‘1‘ 

P». 

3:95”. angina Ewan..— “new 



a .....NE a Tawn— m v-52. a Town. a 7.52 a run—00 a; 

$8 $..- $ ... $... $.. $.. $8.- $8 $8- 8. $8 $. $.- 8. $8.. 58... .2... ER. 888 88.8. .02 
$8. $8.- $8 8. .8. $0. $8- $8. $8. $... $... 8 $8. $.. $ .«. .....o... .2... ...0... 88.... 888m “8.0 

$8 $.... $« 8 $8- $8. 8.. $8. $. .- 8 $. $« $8 $... $. .- ....o... .0... ES. 80...... 888m 9.8.8.. 
$8... $8... $88 $.... $88 $8. $8 $0... $8 $88 $.... 8... $8. $8.8 $8.8 

88...... 82o .o $ 8 8:88 
$8 $8 $8 $.. $88 $ .. $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 88.8. ....z ... $ m 8 .8... 
$8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 $8 888.. .mz .0 $ .. 8 888 

$..... $ .. .- $0.«. $8.- $0.0 $8..- $8... $8 $8. $8.. $0.. $8. $8- $88 $.... $58... 8.980 .52. 5.8.. $8 $8... $8. $ ..0 .- $8. . $ .....- $8 $..... $«. .- $8. $0... $8. $8- $ .... $8 5...... 8.... 
8...... 80.08 .. .... 8. 8.8.. a . 8 8 a 08 8. 8.. « a 8 .... ...0 8. 8 ... a .8 8. a .83. .....8... ....z 

..«.8 .8... .....8 88.... 
......8 88.8 8.8. 88...... 

.88 .88 . 8...... «ES... 88.2.0 .52 .8... 
8...... «8'8... 

«...8 «..«... .88... 
.8... .88.. 8.8 - .088. 8...... 88.8. .585 88.80 ..oz .86 

..88. ..88. ..88 .888. .«8... .. .«8... .. .88... 8.... ....8. .88 ..0. . . .8... .88.... .8 .... .. .88... .. 889m .88.... 
08.8 08.8 ...0... 80.8.. 8....« 88 .8.« .88 - - .585 85.8.... 88.8 8«.8 ..««.8 .8.«. 88.... ..0. .. 8... .. 80...... 8.8 8...... 8...... 8...... 8...... ..«...8 08.... 

88.8. 8. 
oEouE 9588.0 :62 

j. .888 ..I8 .8. ......8 .88... 88. . .88 .83. 8.8... 88.26 
8.8.... «.....8... 88.8.... 88.08... 88.88... 888.. ....8.... .88.... 88.8... 8.88... 8......8 8.88... 8....8... «8.8.... 88.88... 

888.... 88.2.0 .52. 
88.8... 88. 8.. «8.8.... 8.8.8... 88.8.... 8......8. 8.8.... 08.8.. 8.88.. 88...... 8...... 88...... .883 «8.«8.. 8.8.... 
888m. .8852 88.98 8.8. 8...... .88 80.8. 8...... .80.... ..08 08.8... 88.8. 8.8 8.8. .8...» 8.8 «.«8 88.8 8888 88.80850 

.88. .88. 8.8. 88.8. 88.8. ...«8. 88...... 88.8. 88...... 8...... 80...... ..«...m. 8.. ... 8... ... 88...... 
8.8.8:... ... 0288.80 

08.8 88.8 ...08 88.8 8...... 88.8 2...... .88 .88 8.8 «8.8 88.8 .88 8...... .....8 
88. ... 8:8: 88.8.. 
«8. ... 88.... .888 .....8. 08.8. .85.. 08.8. 8.8. «...... .... .88. 08...... 88.8. «8.8. 8.5... ...... .... 88.... 

... 8.8.. 
....8« 88.88 ...8. .8 8......8 8.8.... 88.08 8.....8 8.8.. 8.8.. .888 .«..8« .88.. «8.8.. 8.88 8.88 8.0 - 8228 888.8 
80.8 ...m. .. 88.8 8.8 .88 8... .. 8....8 8...... 88.8 88.8 .88 ....8 .....8 .....8 ..«8 88: - 8228 888.8 
8.....8 «8.8.. 88.8.. 08.8... 08. .8 ....8. 888 8...”... «8.8... 88.88 88.8... 08...... ..«...«... .....«8 88.8... 8:88 
8...... «8.8 80. .. 0 8.8 .««.8 8...« 88...... 88. .. 88.8. 

n .8... 8«. .... 88.8 88.8 8... .m .....8 
.8... - 8...“. .8288... 
0.... .8 ......8 88.8... 8«.8« «..«...8 80.8.. .888 «8.88 88.88 8.....8 8.88 80.8 88.08 .888 88.8 888...... - 8...“. 8288.. 
.888 88.888 88.80... 8.....8.« «8. .8.« 8880.8 .8588 ......i8.« 

8.58.1 8.8.088 8«.8..« .88..« ...«.8..« 08.«8.« 88.88 980 58.. 8.8.08 888 88. .8 0....8« .....«8 8.....8 0....8« ......m8 .888 80.08 88...... 8......” 08.8 «8.0.. :88 80.88 
.08.. 888...... 
8.8.. ....8... ......88 

8.8.. 80.8 08...... «8.88 0.88 .....8... 88.08 88...... 88.8.. 08.88 8.....«8 «8.0.8 388.. 
80.8«.« 88.808 8... .8.« .8...0.« 8.8.8.08 8.8.8 .0888 .88.... 08.8.... .88.... .88.... 808... ..8.«8.« 8.8... 5.0.8.... 
8:28 

nonconsm— ...—398...... 

88.8.8 8... .8... 88...... 8.8.... 8.88.. 888... 888... 888...... 
80.8.... 88...... «8.8.... 08.8.... W88... «8.8.... 88.8.8. 

85...... .oz 
8... ... ...«..8 88 8 8« 8 8. 8 88.8 m8..« 8... .. ..m ...... 8...... .....8 88.8 

.88 08.0. «0 ..8 88.8. 88.80 .85 
08.8.8 8.88... 

.8888 85.80... ....o.8..... «.... .8... «8.8.... «8.88... 88.8....” 88.8... 88...... 88.08... 
8880... 8080... I 888... 

88.6.. 89.28 .88.. ..z 
888...... 8.........m 8.80.. 8.8.8 «88...... «88...... 88.08.... ......88: 

8.... .....m 
..8. .....m 80.88.... .8. .88 888...... 88.8.8 .888 2.5.5.. Ea... “5.88.. 8...... 

88.08 8.88 8... ...... ......8 8....8 88.08 .888 ..88. «8.88 08.8 .88. .8... 8o.8« 8........« .88.... .80 8.. 
.88. .8. .8 .. .8 80.88 8.8.. .88. ««...8« 8«.8« .888 8.8. 8...... .88 ......«8 .88 8.8.8... 80 8...... 
8.68... 888.8 88.88... .888... 888.8 .8. .8... 8.8.... 8.... .88 88.88... 88.8.... 8......«8 «......«08 ......8... ..«o..m..m 88.88.... 

80832.... .8883 8o... 
«8.08 8...... ......8 «8.... 8.8. «8.8 8.8. 08...... .058... 88.8.. .88. 8.8.. «8.8 888. 8...... 985.8858... 

8.88... 08.8.... 8.88.. .88.... 88.88.. 80.88.. 8.8.... 88.8.... 8.88.. 88...... .8. .8. 8.8.... 88.8. .....«8 88.8.. 
8.8 8.2.082 

.. 8. .8.« 8«..8.« 8.....8.« 8...«8.« 8...... . 88.88 88.808 80.8 ..« « ....80.« 88.8.... .««...8.« 8 .888 m 8.88 88.0 ..« 8..0 .m.« 288.... 
08.«. ..« 88.8... 8. .. ...... . 8 .8... 88.8.... . m 8.8... .880... 88.88. . 888.... . m 8.8... ......8... .8.8«. . 886...... 0.8.8.... .8. .8. . 988... 

maucuga=< 3:555:60 

03:95”— Eauh 8.03252”— 

m..._..0.«. 8.58.... «0.8.8. 80.88... 08.88.... ......8..0. ... 8...... 8 8.88.0. 8.8... 0.0.8... 
888...... 088...... 888...... «8.8... 88...»... 888.. 82888.... 82.. ...... 8«.. .«... 0.8.8.... 80.08... 8.. .8... 88.80... 88.0. .... 8.. 80.... 

888... 8.8.... 88.8.... 888... 8« 8... 8 «8 ...0 . 88.8.”... 8.8... .8895 08.88 a ...m...8.« 
.. .0088 a .8.«8.« ... .8888 a «8.88 a 888.8 a .888... a 8.8«.« a 8.888 8 08.8.8 ... .8888 a .88.... a .88.... a 80.88 a 82.8... 

3:95.. 8.9.23 $.28... 82m. 
.....4... a 7.5... ....8... 

6:2... 555-2. 8:28.30 no «553.85 

I... 

...... (...—.0m .U...0Em..z 

..wwwOLn. 

......u... 2..q ...-..lo. a 7:2. 



gem 
.33. 

gm- 
$0.5 
{own 

$05 
02.6 _. 
03.0.. 

$0 
03. 
axe“. 
eyed 

$0.6 
$9.. 
flaw. 
0.3M- 

$0- 
$.91 
flaw- 
$0.0 
«$0 
$3. 
03.? 
fluid] 

$0M mam. 
$9. .x. _. 7 
$9 «an 
£500 fiend 
«who $mo 
.300 flame 
$0.3. 

0.0 rd- 
$.49. $0.? 

Rum— gar 
fix. _.u $01 

$5 fiafl 
$90 exams—V 
gwm .wxeNm 

$.30 flew—V 
$0.0 gNd. 
$5.0 gm. _. 

.3m 

.30 T 
9.. 7 
iii 
.xbh 
$9.“ 
.39“ T 
£1.67 

axon- 
0% 
$0 T 
«and. 
$9» 
flame 

.x... F.» 
$06 

gm 
.x. —. 
{ah 
$6.0. 
{awn 
flow? 
gwé 
0... _..w 

.x. 7 
$0 

exuwl 
.304... 
Gram 
$N¢ 

.xbd 
$0.9. 

.000... 00.00:. «02 

000:0...xw 0:30.000 

02 08 a 0:. 03 a 00.15 a 08 3.0 a a... 80 a a 3... SN 0 0E 80 a 000.8 a .8, $0 a 80 E a «a «a. 029... a 
50.00 30...... 95...... WES $0.8 Em...» Ea... E..." 

80.2. 30.3 0.3.2. 05...... 00$ 80 - - Rum. - 8...... m 5.00 
- 8m... 

- com. F - - 
6008. $5.8. $8.0... .8000. $8.00. .8000. 83.3. 35.0.... 0.3.3. 2.3.8. 980.8. 0.8.8. 0.8.8. 80.? 00...... 003“ R30 Em...“ 9.0.2.. 8&8 mm... 5 05.5 80.0 momma 02.00 00.000 
50.9 23.. 0.8.00 2.... E 08.00 03.8 0...... E 5.0.0.... 30...... 8.0.0.. .000... 03.00 m :00. 

08.000 momma“ 83.00: 0:62 $0.03 =0..Q 08...: 802.. @050 $00.20. :0.p 20.03 «flag 
85.8.0 ”5.30.0 2.0.8...» 3.0.03.0 30.810 3.0.02.0 «00.03.... "8.50... 30.80... $0.086 E33... «3.03.0 20.0.0.0 
2300.. 30.0n 09.80.. «938; 80.80... 08.020 $0.03.. 08.03.. 80.0.0... .0q0; 08.00..“ 08.03; 30.80.. 05.0.. 9.0.3. 30.8.. 03.2: 000.2. 20.09 E3... 03...: 80:: .0m 80...: 8.0.02 .008 
00080 2300 08.00“ Rmdwm 30.0“ 02.0% .030” 08.30 toga E 5.8 $0.30 $0.08. 53.2 
8%.. 00.0.... 08.8 80...... 0.0.0.... owed... 830 08.8 to...“ 20.00 ENE 2.3... 05.00 .2...m 50.3. 50.0: 33.2 «00.8.. 05.0.: 50...: 05.8.. 2.0.0.: 50...: «:32 05.80 0:38 

005% 09.80 0.05% 00.48 30.8“ 0.8.30 $0.00“ 5.20 5.00“ 0.0.0.0 $0.08 08.08 05.0....“ m 5. 5 $0.9. 08.0.. 2.0.0... 80.3 08.0.. 000.0... 80.8 05...... m3. 2. 000...... $0.8 $0.9... 20.30 05.00... 0.0.0.0 03.20 9.0.08 SHE... $0.00.. 8052 03.8.. 80.80 2.3% .333 000.000 
808 5...? 0030 000.00 50...... 0.3.50 80% «8.0 80.0.. mam. 5 8m... $0.2 0 KB. 
003:. 000.000 08.t 9.3....” 05.3” 03.000 3.35 80%» 80.00.... 02.000 83% 02......“ 5.0.80 
20.0.0.0 08.800 03.00....” 80.93 @080 13008.0 

33:.» 02.00....“ $0.800 00080.0 80.800 000.02.... 83......» 80. EN 30...“... $0.00“ 08.9...“ 80.08 m 5.0..“ 50... n... 85.8 $0.03 30.30 E. S... a Show... $0.80 80.0....” $0.9... «8.000 «8.03 8.0.8... 000.80 05.30 09.8.. 80.08 EMS... 02.0.0 03.80 838 
03.9.0.“ 03.800 02.05.... 30.80.... $0.000.“ Shaman ....0.~m~.~ Sank.“ 80.00..“ 58.0000 Eda.“ 80.000.“ 20.0.2.0 

08.0000 305...... 02.80... «3.02.... 50.210 000.02.... 00500... 0253.0 30.0%... 80.30.» 80.0.0.0 08.3.3 «8.5...» 
||.I|_|J|..|J||I _. I. I1||.|]I|.l 

I . . 
Sm Bu N E 2 02 a. 0.... .0 000 9.. NB 3... Eu .0. 08 an 50 a: 03 no. 08 mm :0 2“ com m... 

000.000.? 02000... E... :0... 8:50.... Manama... 
003%... 05.020 «3.20.... $0.09.... .3002...” 20.30... 0.8.53 8:003 

$0.50.... 80.83 2.0.0.0.... $3.00... .0003... 800:0 30.0m 80.08.... 08.20... 80.85 00092.... 02.08... 0&3...» 000.m 000.0% 000...... 30.08 .8030 8.3.... «~32 «2.0... $0.80 05.30 atom» 80.8... 80.0.0 30.2. 000.0: 000.3“ 000...... 08....” 80“.: 9.5.8 Ram. F 05.08 080.: 05...: 0%.“... 9.0.09 0 5.80.... 00008.... EN. 53 $0.... a... $0.5 :0 93.8.... 000.08.... 000.020 Emwfifil on ER... $0.03 mm 3%... 000.53 80.0.. 2...Q 80m... 80%. $800. 30$ 2 E: 50.0.... 50.80 Rama Ema: 08.02 «93$ 
«Edam 80.000; «8.0%.. «$53.. 08.08; 0.8.8.. 5008.. 3.000.. 50.00.... 000.85 $030.. 80.0%.. .00d 
80.080 $0.300 00m. $3 00 303 80.80.“ mm F. .00.... 000.300 3.0.80. F «2.80.0 3.0.80.0 003%.“ on...» :3... 2......3.“ $38 0800...... 08.83 «$08... 2.0.. 3.“ 8.0.33 3080.0 05. 5..“ 50.800 $0.03...” 08.33 00000:... 2.008... 

$0.08.» $0.55.: 09.0005 Samba“. 0.0.08.2 $0.30.: @0800. 8020.2 80000.2 $0.80: £030.“. 03.0.3.8 @0203 $030.0 $300.0 02.9.0.0 So. :3: 50.802 $0.90... $0.22.. «00.20.... 2.0 E. m mom cum 0 20.003 05.000... 50.09.... 9.0.80.0... 3008.0... 20.95.00 08.000.“ a $0.00...“ 0 9.0.20.“ 0 8050.0 0 838.0 a 80.0%.“ a $000.0 0 $35.0 0 800:0 0 2.0.0.0.“ a 
8.. 30...... 3.00.. 00.5... 3.03 2.52 0300 awflm 2.0% 2...... 0.1:... 0.. . .... 2- 

£00.... .23 E90 09.0.5 02.0.6.”— .02 
5:0... .25 E0... 00:0...0 02.0.0”. 0005 

2:0... 00:0 E0: 0mcmc0 00:00xm 05.0.0.5 
00:03: 002m. 00 0... 00 00:00.5 

05c0>0m .02 he 0... 0 mm .003 
0::0>0w_ .02 00 ex. 0 00 m0_.0_0w 

“0:50.... 0500.000 :02. £902 
£905. .33 

00.00.... 0:30.000 :02 .30... 
30:00w 0500:. m:=m..000 :02 .050 

030a $0.005 
00.00.... EOEEO>E 

0:00.000. x2. 
0:30:— mcauhono :02 

A000... 00.00:. 0:39.000 

0000096 0:39.000 .000... 

0.00:0a 5904-52 _0.0._..n=w 
m0mc0axm 0:00.000 .050 
3000:0030 w 00.00.00.009 
00x0... 0. 00:00... 0000500. 

000004 .0 0.0.00: 
.050 - 000.23 0000505.”. 

005:5 - 0003.3 0000505.". 
00:00.5 

.050 - 0000 .0...0.mm0..0..n_ 
0:0_0_0>...n_ - 000“. 55.00002... 

.080 .83 0.3.20 0000.. 00005.5..— 
0.00:3 00.02% 

0:00:30 0:30.000 .050 

0.2.0.5”. 003.com «00:0... 002 

00:90... E2". 000300009 .30... 
Ban. 8... 

0.00 .3205 
000002.22. 33003000 000.5 

0:05.30... .050 
$.00 0205002 

0.8.00.2 
052002 

00000023 $500.20”. 
00:05: 50.: 0:050:00n 

0:00.59. 000.20m 20:00 0005 .20... 
E00850 E0000:— 

0=:0>0m_ 000_E0m E0300 000.5 



Ammo: wEBE mczfiwaol mwmcwnxm mcrfiwno .mpo._.I.l.I. magma uwzl magma E9“. 3253a _30._.Ill. wzcw>mx mmu_>.wm Emzmm $9.0 Each 

Max? 
9» 90 40¢ at ac our a: 

O Qno a a u. A 
x h,» 9% mp iv v a, e0 0% o ,7 v a 2 my. .0 

e» 88.80.: 
x .1 s s k by 

a». Q ax Q. a; ax 6% 
“ya; 2 aw. 

(V 
mum ‘0 #7 ow» yea. 

Ava» may 0% «O fi%%%%a®.fi 

000.0004 

0005000.N 

000.0006. 

000.0006 

000..000..m 

0006006 

0005000H 

000.0005 

000600.00 

000~000~0H 

838‘: 

000~000~NH 

000~000~mfi 

000600;; 

0:8... m_m3u< 



I n o a a. 
o- uuuuuuu 

mmmficwuhma EmEHmz€< 

$9” 

AKON 

oxmom 

$9..» 

AKom 

nKom 

«mom 

«Sm 



Amwmcmaxw mczfiwaov .29. $32q“ 
.20; 

Awscgwm Eofi macros—“Ea :30: 
.29. 33:96”. 3233 Ewbmm $96 Eel: 

.20; mmmcmaxm wczfiwaol 

8862\4' wzcm>mm E0: 225:a .muoh mscm>wm 8283. Emma; mm ESP 

b v r 0 1? 
ago 
afiv 

a% doe 
Aaa 

haw 
Aéo 
Aqua 
Ana, an,» wax my? way may 

..%w by? ago 2% %0 new way a, mo» 2% um? buy/w. 
hwy war 

00 00 a a 0 a5a».@262@262fitnminwznuzezarflnwzézfifiéznmzfl 

ooodoQN 

806006 

0006006 

ooodoo‘w 

ooodooda 

ooodoQNH 

80.8%q 

magma; _m_ucm:E 



mBmx uflmzommzfiul ESEmEI-l 986221.] 

my 0 or on. 49”. aw / A 
4% 

Qemmfifioa 
yea. 

“my 09/ nee 
0A... 00 Wang a .x 2 aazaznmzflflav 

.m 

$2“ 

Kmfi 

«wow 

mamm 

exam 

«tomm 

ScmEHmz€< 



339$ 52 ”—0 X. m mm mmtmfifl 
.>_on_ ..... 335$”. 52 US «a m 8 gonad 

.29.. magma 52 U5 x m mm 593 [III magma 52 US «a m 2.. 3228* 

hwy... .99». @@ owy 09/ b&0 aonw 
“$0 new won/1p 

h,» 
¢¢x 

94V ya.» 
\m‘éa 

~ 2 a». “W. a? on: 
I! 

V9f$070¢ 
#f/fi‘fluwvfidfia 

$$Q$®®®®$®e \ 2‘ 
hm b u x an, m, no a: a: a: a». 3“,. a». at 92 a». a? a. 

go 

*9“ 

«mom 

fl“mom 

gov 
'- IIIIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 

.I 
IIIIIII 

aKom 

«mom 

nRam... 

muse... \CEmm «Em L033 



H$0.0 

$0...” 

waned 

£99m 

.30.? 

Red 

$06 

fiofi 

macaw 

@333 $90 US 
.x. mm mwfiasml m 8:33 I 

09063“ 

Sodom 

ooodom 

ooodoq 

ooodom 

ooodom 

ooodom 

ooodow 

ooodom 



N E H mum; 

Lommoha 
55m: EtoEmz 

AU 
5. hZuEIU<t¢ 

.83 Rue.“ “$3 $3 

ll “3% 23m. 39m $3. . 
I I 

an. 5&8: magma... 
9.5.3 L... 

.23. a 2.15%... a fin. E r.” a 33.5. a 

an. .33: Rue: $92. 32.2: 33$. 33% 898... 
$3. Amman— mh... §ew 385$ 9..d 9%.: Slang: «Sm- Enema 5d .39? ENE 83.83 €8.m £85.: 

.39... 68.d enema $.37 83.3 Etfim gamma 235 
an mmmfi 3%?» $3- 59.2- $9a 892.» 35.4.» 

E- “Bumm— mmlmwehm 
.32. ENE... $.93..." magma.“ 

. “33:. . 
. 

3—. 63.33 emmfimfim gm...” 93.8“." 8 32.69 838.3 «3.81% 

E- :35: $33.: “2% Samoa.” $33.3 badmumfi «3.2.5: 3%. 33.33 
““3634 $3? o...~.2~ 83:... 32.6mm; 3.3%; 

as mm} awed“? $9.: .8...m oooduhm $.9d 2&8? 
gum 3mg $.33 $3- 88.3 Sham... 939.. Sham 
gm- ESQ. $135 $3 2.9.8.. Sammmfi S~.~2.~ 558.. «a- $8.8. maxim...“ $3 RE... anion...” 33%..» 338.... «Sn- 533 332. #0..» as}... 532 359. 9.5.8.. “3. 88.3. 338.... $2: .5d $0.35. $33.... 332.6 
«a :15 E33 $3 macaw Bing «9.8m 33.3.. 
a... flame“ mmm.~mm.m Ed. 33.2.8 Sagan 83.3% “mack—mm 

an. 83.3.. 3&8m $3 13.83 833...." nuaahman F8. 53... n I a - .- 1. 
- a n 5 

gm mmo mm 80 Rm a .8 t- t: 33 m8 mm» m as. mg m 8m 9% m 
3.... 33.5%. $336 $3 «Edam Stoned 20.8% 333.0 .3- mama mmmdmmwn $5. 835; 5m.mom.m~ www.mqhm 832...”... 

as- $3.23 8m...” Emu $3 81%....» fia.nmm.3 2.3 3.8 $3.3m 
2.3. $3.32 $33 $3,”. ”Sada 833... $3.83 E32. 

mama.” 833a 
Sow: 2.q 

838.... omnmoflm 

$3- 33.2.3. fidfimém 3»... 335.1 833.3 mung Em 3.35.5 
am”- 3.3.36.3 Brahma.» 4.5.3 $3.. 3.3 an 33.8 ”unsung 3...?a 2a mama 5.0%... $5. 339 £18“... 838;. ...om.m~m.u a3 DmfiR mm...§~.~ E9 ommdum EEBN mafia; again 
*3. 558.3 .355... $3.“ 8 9.31.9 «magma $193.2. ”5.31% §. fimmeau . 5.33" $.95 $28 833.... 333; madam; 
and- 2.8.25.3 $33.3 «Exam m. net...“ 9R. Emdm Bat»? Bat v.3 $3- 8m~.mmo.m_ Rammmdm Jami Sham... 58.39% «853.5 3:298 
804. 538i www.mmofi «$2 :28... nmcémflwm Edam www.mmmdm 

32...... 

he 
a. 

2.9. 8869.5 Shaman“ §.«. 89.932 guangp 53.8.": Faraway“ - A A - n n u n 1 a - 
gm..- #8 Em m5 Em Nata .xb E 0.: moo 2 08 mm» a: 3m .8» m2 m3 8..” an 
and- $3.31... amnmuwdm $3 $8.33 2%n www.mmmfim ““385“ 

anon 8.8.2... 33535 28 was. as" .38... 
mzo_._.<~_m_n_o ".0 hzmsmhfim 

59%.. 3:: 
£93: asks—mac 

Ammo... 
0:50:— 32 

0:30:— acufiono :02 35... 
53:3m 9:930 :02 550 

Ammcwnxmv $23... 
9:85 EwEfiQE. 

mac??— xm... 
uEnuE ncaahano :92 

33... 2:02.. 5.59.2.0 

mum—.35. 5:39.30 .59... 

mwmcwnxm 523-52 _mE._..n:w 
momconxm. 9:930 350 

ceamNEoE< a :owflumamn 
mes... a. 8:8: 85$s 

«mama; w mficom 
550 - 3223 3355.". 
$35: - 8323 33:25 

5.35 
.650 - mmwn. .mcgmmfien. 

Ensign. - mum". .mccfimfisi 

330 Loan.— $5.725 
Bum... umwmcusn. 

Eumcmm 
mm: flaw 

«3:0a 5:39.30 

3:26: no: 
@355”. mc=flano 550 

852.85. B uozv Enact carnage; 33:n 
m 5500 B BEE £526 550 

3:2". .903". m1... 

”5:030“ @0236“ Esuhn— ufiz 

0:533. EB". Eases—Hun. .50... 
Eng umm 

0.50 3:20 
«005323 3:395:00 $0.5 

35553.6( .550 
mmfiw. uofifimoz 

23:32 
2.86m: 

«@0532? 33095.30 

2.550: avatar. Egan. 320 .50... 
Egan—.50 

Ema—.5:— 
uszgafl magiom Egan. $9.0 



“EON 
“Kano 
mumfimeé. 

555....- .m 
5555.55 
umofihm 

55.55 .m 

55......“ 65. 
5595. .m. 

55mm .m- 
m5mm .m 
550m .5. 

N 50 N 555... 

5505...... H 
mam-.5...“ 

“mum-.3.- 

Rmmfifi 
555. m .m H 
55mm .VN 

KEEN- 
man-Wm.- 

.55 Hm .5. 
5525...... 

555.555 555.555 3.5.55.5 
5555:. 555.555 555.555 555.55: 555.555 

555.5:5 555.:5 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 :55.55 :55.55 555.55 55:55 
555.5 555 555 555 555 555 555 555 555 555 - - .555: 

555.555. :85: :55.5: :55.5: :555: .355: :55.5: :55.5: :85: 855.55. 5:5.55. .5555: .5555: 
5:5.55: 555 - - - - 555.5: 555.5: 555.5: 555.5: 555.5: 555.55 55555 

55:.555 :55.55 :55.55 :55.55 :55.55 :55.55 :55.55 :55.55 :55.55 :55.55 5:5.55 555.55 555.:5 

555.555-m 555.555 5555:: 55:.555 555.555 555555 5:555: 555.555 555.555 555.555 :55.555. 55:55: 5:5.55: 5556:. 
5.5.55.5 5555.5 5595... 5555 55.55 §m 555.5. 5555....- 

..555... 553:. 
555.5... 

555555.55 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 55:.5555 5:55.555 555.555.:. 5:5.555... 555555... 555.5555 5:5.5555 555.5555 555.55:.5 555- 55:.- 555- 555- 555- 
. . 55H- ...B 55.”.- 5555- 55.5 55.... 

5... 

555555.55 5555:55 555.555.: 555.555.: 555.555.: 555.5:5.: 555.555.: 555.555.: 555.555.: 35555.: 555.5555 555.555.: 555.555.: 555.555... 5:5.55 5:555 5:555 5|:555 $5.55 5:555 5:555 5:555 5:555 55555:: 555.55.: 
555.55: 555.5555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 5:5.555 555.555 555.555 

555.555.: 55:55 55:.55 55:.55 55:55 55:.55 55:55 55:.55 55:.55 55:.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 
55.5555 555.55: 555.55: 555.55: 555.55: 555.55: 555.55: 555.55: 555.55: 5:5.55: :55.55: 555.55: 555.55: 

555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 55:.555 555555 555.555 555.:55 
555.555 5:555 5:555 5:555 5:555 5:555 5:555 5:555 5:555 5:555 555.55 555.55 555.55 

555.555...- 5::.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 5:555... 555.555 555.5:5 
555.555 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 555.55 :55.5: 555.55 555.55 

555.5555 555.5:5 555.5:5 555.5:5 555.5:5 555.5:5 555.5:5 555.5:5 555.555 555.5:5 555.555 555.555 555.555 55w- . 55a . .. E. _. 55.5- 
... £95- .55m 2. 5 555 

555555.55 555.55:.5 55:55:.5 555.5555 555.55:.5 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.555....- 5555555 555.5555 555.5:5.5 
95.55.55 55:55: 555.55: 555.55: 555.:5: 5%.55: $5.55: 55555: 555.55 555.:55 55554.5 555.5l55 555.555 5555555. 555555 555.555 555.555 55:.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 

555555.55 555.5555 555.5555 555.::5.5 555.5555 555.5555 555.5:55 555.5555 555.55:.5 55: .5555 555.5555 55:5:55 555.5555 55:.- . .. 555 55:. 
_-u .555- ...55- mm- 5555- 55.5- 

.. .- .. 5 

5.....555555. 
.5. 5555.555...- 

5555555. 5.55.5.5 
5.5.5.55- 

..55555. 55.5.5555:- 
55.555555. 

355.555.... 
5.55.55.5- 

25555555... 
555.5555... 

55.3 
5555 

. .5555 5.55 .555: 5.55: .555 55...... 5.55 
. 

5:5 55:: 555 5:5: 555: 
555.5 55.55 555. 555.5 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 5555555 55.55 5.5 555.555.... 555.555 555.555.:. 555.555.... . 

555555 555.55: 5:5.55 5:5.55 555.55: 5:5.55 5:5.55 555.55: 5:5.55 555.55 :::55 55:.55 555.55 555.5555 555555.55. 
.8 5.58 5.53 .8... 55:5 .555 5.5.2.555 555.555.: 555.5555 

coed-n." 
“momémmdfi 5.55. 5.6.5.... 5.5.5... .53 5.5.3555 53.... 5.. 

5.5mm- 
tzhmb 0.. .5552 00065:...” 

000...". 
5555555 :55.55 555.555 :55.555 555.555 555.555 555.5555 

55 5555.55 555.55:.5 5555555 555.555... 555.5:5... 555.555.5 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 53555.5 555.::5.5 5555555 

. 555555.55 555.55:.5 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.55:.5 5:5.555.5 555.5555 555.55:.5 555.5555 555.5555 555.555.5 :55.555.5 55 355.5 5:5.555 555.555 5:5.555 55:.:55 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555455 555.55: 555.555 
555.5555 555.55: 555.55: 55:.55: 555.55: 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.555 555.55 555.55: 555.555 555.55 555555.55 :55.555.5 555.555.5 555.5555 :55.555...- 5:5.555.5 5:5.5555 555.5555 555555... 5:5.555.5 555.555.... :55.:55.5 555.5:5.5 5.55.5555 55:55: 55555: :55.555 :55.55: 555.55: 5:555: 55:55: 555.55: 555.55 5:5.555 555.55: 55:.55: 555.5555: 555.555.: :55.555: 555.555.: 555.5:5.: 555.555.: 555.5:5.: 555.55:.: 555.555 555.555 555.555.: 555.555.: 555.555.: 

555555.55 :5:.555.5 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 :55.:555 555.:555 555.5555 555.555.: 555.5555 :55.5555 5555555 55:5555 
555555.55 555.5555 5555555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.555.: 55:.555 555555.: 555.5555 555.5555 

55.5..- 
.L 55.5..- 555- .....5- 555...- 

55m5. l. 555....- 5555- 
5.5.5.5- .. 55:. 555.5- 555 5:5- 555.- 55.5- 55.5.- 5555- 

.. ... .555...- 
55.5:... 55...:- mm 55.5 .555- 5.5:- 555- 5.55- 555:- 5555- 555. 5.55- .555- 555- .5:- 555 .55 

555555.555 555.5555: 555.5555: 555.5555: 5555555: 555.5555: 555.55:.:: 555.5555: 555.5555 555.5555 555.5:55: 55:5555: 5555555: 
555555.35 555.5555: 555.5555: 5555.n 5:5.:55.5 555.5555 555.5555 58555.5 555.5555 ::5.555.5 555.5555 55:5555 :55_:55.5: 

. 

555555.55 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 555.5555 ::5.5:5.5 555.5555 

aw 55:55.55: bun—5.5.62 55..q hunEuum—mfl 55:53. .5...— 55... >55 =55. :5:.55— 5.5:555 Ema—.55 

5.5.5.... .535 
35.55. 553.5525 

.534: 5E3:— 552 

553:. 55.555530 :0: .35.... 
555:5...m 5:55.550 :52 .550 

8.55:5.a 5.55.3:— 
5855... :5:.555.5; 

5:55.65. 55... 
5:32.. 9:39.550 :52 

5559-: 
5E3... 52.55.25 

35:55.55. 5:55.530 .50... 

mmmcmaxm Eng-:02 Eek-5.2m 

55555555. 5:55.550 .550 
555555.552: .5 5555.55.55... 
5555.- .5 5555.5: 5555.555 

55553 .5 25.555. 
.550 - 53.5.5.5 5555:5555. 

55.5.5: - 55.5.5.3 555555.55. 
55.3535 

.550 - 55.5”. .m:o_5mw..u.n_ 

55585555: - 555". 555.5525...”— 

flmoo .5551. 5.5.5.55 
.5554 5555553“. 

5.55555 
525.3 

mam—.5555. 9:59.550 

52.5.6». :52 
555.555: 5:55.550 .550 

“5.55.555. 5o :52: E5525. 50.6550... 5.555.555.5— 
5 55.500 5.. 59.5.5. 5:5.55 .550 

5.55:". 5:555". wzz 

$3.35“ mac—30m ufifi-ual «Oz 

5:5.55. Ea."— mcosusuun .5505 
.555. .555. 

5.55 5.5550 
535532.55 Raga—.00 55.9.0 

5:555:65: .550 
55.5.... 55.55352 

5.55.553. 
5.55.555. 

552.535.? .53a00 

5:5.55. magnum 5:255... 5525.. .50... 
«55.5530 

E5555:— 
a:=5.5¢ 30.23 5:55.55... 559.0 



883...? owomdafio: .0309... Eric...“— GSDU 

mmqgm...“ 
m 83.: .. @3332 

m .3333 m “.32 
I m" 

I a... 

I a" 

- a 
- a 

- .w 
E. . w 3...... has. - a 3%... m 6...... m Ease... 3.3.3 m_.__._ 

E. - w 8...... ”ms. - m 83: ... 89.3 m 53.. 322.59. 5.332.. =23... no... :8. 22...... ...... 2588.. 4mm “.5... m: 
.... .....U ......mu... .23. .5 35.83:. .2332. Gee. 

: .7... .Em. . w amam was. - m ~mn6hfi€ w NMhdhfiv m 95.33:... m1... .mmhdh.n.vm 30339. 93 . ... _, ...» .23. 
- t: ...“. +0.3: BEBE mmm<u 

. ...I. B 52.96 95 5.3 3.83 3.3. ... was... S .. .. 
-. .w.§303n§:§w33.3%§.3% 

. 

$3333.... o8. 36.3.. 
33.3. @282 ...“: 

_ $333333 (:33 30.23.33 «mm... 
..... . «E gum—Ia . ml 

amam . S. 80.3 m 33.3 m (:95 E9... 93:23.... ma...— zmme. (In; 
.. ... .3 33 33583.3 2.3 .5.— (O... 9.3.“. ...? 4.9.x. 

.33. 12.353 25.... 
. EBB 

...... v.25 - .n. 98.... um... Scam m seed... 
.0. ......m ....on <52»... 

....2 .3332. .3325 35 33m 39.. so. 
. .3... 

-r .....u..... .... .. ...: 33.22.. 32.22.... . . 5.3.3. 
33.3% ...... 333...? .22.... 4...... 

33333.3.H..- . it. n ...... 3 

Eu amam m......fi. 
- m. 

mmlmdmfim 
m mmmdmmfi m 50.. unusuaufiu. ...osuflok. :23: in... .53.. 

E2 0...". c2632.. =9. an. (mm :53 m: 

...nm. €3.3m m cwawxfiwww QNQN . . - m www.mmmfi w nmmfimmfl m 3:935... 23.32). E mucmpui $32.3 38:33. 28...”: ....2U 

Em. - m 32.3%.. ..c .. - m REE m 33R .... Enema... 335.5 9... 

km. - m 8363 ...MN 3...... - w 3.2.8. 
... 838. .0. Ease... 2.52.3 ...... 

Em - m cmcwxm? owe... .. - m 856 m 986 m guru 2958 .23 2.5.. 5.2... .n 3.3.2583 «BEES .385 
3...”... .63 9:15.”. :o.umu._nn< 5—89.28 

mono: 3.30 2...... 3.053%: P93. 32. (....— uE< 33.30: 23¢ 32......— 333.535 
«...—=5". ”Eu—.3230 

Cup—um: _U.LOE$Z 

..mmmo.n.f\ flaw 



Attachment EE 

Pat McCarthy 
3/1 0/1 9 

Board of Commissioners 
Presser Public Hospital District 
Presser, Washington 

W 
This letter includes a summary of specific matters that we identified in planning and performing 
our accountability audit of the Presser Public Hospital District from January 1, 2018 through 
December 31, 2018. We believe our recommendations will assist you in imProving the District’s 
internal controls in these areas. 

We will review the status of these matters during our next audit. We have already discussed our 
comments with and made suggestions for improvements to Hospital District officials and 
personnel. If you have any filrther questions, please contact me at (509) 734-7104. 

This letter is intended for the information and use of management and the governing body and is 
not suitable for any other purpose. However, this letter is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

Sincerely, 

H“ W? 

Ginny Waltman, Audit Manager 

D
r

a
f

t
 

- 
P

l
e

a
s

e
 

d
o

 
n

o
t

 
d

u
p

l
i

c
a

t
e

,
 

di
 

t
r

i
b

u
t

e
.

 
o

r  
d

i
s

c
l

o
s

e
.

 
r

m
:

 
n

a
r y

 

Attachment 

P
re

l 

Insurance Building. PO. Box 40021 - Olympia, Washington 98504-0021 - (564) 999-0950 * Pat.McCaIthy@sao.wa.gov 



t
o

,
 

di
 

t
r

i
b

u
t

e
,

 
o

r
 

d
i

s
c

l
o

s
e

.
 

Ica
 

D
r

a
f

t
 

- 
P

l
e

a
s

e
 

d
o

 
n

o
t

 
d

u
p

l
 

i
m

m
a

r
y

 
P

re
l 

Management Letter 

Prosser Public Hospital District 
January 1, 2018 through December 31,2018 

Foundation contract 

Hospital districts may establish separate nonprofit entities under state law (RCW 39.34.030 and 
RCW 70.44.240). Many hospital districts contract with foundations to provide services such as 
fimdraising, as well as other benefits for the hospital district. Hospital districts do not have express 
authority to perform services engaged in by a foundation and cannot donate resources to 
foundations without compensation. However, foundations may provide services or resources in 
exchange for adequate compensation. 

In September 2017, the Hospital District established the Presser Memorial Health Foundation 
(Foundation) as a separate nonprofit. The purpose of the Foundation is to raise funds exclusively 
for the Hospital District. In exchange for services, the Foundation operates the gift shop in the 
Hospital and allows Hospital District employees to volunteer their time in fimdraising activities. 
Additionally, the Hospital District provides the Foundation’s Executive Director, who is a 
Hospital District employee, to assist with administrative services. The Foundation pays the 
Hospital District for the Executive Director’s time spent on Foundation business. 

During our audit, we identified the Hospital District: 

0 Did not have a written agreement with the Foundation that outlines each party’s 
responsibilities and exchange of services 

0 Gave the Foundation $21,500 to find the gift shop’s initial inventory purchase. Article 8 
Section 7 of the Washington State Constitution prohibits any local government entity from 
bestowing a gift or lending money, property, or the entity’s credit to a private party. 
Therefore, the gift is unallowable. 

0 Did not have a process to track volunteer time to ensure Hospital District employees do not 
perform volunteer activities during work hours 

0 Did not monitor the Foundation to ensure it is in active standing with the Secretary of State 

We recommend the Hospital District: 

0 Update its written agreement to include an explanation of each party’s services and how 
they demonstrate adequate compensation 

- Seek recovery of the $21,500 that it gifted the Foundation for initial inventory for the gift 
shop 

0 Establish a process to track employee volunteer time to ensure the time spent is outside 
work hours 

0 Establish a process to monitor the Foundation to ensure compliance with contract 
agreements and ensure the Foundation is in active status with the Secretary of State 



Attachment FF 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Scope of Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into effective the 
1St day of April, 2019 by and between Prosser Public Hospital District No. 1, Benton County, 
Washington d/b/a Prosser Memorial Health (the “Hospital”) and Prosser Memorial Health 
Foundation, a Washington non-profit support organization (the “Foundation”). 

WHEREAS, Foundation was formed as a support organization for Hospital under state 
law and under the Federal Internal Revenue Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Foundation is dependent upon the resources of Hospital to conduct its 
operations and its fundraising activities including, but not limited to, an Executive Director, a 
Chief Financial Officer, use of office space, recordkeeping capabilities, certain ancillary 
personnel, marketing services, supplies and equipment and other services; and 

WHEREAS, governmental entities like Hospital do not have the authority to perform 
certain services engaged in by Foundation and cannot donate resources to nonprofit 
organizations like Foundation without receiving fair market value consideration for those items 
or services; and 

WHEREAS, the Hospital benefits fiom all the activities of the Foundation and those 
benefits should increase if the Foundation is able to carry out its purposes without having to 
develop an administrative infrastructure separate and apart from that of the Hospital. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and for other good and valuable 
consideration the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Office Space. Hospital hereby agrees to provide office space to Foundation in 
consideration for rent paid in cash and/or services provided by Foundation to Hospital as 
described on Schedule 1 attached hereto, Hospital will provide to Foundation such amount of 
office space as Hospital deems appropriate to enable Foundation to carry out its services 
hereunder. The specific location and amount of space is set forth on Schedule 1. In the event the 
Board of Directors of the Foundation determines that additional space is necessary, the Board of 
Directors shall contact the Hospital and the Hospital will determine whether additional space is 
required. Foundation agrees that it will only utilize the space designated by Hospital and no 
other space unless it receives prior written authority from Hospital. 

2. Supp lies, Equipment and Insurance. Hospital agrees to provide to Foundation the 
basic supplies and equipment and insurance coverages necessary for the Foundation to carry out 
its purposes. The specific supplies, equipment and insurance provided by Hospital to Foundation 
and the cost of the supplies, equipment and insurance is set forth on Schedule 1. 

3. Executive Director. Hospital shall also provide to Foundation an individual to 
serve as the Executive Director of the Foundation. The cost of the Executive Director shall be 
set forth on Schedule 1. This individual shall be primarily employed by Hospital and 
compensated through the Hospital’s compensation program. However, the Executive Director 
shall be responsible to the Board of Directors of Foundation. The Hospital CEO may at any time 

1 
32680825v.1 



withdraw the services of the Executive Director and appoint a new Executive Director for the 
Foundation. The scope of duties and the time devoted by the Executive Director to Foundation 
shall be determined by the Hospital after consultation with the Foundation. The specific 
qualifications and duties of the Executive Director are attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

4. Additional Personnel. The Hospital shall provide to the Foundation such 
additional personnel as the parties deem appropriate including a Chief Financial Officer and a 
Busy Bean/Gift Shop Coordinator for such amount of time and for such consideration as is 
described on Schedule 1. The Hospital CEO shall have the authority to remove and replace the 
Chief Financial Officer at his discretion after discussing the proposed action with the Foundation 
Board. 

5. Fair Market Value. The parties acknowledge that for all purposes hereunder, 
Foundation will pay fair market value consideration for all items and services it receives fi'om 
the Hospital. Foundation shall use investment income earned by Foundation and shall not use the 
corpus of the Foundation to pay for items or services provided by Hospital without the prior 
written consent of the Hospital. The parties also acknowledge that both parties will be receiving 
goods and services from the other party and instead of paying cash for each individual item or 
service, the parties may offset the fair market value of the items or services against what is 
provided by other party. Any remaining amount owed by one party to the other shall be paid in 
cash with the reconciliation to occur quarterly. 

6. Certain Expenditure of Funds. The Foundation acknowledges that it is a support 
organization for the Hospital. The Foundation has held itself out to the public that its role is to 
exclusively support the Hospital and has filed documents with the Internal Revenue Service 
stating that it will exclusively support the Hospital. Therefore, the Foundation agrees that it will 
make no expenditures for any purposes that are not directly in furtherance of the purposes and 
objectives of the Hospital and to the extent there is any question regarding the nature of 
expenditures made by the Foundation, the Foundation and the Hospital shall meet to determine 
whether such expenditures or the plan for such expenditures are consistent with the purposes and 
objectives of Hospital. 

7. Items and Services Provided bv Foundation. Foundation and Hospital 
acknowledge that Foundation will provide certain services and items including support 
volunteers for Hospital which will include staffing the gift shop and other activities on the 
Hospital premises as described on Schedule 2. Hospital will pay fair market value for the items 
and services Foundation provides to Hospital as described on Schedule 2. Although all 
volunteers will report to Foundation, it is acknowledged that all activities of the volunteers and 
all revenue generated by the volunteers shall belong to and be reported to the Foundation which, 
in turn, shall report all related revenues and expenses to the Hospital. The Foundation will 
implement a policy and procedure to assure that no Hospital employees are providing volunteer 
services during scheduled work time. To the extent there is any dispute between any volunteer 
and the Foundation or any other issue associated with the activities of a volunteer that cannot be 
resolved by the Foundation, the Foundation shall immediately contact the Hospital and obtain its 
assistance in resolving any such issue. The Foundation will appoint a Volunteer Advisory 
Committee to the Foundation Board that will provide suggestions to the Board relating to 

32680825v.1 



expenditures for Hospital purposes fiom revenues generated by volunteer activities. The 
Advisory Committee will have no formal voting authority. 

8. Intellectual Prmgerfl. The Foundation may use the name of the Hospital and may 
develop names for events sponsored by or for the benefit of the Hospital so long as the 
Foundation receives written approval for such use from Hospital. At all times the names of each 
activity and the name of the Hospital and any other names associated with events sponsored by 
Foundation shall belong to and owned by Hospital. Upon the termination of the Foundation for 
any reason, the Hospital retains the right to use and control all such names. To the extent any 
intellectual property is developed by the Foundation, the development must be in the best interest 
of the Hospital and all rights of ownership of the intellectual property shall remain with the 
Hospital at all times. 

9. Meeting-pf Foundation Board. The Foundation agrees that at any meetings of the 
Foundation Board the Executive Director may be present at the meeting as well as any 
authorized officer of the Hospital. The Foundation shall give to the CEO of the Hospital notice 
of any Foundation meetings and a brief description of the content to be discussed at the meeting. 
Nothing herein is intended to eliminate or restrict the authority of the Foundation to act as a 
separate legal entity or restrict its Board making independent decisions regarding the activities of 
the Foundation to the extent not otherwise inconsistent with this Agreement. 

10. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall begin on the effective date first 
above stated and shall continue for a term of five (5) years and thereafter shall renew for 
additional five (5) year terms unless terminated as provided herein. Either party shall have the 
right to terminate this Agreement at any time by providing ninety (90) days prior written notice 
to the other party. Upon termination of this Agreement for any purpose, all assets of the 
Foundation and all other legal rights of the Foundation shall immediately revert to Hospital and 
Foundation shall indemnify Hospital for any liability or expenses incurred by Hospital relating to 
the termination event. 

11. Confidentialig. The Foundation and its Board agree that Foundation and its 
Board will access confidential information regarding Foundation activities, hospital activities 
and, potentially, patient information. The Foundation and its Board agree to keep all such 
information confidential and to comply with The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The Foundation will assure its volunteers also sign agreements requiring 
they keep information confidential. 

12. Accounting. The Hospital shall retain accountants as necessary to account for all 
activities of the Foundation and to file all appropriate reports and tax returns with appropriate 
governmental agencies. Foundation shall be given copies of all such documentation and reports. 

3268 0825 v. 1 



13. Governing Law. For all purposes, this Agreement shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Washington. Jurisdiction for any legal proceedings shall be Prosser, Washington. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties hereby execute this Agreement 
effective the day and year first above written. 

Prosser Public Hospital District No. 1, Prosser Memorial Health Foundation 
d/b/a Prosser Memorial Health 

By: By: 
Authorized Representative Authorized Representative 

32680825v.1 



EXHIBIT A 

1. Qualifications and Duties of Executive Director. The Executive Director provided by 

the Hospital to assist the Foundation shall have the following minimum qualifications and 

duties: 

1.1 To provide clerical support to the Foundation, Board Members, and Sub- 

Committee Members. 

1.2 To schedule Foundation and Sub-Committee meetings and take notes and draft 

minutes for each meeting. 

1.3 To complete and distribute agendas for each meeting. 

1.4 Maintain an updated mailing list of Board Members, and keep a detailed and 

updated database of Donors. 

1.5 Assist the Board in locating Foundation resource, training/educational materials 

and information. 

1.6 Coordinate training and educational activities. 

1.7 Schedule donor meetings in conjunction with Foundation Board Members and 

Sub-Committee members. 

1.8 Attend meetings between the Foundation Board Members and potential donors. 

1.9 Keep records of donor paperwork, budgeting and accounting and required filings 

with state and federal agencies for the Foundation. 

1.10 Create marketing and public relations campaigns for increasing donations to the 

Foundation. 

1.11 To take such other actions as directed by the Foundation Board. 

32680825v.1 



1.12 Have adequate computer skills and training to accomplish the duties as described 

above including but not limited to experience with the following Microsoft Office 

Suite programs: work, excel, access, publisher and accounting. 

1.13 Be able to type 50 words per minute. 

1.14 Experience with utilization of a multiline telephone system, facsimile machine, 

and copier. 

1.15 Work evenings and weekends when requested. 

1.16 Have working knowledge of marketing and promotional concepts and the ability 

to apply that knowledge to obtain results from the marketing and promotional 

campaigns. 

1.17 Have good interpersonal communication skills. 

2. Supervision of Executive Director. Hospital shall supervise the Executive Director on a 

day to day basis and shall be solely responsible for hiring and firing Executive Director in 

accordance with Hospital policy. Foundation shall have the authority to instruct 

Executive Director to take or not take certain action on behalf of the Foundation and 

Hospital shall not interfere with the instructions from the Foundation to the Executive 

Director so long as the instructions are in furtherance of the purposes of Foundation. Both 

parties agree that Executive Director during the course of Executive Director’s 

employment may obtain confidences fi'om either party. Neither party shall instruct the 

Executive Director to disclose a confidence of the other party. Neither party shall 

discipline the Executive Director for the Executive Director's failure to disclose 

confidential information regarding the other party. 

32680825v.1 



SCHEDULE 1 

Hospital Provided Services 

Administrative and Support Staff 3 104,455 
Insurance (Coverage/ Board Members) 8 400 
Office Supplies $ 1,010 
Rental Space $ 8,196 

TOTAL $ 114,061 

2020 
Administrative and Support Staff 

Position Hourly Rate Weekly Hours Annualized Total Expense 
Executive Director 3 64 8 416 $ 26,208 
CR Outreach Assistant 55 17 1 52 $ 884 
Chief Financial Officer $ 64 2 104 $ 6,552 
Busy Bean/Gift Shop Coordinator $ 23 40 2L080 $ 49,920 

Benefits 3 20,891 
TOTAL $ 104,455 

Insurance 

Board Member Quantity 10 
Cost Per Member 3 40 

Total $ 400 _ 

Office Supplies 

350 
420 
240 
10 

Rental Space 
Area 
Gift 

Bean 
Room 

Room Closet 
Total 

Rental Cost ' Cost 

32680825v. 1 

F 
206 
306 
115 
56 

683 



SCHEDULE 2 

Foundation Provided Services 

- Auxiliary Support $ 64,025 
Therapy Dog Service $ 1,300 
Chaplain $ 13,000 
Advertising $ 8,000 
Capital Expenditures $ 15,000 

TOTAL $ 101,325 

2020 
Auxiliary Support 

Position Hourly Rate Weekly Hours Annualized Total Expense 

Concierge Support $ 22 40 2,080 $ 45,760 
Per Diem Med/SurgAssistant $ 21 5 260 $ 5,460 
BMIS $ 12,805 

. TOTAL $ 64,025 

Dog Therapy Service 

Position Hourly Rate Weekly-Hours Annualized Total Expense 
Therapy Dog—Service $ 25 1 52 $ 1,300 

Chaplain 
Position Hourly Rate | Weekly Hours Annualized Total Expense 

. Chaplain $ 50 5 260 $ 13,000 

Advertising 
, Advertisement $ 8,000 

Total $ 8,000 

Capital 
Capital 15,000 

' Total $ 15,000 

Hospital Provided Services (Schedule 1) $ 114,061 
Foundation Provided Services (Schedule 2) $ 101,325 

Net Expenditures Total (Due to Hospital) ($ 12,736) ' 
, FOUNDATION SUPPORT PAYMENT TO HOSPITAL $ 12,736 _ 

32680825v.1 



27835919v.5 

Attachment GG 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

BYLAWS 

OF 

PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH FOUNDATION 

(a Washington Nonprofit Corporation) 



Table of Contents 

Page 

ARTICLE 1 Offices and Records ........................................................................................ 1 

1.1 Registered Office and Registered Agent ............................................................... 1 
1.2 Corporate Offices .................................................................................................. 1 
1.3 Records .................................................................................................................. 1 
1.4 Corporate Seal ....................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE 2 Members .......................................................................................................... 1 

2.1 Qualifications for Membership ............................................................................. 1 
2.2 Place of Meetings .................................................................................................. 2 
2.3 Annual Meetings ................................................................................................... 2 
2.4 Special Meetings ................................................................................................... 2 
2.5 Member’s Action by Consent in Lieu of Meeting ................................................ 2 

ARTICLE 3 Board of Directors ........................................................................................... 2 

3.1 Powers of the Board .............................................................................................. 2 
3.2 Number and Qualifications ................................................................................... 2 
3 .3 Appointment of Directors; Removal ..................................................................... 3 
3 .4 Tenure of Directors ............................................................................................... 3 
3.5 Board of Director Meetings .................................................................................. 4 
3.6 Notice of Board of Director Meetings .................................................................. 4 
3.7 Waiver of Notice ................................................................................................... 5 
3.8 Action of Directors by Consent in Lieu of Meeting ............................................. 5 
3.9 Meetings by Telecommunications Equipment ...................................................... 6 
3.10 Quorum; Action of Board ..................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE 4 Committees ..................................................................................................... 6 

4.1 Committees ........................................................................................................... 6 
4.2 Committee Action ................................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE 5 Officers ............................................................................................................ 6 

5.1 Elected Officers ..................................................................................................... 6 
5.2 Term of Office ....................................................................................................... 7 
5.3 Appointed Officers and Agents ............................................................................. 7 
5.4 Removal ................................................................................................................ 7 
5.5 Delegation of Authority to Hire, Discharge, and Designate Duties ...................... 7 
5.6 The Chairman of the Board ................................................................................... 7 
5.7 The Vice Chairman of the Board .......................................................................... 8 
5.8 The President ......................................................................................................... 8 
5.9 The Vice Presidents ............................................................................................... 8 
5.10 The Secretary and Assistant Secretaries ............................................................... 8 
5.11 The Treasurer and Assistant Treasurers ................................................................ 9 
5.12 Duties of Officers May be Delegated .................................................................. 10 

27835919v.5 



Table of Contents 

Page 

ARTICLE 6 Executive Director ........................................................................................ 10 

ARTICLE 7 Indemnification ............................................................................................. 10 

ARTICLE 8 General .......................................................................................................... 11 

8.1 Checks ................................................................................................................. l 1 
8.2 Fiscal Year .......................................................................................................... 11 
8.3 Amendments ....................................................................................................... 1 1 
8.4 Interpretation ....................................................................................................... 1 1 

............................................................................................................................. 12 

CERTIFICATE 

ii 
27835919v.5 



AMENDED AND RESTATED 

BYLAWS 

OF 

PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH FOUNDATION 

ARTICLE 1 
Offices and Records 

1.1 Registered Office and Registered Agent. The initial registered office 
and the initial registered agent of Prosser Memorial Health Foundation (the 
“Corporation”) in the State of Washington shall be as prescribed in the Articles of 
Incorporation. The initial registered office and the initial registered agent, and any 
subsequent registered office and registered agent, of the corporation in Washington 
may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors. The address of the 
registered office and the name of the registered agent shall be on file in the office of 
the Secretary of State of Washington pursuant to applicable provisions of law. Unless 
otherwise permitted by law, the address of the registered office of the Corporation in 
Washington and the address of the office of the registered agent in Washington shall 
be identical. If the registered agent is an individual, he or she shall be a Washington 
resident. 

1.2 Corporate Offices. The Corporation may have such corporate offices 
anywhere within and without the state of Washington as the Board of Directors from 
time to time may appoint or the business of the corporation may require. The 
principal office of the corporation may be determined from time to time by the Board 
of Directors. 

1.3 Records. The Corporation shall keep, as permanent records of the 
Corporation, minutes of the meetings of the Member, the Board of Directors and of 
committees of the Board of Directors and a record of all actions taken by the Member 
or by the Board of Directors or any committee thereof without a meeting, and the 
corporation shall maintain appropriate accounting records. The Corporation shall also 
keep, at its principal or registered office in Washington, such records and information 
as it may from time to time be required by law to keep at such location, if any. The 
records of the Corporation shall be maintained in written form or in any other form 
that is capable of being converted into written form within a reasonable time. 

1.4 Corporate Seal. The Corporation may have a corporate seal which 
shall be in the form prescribed by the Board of Directors. Said seal may be used by 
causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or in any manner 
reproduced. 

27835919v.5 



ARTICLE 2 
Members 

2.1 Qualifications for Membership. The sole member of the Corporation 
shall be Prosser Public Hospital District of Benton County, Washington d/b/a Prosser 
Memorial Health (the “Member”). 

2.2 Place of Meetings. All annual and other meetings of the Member shall 
be held at the time and at the place, inside or outside the State of Washington, 
determined by the Member. 

2.3 Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Member shall be held in 
December each year or at such other time as determined by the Member. If for any 
reason no meeting of the Member is held at such time, but the Member nevertheless 
designates a meeting of the Member held at another time as the annual meeting thereof 
(regardless of when such designation is made), then such meeting shall be considered 
to be a special meeting of the Member for purposes of determining by whom such 
meeting may be called and the time at which such meeting may be held. The purposes 
of the annual meeting shall be to appoint Directors and to transact such other business 
as may come before the meeting. 

2.4 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Member may be called at 
any time by the President, by the Board of Directors, or by the Member. Special 
meetings may be called for any purpose or purposes, but business transacted at any 
special meeting shall be confined to the purposes stated in the notice of such meeting, 
unless the transaction of other business is consented to by the Member. 

2.5 Member’s Action by Consent in Lieu of Meeting. Any action required 
by law to be taken at a meeting of the Member, or any action which may be taken at a 
meeting of the Member, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, 
setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the Member. Such consent shall 
have the same force and effect as a vote of the Member at a meeting duly held, and the 
Secretary shall cause to file such consent with the minutes of the meetings of the 
Member. 

ARTICLE 3 
Board of Directors 

3.1 Powers of the Board. The property and activities of the Corporation 
shall be controlled and managed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors 
shall have and is vested with all and unlimited powers and authorities, except as may 
be expressly limited by the Member, the law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these 
Bylaws, to do or cause to be done any and all lawful acts and things for and on behalf 
of the Corporation, to exercise or cause to be exercised any or all of its powers, 
privileges, and franchises, and to seek the effectuation of its objects and purposes. 

278359l9v.5 



3.2 Number and Qualifications. 

(a) The number of Directors to constitute the first Board of 
Directors shall be as prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation. The number of 
Directors to constitute the Board of Directors of the Corporation may be increased or 
decreased by the Member at any time and fiom time to time, but such number shall not 
be fewer than three. 

(b) A Director does not need to be a resident of the State of 
Washington. A Director must be at least 18 years of age. 

3.3 Appointment of Directors; Removal. 

(a) The Directors of the Corporation shall be appointed by the 
Member. At each annual meeting of the Member, the Member shall appoint successor 
Directors to replace each Director whose term in office then expires. The Member 
may additionally at any time fill any vacancy on the Board of Directors, regardless of 
how such vacancy was created. Other than Directors appointed to fill a vacancy, all 
Directors shall be selected from a slate of nominees presented by the Board of 
Directors to the Member. If the Member does not find a sufficient number of the 
nominees suitable to fill all of the positions up for appointment, the Board of Directors 
shall continue to present additional slates of nominees until all the positions have been 
filled. In the event that the Board of Directors fails to present a slate of nominees, the 
Member may appoint any individuals that satisfy the requirements of Section 3.2. 
All appointments shall be in writing and shall be delivered by the Member to the 
Board of Directors. 

(b) The Member may remove any Director at any time, with or 
without cause, by providing written notice of the removal to the Board of Directors. 

3.4 Tenure of Directors. 

(a) There shall be staggered terms of office for directors so that 
one-half of the directorships shall be up for appointment every other year (or if the 
number does not evenly divide by halves, the Board shall be divided as close to halves 
as possible). The Directors were initially divided into two classes by the Member in a 
Statement of Action by the Member dated effective September 7, 2017. The term of 
office of those of the first class shall expire at the 2020 annual meeting of the Member. 
The term of office of the second class shall expire at the 2021 annual meeting of the 
Member. At each succeeding annual meeting of the Member where Directors are up 
for appointment, the Directors appointed shall be appointed for a term of two years to 
succeed those whose terms expire. A Director appointed to fill a vacancy or a newly- 
created position on the Board of Directors shall be appointed for the unexpired term, if 
any, of his or her predecessor in office or for a term that ends on the date of the next 
annual meeting of the Member where Directors are up for appointment, respectively. 
Each Director shall hold office for the term set forth in this section and thereafter until 

3 

2783591 9v.5 



his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified, or until such Director’s 
earlier death, resignation, or removal. 

(b) A Director may not serve more than eight consecutive years. 
After serving eight consecutive years, a Director must vacate his or her position for at 
least two years before seeking re—appointment for another term. 

(c) The attendance of a Director at any annual, regular, or special 
meeting of the Board of Directors, such Director’s written approval of the minutes or 
written waiver of notice of any such meeting, or such Director’s execution of a written 
consent to directors’ action in lieu of a meeting shall constitute acceptance of the 
office of Director. 

3 .5 Board of Director Meetings. 

(a) The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held in 
December each year, commencing with the year 2017, and such meeting shall be held 
at the principal office of the Corporation or, if no such principal office has been 
designated, at the registered office of the Corporation in Washington or at such other 
location or on such other date as is specified by the Board or by the Member. If for 
any reason no meeting of the Board of Directors is held at such time or place, but the 
Directors or Member nevertheless designate a meeting of the Board of Directors held 
at another time or place as the annual meeting thereof (regardless of when such 
designation is made), then such meeting shall be considered to be a special meeting of 
the Board of Directors for purposes of determining by whom such meeting may be 
called and the time and place at which such meeting may be held. The purposes of the 
annual meeting shall be to elect officers, recommend to the Member a slate of 
Directors, to determine actions to be taken to carry out the purposes of the 
Corporation, and to transact such other business as may come before the meeting. 

(b) Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at 
such time and place as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time. 

(c) Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called, and 
may only be called, by or at the request of the President, by any three Directors or by 
the Member. Such meetings shall be held at such time and place as may be designated 
in the notice thereof given pursuant to section 3.6. 

((1) Actions of the Board of Directors taken at any meeting of the 
Board of Directors that is held at a time or place other than the time or place at which 
such meeting is required to be held pursuant to the provisions of these Bylaws shall be 
valid if notice of such meeting is waived pursuant to the provisions hereof. 

27835919v.5 



3.6 Notice of Board of Director Meetings. 

(a) The annual meeting of the Board of Directors contemplated 
by the provisions of the first sentence of section 3.5(a) shall be held without notice. If, 
however, a meeting of the Board of Directors is designated by the Directors as the 
annual meeting thereof pursuant to the provisions of the second sentence of section 
3.3(a), then notice of such meeting shall be given to the Directors by the person or 
persons who call such meeting (or a person on behalf of the Member) at least two days 
before the date of such meeting. 

(b) Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held 
without notice. 

(0) Notice of each special meeting of the Board of Directors shall 
be given to the Directors by the persons or persons who call such meeting at least two 
days before the date of such meeting. 

((1) If any meeting of the Board of Directors is permitted to be 
held without notice but notice of such meeting is nevertheless given, the giving of 
such notice shall not affect the validity of actions taken at the meeting, even if the 
notice is inaccurate in any respect or is improperly given. 

(6) Notice of any meeting of the BOard of Directors may be oral 
or written and shall state the date, time, place, and purpose of the meeting. Notice of 
any meeting of the Board of Directors may be communicated in person, by telephone, 
telecopy, email, or other form of wire or wireless communication, or by mail or 
private carrier. Oral notice shall be effective, 129., shall be deemed to be given to the 
recipient, when communicated. Written notice shall be sent to a Director at his or her 
United States mailing address, fax number, email address, or other address shown on 
the corporation’s records and shall be effective, i.e., shall be deemed to be given to the 
recipient, upon the earliest to occur of: receipt of such notice by such Director; the 
fifth day after deposit of such notice in the United States mail, as evidenced by the 
postmark, if mailed correctly addressed and with first class postage affixed; the date 
shown on the return receipt, if such notice is sent by registered or certified mail, return 
receipt requested, and the receipt is signed by or on behalf of the addressee; or the 
thirtieth day after deposit of such notice in the United States mail, as evidenced by the 
postmark, if mailed correctly addressed and with other than first class, registered, or 
certified postage affixed. 

3.7 Waiver of Notice. Any notice required to be given to a Director by any 
provision of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or any law may be waived in 
a written instrument signed by such Director, whether before, at, or after the meeting 
for which such notice is required to be given, if the instrument is filed with the 
minutes of the meeting or in the Corporation’s records. Attendance of a Director at 
any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting except where such 
Director upon arriving at the meeting or prior to the vote on a matter not noticed in 

5 

27835919v.5 



conformity with these Bylaws objects to the lack of notice and does not vote for or 
assent to the objected to action. 

3.8 Action of Directors by Consent in Lieu of Meeting. Any action which 
is required to be or which may be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors may be 
taken without a meeting if all of the members of the Board of Directors take such 
action and, to evidence such action, sign a written consent (which may be signed in 
two or more counterparts) that describes the action taken. Each such consent shall 
have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Directors at a meeting of the 
Board of Directors duly held and may be stated as such in any document executed on 
behalf of the corporation. The Secretary shall file such consents with the minutes of 
meetings of the Board of DirectOrs of the corporation. 

3.9 Meetings by Telecommunications Equipment. Unless otherwise 
provided in the Articles of Incorporation, any or all members of the Board of Directors 
may participate in any meeting of the Board of Directors by means of conference 
telephone or similar communications equipment whereby all persons participating in 
the meeting can hear each other. A Director who participates in a meeting in this 
manner shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting. 

3.10 Quorum; Action of Board. A majority of the Directors shall, unless a 
greater number as to any particular matter is required by law, the Articles of 
Incorporation, or these Bylaws, constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at 
any meeting of the Board of Directors. The affinnative vote of a majority of the 
Directors present at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be the act of the Board 
of Directors if a quorum is present when the vote is taken, except as may be otherwise 
specifically provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws. Less than 
a quorum of the Board of Directors may adjourn a meeting successively until a 
quorum is present. 

ARTICLE 4 
Committees 

4.1 Committees. The Board of Directors may designate one or more 
standing or special committees and appoint members of the Board of Directors to 
serve on them. Each such committee shall have two or more members, all of whom 
shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Each committee shall have such 
power and authority as is specified by the Board of Directors upon the establishment 
of such committee, subject to the Articles of Incorporation and applicable law. 

4.2 Committee Action. Each committee of the Board of Directors shall 
keep regular minutes of its meetings which shall be kept in the minute books or files 
of the corporation. The provisions of Article 3 relating to actions by written consent 
in lieu of meetings and participation in meetings by means of conference telephone or 
similar communications equipment shall apply to committees of the Board of 

27835919v.5 



Directors and members thereof. The Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the 
corporation may act as secretary for any committee if the committee so requests. 

ARTICLE 5 
Officers 

5.1 Elected Officers. 

(a) The officers of the Corporation shall at all times include a 
President, a Vice President, a Treasurer, and a Secretary. If the Board of Directors 
desires, the titles of Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board may be used for the 
President and a Vice President. One or more additional Vice Presidents and one or 
more Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers may be elected by the Board of 
Directors from time to time as it deems necessary or advisable. The same individual 
may simultaneously hold more than one office in the corporation, except that the 
offices of President and Secretary shall not be held by the same individual. 

(b) An elected officer shall be deemed qualified when such 
officer begins the duties of the office to which such officer has been elected and 
furnishes any bond required by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may 
require of such person, in addition to a bond, a written acceptance of office and a 
promise to discharge faithfully the duties of such office. Each officer of the 
corporation must be a member of the Board of DireCtors. 

5.2 Term of Office. Each elected officer of the Corporation shall hold 
office for a term of two (2) years but if no election of a new officer occurs, the existing 
officers shall continue to serve thereafter until his or her successor shall have been 
elected and qualified, unless such officer earlier resigns or is removed by the Board of 
Directors. No officer may serve more than four (4) two (2) year terms in any one (1) 
office. 

5.3 Appointed Officers and Agents. The Board of Directors from time to 
time may also appoint such other officers and agents for the corporation as it shall 
deem necessary or advisable. All appointed officers and agents shall hold their 
respective positions at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, and they shall have and 
exercise such powers and have and perform such duties as shall be determined from 
time to time by the Board of Directors or by an elected officer empowered by the 
Board of Directors to make such determinations. 

5.4 Removal. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of 
Directors and any employee may be removed or discharged by the Board of Directors 
or by the Member whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation 
would be served thereby. Such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract 
rights, if any, of the person so removed. 

5.5 Delegation of Authority to Hire. Discharge. an_d Desig ate Duties. The 
Board of Directors from time to time may delegate to the President, or other officer or 

7 

27835919v.5 



executive employee of the corporation authority to hire and discharge and to fix and 
modify the duties of employees of the corporation under the jurisdiction of such 
officer or executive employee. The Board of Directors may also delegate to such an 
officer or executive employee similar authority with respect to obtaining and retaining 
for the corporation the services of attorneys, accountants, and other professionals and 
experts. In the absence of any designation, the President shall have such general 
authority with respect to all employees and independent contractors whose services, in 
the discretion of the President, are required by the corporation. 

5.6 The Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board, if any, shall 
have all the authority, powers, and duties of the President if no separate President is 
elected by the Board and shall have such other authority, powers, and duties as the 
Board of Directors may determine, and any act required or permitted by law to be 
done by the President may be done instead by the Chairman of the Board. The 
Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the members and Board of 
Directors. The Member has the authority to preclude the election of a President or 
remove a President if a Chairman of the Board is elected. 

5.7 The Vice Chairman of the Board. The Vice Chairman of the Board, if 
any, shall have such authority and powers and perform such other duties as the Board 
of Directors shall from time to time prescribe. 

5.8 The President. 

(a) The President or the Chairman of the Board if no separate 
President is elected by the Board shall be the chief executive officer of the 
Corporation unless the Board of Directors elects a chairman of the Board and 
designates the Chairman of the Board as the sole or joint chief executive officer. The 
President shall have such general executive authority, powers, and duties of 
supervision and management as are usually vested in the office of the chief executive 
officer of a corporation and shall carry into effect all actions, directions, and 
resolutions of the Board of Directors. The President shall have such other or further 
duties and authority as may be prescribed elsewhere in these Bylaws or from time to 
time by the Board of Directors. If at any time there is no Chairman of the Board, or in 
the absence of the Chairman of the Board, the President shall preside at all meetings of 
the members and Board of Directors. 

(b) Although the President shall have the authority, powers, and 
duties set forth in the preceding paragraph, it is contemplated that the corporation’s 
business and activities will be managed on a day-to—day basis by the Executive 
Director of the corporation. The President shall monitor the Executive Director’s 
activities conducted on behalf of the corporation to the extent deemed by the President 
to be necessary or appropriate. Subject to action taken by the Board of Directors, the 
President may provide direction to the Executive Director from time to time, as the 
President deems to be necessary or appropriate, regarding the performance of the 
Executive Director’s duties. 

27835919v.5 



5.9 The Vice Presidents/Vice Chairman. The Vice Presidents shall have 
such authority and powers and perform such duties as the Board of Directors shall 
from time to time prescribe. If there is only one Vice President or Vice Chairman then 
he or shall, in the event of the absence, death, disability, or inability to act of the 
President, perform the duties and exercise the authority and powers of the President. 
Similarly, if there is a Vice Chairman, in the event of the absence, death or disability 
or inability to act of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall perform the duties and 
exercise the authority and powers of the Chairman. 

5.10 The Secretary and Assfitant Secretaries. 

(a) The Secretary shall have the general authority, powers, duties, 
and responsibilities of a secretary of a corporation. The Secretary shall attend all 
meetings of the members and Board of Directors, and he or she shall record or cause 
to be recorded and shall maintain the minutes of all meetings and written consents to 
action without a meeting of the Member and Board of Directors in minute books or 
files of the corporation to be kept for that purpose. The Secretary shall perform like- 
duties for each committee of the Board of Directors when requested by the Board of 
Directors or such committee to do so. The Secretary shall have the authority and 
power to authenticate records of the corporation. 

(b) The Secretary shall bear the principal responsibility to give, or 
cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Member and Board of Directors for 
which notice is required, but this shall not affect the authority of others to give such 
notice as is authorized elsewhere in these Bylaws. The Secretary shall see that all 
books, records, lists, and information required by the Articles of Incorporation or law 
to be maintained at the principal office of the corporation in Washington or elsewhere 
are so maintained. The Secretary shall keep in safe custody the seal of the 
corporation, if any, and, when duly authorized to do so (including authorization given 
by the President or other executive officer of the corporation), shall affix the same to 
any instrument requiring it, and when so affixed, the Secretary shall attest the same by 
the Secretary’ 5 signature. The Secretary shall perform such other duties and have such 
other authority as may be prescribed elsewhere in these Bylaws or from time to time 
by the Board of Directors or the President, under whose direct supervision the 
Secretary shall be. 

(c) The Assistant Secretaries, in the order determined by the 
Board of Directors, shall, in the event of the absence, death, disability, or inability to 
act of the Secretary, perform the duties and exercise the authority and powers of the 
Secretary. In addition, they shall perform such other duties and have such other 
authority as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe. 

5.11 The Treasurer and Assistant Treasurers. 

(a) The Treasurer, if any, shall have the general authority, 
powers, duties, and responsibilities of a treasurer of a corporation and shall, unless 

9 

27835919V.5 



otherwise provided by the Board of Directors, be the chief financial and accounting 
officer of the corporation. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility for the 
safekeeping of the funds and securities of the corporation and shall keep or cause to be 
kept full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to 
the corporation. The Treasurer shall keep, or cause to be kept, all other books of 
account and accounting records of the corporation and shall deposit or cause to be 
deposited all monies and other intangible assets of the corporation in the name and to 
the credit of the corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of 
Directors (except for assets, such as the corporation’s name, that are not susceptible to 
such deposit). 

(b) The Treasurer shall disburse, or permit to be disbursed, the 
funds of the corporation as may be ordered or authorized generally by the Board of 
Directors. The Treasurer shall render to the chief executive officer of the corporation 
or the Board of Directors, whenever asked by either to do so, an account of the 
financial condition of the corporation and an account of all transactions of the 
Treasurer and those under the Treasurer’s supervision. The Treasurer shall perform 
such other duties and shall have such other responsibility and authority as may be 
prescribed elsewhere in these Bylaws or from time to time by the Board of Directors. 

(0) If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give 
the corporation a bond, in a sum and, if required by the Board of Directors, with one 
or more sureties satisfactory to the Board of Directors, for the faithful performance of 
the duties of office and for the restoration to the corporation, in the case of such 
Treasurer’s death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office, of all books, papers, 
vouchers, money, and other property of whatever kind in the possession or under the 
control of such Treasurer that belong to the corporation. The cost, if any, of said bond 
shall be paid by the corporation. 

(d) The Assistant Treasurers, in the order determined by the 
Board of Directors, shall, in the event of the absence, death, disability, 0r inability to 
act of the Treasurer, perform the duties and exercise the authority and powers of the 
Treasurer. In addition, they shall perform such other duties and have such other 
authority as the Board of Directors shall from time to time prescribe. 

5.12 Duties of OfficersMay be Delegated. If any officer of the corporation 
shall be absent or unable to act, or if the Board of Directors so elects for any other 
reason that it may deem sufficient, the Board of Directors may delegate, for the time 
being, some or all of the functions, authority, powers, duties, and responsibilities of 
any officer to any other officer or to any other agent or employee of the corporation or 
other responsible person. 

10 

27835919v.5 



ARTICLE 6 
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer 

The Board of Directors and CEO of the Member will jointly appoint an 
Executive Director and a Chief Financial Officer for the corporation. The Executive 
Director shall, among other duties, carry out the goals and programs of the corporation 
pursuant to the job description adopted by the Board of Directors. In this regard, the 
Executive Director shall manage, and shall have such general executive authority, 
powers, and duties of supervision and management as are necessary or appropriate in 
order for the Executive Director to manage, the property, business, and activities of 
the corporation on a day-to-day basis. The Executive Director shall have such other or 
further authority, power, and duties (and the authority and powers of the Executive 
Director shall be subject to such limitations) as may be prescribed elsewhere in the 
Bylaws or from time to time by the Board of Directors (including in the job 
description for the position of Executive Director adopted by the Board of Directors). 
The Chief Financial Officer shall handle day-to-day financial operations of the 
corporation and execute financial instruments approved by the Board of Directors. 
The CEO of the Member can remove the Executive Director and/or Chief Financial 
Officer at any time after consultation with the Board. 

ARTICLE 7 
. W  

The corporation shall indemnify and protect any member, director, officer, 
employee, or agent of the corporation, or any person who serves at the request of the 
corporation as a director, officer, employee, member, manager, or agent of another 
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, trust, employee 
benefit plan, or other enterprise, to the fullest extent permitted by the laws of the State 
of Washington. 

ARTICLE 8 
General 

8.1 Checks. All checks, bank drafts, and other orders for the payment of 
money shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as 
the Board of Directors may fiom time to time designate. If no designation is made and 
unless and until the Board of Directors otherwise provides, each of the President and 
Chief Financial Officer shall individually have power to sign all such instruments 
which are executed or made in the ordinary course of the corporation’s business for 
the corporation. 

8.2 Fiscal Year. For accounting and income tax purposes, the corporation 
shall operate on such fiscal year as may be designated from time to time by the Board 
of Directors. 

11 

27835919v.5 



8.3 Amendments. The Bylaws of the corporation may from time to time be 
altered or amended in any respect or repealed in whole or in part, and new Bylaws 
may be adopted, by the Member. 

8.4 Intem. retation. As used in these Bylaws, the term “and” means and/or 
and the term “or” means and/ or, as appropriate. 

12 

27835919v.5 



CERTIFICATE 

I hereby certify that I am the Secretary of Prosser Memorial Health 
Foundation, a Washington nonprofit corporation, and the keeper of its corporate 
records; that the Amended and Restated Bylaws to which this Certificate is attached 
were duly adopted by said corporation’s Board of Directors as and for the Bylaws of 
the corporation effective as of July 1, 2019; and that these Bylaws constitute the 
Bylaws of the corporation and are now in full force and effect. 

_, Secretary 

13 

27835919v.5 



Attachment HH 

i. I" r... . 

DINGUS I ZHRECOR Gt HSSOCIHTES PLLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Board of Commissioners 
Prosscr Public Hospital District 

doing business as Prosser' Memorial Health 
Prosser, Washington 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Prosser Public Hospital District doing 
business as Prosser Memorial Health (the District) for the year ended December 31, 2019, we considered its 
internal control 1n order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control. 

During our audit, we became aware of opportunities for strengthening the District’s internal controls and 
operating efficiency. This letter does not affect our report dated March 17,2020, on the financial statements 
of the District. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. Our comments are 
summarized as follows: 

Bank Reconciliations 

Bank reconciliations were not completed accurately throughout the year. Monthly bank reconciliation 1s a key 
internal control for accurate financial reporting. 

We recommend the District develop policies and procedures to ensure completion of the bank reconciliation, 
with no significant unresolved variances, for each month. Accounting and revenue cycle staff will need to 
coordinate their efforts for the bank reconciliation process to be successful. The difficulties presented in bank 
reconciliation often are due to inconsistencies in cash posting batches compared to actual. bank deposits. To 
alleviate this, a daily reconciliation of cash posting batches to the bank deposits will be necessary. Procedures 
for accounting for and resolving timely cash deposits received without the necessary information to post to 
patient accounts (for example, electronic fund transfers received before the accompanying remittance advice 
is received), Medicare, and other third-payor take-backs will also be necessary. 

Written Policies and Procedures 

The District does not have current written policies and procedures for key transaction cycles. Written policies 
and procedures are necessary for consistent performance of key transaction cycles and related key internal 
controls. We recommend the District develop written policies and procedures for at least the following key 
transaction cycles: 

Financial close and manual journal entries 
Accounts payable and cash disbursements 
Payroll 
Cash receipting and posting 
Charge capture (see below) 
Billing 
Information technology 

We can provide the key transaction cycle information we have gathered through the audits as a starting point. 

12015EostMoin Avenue E Spokane Volley.WA 99206 | 509.242.0874 1 www.dzocpc1.com 



Board of Commissioners 
Prosser Public Hospital District 

doing business as Presser Memorial Health 
Page 2 

Charge Capture Controls 

The District does not currently have a formalized process and procedures for the charge capture process. To 
maintain maximum billing quality and efficiency, employees entering charges should perform various 
procedures with a high level of standardization. This consistency is possible if, along with hands-on training, 
employees have doCumentation of policies and procedures to follow. We recommend documentation of 
policies and procedures related to the charge capture be developed and updated regularly. 

There is no formal charge capture committee. There should be a committee that reviews the charge 
description master (CDM) to ensure it contains all of the services the District offers. We recommend a charge 
capture committee be formed with representation fi'om nursing, patient financial services, health information 
management, compliance, and administration. 

There are no written procedures for the CDM. There should be written policies and procedures describing 
how chargeable items are added, removed, and updated in the CDM. 

Accounts Payable 

The accounts. payable clerk prepares checks for signature and presents them to the senior Accountant for 
review and theDCFO for signature. The accounts payable checks are then returned to the accounts payable 
clerk after signing for mailing. Returning signed checks to accounts payable increases the opportunity for the 
accounts payable clerk to alter the checks before mailing. We recommend signed checks not be returned to 
the accounts payable clerk and instead be mailed by a different individual. 

Certain accounts payable are accrued using the average of historical invoices. The accrual currently used 
appears to be based on older invoices. We recommend the District update the averages used on a rolling basis 
to ensure accounts payable accruals are accurate. 

Investments 

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, 
requires the District to record investments at their fair market value. Currently, investments are being 
recorded at cost with accrued interest to account for changes rn fair market value. To be 1n compliance with 
current accounting standards, we recommend investments are compared to bank statements and adjusted 
directly to their fair market value without accrued interest. 

Prepaid Expenses 

The District has a number of prepaid deposits for rent and utilities outstanding as of December 31, 2019. We 
recommend reviewing the list of deposits to determine if they are still current. Prepaid expenses could be 
overstated if deposits that are not current are still recorded. 

Accounts Receivable 

There were significant credit balances in the patient accounts receivable aging by payer. Credit balances in 
accounts receivable should be reviewed monthly to ensure the District is not understating the accounts 
receivable balance, Causing the allowance to be understated as well. 

We can assist with identifying credit balances and other unusual accounts on a periodic basis. 

Long-term Debt 

The conditional Sales agreement with Bank of America requires the District set up an installment payment 
fund to be used for the payments on the bond. No such fund has been set up. We recommend the District 
create an installment payment fund in order to be in compliance with all aspects of the conditional sales 
agreement. 



Board of Commissioners 
Presser Public Hospital District 

doing business as Presser Memorial Health 
Page 3 

Lease Standard Implementation 

The District will be required to implement Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, 
Leases, in the year ending December 31,2020. The District will also be required to restate the year ending 
December 31, 2019, when implementing the new lease accounting standard. The District will need to be 
prepared to account for currently reported operating leases as capital leases on January 1,2020. 

We expect a material amount of lease obligations and the related assets will be added to the District’s 
statement of net position m 2020. 

We recommend the District develop and implement a plan to evaluate all leases during 2020. The 
implementation plan should include the following: 

Develop a system (spreadsheet or software) for monitoring leases. 
Prepare an inventory of all leased equipment and real estate. 
Review lease expense accounts while preparing the inventory. 
Develep written policies and procedures for all staff involved in equipment and real estate leases 
(accounting, department managers, purchasing, etc.). 

a Review existing service and supplies agreements for implicit equipment leases (an example 1s a 
laboratory analyzer provided if a certain amount of reagents are purchased fi-om a vendor). Develop a 
lease capitalization threshold. This would allow for leases with total payments under a certain dollar 
threshold to be expensed as paid (the current practice for operating leases). 

The District has very significant real estate leases. Such leases often contain renewal options which will need 
to be evaluated to determine if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant factors, that the lessee will 
exercise the option or not. 

We can assist with the implementation of the new lease standard. 

Closing 

We wish to thank the Chief Financial Officer, Controller, and their departments for their support and 
assistance during our audit. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, management, and 
others of Presser Public Hospital District doing business as Presser Memorial Health, and 1s not intended to 
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

pm. We & 24W F7446 
Spokane Valley, Washington 
March 17, 2020 



M93“ 33 gafii.¥ . was if...» 3 £3 at? 

3.3 

=_ ._.Zm._2_._u<._._.< 



atom... ”9.05m: \‘JIV mmoi 4" 

$550 98¢t 93.. 
BEsO @595 E0... 

uncflcaouud £33.". tumwuwu 3: mUOmmc .w $0.5c _ ”3025 

<No .. must”. :5 



00.0005 
«U 

0000205 00 000:0000 00 00:0 000526: 0:: >0 

000500: 00 0000:0050 003:: 05000 00. 000 0000000 ~00:09.0 
0: 30:0 _02E0 50 E00: 000.3000 00_:_E00_ 

0E0: _000E000 >00 :0: 0005000 00 00000 000 000> :000 0:03:00 ___>> 0000500? 00:0:0E0u :0:< 0:0 . 

00000000 000.000 0:0 2,030.. 

00. £00.: :000 000000: 000.800 00EEEOU 00:00:. 00000 0.0. 0: 00305 020 :05 00:05: :0 0000005 00:. . 

0000 £05 00:0 :05 000m 0:: 5:5 000:0EE000: 00 006:9: 0:: :2500 >__0E00: >_0:0EE: 

0:0 6000.0. 08: :02, 0000000 00. 050000 ~00000: 
00 0600000: 00390 ~2,050: 

:05 mc0.00E 0000:0300 :00: . 

2906:0000 E00: 0:: 0005050 $00.83 _0:0_>_0c_ :26 :05 

3.: 0:00 0:0 00_:_E00_ c000 0>0: 000m 0005. 0020300 .0000 00:03:08 05000: 0:0 3009 005000000 

:0 00:00:03 0000:0000EE0000 
5:00 0:0. :0 >c0E 0:03:80 0: .0000 E 00_:_E00_ 0000 00: : $=0cOE00< . 

05030: 00: 00EEE00 05 B :000 000 00300260 

:0 000:0000 £05 >=00_:_00o_m E05 :mzefi 0002, 00 0:05 0 0009000 0000 0>0: 00030000EE000: <3 :4 . 

000:: 0r: :0 00050.00; 0:: 

0:93:85 :::0E-0_E 00:00:00: 00 :05 0:0 me :62 0000000 m::00E 080303 00:0:0E0u :03: 00:: 0E. . 

:03: mHoN 0%. E00: mcEs 00:0: E0E0m0:0_>_ (No 0:: E 00_:_E00_ 00 0E0: 

:0 0000000 0:0 000000200 0: 00000030: 
0000:0008 :03: 0:: €000: 0 00:00: 00: 00:00: :0 000.0005 0:... . 

m0_uc.0_0_:0n_ 020000 3 :0E 000:5 E0E0w0005. 



mmmmfl G 
>333 mm: 322 . 

_m::o_>_ mbcm_o> . 
v_m_m_ 235:2 . 

>fim=o=§ 2&2 ._ 
mgmgmnzm £52 . 

:mEmm £03 . 
Nw.._Emz wcmfi . 

- _ . Emcusom mus: . 
(m 25:. mEmLQmfim .. 

3.5“. xmmh :osmccwEEOumm <Nn. 



:2c “2.68% ‘1. mWOL—n— 4" 

:ofiEoEwEE. EmUcBm 39%. 
5mm. Eh”: mco._ 

m_n_m>_mumm 3:383 
mEmamE 

33539:. 
8:38 mmhmzu 

>mo_o:;um._. co_HmELou,:_ 
5:5 

mczmom “Em mcsafiumm smmu 
=8>ma 

cEmesnmE smmu 
229mm mpcsoUu< 

$55 $532 _m:cm_>_ 
wmoU _m_ucmc_n_ 

cozmzficoUmm xcmm 
I 825:5 2: min—Emu. . 

E>Eag<§>2>mm 
5593. 

5389a . 

whzumuoi\>u=0n_ 
cosmUcwEEoumm 

5500 u. :35 



55m: _ozofimz 
.6305 x“. . EEEEEE 323.. new Eamon 2:3 “SE .35 _ Bu?! uca nuance ufiuwuufixflfifimfi 

33.5. new. 
Samoa 332.... qw 

EuEESGE mafia». new $.32 3.3a 25.0. :usa $32: :34. 
cawufifiau was“. tam 33:38.1 

:EEEEE $32.“. hflm £93 35s - 
32.5: new ~38“q mu=m=m> 

- 3.30.5 um: scum 25:05. O— 
mauve“. um: scum tawugh X0 U w my W E O 
financing—32.3. m v— 

SU U u. _ U 

£3238 s...__._§_u§_s%=_§_~ Bezuwcu EEEwE >3. . 

”gum. 
£5: :2; gagfigfi £35. “mmcmfog >m_ mcosmbcmEESmm . 

”gnaw“ Egéfifiw 
- .1 £2?“ “any. _. .. sign? . 

gas—3mm Hid Hg. 
_ 333%” Janna,“ Lm>OLQQ<\>>w_>wm c 

j . u a u n w .x. 
uEEEuuQEEu >.nn=m.fimu .H r. 

- 
rm .h OH._ _U 

3 < 

Lesion.” 
x. 

1.. - E "H M. W W ”M .d. -6 .mm .m H n 
M”. 

3“... 
LommmUOu-n— I 

Sanknfifluou a - .. _ 

sneak-33:3 a .. 
mm 

in“? 
mm 3%. H M M R .< n S... 33.. a. E . QL 3 umUOL &\>U_ _o& 

I 

an: 3.22. 5.: Esme Emu mas—En“. 523 can; Eco tans an...“ 
.1... _ :5; c. . . . 

ll 
CO._.H_.m—UCQEEOUQW_ .- 

“3:352 cozmtcmEEOUmm H mmma . 

.932... cormucwEEom _umcflfimumm 



£2.00... «2:05:02 
.‘1‘. :wmm0:n_ Ark 

00:0: xm:._. 0: E009: 0: m: 0:2 5: :050_:::0u 0:__0E_._. . 
:3m0: :50: 0:: 005—0009: 0:: 5:0: :0 :0_::0.:0E:0on_ 

3000:: m:_mo_0 :00. 5:9: 05 m:_::_0 
5:0:: :0:0:: 05 95:5 00:00: 0:: 3:05.558: 4: 

.00:::_: :0 :0500:_m_ 5: 005030: >_:0:0:: 0:: 3:: _0:0 5:9: 5:0 550:0: 05:0 000E900. 
o: :_5_5 0:00 29:: 50: 0:: m:0_::___0:000: 25:9: 0050.:E0u 

E380: ”E050: 0: 00__::: 20:9: 6:: :0m:0>0: m_ 0:500: :0 00::_:: 400:5:02 >_:0:0:: mom: :052000: 00:0 .:05:0_:50: :0500: 5:0 :0: :::::=08( 
0:: :0m:::_>_ 9.: 0: 005:0:0: 0:: E5000: m::0_0_._ 0: 00:00: 000::_:m . 

0:30: N: ::5 :0_0_0 :_:::0: 0.0: 0.0 00092:: @0002: 
50: :50 5:5 50: “5:0:5030: :: :0 mw:_0:_: :_ 000.300: ES: flow 05 9:055: xIm 305:: :_ 0005: 3:080: 00:0:030 am:__0_0:: __: 00:0:000: 

:05:0_:5:0_0_ :0 0:00: :N 55:5 :3000 
0: 3:055:30: :0: E: 00. 0:5 _:0: m:0::0 0:50: 5:0 ::0:0: 0: 03: m_ m:5::000< .m:___0:000: :0: 3000:: 25:9: v:: 52005 5::0 : 005::3: 

wfiom - meow E0:: :0_:: m:___0:000: :00: 0:: «fig .38 00:? 2:5000: 0.9:: 05 :0 :0__0:000: m:_:050::: 05 :00: 0:: :0E5 (:u “00:55:02 :9: :050 m:_v_:: 00000:: _:::0::_ :: 
00. v_0:n_ 00000:: :05:___0:000: v_::o_ 05 3:055:05 05 ~mam 50:03: :0 a: 

0_>:Q\0_::::0:m . 
:050:::<\50_>0m 

0_::::0:m\0__0:0:>_ . 
5:3: 

0__0:0__>_\00._ >::_>_\:__0>._ 
. 

58000:: 

0_>:o\0_:0::0:m\0__0:0__>_\00._ 
>::_>_\:__0>._ 

. 
0::0000::\>0__0: 

:05:___0:000m_ v_::m 



Emmoi AU 

85... xmmh 
3 £5m 8. ma 23 >3 COEmEEou wEEEP . 

Emma 26: 
mm; mmhstwuoha Ucm 5:8 96 cormEsuoo . 

mmmLmEQ 
E {95 Esvwsum Ucmimw> Em >_._wtm:.0 

8553mm. Esnmsum Em 5:02 . 
nmsflfifimm Escmcum mmoU F536 

352533 26: m_ Hm__v_um;u 305 5:22 _m_u:mc_n_ . 

flaw 
£3: 
. H 

E>mo\w_cmr_o_3m . 
E>o._n_o_<\>>m_>mm 

2:20.95 . 
L363< 

m:::30uu<\:_m;u 20533;; . 
5382a 

mczcsondgEmcu >_QQ:m\mnE . 

awuoE>u=om 

mmoU _m_u:m:_n_ 



£56: 3:059; 
‘1' 

.539: 4" 
. 33],: .. __. 
uni-fills... 

r 
T .1. 

,_ fi.fi.¢uU . , 
mam-c; 

034 '. 

:_>mn_\m_:m:o_3m . 
OULO mm 0 u_ v— ._. p :w>o:n_a<\>>m_>wm E33: 3 ma m5: 3 :oswEEou w:__wE_._. . 
:smm: Bo: mEEQBm . 

mm: 35:80:: U:m 5:0: U6 :o:$:wE:q . :36:< 
355% EEEEEEQEcfi . 

Em @325: 6:35 0:3 :0 F536 :_ Emmmuoa 
vw:m__n_9mm Em m_ob:ou 25:9: c.9525: m_:m::3m\m=m:u_2\m_e32:2: . 

Em BEE: Em mw_b:w 3:50.. _m::m_>_ . Esumuefiazo: 

355 3:50.. _m3:m_>_ 



5.3m: 6:0Emz _‘ ..7 -. .I.-..:.. . 
539...... .U . ._.m...__..___§._____.w.m____.m____ 

85¢ v_mm.._. B Ewmma 
8 ma pmzmsd‘ >3 >u__0n_ U6 cozwfiEou wEEEc. . 

@2369. mm Umuma 
23239.25 mEon Em mmmmmuoa Eozm _mcoE_o_om Emma 52 $6.. 20:88 U5 8:2“ct 

In 

E...Ea.....u..=.584w EQEEQBm . 
m6. 3.5.: 5833 E55, 2033?: EBm>m . ..m>oao_<\>>m_>mm . 

5.888: mm mmmmmuoa m_:m;Q3m\m_E2 . 
:96 new 20.5.28 mummmfiv “.m B 33233 3 mafia Em mm_._.n_ U5 33:5: Esta, mcormtE: . Lot—u < ._ 

- >u__on_ m_c:o._\ww._ >L_m_>_ .. 
5382a . 

8.6; v33. 3 Emmma 3 
ma 9:... >2 9836803 US COBEQEOU mEEEF . m_:m;o_wu.m\m_cco._\mm._ 

3:22 . 

“5:25.38 Em wSBwUEQEBBQ . 
_m>o._n_o_m Ucm 

.322”: ~mctmEm Km_o.:.c_0u LoE . 
- mwSUqm 

w_n_m>mn_ 3:3084‘ 



:znm: 5:0s 
\‘J' 598...”. rm maze“. 9.: 5.52: 

i 

m. . 
E>mo\w_cmr_n_3m . 

a, . _ . 

_._Ea§=_.=%=§ @93n 
35; v33 8. Emmwa B mEEQBQEEE . 

ma “msmsd‘ >o_ 5:8 “—0 co_”_m_n_Eou wEEEfi . Lot—2% 
080“— xmm._. OH “comma on— ma $2333 322 . 

9:: >2 83883 US comma—too wEEEfi . Emmwuoi 
Umr—fl—QBmQ mzm _w>o._n_o_m wEmLQBmEECOAES 3.22 . 

Ucm $338 fictwpcw 36:58 LoE . Ezuwuoiéuzoa 

mucmEmflsnmE zmmu 



EEm: .0 EOEmE JV 
wWOLQ Ark wag—“EDGE. 

mgmuflufiga 32m mmflfih: gamma—E _ 
._ 

EEGES $55.. Enafiafi 
maxmu inn. 

‘, _ 
nausea—Bu magnunfi aiming 

-— 

. - 

.. 
i 

080“. v32. 9. E303 8. 
ma “hams/x >3 5:8 U5 co:m_QEou mEEEfi . 

85¢ xmmk B “gamma 3 ma 
9:: E 356805 US COBmEEou mcsfi . 

umcflfifimm Em E5306 
_o:m $539. ctflcm £95.50 hmaoi . 

om\E>mo\wEmcqm . 

._m>o.an<\3w_>wm 

mEmLQBm . 

5:95 

26:22 . 
LOmmmUOLL 

mEmLQBQEELEE . 
Escmuoihruzom 

=2>mm 



£3s ELOEmI 
‘1' 5305 ft 

fl 49:, x fl $3 ”53.. 
.3 

itcmm m_ 505 5E? m_ wscm>mm 
38558 mm. 883 >__mu_m3mbm 

mEmn Em $3890. :95 _m:oE_o_om 
Emmm So. mw_2 mEfimog U6 cosbscm‘atfi EmEmfiBm . 

9: BE: :oflsfi 55:2, 225:5: EBm>m . 38393325”. 

Emmmwuwc mm mammwuoa ttsm m_cm;QBm\m__m;u_§ . 
Ucm 20:58 Bamflwt “.w B cmmmmhttm L363 

mn Em mm_._.n_ U6 LwnEsc SEE, mcozmtE: . 2.223%: . 
222 US Ucw >o_ UwqEoU mEma mmwuoa 5988:. 

U6 coBmEmEsuoo .tm;m__0_3mw 8m _m>o‘_n_o_m m_:m%_3m\m__m;u_E\%:_<m63 . 
Ucm $338 \mctwpcm .2828 $0.95 . EnumuoEEa 

macho; tam MEEEuwm smmu 



£20m: EEDEmE 
‘J’ Emmet“. .rx 

c.2568 mm Umuma >__mu_m3mbm 
mEmg mam mwmmmuoa tbsm EcoEU—uw 

Emma 52 36.. 20:38 U6 cozmscm‘fitfi 
9: BE: c833 SEE, mcozmtE: E396 . 

Emmmwuwc mm mwmmmuoa ttsm 
Ucm 203:8 3mm2mt “.m 8. twmmwgtum 

9.53 95 fit “—0 5353: 55:5 mcormtES . 
>m_>_ U5 _o:w >2 35588 mn 8805 

U5 cosficwEsuoo .tmcflzfimm Em E5305 
Ucm §2>E fictmpcm £03.50 50.05 . 

a: 2.5;. :22: 
Ecmcampmktcz . 

$>o§q<\3m_>mm 

mnE<mcmE . 
Lot—03‘ 

mtm_>_ . 
Emmwuoi 

muE<mtmE . 
Esnwuoibczom 

m=____m 



Eimz ECOEmz a 
5305 «(y 

385.98 mm Uwuma >=m2m3mbm 
mEma Em mmmmmuoa ttzm Ecozfinm 

Emma Ba 36.. mfifimoq U5 cozmscwhflnzn E>$<E>mn<2cmsn§m . 
9: mtE: c0m>>m._ 

SEE, mcozmtE= Ewym>m . Lm>oaa<>§>mm 

Emmmwum: mm $3805 :96 mEEQBmESQ . 

.25 20.558 mummflmt when 3 vwmmwgntm Stag 

mn Em mm:.u_ US .6323: Est; mcosmtEE . t . 
>22 95 3cm 3 UmEEoQ mn 330.5 5389.“. 

“B cosmycmEzuoo .Umsmznfimm Em $2:a 5385. . 
3cm c525. swarmth» £95.28 532; . wSuSoEEéom 

>mo_oc;uwh corn—Eat: 



56¢... 3:0s ‘1' .5305 r1 

omom mo 3 
BEEEOU m5 3 cormEmEsuov 233803 

Ucm mmmuoa Emma 26: :5, mmEEEou 
omoQN 

5 82¢q Ucm acct 8w; 290505 tcm 
22.0.32 __< 490503 Ucm 26s LoE 

.2 Ewtmfl =m 8. 82280. mm? $50 95 
_w>w_ 25320m E Em mcmmE mEEOU 

twvwmc mm >_Ew=_ow¢ EOE Lo 25:9: Em; Em. mmczmmE 2:58 mmgwcu Ucm 223m . 
.mHON LwQEmuwo tmsflfimpmw mm? wwEEEou 

_u_>mn_\m_cm;n_3m\mtc_._ 
. 

Lw>ohaa<\§w_>wm 

w_:m:n_3m\m_u:_._ 
.. 

Let—0.3 

mcmE . 
5388; 

w_:m;n_3m\mcc:\mcm_o . 
wwuoi\>u__on_ 

2:53 wmhmcu 



$.s .UzoEmz 
‘1‘ L m m WOL n— arlv‘ ...>u_uo“ 

.muma 9.: .96 =5 :39 335E 9:... 

3:3m 8 Sta US$50: 
mg “.0: :5, mEun m:_UcBm._wuc: m5 

Emtm 3 >028 mcsmnqs 06 >t=£mmoa 9: mm 
:95 mm >352 E 2 $303 3384‘ 593E . 

Emom\m_EU\E>mD\mEmsqwum . 
E>o§g<\\sm_>mm 

E>mo\w_cm;o_3m . 
Ettaq 

wEEqBQEES . 

Emmwuoi 

_0_>mo\m_:mr_n_3m . 
wgstwuohfifizg 

35::n 



LEU$I ‘U_._OE$Z 
‘J' 5..”o F1 

383a $03 Em 26: Ucm :96 $0 mEB 
m5 Hm mEmE __< 

.>__mmwumcc: 59:8 
#8056 0: 83cm 8 Em; >55 BEEEOU 

m_ 8.50q can mEmawE __< *0 :U:< . 
wucmci 

U6 58.25 >0. 855% 20:25:82 
5:5 25:09. umBmSE Em mEQE . 

U_>mo\w_cmco_3m . 

E>€qa<§>£>mm 
mEEQBm . 

L863 
m_::o._\mm._ 

22>. . 
5.889.”. 

w_cm;n_3m\w_cco._ 
. 

wSuwuoE\>u__om 

mEmnEa 



5.06: 559.22). ‘1' $305 .rx 
. Eugkfimt: £5.53. 3 mafia :3 5m 

5323.93.39 a «9.3 «so _ 

V250 E: 
E1: F3 u... 

L. AmLJqE mgr 

R 

my. 
mmamqauuua $2203: 

cam “ 
p3. m5 Sam...“ mam: an; 93 

m_> >2 BEEEOU 
£5 96: 8 3526 cam w>:m:_:_ 2: 

Sim cwmn mm; .mmmcmE TE 26: mi. 
.omom 

Lou, 5305 m m_ mwucflmn 385 ”—0 a: :86 . 

iL W M ma... mix. 3 * 

EH3... Q... lukn: _ 

3.9.. 
. 

.guapzauu: E a: 
p 

E... z. .33.... ‘ 

E>moxflcmsampm . 

Lm>o§q<\§m_>mm 
“2:2a . 

56% 
WE . 

5332a 

$.54?n . 
mScmuoE\>u__om 

mEmZmm 3:383 



mung-ma no— u “is a: 
5.0m: EEGEmE 

\‘JV mwoi f1 

mun—ow E 
ooodmfi v.3 

0&3 
woum 2% “Boas 
“we: now Em 

twsmimumm muco “wwcm 
mucflmm m5 :o :98 $859o mm tmEmmEu 

an ___>> 
.35: EwE>mQ EwE__BmE B .0322 

mmEEo; wiwmm: Lou. xcmm m: 9. nmEEnsm 
Escuum wiwmm‘. Em: Lou. co_pmu_._o_o_< 

E>QEmsn3m . 

._w>o‘_n_n_<\>>w_>mm 
2:93m . 

L363 
220.. . 

Emmwuoi 
wEEQmummcg . 

wStmuoE\>u=on_ 

Sun. 2:2. 96.. 

i 



£23: 656% ‘10 cmEEmE fiENS.. 03m. mmm 
gmmwoga affix I . 

_.. 

may a Maryafifiambfimg E 

33.0 23:“— m B So tmsmsa 
mn ZEESUV EwEmLSUE US 9.22 

mm<n<mm<o m5 3 Emstm B Buwaxm 5:55 . 
32:?m 53 gm; mmmmfl __< . 

. rmwllffixu 

@fiwfifi _ .93?m 

E>mE§aBm . 

E>o§a$§m$mm 

mEmfiBm . 

._ou~__u_2a.~ 
m_:co._ . 

Lommwuoi 

m_:m;o_3m\m_cco._ 
. 

mStwuoihfizoa 

:osmucmEE. Emucfim 363 

I 


	Board Work Session Agenda 5.26.20
	Board Meeting Agenda 5.28.20
	BOC Work Plan FY2020
	2020 Strategic Plan Scorecard
	2020 Patient Care Scorecard
	4.30.20 Minutes - Board Meeting
	Finance Committee Agenda 5.26.20
	Finance Committee Minutes 4.29.20
	CEO Memo - May 2020
	Attachment S
	Attachment A - AHA/WSHA Need Care?
	Attachment B - CMS Guidance COVID-19
	Attachment C - Gov. Inslee Proclamation
	Attachment E - PMH Decision Aid To Determine Need for Surgery or Procedure
	Attachment F - Merry Fuller Letter
	Attachment G - WA Hospitals Face New Crisis
	Attachment H - AHA - Financial Impact of COVID-19
	Attachment I - COVID-19 Effect on Surgical Procedures - PMH
	Attachment J  - COVID-10 Adjusted Patient Days 
	Attachment K - COVID-19 Effect on Net Revenue
	Attachment L - COVID-19 Effect on Net Income
	Attachment M - COVID-19 Financial Projections
	Attachment N - Financial Assistance During COVID-19
	Attachment O - Practice Transformation Project
	Attachment P - Donations to PMH
	Attachment Q - Letters of Thanks
	Attachment R - Patient Satisfaction Scores - April 2020
	Attachment S - Hospital Week Schedule PMH
	Attachment T - Hospital Week Games & Fun
	Attachment U - Hospital Week Winners
	Attachment V - National Donut Day - June 5, 2020
	Attachment W - The PULSE - May 2020
	Attachment X - Platinum ASPIRE Award Recipients
	Attachment Y - Uniform Program 2021
	Attachment Z - Afton Dunham, Certified Nurse Practitioner
	Attachment AA - Medical Staff Engagement & Retention Plan 2020
	Attachment BB - PMH Feasibility Study 
	Attachment CC - Market Overview Assessment
	Attachment DD - Budgeted Financial Performance Targets
	Attachment M - 6-Month Financial Projections
	Attachment EE - WA State Auditor's Management Letter
	Attachment FF - PMH & PMH Foundation Revised Contract
	Attachment GG - Foundation Bylaws
	Attachment HH - DZA Management Letter
	Attachment II - Audit Compliance Task Force - Initiative

